Blochman Union School District
Benjamin Foxen School * 4949 Foxen Canyon Road
Santa Maria, CA 93454 * (805) 937-1148

BOARD OF TRUSTEES AGENDA
Tuesday, May 13, 2025
Library
5:30 p.m. Regular Session

Any materials required by law to be made available to the public prior to a meeting of the Board of

Education of the District can be inspected at the above address during normal business hours.

Individuals who require special accommaodations including, but not limited to, American Sign Language
interpreter, accessible seating or documentation in accessible formats should contact the superintendent or
designee within a reasonable time before the meeting date. Board agendas can be found on the district’s website
at www.blochmanusd.org.

Governing Board Members
Shannon Clay, President
Kelly Salas-Ernst, Clerk
Thomas Gibbons, Trustee
Daniella Pearce, Trustee
Jeania Reasner, Trustee

I PUBLIC SESSION: 5:30 p.m. Call to Order and Flag Salute
II. Welcome Guests

III. Reports
A. Charter School Reports
i. Family Partnership Charter School

ii. Trivium Charter School
iii. Trivium Charter School: Adventure
iv. Trivium Charter School: Voyage

B. Teacher Reports

C. Principal’s Report

IV, ITEMS SCHEDULED FOR INFORMATION
A. Facilities
i. General maintenance
B. Facilities Use
i. Neomi Perdue; 5/1/25; tables and chairs
C. Recognition of teachers and staff
D. SBCEO Analysis and Recommendations
i. Second Interim Financial Report

L 1 Poar
May 13, 2025 Board Agenda



V. ITEMS SCHEDULED FOR DISCUSSION
A. 2025/2026 Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) and 2024/2025 Annual
Update

VI. CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS
A. Approval of Minutes
i. Minutes of April 8, 2025, Regular Meeting

**% IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT the Board of Education approve the Minutes as presented:

MOVED: SECOND:
VOTE:

Shannon Clay: Jeania Reasner:
Daniella Pearce: Kelly Salas-Ernst:
Thomas Gibbons:

B. Approval of Monthly Warrants — April, 2025

i. Payroll $239,636.27
ii. Commercial Warrants $308,880.70
iii. Revolving Fund 3 0.00

TOTAL $548,516.97

**% [T IS RECOMMENDED THAT the Board of Education approve the Warrants as
presented:

MOVED: SECOND:
VOTE:

Shannon Clay: Jeania Reasner:
Daniella Pearce: Kelly Salas-Ernst:

Thomas Gibbons:

C. Approval of Family Partnership Charter School 2024/2025 P-2 Attendance report:

*%* IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT the Board of Education approve the Family Partnership
Charter School 2024/2025 P-2 Attendance report as presented:

MOVED: SECOND:
VYOTE:

Shannon Clay: Jeania Reasner:
Daniella Pearce: Kelly Salas-Ernst:
Thomas Gibbons:

D. Approval of following 2024/2025 charter school reports:

i. Trivium Charter 2024/2025 P-2 Attendance report
ii. Trivium Charter School: Adventure 2024/2025 P-2 Attendance report
iii. Trivium Charter School: Voyage 2024/2025 P-2 Attendance report

L 2 Lo d
May 13, 2025 Board Agenda



**% IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT the Board of Education approve the Trivium Charter
Schools 2024/2025 reports as presented:

MOVED: SECOND:
YOTE:

Shannon Clay: Jeania Reasner:
Daniella Pearce: Kelly Salas-Ernst:
Thomas Gibbons:

VII. ITEMS SCHEDULED FOR ACTION

A. Approval of the Benjamin Foxen Elementary School April 2025 attendance report.

*** IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT the Board of Education take action to approve the
Benjamin Foxen Elementary School April 2025 attendance report as presented:

MOVED: SECOND:
VOTE:

Shannon Clay: Jeania Reasner:
Daniella Pearce: Kelly Salas-Ernst:
Thomas Gibbons:

B. Approval of the Blochman Union School District’s 2025/2026 Consolidated
Application.

*** IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT the Board of Education take action to approve the
Blochman Union School District’s 2025/2026 Consolidated Application as presented:

MOVED: SECOND:
VOTE:

Shannon Clay: Jeania Reasner:
Daniella Pearce: Kelly Salas-Ernst:
Thomas Gibbons:

C. Approval of the following revised board policies:
i. BP 1312.2; AR 1312.2; E(1) 1312.2; BP 1340; AR 1340; BP 3311; AR 3311; BP
3311.1; AR 3311.1; BP 3312; BP 3516.5; BP 3580; AR 3580; BP 4151; BP
4251; BP 4351; BP 4158; BP 4258; BP 4358; AR 4158; AR 4258; AR 4358; BP
5125; AR 5125; BP 5131; BP 5131.6; AR 5131.6; BP 5131.8 BP 5141.5; BP
5141.52; AR 5141.52; BP 5145.13; AR 5145.13; BP 6142.93; BP 6142.94; BP
6159; AR 6159; BP 6159.2; AR 6159.2; BB 9224; BB 9260

*** IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT the Board of Education take action to approve the revised
board policies as presented:

MOVED:; SECOND:
VOTE:
Shannon Clay: Jeania Reasner:
Daniella Pearce: Kelly Salas-Ernst:
Thomas Gibbons:

L d 3 L

May 13, 2025 Board Agenda



VIII. PUBLIC COMMENTS

PUBLIC COMMENTS ARE WELCOME
The Blochman Union School District will receive public comments about items not appearing on
today’s agenda, as well as other matters within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Board. All such
comments will be received during the Public Comments section of the agenda. Individuals who
address the Board are limited to three (3) minutes to speak on any item and a total of 10 minutes on all
items for their presentation. The Board may limit the total time for all public comment to 30 minutes.
Persons needing additional time are requested to submit the information in writing.

For comments concerning matters not on the agenda, open meeting laws and fairness to other
residents who may have an interest in your topic prohibit the Board from taking action or engaging in
extended discussion of your concerns. The Board may direct staff to meet at a later date with speakers
who have specific concerns or needs. The Board may also direct that an issue be placed on a future
agenda for discussion and consideration. This permits the Board and staff members to prepare and
receive necessary information and for the public to be aware that a topic is being formally considered.
We appreciate your cooperation.

IX. MISCELLANEOUS AGENDA ITEMS

A. Items Proposed for Future Action or Discussion
B. Blochman Union School District Board Member Items
C. Items not on the Agenda

D. Next Scheduled Board Meeting: June 10, 2025; open session at 5:30 p.m., in the Library.
There will be a Special Board meeting on June 12, 2025, at 5:00 p.m. to approve the
LCAP and the 2025/2026 budget.

X. CLOSED SESSION — The board will consider and may act upon the following items
during closed session:
A. Certificated and Classified Personnel Actions
i. The Board will be asked to review and approve hiring, transfers, promotions,
evaluations, terminations, and resignations.

XI. RECONVENE IN OPEN SESSION
A. Report of action taken during closed session.

XIl. ADJOURN

Time:

MOVED: SECOND:
YOTE:

Shannon Clay: Jeania Reasner:
Daniella Pearce: Kelly Salas-Ernst:
Thomas Gibbons:

May 13, 2025 Board Agenda






~

- Santa Barbara County Education Office

SANTA BARBARA 4400 Cathedral Oaks Rd, PO Box 6307, Santa Barbara, CA 93160-6307

Cou:gety‘Educauon Office Telephone: (805) 964-4711 -+ FAX: (805) 964-4712 + sbceo.org
rvice & Leadership

Susan C. Salcido, Superintendent of Schools

April 16, 2025 SBAS-9725

TO: School Board President
Superintendent
Blochman Union School District

FROM: Steve Torres, Associate Superintendent, Administrative Services 7?—'
SUBJECT: Second Interim Financial Report Analysis and Recommendations
Our office has transmitted the district’s Second Interim Financial Report with a positive
certification to the State Department of Education. Technical comments, if any, will be
communicated to the district’s business office.
If you have any questions, please feel free to contact me at ext. 5700.
ad
c Nancy Shafer, Interim Business Manager

Joshua Becerra, Administrator

Danielle Spahn, District Financial Advisor
Dr. Susan Salcido, County Superintendent of Schools

School Business Advisory Services
FAX: (805) 964-3041



Pf

SANTA BARBARA
County Education Office
Service & Leadership

April 16, 2025

Santa Barbara County Education Office

Telephone: (805) 964-4711 -

4400 Cathedral Oaks Rd, PO Box 6307, Santa Barbara, CA 93160-6307
FAX: (B05) 964-4712

*  sbceo.org

Susan C, Salcido, Superintendent of Schools

TO: Doug Brown, Superintendent

Blochman Union School District
FROM: Joshua Becerra, Administrator

Danielle Spahn, District Financial Advisor 6
SUBIJECT:

SBAS-9726

Second Interim Financial Report Analysis and Recommendations

Based on the Second Interim Financial Report, it appears that the district will be able to meet its
financial obligations for the current and two subsequent fiscal years while maintaining the required
minimum level Reserve for Economic Uncertainties (REU). We therefore concur with the district’s
positive certification. A summary of the three-year budget submitted by the district follows.

General Fund Unrestricted (Fund 01) Year 1 Year 2 Year 3
|Beginning Balance $ 4,780461} $ 3,993,684 § 3,798,232
Revenue 2,748,962 2,803,780] 2,879,255
Expense 3,510,184 2,951,276 3,063,057
Operating Surplus / (Deficit) $ (761,222)| § (147,496)| $ (183,802)
Transfers In/Other Sources - - -
Transfers Qut/Other Uses - - -
Contributions to Restricted Programs] (25,555)f (47,956) (119,507)
Net Increase (Decrease) in Fund Balance $ (786,77 $ (195,452)| $ (303,309)
Ending Balance $ 39936841 $§ 3,798,232} § 3,494,923
Reserves
Fund 01
» Nonspendable - - -
» _Committed - - -
» _Assigned - - =
> Reserved for Economic Uncertainties* - - =
» Unassigned/Unappropriated* 3,993,684 3,798,232 3,494,923
* Total Available Reserves ($) $ 3,993684] 5 3,798,232] § 3,494,923
* Total Available Reserves (%) 92.28% 110.27% 97.81%
V The disirici is projecting an aperaling deficit in Wz resiricied general fund which can reflect one or both of two possibiiities - 1) the district is
spending down prior years' balances. or 2) It is spending in one or more resiricied programs boyond funds provided by the state or federal
governmond. Therefore, the district 1s making a contribution from its unrestricted general fund as noted above.

—— School Business Advisory Services

FAX: (805) 964-3041




Second Interim Financial Report Analysis and Recommendations
SBAS-9726

April 16, 2025

Page 2

Cashflow

The district’s cash flow projections indicate that the general fund will maintain a positive balance
throughout the year. Please notify our office immediately if a cash shortfall is projected that cannot be
covered through local means (i.e., interfimd borrowing).

Negotiations

According to the information provided, the district has settled negotiations through 2026-27 and
has included the costs in the budget and multiyear projections.

Conclusion

We are aware that the information provided reflects the district's financial position and
assumptions as of a point in time and that further adjustments will be made during the year as
additional data becomes available.

We wish to express our appreciation to the district staff for their cooperation during this review. If
our office can be of further assistance, please call us.

ad

c Nancy Shafer, Interim Business Manager
Dr. Susan Salcido, County Superintendent of Schools
Steve Torres, Associate Superintendent, Administrative Services






L2 Jo g abeyd 101181 [00Y2S AUBUBWB|T UOIUM UBWLDo|g JO) ueld A)IGeIUNasdy PUB [OU0T) [BD07 92-GZ0T

%0 - Jopue|s| ayioed Jayjo/ueliemeH aAeN,
%G6" - UeISy,

%481 - Uedlally Uuedijynoe|g..

9% ZG - DAllEN UB)SE|Y/UBIDU| UBJLIBLUY,
%¥e'S — Jeulo/alduinil,

%1 LGt — SUUA.

%L L - oluedsiH,

:SMOJ|0}
se ale sojydeibowap Juapnig "pajjolua YInoA J8)so} ou 1. 318y JIY OJUSA-ASUURIN Sy} JapuUn $S$3SWIOY JO UOIIUYSP 8y} }98L sjuapnis

JO 9| uey} $S9| pue ‘siaulea ysibug ale 96| ‘pebejueapesip A[EDILLOUOIBO0IN0S alk SJUSPN)S ay) Jo Juadsad xis-Alo4 “sjuspnis 0L

0] awoy sem |ooyog Alejuawall] uaxo uliweluag ‘tz0oez ‘g 1990100 Jo sy Buipun4 ssdiyny Anb3 aa12a1 Jou $80p 101ISIP SIYL "SAIY) UED
USIPIIY2 Yydiym Ul JUSLIUOIIAUD Bjes e se ||om se welboid osiwspese snojobu e Buuayo uo jasy sapud jooyss Aejuawa|3 uaxod uiweluag
‘looyos siy} jo pnosd Ajpwanxa ale Ajunwiwod siyy ul sidoad ay| "1ousip 1no jo sispoddns |eioueuy jeAo| 89 0} SNURUOD ([IM PpUe U3a(q

aney sajuedwos |10 pue spieAaulA 9y ‘saluedulod |10 pue SpJeAauIA [nissadans ajdijnw Se ||om SB BIUJOJ)|BS) Ul SS3UISNQ }S3P{0 a4} 0) Swoy
S| JOUISIP UBWIYDO|G SYL "SYIBUIpUE| |BOLIOISIY |BISASS SUIBJUOD pue AIOCISIY Ul Youl S1 Bale SIY) ‘[lews ALie; 1 1oulsip ay) Jo uone|ndod ay) ajiypa
‘looyoas Aejuaw’d|g uaxo uiweluag ‘|ooyas g-H 1 Suo Jo SIsISUoD )| "Auno elegqieg elueS Ul pajeso] sl J0L)SI(] |00Y9IS uoiun uewysolg

*0}@ ‘uoisiA ‘uejd a1B6ajel}s 119Y) INoGe UOREBULIoI
apinoid osje Aew sy37 w37 2yl 0} 9|qesldde se ‘g —uauebiapun) |euoisues; sapesB ul sjuspnis s) pue ‘s|ooyds s) ‘3 ayl jo uonduosap v

uoljewuoju] jelauas

[92-5Z02] Atewwng ueld

[ - 8¥11-/£6-G08 ledioutidauapuatuiiadng
Bio’psnuewysojg@umorgp umo.g BnoQ 1oUs8Iq |00Yog Algjuswa|J uolun cmEcoo_m_i
auoyd pue jlewy a|)| pue awep jpeuo)  aweN (y37) fousby jeuopeonpy _moo.__

-ajejdwa) ayj Mmojjo3 (dv o) ueld ANjIqeiunoosay pue [o43uo)) |ea0m] ay) Bupajdwos fo) suoganiisul ayt

ue|d A}[IgeEIUNODDY pue [0JJU0Y) 820




L £ Jo g abed

101181 10042S AUBJULIS|T UOILM UBLIYIOIG JO) UBld ANIIQeIUNO9dY PUB |0AU0D) [B20T 92-G202

:BuUIMO)j0) BU) SMOYS Blep [B20| pue pieoquseq |00YIS BIUIOHIED 3y} Jo sisAjeue uy

%6/ YIMOIC) |enuuy [EdIdA| pIEMO | ssaibold
%2 ‘paja|dwiod JON

94,G | :MOJ2g S|DAST SpeIS) SIOW 10 931y

%€ | :MOJ2g S| apeIS) om]

%0€ :MO|3g |onaT] apeIS) auQ

%6¢ I19A87 speIy) 1Y

Ge02cire0c Hes A

%88 Ypmolc) |lenuuy [eaidA| piemo] ssaiboid
%0 ‘pajeIdwod JON

%C| :MO|9g S|9AST apeIC) SIO 10 931y |

9,9 :M0|9g S|oAa7 SpelD) oM ]

%/ C :MOJ9g |2Aa7 apeIS) auD

%¢EG ‘19AS7 SpeID 1Y

v20c/€20C -1eaA

AQV3Y-| ‘S1dV FOVNONVT HSITONS
JFONVIWHOIH3d DIW3AVIY - SHOLVYOIIANI VOO0

sjulod z'g paulpaQq :abueyn Juiog
mojaqg sjulod g'¢ :plrepuels

MO||2A 10|07 Souewiopad

t20¢ iea ) pleoqyse(

sjuiod £'6| paulpag :abuey) juiod
aAoqe sjulod €'G plepuels

MO||B A :10|00) SoUBWIOHNS]

€202 :1ea\ preogqyseq

S1YV JOVNONYT HSITONIT
‘JONVINHO4Y3d DINIAVIY - AdvOgHSYA

"BJEp |B20| puUE (pJeoqyseq) pJeoqyseq [00YoS BILIOJED By} JO MBIAS) B UO pased aduewlopad |enuue uo uondayal v

9JUBWIOLAd [BNUUY :SUOI}D3|}oYy

'9Z-GZ0zZ Jeak jeasy Jo) Buipun} (9g347) el yoo)g Aouabiawg Aisnooay Buiuiea] papuadxaun aaey Jou Op A\

e’ -



L2 Jo ; ebed

12U3S1] |00YDS AJBJUSWIS|T UOIU[) UBWYDO|g 1O} UB|4 ANIQEIUN0oY PUE |01U0Y) (8207 9Z-520T

ssaiBoud Buiyew ale syuapn)s Jeyl SMous ejep |e007 "Jeak Joud ay) 1aao Jusiuaacidwl moys Buisa] 4dSvYvD PezIpIepue)s auy) jo Synsal oyl

(Rewy w1 Buysa] |eulq 0} Joud)

%19 Yol jenuuy [eaidA] piemo] ssalbold
%0 :pa¥e|dwo) JoN

9%/ | :MO|2g S|9A9T SpeIS) BIOW JO d3UY L

%0] :M0|9g S|eAaT apelo om|

%6 :M0|ag |2AS8T apeIS) aud

%€ [|°AST] |peID I

G202Z/¥20T Jea

%426 [Ymmolo) [enuuy [eaidA] piemo| ssaiboid
%0 :pajsjdwod JoN

9,61 :MO|ag S|9AST apeIS) SI0 Jo aaly]

9,9 :M0|ag S|9A3T SpeID) OM |

o, /€ :Mojag [aAaT apels) auQ

%0V ‘|9A97 SpeID IV

L LAVARNAVTARE TN

AQV3d-l -HLIVIN
JONVIWHO4H3d JIN3AVIV - SHOLVYIIANI TvOO1

sjuied ¢ paseassu| :abueyn yuiod
molaq sjuiod ¢/ piepuels
MOJ|9A 110|070 2DUBLLIOPS]

pZ0z :Jea preoqysed

sjuiod 2z paulpaq :abueys yulod
mojaq syuiod g'0G :piepuels
abuei :10j09 douewIopdd
£20¢ Jea) pieoqyseq

HLVIN
JONVINHO4H3d DINIAYIYV - AdVOdHSYA

-Jeak Joud ay} paaaxa 0} souewlopad jJuapn)s 10adxe am ‘pual) JuaiInd
ay) uo paseq INq 5zZ0zZ/FZ0Z 10} s)nsal s)sa) Apeay-| [eul 3y} SABY JOoU Op am Jey) aloN sauewlopad |aaa| apelb piemo} ssaiboid Bupjew
ale S)uUapNJs Jey} SMOYS BIEp |B20| '19ASMOH "1eak Jolid ay) wouy Juswanoidw Aue moys Jou op Bunss) ddSyvD Pazipiepue)s Jo s)nsal ayl

(ke w Bunsa] |euid o} Joud)

—




1L 40 g 9beq 1ouIsIq |0042g AlBluaWa|3 Uojun UBWYd0(g 10§ Ueld ANIGEILN0IDY pue [OAUCY [BI07 9Z-SZ0Z

‘P [0S Ul PaUIN0 SB ‘ajew|d |0oyds aalisod e Bululejuiew Ul [njssa2ons uaaq aABRY SAA

"19W aJe SpJepue)s ABAINS SewWI|D |20 ¢

‘18w ale spiepue)s Juawabebua Ajwe) pue Jusied o

‘19w 2Je SalIoe) pue ‘sjielaew [euononisul ‘siayoea) buipiebal spiepue)s oiseg ¢
-1VIANIND ANV SNOILIANOD — SHOLVOIANI VOO0

‘aley uoisuadsng auy) 10} 10j02 aoueuLiouad pay e pey am uaym seak toud
2y} JaAo Juawaaoidwil Ue SI SIY| "%G'Z Paul0a (Aep auo Jses)| Je 10} papuadsns 9,z 10|02 aduewlopad uaslc) :ajey uoisuadsng e

-JLVNITO ANV SNOILIANOD - @dVOdHSYd

"JaW sI piepue)s Apn]s JO 9SIN0D PEOI] B 0} SS920Yy
-INFJWIDVONI JIW3AVIVY — SHOLVYIIANI T¥O01

"1eah Joud
3y} JO 9S0U} 0} Je|IWIS 1B SHNSAI 3SBY| "9%9 pauljosp 'Juasge A||esiuoiyd % g 110j0d aouewouad uaalg) (WSI9aJUSSAY JIUOIYD e

-INFWIDVYONIT JINIAVYOV — AdvVOgHSYd
"€ — | S|EOS) Ul paquosap Se ‘aousios pue ‘spy abenbue ysibug ‘yrew ur sswooino Juapnis aAoIdul 0} Y10M 0} SNURUOD [|IM A
‘JusLWaAoIdLLI }SBPOLU SMOYS 1S9} | S0 Paziplepue]ls ay} uo asueulopad

%1G ‘spiepue)ls 1o\ AlesN
9P ‘SpIEepuelS papasox3 10 19
¥202/£20¢ JeaA

%GG -Spiepuels 1ol ApesN

9,6€ :SPJEPUB)S pPapeadxd 10 19|
£20¢/220¢ dea

JON3IOS - SHOLVOIANI T¥O01

-Jeak Joud ay} o} Jejuis aq 0} douewlopad Juspnis
10adxa am ‘pual) JUSIND 3Y) UO paseq INg SZ0Z/PZ0Z 10} Siinsal s1s8) Apeay-| [euly 3y} SABY JoU Op am Jey) 2JoN Ymoib [esidAl premo)




Lo 6 abed 12UISI] [00Y2S AIBJUSLIS|T UCIU[) UBLUYDO0|g 10} UBld AN|IGRIUNODDY PUE [0JIU0YD) (B30T 9Z-6202

"9)geaidde JoN

‘Juswsaaoldwi jooyos pue juspnis uoddns o} ue|d ay) sjen|eAs pue Jojucw |Im Y3 a3y} moy jo uonduosap v
ssauaApoayg BunenjeAg pue buliojiuow

‘g|qeondde JoN

‘sue|d yuswanoidwi pue yoddns aaisuayasdwos Buidojaasp ul sjooyas aiqibije sy Loddns |im 10 SeyY Y31 ay) moy Jo uonduasap vy
sjooyas paynuapj Joj poddng

‘a|qesidde joN

‘Juswaacidwi pue poddns aaisuayaiduwio 1o} ajqibia aie jey) w37 2y} Ul S|ooyds ayj Jo 1Sl v
paiuap} sfooyss

‘sidiuosd Buimo|jo} ay) 03 puodsal jsnw Juswaaoidwi pue poddns ansuayaidwod 1oy 9)qibi@ s|ooyas 10 |00YIS B YlIim Y3 Uy
jusawdaoidw) pue poddng aaisuayasdwio)

‘a|qeoydde JoN

"90UB]SISSE {BD1UY99) JO Jed Se Aemiapun 310m ay) jo Aewwns e ‘sjqesdde sy
9JUeRISISSY |ediuydd] :Suol}daljoy

- W, W,



LZjo Q| abed

1PU3SIA 100Y9S AlBjuaLua|3 UoILN UBLWY0|g 10} UBld ANIIQEIUNODDY PUE |0IU0) (8207 9Z-GZ0T

99iwwo? 9y ‘suoiysabbns ajew pue juawwod o) Ajunuoddo

ue uanIb aiem pue dy9D Syl pamaiaal SiaquIsLl 33ILUILLIOY)
'99IWiWOod sjeledas e 10} Juawalinbal ay) S Yoiym ‘sjuapnis Jaulesa]
ysibu3 LG ueyy ssa| sey gsng asnesaq pasinbai Jou s aaLIL00
IV13A/OV13 Sleledsas y "Sjuapnis pue 'sicjesisiuiipe jooyss ‘Jels
pajeoyiuad ‘yejs payisse|d ‘sjualed Jo dn apew sI 2)WWOI SiY ]

6z0z ‘12 fen,

G20z ‘sz Aeniga4,

620z ‘9z fenuer,

$202 '2Z 1990100,

'sajep buimo||o} 8y} uo 4y £202/9202 — S202/¥202

2] P2SSNosIp pue pamaiaal aaliuWo \Com_>_u< dvO12Ul

I2UNGY B)IS |00YIS PUE BBPIWIWOEY KIOSIAPY dYD]

‘S3W0IIN0 [BNUUE dY) dzAJEUR O} pash SEm

jey} sjuswaaalyae Jdwicid Buum pue saosualajucd Jualed Buipiebal
ejep papinoid siayoea| ‘juawaaalyoe Juapnjs buipiebal siseq
Apoam B uo siayoea) [enplAipul yum sjsaw jedioulndauapusiuladng
ayl yuow yoes jo Aepsan] piiy} 3y} uo jauuocsiad |ooyos 18yjo pue
‘Jels payisse| ‘sisyoes) Yim sjesw jedisudauapusjuiadng ay|

"Gz0Z Aenuep pue $z0z ‘Jaquiaiag
pue JaqLISAON 4O SyuowWw ay) Buunp p3J 1sepA Ag pPalonpuod a1am

JEels palisse|o pue ‘[auuosiad [ooyos Jayjo ‘siojensiuiwpe ‘[ediound
8y} ‘siayoea] ‘sjuased ‘; pue G sspelb ul sjuapnys Jo) sSASMNg

uoiensiupe
[ooyos pue ‘jediduud ay) ‘[suuosiad |00YIS JOYI0 PUE YE)S PALISSED
pue paledlILa 3y JO SJaqUUSL ‘SIaYoBS) ‘Sjuapn)s ‘sjusied

Juawabebug Jo} s$a201d

(s)Jauped jeuoneonpy

‘|looyos sjgeandde yoes Joj jeob snooy pasinbal ay) Jo Juswdolaaap ay) ul ‘Ajjeayoads ‘4yDT eyl jo Juawdojaaap
ay) u spuny Jandiiny Auinb3 Buesauab sjooyas je siauped [euolleonpa ypm Jnsuod os|e jshw spunj Jandyiny Auinb3 buineosal w37 uy

"dvD7 dYi Jo Juswdojaaap

sy} ul sjuapn}s pue ‘syualed ‘|auuosiad |ooyss Jayjo ‘siojensiuwpe ‘sjediouid ‘S19YOBS) YUM JNSUOD ‘WNLWIUIW € Je ‘SNl SJooyds JaHeYD

‘dvD71 9y} jo yuswdojanap ay} ul sjuapnys pue ‘sjuased ‘spun BuiuieBbieq |eso
‘louuosiad jooyos Jayjo ‘siojeqsiviwpe ‘sjedound ‘s1ayoes) yim JNSuUod ‘WnWiuiW B Je ‘JSnw uoiesnpa Jo saolyo AJunod pue sjouisip |ooyos

"4V 24! Jo Juawdojeaap ayy ui s1auped jeuoieonpa abebua 0} pasn ssasoid ay) jo Alewwns vy

siauped [euoneanpg buibebug

* J



LLjo || sbed JoHsIQ 100YoS AlBjualua)3 uojun Uewyao|g 1o} Ueld AWIGeIunoody pue |oIuo) (8307 92-6202

|euonjows pue je1Ros buiaiaoal ale Aayy Jayiaym Jo uoisanb ayy o} papuodsal sjuapnis moy uo paseq ‘ASAING Spiy AyyeeH erusojied ay)
Buisn ‘Gzoz Asenuepr ul pakanins alam / pue g sapelb uj sjuapnig “suy abenBueTjyysi|Bul 10} S82IAISS UOIUAAISJUI PSNUIUOD 893S 0] SjueM
Rnoe ‘suonoe pue sjeob 4y ays jo Juawdojaaap ay) pasuanyul sbunaaw asay) woly yoeqpaa ‘juswdojaasp jeuoissajoid ul sbebus
puB SaNSS| [00YIS JUSLIND SSNISIP O} YIUoW Yoea jo Aepsan] pliy} pue puodas ay) uo }eis pue A)nde) yim sjaawl [ediduudauspuajuuasdng
Y "€ - | S|BOS) Ul PasSSaIppe Ale Pue 4y 3Y} J0 Juawdojanap ay) paouan|jul SUCIJESIaAUOD 9Say| ‘S8109S }$8) aJual0s

pue ‘y13 ‘ylew ul syjuswaaoldwl 8as 0} Juem Asy) Jeyl paulwi)ap sem )i ‘sjualed ylm SUOISSNISIP WOL "Jje4 92U3I0G Pue ‘SaljquIsssy
UluoW auj Jo Juapnig ‘Aeq By ‘AeQ pjai4 pue ydei] 'SajIIWOY dyI] Iounod aYS [00YdS ‘espiwwo) ssaullspn WBIN |ooyas o)

yoegq ‘asnoy uadg Buipnpoul Juswabebus juased 10} saunpoddo snoiawinu aaey osje spp “sjuaied jo Ajuolew ayj yum J0BJU0I 9)eW UBD 3y
Jeys ybnous |jews si uolejndod jooyas NG “sjualed [enpialpul Yum jaw |ediduudiuspusiunadng ay) Jead jooyos ay) Bulnp sawi snolea 1y

‘siauped [euoneonpa Aq papirold yoeqpas) ayy Ag pasuanjul sem JyD7 paidope sy moy jo uonduosap v

'6z0¢Z ‘Z1L aunr uo Bunasw pleoq |eidads

e Je pajdope a1am }abpnq s JoLsIp 8y} pue dyD1 8yl ‘6202 ‘0L

AUN[ UO PJaY SEM JUBSLILIOD pue UoISShoSIp J0) pajuasald alam Jabpng
$,J0i)SIp Bl pue 4wy 3yl yaiym je buueay agnd pasnou Apadoid v

‘G202 ‘g dunp uo
alIsqam JOLISIP Sy} UO S|qEJIBAR SEM 4V 2U) Jo Jeip 919jdwod sy

GzZoe ‘¢ Aen,

6202 '8 Iudy,

GzZ0z ‘1| Aenigad,

$202 ‘T1 19qWAAON,

:s9)ep paodnou Apadosd Buimoljo) ay) uo sjuswwo anqnd

10} uado pue uolleonp3 Jo pieog sy} YIm passnasip sem dyD1 YL

siauped [euoieINp? |8 puB uoeaINp3 Jo pleog

"'G20Z ‘LI
UoJel U0 YoBqpasd) yum sn papiaoid aH "dyDT N0 JO YeIp B PaMaIADI

‘Y4138 3:300 elegieg ejues ayj Jo Jojoalig SAlnNdaxy ‘BlIAY Aey

BlIAY ABY - Y4138 Alunos) eieqleq ejueg

'€ |e0S) Ul passalppe

S| Yoiym ‘v pue ‘L|eoS) ul passalppe si yaiym ‘yrew ui ssaiboid
JUapN)s ajen|eAs 0} |00} 8} asn 0) ANUNUOD 0} SBM SNSUSSUOD BY |
"|oo} uonen|ead sainseaw ajdynw Apeay-| ayj Jo ash ay} passnasip
siayoea) pue |edivuud ay} ‘Buiesw aapiuwon) AIOSIAPY YD1 §202
‘gz Aeniga4 ay) Bunng sawooino 1dnd sjesisuowap o0} Jeah ay)

JO 88In092 ay} Jnoybnoiy; pejoa||0o Blep Yiim papiaocld atam siaquiaw

Juawebebul 1o} ss8201d

(s)iauped [euoyeonpy
~—




L4 Jo Z\ abed

1PUISI] (00Y2S AIBIUSLIS|T UOIU() UBLIYDO|g 1O} UB|4 AWIGEIINCIOY PUE |0ALU0Y) [B20T 92-SZ0T

"8jew|d [00Yds aAISod B 98s 0] aNuijuod 0] Juem os|e Aay] "y13 Pue ‘@ouaios ‘yjew u

$9J09€ }$3) JUapn}s aAoidiul 0] SAISap JIay} St} “PIeog JNO YIM SUOIIESISAUOD AQ paouanjjul os|e SEM 4D 8yl ‘g pue 7 sapelb ul syuapnis
Ajeadss ‘siseq Jejnfial e uo sjuspn)s yIm yiom 1siBojoyshsd |00UoS JINO aABY 0} SNUIBUCD 0} Paau am Jey} Jeald si )i ‘spoddns Bujuies)

-

N’ -




L2 40 €1 abed

 — T — _—

"Yjew ui sjuapms
|e Jo} preogyseq
|ooyds ejuloyeD
ay) uo piepuels
ayy} 0} Jas0JD
sjulod Q¢ Jses| je
BAOW [IM SYNSBY |

‘auIleseq
ay} Jaao sjuiod

#'€ pasealoul
synsas Bunsa) InO
— t
suljeseg woy |

| 80uaIaYIg JUBLIND

awoono
¢ Jea 10} Jobie ]

BWONNQ) Z JBSA

10181 100Y2G AJBJUBLIB|T LUOILUM UBLLYDOIG JO} UBld AJIGEIUNODDY pUB [0)U07) [B20T 92-G202

‘sjuiod

¥'¢ Aq pasealdsul
‘plepuels mojaq |
spulod ¢ /¢ isnmyels |
MO|ISA - Ylew Jo} |
pJeoqyseq vzoc

|

"sjuiod /7 |

Aq pauldap ‘piepuels |
molaq siiod 605
'shjejs sbuelO - Yylew
10§ pleoqyseq £20¢

Sjuspn}s e
10} Ujew 10} JUSLISSasse
ddSvv9 - pieoqyseq

Lo

BWOo2INQO | JeaA

_
auijeseg 7

_
WHETNY

# 90N

s)insay Buiuoday pue Bulinsespy

pua ayj Aq pieoquse(] 8y} uo snjejs uaalo) e jsea| Je buinaiyoe piemo) ssaiboid axew jim sjuapnis ano Buunsua Aq |eob ayj jo Juswaasiyoe
ay) Joddns |im [eoB 2y} ul papn|oul SJLIBW pue suoljoe ay| pieoqyseq syl Aq pauodal se ‘Yjew uj $a109S 1S3] 44SYv)) Buinoidw

uo SHOYD SNOOo) 0) Juem siauped [euoiledNpa INo ‘a10j8iay ] “puohaq pue [0oyds ybiy ul |njssa20Nns ag 0} Japlo Ul $8109S Ujew Jiay) aaoidw)
0} Sjuapn)s Ino 1o} Juepcduwil s1 ) Jeyl psjeaaal siauued |euoijeonpa JNo YIm Uojeynsuon) ‘pieoquyseq £Z0c 2Yi U0 yiew ui snjeys abuelp
ue PaAlIYOE SJUSPNIS JNO ‘JUBWDAIYOR Juapn}s Wia)-Buo| 104 Juepodul si sjdesuod yiew jo Aisisew e asnedsaq padojaaap sem |eob sy

183k |00U9S £Z02/920Z U} JO

‘leob sy} padojanap sey y37 9yl Aum Jo uoneuejdxa uy

(sawo2inQ pdng) sswodng idnd 18y)0 g Ajuoud
(sewoang idng) Juswaaaiyoy jIdngd :p Ajuoug
(Buluiean Jo suonipuo)) spiepuels ajels g Auoud

‘jeob siy) Aq passaippe saiuold sjels

"ylew ui JusLWIaA3Iyoe 10} piepuels

..... — — e —————

ajels ay] aAsiyoe 0} $a109s 159) (ddSVYYD) ssaibold pue 22UBWLIOLS JUSPMIS JO JUDLUSSASSY
BlUIOJED) JIdY) aacidw [im sjuapnys Buiuesw ‘(pieoqyseq) pieoqyse(] j00yos elulopje) ayj uo
snje)s uaaln) e Jsea) Je Buiasiyoe Ag pasuapiae se JZ0g JeaA |00YDds JO pud ay) Aq Ylew 10} $a109s

| |eos) peoig 159} 9)B]S UO ‘siduiea ys||Bug Buipnjoul ‘sjuapn]s (|8 Joj SaW0}N0 Juapn)s SA0IdLUl 0) Juem apA L
|  eo9joedi) uonduasaq  # |eoo
[eoos
SUOI)OY pue sfeos



120 p1 abed 10UISI] |O0YDS AUBJUBLUS|T UOIUM UBLIYI0|g 10} UBld AMgeiunodsy pue |oMuoys) (8207 92-202
omcm._O -10j0D sduellIopad
€20¢ Jea ) pileoqyse(

HLVN
JONVINHO4H3d DINIAVIY - GEVOdHSYA

“Jeak Joud 3y} 0} Jejius 2q 0} ssuewlopad Juapnls Joadxa am ‘pual) JUaLINd Ay} uo paseq NG SZ0Z/FZ0Z 10} synsal sjsa) Apeay-|

|EUl By} SABY Jou Op am Jey) 3JoN ‘ymolb |ans)-apelb |eoidA) piemo) ssaibosd Bupjew ale sjuapn)s Jey} SMoys Bjep |B207 "moj|@A o) abueip
WO PAJUBAPE 10|07 9JUBLLIOHSH 9y "1eaA Joud ay} J8A0 juawaaolduwl ue moys Bunss) 4d4Svvo pazipiepue)s ayl Jo s)nsal syl "mojaq
uMOys sl ejep |ea0| pue pieoqyse(] Jo sisAjeue uy [eob siy} piemo)] ssaibosd Bunjew ul aaoaya ale mojaq pajsi| SuolIe ay) 3ASI3] A

‘leoB ay) psemoy ssaibosd Buyew ul ajep 0} suoijoe ouads ay) JO SSBUIAIJIIYAUI 10 SSBUBAIIAYS ay) jo uondudsap v

‘| |e05) 10} sainypuadxa [enjoe pajewjse pue saln)puadxs pajabpnq usamiaq saoualayip [eLdjewWw ouU aie alay |

'$801M19G paaoidw Jo sabejuaniad [enyy pajewns pue saoiaeg paaciduw)
jo sabejuaniad pauue|d Jo/pue sainjipuadx] |enjoy pajewnsy pue sain)puadxg pejebpng usamjaq SaouaIaYIp [eLajew Jo uoneue|dxs uy

"dvO7 paydope
[euiBLo Jno wolj Al@AIUBRISQNS SIDYIP JBY) J2UUBW B Ul uoloe pauueid e Juawsa|dwl @m pip Jou ‘uonoe pauueld e Juawsa|dwi jou pIp 8m a1aym
SIOUE)SUI OU 2JaMm 818y ‘suonoe asay) jo uonejuawaldul [enjoe ay) pue suonoe pauue|d ay) u9am}ag SEOUSISYIP SAJUBISQNS OU 31aM 31aY ]

‘uonejuswajdwi yum pasusuadxa sassaoons pue sabus|jeys jueas|as Aue pue
‘SUO|joB asay) Jo uonejuawa|dw |enjoe pue sucijoe pauue|d ul Saoualaylp aajuelsqgns Aue Buipnjoul ‘uoneluswajduwi [jesaA0 Jo uondiosap v
“Jeak snoiaald sy Ul Jno pallied sem |eob siy} moy Jo sisAjeue uy

[sz-vz0z] sisAjeuy |eoo

‘palsjdwod jou
%C ‘M0|aq S|9A)

apeib asow 10 ‘pajojdwos
3alyl %L1 ‘moleq JOU %2 ‘molaq

S|oA9| apelb omy s|oAg| apelb aiow 1o
%01 ‘MOI3q [2A3] | 93y} %Z| 'MOJDQ S[9AI)
opeib auo %61 opelb omy 9,01 ‘Mmojeq

‘sulaseq "YJeW Ul [SA8 ‘lons| apeJb je |aAa| apesb auo %05
ay) mojaq siulod| spesb je wuoped 94EZ - JUBISSOSSY ‘lona)| apelb je 9,97 sjuapn)s ||e 404 ylew
abejuaosiad aaly) (1M Sjuapnls puoteg| -uswssassy puodsag| Ul juawaaoidwi Apeay
Apuenno ate app | JO %GE 1Ses) Iy fpeay-| GZ02/¥20T Apeay-| #202/€202|  -I - luswssosse [ed0| 'L
auljaseg WoJj awognO

sotersianueLnollic ieextiofiaBie ]! SUIOOINQ) Z JeaA | awoong | 1eaA wc__mmmm oEws_ #oEms_

(\ N </



1L o G| abey 10LISI(] J00Y2S AIBJUBLUS[T UOIUN UBWIYJO(G 10} UBld AJIGEIUNOIJY PUE OIUOD (B0 9Z-G20T
sSUoy
‘ajqey

ajepdn jenuuy suonay Bupnquiuon ay} ut punoj aq Aew SUOIOE S Jeak Jse| 10} sadlAleg panroiduw) Jo sabejuadiad |enjoy pajewnysy
ayj jo uodas y "a|qe] sjepdn |enuuy ay) ul punoj aq Aew suopoe s.Jeak Jse| Jo} sainjipuadxy [enjoy pajewn}sy [ejo] ayj jo Hodal y

"1eak Buiwoo ayy Joy [eob siy) o} sebueys Aue Bupjew Jou ase app

-gonoeud Joud uo
suonoslal woly paynsal jey) Jeah Buiwod ay) o) suonoe Jo ‘sawoodino jebie) ‘soujaw ‘[eob pauue)d ay) o} apew sabueyd Aue jo uonduosap v

(Rejy w1 Bupsa] Jeuty o} Joud)

%19 :Ymols) [enuuy jeoldA) piemo] ssaiboid
%0 :paje|dwio) JoN

%/ | :M0|3g S|BAT apels) aJOW 10 331y

%01 :Mo|3g S|2A37 apels) om ]

%6 :Mojag |aAaT apels auQ

%ET [|9A7T ApeID 1Y

GZ0Z/YZOT 1edA

%26 ‘Yimolo) |enuuy |eadA] piemo] ssalbolq
%0 :p3j21dwiod JON

%G| :MOJ2g S|9AST SpPEIS) IO JO 33y

9% :M0|9g S|9AaT apelD) om]

%1€ :MO|Dg |9AST Bpel) auQ

%0 ‘1on97] apelg) 1y

¥202/€20C Jed)

AQV3d-l -HLVIA
JONVINHO4H3d DINTAVYIY - SHOLVIIANI TvIO0O1

sjuiod ¢ paseaiou| :abueys julod
Mmo|aq sjulod ¥/ plepuels
MO||B A 110j0)) 8oUBLIOUS

¥20¢ Jes ) pieoqyseq

sjulod sz paulpaq :ebueys ulod
mojaq suiod QG :DJepuBRlS




L2 Jo 9| sbed

10UISI] (00Y2S AlelUsLUB|T UOIU() UBLUYDO|g JO) UB|d ANIGEIUNOIOY PUE |0UU0)) |E20T 92-GZ0T

"Z pue | aaw o] saydde uonoe syl

"SJUPN)S 10} LIBISAS |BLIS)a) B SB DAIBS
pue suoljuaniaiul 1o} poddns apiaoid |Im (1 SS) wea | Apnig Juapnis 8yl

‘weiboud

Apeay-| ayl yum teak Jad sawy aa1y) passasse osje ale Aay) "Buisn aie
Aoy} sweiboid paseq-aouapiAs sy} yum papiaold sjuswssasse ay) buisn
Buiobuo passasse ale yew 10} Aiobajeo Buiwiopad mo| ay} ul sjuspms

‘Bunsapuew si juspnis ay) Anayip jo adA)

pue sonsuajoeleys ay} uo Buipuadap sisa) sjdwes 4SSy Pue ‘Yle
uleaz ‘yie yano] ‘xey Aqoy a.e pasn saibojopoylaw paseq-souapiae
2y ‘1ayoea)} UonUSAISUI pajedliuad B Ag papiacid uonuaAIdlul dAISUUI
QAI9D3I [|IM SJUSPNIS PAIIJUBP| "SUOIEPUSWIWOIAI J8Yydes) pue jualed

pue sjuswssasse ybnosy) Buiyoes) pajalbiie) pue uonuarsul 10§ payuapl
aq |Iw yiew Joj Alobajen Buiwiopad mo| ay) ul sjuspnig “s1aad say)

yum Jed uo wopad 0] a|qe aq o0} pasu uayo sdnd poddns jeuoippe ay)
apIaoid 1M SIUB)SISSE |BUOIIONJISUI PUB JBYOEe3)} UOIJUSAISIUI PaleJIPSp v

‘¢ |eoo) Ul passalppe sjuelsisse
S1 yoiym ‘suy abenbuen ys)buz pue yjew yjoq 1oy uoijuaaiaul spiaoid |[euonanysul
SI19qLUIBWI ]S 883 "UOIUSAIB)UI 10} SJUBJSISSE |BUOIIONIISUl PUE JBYDES) pue 18yoea}
san 00'526'99% uonuaAIaul 314 G e apiaold JIm am ‘Juswaaaiyoe Juapnys aaosdwi o] | uonuamndll 314 G| Z'L
"2 pue | oulaw o} saldde uonoe sy
‘€ |BOS) Ul passalppe
sI yoiym ‘spy abenbue ysibug pue yjew yjoq 1o} poddns sapiaoid
Jayoea) siy| ‘spdnd pajeandnpun 1o} poddns olwapedse jeucnippe apiaocid
0} Jayoea] WOOISSE|O 3y} JO) SWI} 210W MO||B SSSSE[D UOIBUIGUWOI-UoU uonanpal
Jey} SN UMOYS Sey 32uaLadx] "$aSSE|D UONBUIQUUOD JOj paau 3y} adnpal 0) SSE|2 UoIjeuIquIod
SOA 00°'£89'09¢% Jayoea] e Buizipn aie am ‘SJUIPN]S (| 10) JUsWaAIYJe Juspnys aaosdwi o) lojlayoeay | 'L
Buynguuog |  spund |ejol uonduosaq S |# uonoy

-

o/

-/




L2 40 7| abeq 111810 100y9S AIBJUSLUS|T UOILM) UBLUYOOIG 104 UBld AIIGEIUNOIDY PUE [04U0D (8907 92-620Z

| S— - -

Bunnquiuon | spundejol | uonduosaq | S |4 uopoy

- "’ -y



12081 mmmn_ Pusig [0oY2S Eﬂ:mEm_m UOIUM Uewy20(|g Joj ue|d 3__59::000( pue [0JJu0D |80 92-620¢
'dvO1 pajdope

jeuibuo ino woly AjpAnuelsqns Siayip Jeyl Jauuew e ul uonoe pauueld e juawadwi am pip Jou ‘uoljoe pauueld e Juswajdwl Jou pIp am asaym
S92URJSUI OU DIOM BI9Y "SUOIOE 3saY) JO uoneluawaldu [enjae ay} pue suoioe pauueld ay) usamiaq SOIUIDYIP DANUEISHNS OU B19M 818y

‘uonejuawadil ypm pasualiadxe sassasans pue sabuajjeyo jueasjal Aue pue
‘suofjoe asay} jo uonejuawajdw jenjoe pue suoioe pauue)d U SI2UIBYIP SARUEBISgNS Aue Buipnjoul ‘uoneusws|dul [je1aA0 Jo uonduosap v
‘1884 snoinaid ay) U Ino paused sem |eob siy} Moy Jo sisAleue uy

[s2-1202] sisAjeuy |eoo

|  s9y1SvD| o I "20ua10s U | o [

"auIesEq 8y} U0 piepue)s pJepuejs ajejs ay} | "30UII0S Ul pIepue)S

| 3U} JOAO 9,¢ | 8le)s ay) paaIxa o papaaoxa 1o Jaw | ajels ay} papasoxa

Aq synsai Bunsay| 19aw |IM sjuapn)s %P - S100S }S3} | 10 JaW %8/ 'gE - SAJ00S sjuspn}s
1IN0 pasealdul spp 30 %06 1se3| Iy 1SVD ¥202/eec0e| 1881 LSVD mNON\NNON_ {le Joj s@lods Is8) ISVYD| LT |
| _
oullaseg wod swoano aWOoINQ Z JeaA | swoonQ | Jesa auljeseqg LINEY; # 2o
aouaiayiq Juauny | ¢ Jes A Joyjebie) : g .

s)insay Buiuoday pue Bulinseay

~“1eak |00yds /Z02Z/9202 @ul JO pua ay) AQ 82USI10S Ul SPIBPUR]S 8BS PaadXe 10 }aaLU [[IM SJUSPN]S 1N0 JO %06 Ises) Je ey Buunsua Aq
[eob ay) Jo Juswaaaiyoe ay) woddns |m [eoB ay) Ui papnjoul SoUJALW PUB SUCIIOR 3Y ] "8JUalds Ul S2109S 183} | Sy7) Bulaoidwi uo spoye snaoy
0} Juem siaulied [euoHeINpPa N0 ‘al0j8IaYy | "puokaq pue |ooyss ybiy ul |NIsseoNs aq 0} JAPIO Ul SBI0DS JIUSIOS JIay) aAoidwi 0) Ssjuapn)s
Ino Joy Juepodwi si )1 Jey) pajeanal sisuped jeuoleanpe JNo YIIM UOHEJNSUOD) "92USI9S 10} SPIEPUR]S 9)e}s papaldxa 10 Jaul Sjuspn)s Jno

JO 98/°'8¢€ ‘€202/220Z U] ‘JUsWaAaIyse Juapn)s wia)-buol 1oy Juepodun $1 S)Jdesuod 8oualos Jo AIsjsew e asnesaq padojaaap sem jeob siy|

‘lecB siyy padojaaap sey y37 2y} Aym Jo uoneue|dxs uy

(sawooinQ dng) juawaaaiyoy |ldnd ¢ Ajuoud
(Buiulea Jo SUORIPUOY)) SPJEPUE]S 3lB)S (7 Alold

‘Teob siy) Aq passalppe sajjuoud 81eis

‘(LSVD) 1S2L 92ULI0G eluioy|e 8y} UO PIEPUE)S 3)e)s ay) Bunssw| _
sjuapn)s 1no JO 940G 1Se3| Je Aq pasuspias SB Z0g leaA |ooyss Jo pua ayj Aq 9ous19s JOo) $9J00S | _

[eos) peo.g 1S9} 9je)ls Uo 'siausea ysi|Bug Buipnjour ‘SJUSPNS |[E 10} SSLIOJIN0 JuapNn)s aacidwi 0) Juem AN rA
|eo9 0 adK] | uonduaseq| # |0
(0O

SUOI}oY pue s|eos)

\_ " -



L2 40 61 abeg 101181 (00Y9G AJRIUBLUBIT UOIUN UBWIYJO|G 1O} UB(d AY(IGEIUNOIDY PUE [013U0D) [8907T 92-5Z0C

SUonoy

‘a|qel
ajepdn |enuuy suonody Bunnquuon ay) ul punoj aq Aew sUoHoe S eak JSe| 10 S8dIAIeS paAcidul) Jo sebejuadiad [enjoy pajewnssy
ayy jo yodai y "sjqe] ajepdn [enuuy ay) ul punocy aq Aew suoljoe s Jeak jse| 10} sainjipuadxg [enjoy pojewnsy [e30) 2y} Jo podal

‘Jeak Buiwos ay) 10y 1eob siy} 0} sabueyd Aue Bujew jou aie app

‘aonoeud Joud uo
SUOJOBJ3R] WO PajINsal Jey) Jeak Buiwod ay) 10y suonoe 1o ‘sawodno jebie) ‘soujaw ‘jeob pauueld ay; o) apew safiueys Aue Jo uonduosap v

%1S :SpIepuels Jo Apesn
%,z ‘SPJEPUR)S PapPaadx3 10 Jap
PC0C/ECOC -JEIA

%SG :spiepuelg 19N AlJesN
%6¢E ‘SplepuelS papsadxX3 1o e
£20Z/2202 Jea)

JONTIDS - SHOLVYIIANI TVOOT

129k Joud ay} JaA0 JuswaAoIdwi UB MOYS S}NSal 3| “Mmojaq umoys si ejep bunse) paziplepuels
1SVD 243 Jo sisAjeue uy ‘|eob siy) premo; ssasboad Buiyews ul anjoaya st sajiunpoddo Buiuiesy yum siayoes) 1no Suipianoid aAa119q apA

"Sjuapnis Ino 0} adualas Bulyoea) A|nyssaaons Joj $92IN0Sal Alessadau Jo AjjIGe|IeAR

8y} pue Buiuiel} ssnosip 0} siayoea) Yum ul sy29yo Ajjesipouad jedioundauapusiuuadng ay] “poddns jeuoljonisul pue soapia juawdojaasp
|euoissayold 0} jenod |IH-mesol sy} ybnoayy ssaooe aaey os|e Aay] {|\H-MeIDHIW) eluioyjeD 22us0S andsu| asn sjuapn)s g pue

2 sopelb jo siayoea| aysignd ay) Aq papiaoid sjeusjew asinod Buizinn ajiym ssalboid Juapnis uo Buipodal pue ‘Buipelb ‘sjuswssosse
Bunessuab ‘sesinoo 1o} Buiuueld uossa| ul Joddns yum Jusjuod HBuibebus apiacid 0} s1oyoea] SMO||B $$300Y “SIayoea| Alejuawa(g

10} djgH de puipysabebuan Bin wninauno ay) Buisn siayoes) jo poddns ul Juswidojaasp |eucissajold pue Buluies) 0} ssadde Joallp SIajo
alsqam 3y ‘|edod 2UASTION 2y} ybnoiyy g -y sapelb ul winjnaing asuaing oiydesboas) jeuoneN ay} 10 Hoddns 0} sseo0e aaey siayoea |

‘|leob ay) premo} ssalboid Bupjew ul sjep 0} SUOKOE dYDads BY) JO SSAUBAIIBYSUI 10 SSBUADAYS ay} Jo uoldussap v

*Z |e0S) 10} saunppuadxa [enioe pajewnsa pue sainjipuadxs paebpng usamiaq saouaJayip |ELISJBW OU I 219y

'$90IM9S paaosdw) jo sabejuasiad [Bnjoy pajewns3 pue saoiuag paroidw)
o sebejuadiad pauue|d Jo/pue sain)ipuadx3 [enjoy pajewsg pue sainjpuadxy pajebpng usamiaq sedualayip |euajew jo uoneueidxa uy

e o -~



12 40 0 ebed 1oL1SI(] |00YOG AIBJUSWISIT UOIUN UBWIYDO0|g J0} Ueld AHIIRIUNODDY PUE [03U0D [BI0T 92-GZ0Z

‘JoL)SIp Y} 0} 1809 ou Je Jaysiignd wninaiund sy Aq papiacid st Buiuies) )uawdojanap
SIY} JO JSOW “WINNDLLIND 90UBIDS aY) azIjn AjdAjoaya way) djay o} siayses) |euoissajoid
ON 00'0$ ino 0} sanunuoddo juswdojonsap [euocissajoid pue Buiutel; apiaosd |im apn | pue Bulureny sayoea) | 1z
Bunnquop |  spund [ejo) uopdnasaq o] | # uonoy

& - -




1L 4o 1z abed

ouIsIq 10040S AJBJUSWB|] UoIUM UewLoold Jo} ue|d AJIJEIUNOIDY PUB [0AUOY) |BD0 92-GZ07

_ T sjuapns ,
! I|e 10} preoqyseq ‘spuiod _
| | |ooyds elusojed Z'6 Pauloap |
_ ay} Uo piepue)s ‘psepue)s mojeq|  sjuiod €61 pauloep
‘1eak Joud ayy wouy ay) anoqe sjuiod 6'¢ 'smeys| ‘piepuejs anoge sjuiod SJuSpN}s ||e
sjuiod z'6 pauloap 2q 0} SNURUOD MO[IBA - V13 JO} | £°G 'SNIBIS MO|ISA - V13| 10} Y13 10) JUSLUSSISSE
| s21008}1S81N0| 1M SYNS) V13 © pleoqyseq ¥z0z| 104 pleoqused £202| ddSYVO - Preoquseq| LS
| euyeseg woy L) aWOodNQ Z JESA | SWOINQ | JESA auljeseg BT # OIS
agualeyI JuaLINgD | ¢ Jeap Joj1abie] . ; .

s)insay Buiuoday pue Bulinsesp

pua ay) Aq pieoquse(q a8y} uo snjejs uaalg) e Jsea| Je Buinaiyoe piemo} ssalboid axew |im sjuapn)s uno Buunsua Ag [eob ay) Jo Juawaaaiyoe
ay) yoddns jjim [eof ay) ul papnjoul saLSW pue suonde sy ‘pleoqyseq ayl Aq pauodal se ‘y 3 ul $a103S }§3) 4dSVYVvD Buinrosdw

uo SHOoY SNoo) 0} Juem si1auled |euoneonpa INo ‘210818l ‘puokaq pue |ooyos Ybiy ul |Nyssaoons ag 0} JapIo Ul $3109s Y13 J19y) aaosdu
0} SJUapN}s INO Joj Jueliodw SI )i 1By} pajeaaas siauped [euoljeanpa JNo Yim Uche)NSU0D) "pPIeoqyse( £20Z @4l uo 3 ul SNJeIS MO||9A

B paAalyde Sjuapnis INQO “JUSWaABIYSE Juapn)s wisj-buo] 1o} Juepodwi st s)daduod 3 jo Als)sew e asnesaq padoaasp sem [eob siy|

"JedA |ooYds £Z02/9Z0Z U} J0

‘|eob siy) padojaasp sey w37 a4} Aym jo uoneue|dxa uy

{sawo9InQ Ndng) sswonQ jidnd 19W\0 g Alolud
(sewoanQ dnd) uawaaaiyoy jidnd ¢ Ajuonyg
(Buiuiea Jo suolIpuon)) spiepuels alels .z Aluoud

‘1eob siyy Aq passalppe saiuolld 9)els

= —_— - e — e

Y3 Ul JUSUIDASIYDE 10} PJBPUE]S 3)B)S 8y} SABIYOE O) S8109S }S3)
{(ddSVYvD) ssalboid pue aouewlouad JUSPN)S JO JUBWSSASSY BILIOLED 19y} aacidwl ||Im sjuapnis
Buluesw ‘(pieoqyseq) pJeoguse(J |O0YDS BILIOJBS) BY) UO SNejs uaalo) e jses| je Buiaaiyoe

Aq paouapins se JZ0Z/9Z0Z JeaA |ooyos Jo pua ay) Aq (y13) sy abenbue ys|bu3 10j $81008

|eos) peoig 159} 9je)s uo ‘siauiea ysybuz Buipnioul ‘sjuSpN}s ||e JO) SSWODINO JuUSpNnis aAoIdwl O} JUBM SAA | ¢
|eoS) jo adA ._._ :o_ua_._omon__ # [e09)
jecd
SUOI}OY pue s|eow)
p— ..Ik




L2 o gz abed 1os1g [00YaS ARjUaWa|g uoiun UBLIY0|g J0f UBld ANJIGEIUNOIDY PUB |CIJU0D) |80 92-GZ02
£20z Jes ) pileoqysed

SLHVY JOVNONYT HSIMONS
‘AONVINHOS4H3d DIWIAVIV - QYVOdHSVYA

‘ssaiboid

[onal-apelb jesidA) 9xew |Im sjuapnys jo 94,88 Aljewixoidde Jeyy moys ||Im yoiym ‘Jeak Joud ay} o} Jejiis aq o} soueuuopad Juapn)s Joadxe
am ‘puaJ) JusINd 8y} uo paseq INg GZ0Z/P20Z 10} S)nsai s)sa) Apesy-| |euly ay) aAeY Jou op am jey) aJoN "Yimoib |anal-apeil |eaidA) piemo}
ssa1boud Bupjew aie sjuapnis JeY} SMOYS BIEP |ED0T "MO|9Q UMOYS S| BJED |BD0| PUB PLBOQYSE(] JO SISA|BUR UY "$8100S )$8) pazipJepue)ls

w asealour ue Buiaas Jou ase am ybnoy) uana ‘|eob siy} piemo) ssaiboid Bupyew ul aanoaye ase mojag pajs!| SUDIIOE BU) 2A3I|9Q A\

‘leob ay} psemo) ssaiboid Bunjew u) ajep 0} suonoe oyiads ay) JO SSaUBAIIBYBUI JO SSAUBAIDBYS Ay} Jo uonduasap v

'€ |e0s) Joy sainypuadxa |enjoe pajewljse pue sainypuadxs pajebpng usamiaq SaouLaYIP |BLSJEW OU Sle aJdY |

‘saoinleg paaoldwi jo sabejuasiad [enjoy pajewl)is3 pue sasinsg panolduw
jo sabejuasiag pauue|d 1o/pue sainjipuadx3] [enjoy pajewsg pue sainjipuadx3 pajebpng usamjaq Ssoualayip |eusjew Jo uoneueldxa uy

"dv07 pajdope
|eulBl10 Jno wouy AjpAjUEBISONS SIBYIP JBY) JBUUBW B Ul uonoe pauue|d e Juawsajdw) am pip Jou ‘uonoe pauueld e Juswajdw Jou pIp am alaym
S3TUR)SUI OU 2J9M 3l3Y] "sSUol)de asay] Jo :o_amEoEO_QE_ |enjoe sy} pue suoijoe Umccm_a 3} usamiaq Sadualayip sAljuelsqns ou a1am aiay |

‘uonejuswajdiul yum paosusliadxe sassasons pue sabusjeyds jueasial Aue pue
‘suonoe asay; Jo uonejuswaldw jenjoe pue suonoe pauueld ul seoualayip aauBisqns Aue Buipnioul ‘uonejuswaidu |[e1aA0 jo uondiuosap v
‘1884 snoiaaad ay) Ul jno palied sem [eob siy moy Jo sishjeue uy

[sZ-¥Z0Z] sisAjeuy |eos

‘paje|dwiod Jou
%2 ‘MO|3( S|9A9)
apeib aijow Jo ‘pajejdwos
931y} %S| ‘mojeq 10U %1 ‘mojeq
s|ang| apeib omy sjaA9| ape.b siow so
%E | ‘MO|9G [9A3] | 33IUI Y%L | ‘MO[Dq SI9AI
apeib auo o,0¢| opelb om) 9% 0| ‘Mo[aq

‘auljaseq ‘|ons| spelb je |[oA8)] apelb auo 9ze
ay} mo|aq "WY13 Ul |9A9) %6¢ - JUSWISSASSY ‘|an8| apeib je 9%,9p ‘Sjuspnls ||e 1o ¥13
syuiod abejuadiad| opesb je wiopad puooag| - JuaWssassy puoldag| uljuswanoidw Apeay
L Apuauind a1e apn | |IM 9%GG JSes| )Y Apeay-| 5Z02/¥20T Apeay-| ¥202/£202 -] - juslussasse |eo07] |  Z'¢
auljeseg woJj 8wWo2N0

aWOINQD Z JB3A | SWOJNQ | JesA auljesegq WD ET # JUIBIN

ouaIaI] JuUaunNy | ¢ Jeah Joj jebie]

. N )



L4 jo gz abed

Jouisi 100Y9S Alejuaiia|g uolun UBWYoOo|g Jo} ueld AUqeiunogdy pue |onuoy [eaoT 92-6Z08

sSuondy

"2|qeL

ajepdn j[enuuy suondy Bunnquuoa ay} ul punoy aq Aew suoloe s Jeak }se| 10} sadlAIeg peaosdul| Jo sabejuadiad [enjoy pajewnsy
ayj Jo uodaa y "aiqe) ajepdn jenuuy ay} ul punoy aq Aew suoijoe sJeak yse| Jo) saanjipuadxg [en}oy pajewnsy jejo] ayj jo podal y

“1eah Buiwos ayy 1oj [eob siy} o} sabueys Aue Bunjeuwl Jou ale app

‘aoljoeud Joud uo

suonoaal Woyj paynsal jey) Jeak Buiod ay) 10j suoiOe 10 ‘SaLW0o)N0 Jabie] ‘'soujew ‘|eob pauueld ayy 0} apew sabueyo Aue jo uonduosap v

(Rey w Bunsa) [eulq o) Joud)

%6. :Umolo) [enuuy [eaidA| piemo] ssaiboid
%2 ‘Paje|dwoy 10N

%G| :mojag S|oAST apeIS) IO JO 331y L

%¢E | :MO|9g S[aAST SpeIS) OM |

%0€ :MOjag |2A87 apels) 3uQ

%6¢ :[9A97] SpEID IV

STAVAL FAITARCLE TN

%,88 [UIMoIS) |enuuy [edidA] piemo] ssaiboid
%0 :paje|dwo) JoN

%2 :MO|2g S|9A97 SpeIS) SIOW 10 33y |

%8 :M0[ag S|SA8T apeIS) oM

%,/ Z :MO|Bg |BAST Bpel) au)

%ES ‘19A7 SpeID) Iy

¥202/€20T JesA

AQV3IY-l ‘SLHY IOVNONYT HSIMTONS

JONYIWHO4H3d DINIAVYIVY - SHOLVOIIANI VIO

sjulod z'g pauljoag :abueyn juiod
mo|aq sjuiod g'¢ plepuels

MO|ID A 110|070 SouBwWIONSd

t20oc Jes\ pieoqyseq

sjutod €61 paulpaq :abueyn o4
anoqe sjuiod ¢°g plepuels
MOJIDA 110]07) douewIoNad

-/



L jo $Z abed

PUISI [00Y2S AlRjusLLS|g UOIUM UBWIYIOIG 10§ UB)d APIGRIUN0IdY PUE [OIU0Y) (907 92-SZ0T

sa

00'626'99$

"Z pue | auaw 03 sadde uonoe siy|

"SJUSPN]S 10} WIBISAS |BLIBJD) B SB DAIDS
pue suonuamajul 103 yoddns apiaosd Im (1 SS) wes| Apnis Juspnig ay )

‘wesboid

Apeay-| ay) yum Jeak 1ad saw) aaly) passasse os|e ale Aay] "Buisn ale
Kay) sweiboid paseq -sauapiaa ayj yim peplaosd syuswssasse ay) buisn
Buiobuo passesse ale y13 1o} Aobajes Buiwiopad moj sy ul sjuspnis

"18Yyoea)} UoUSAIBUI PaJEIHHSD € AQ POPIACIG UOIJUSAI)UI

SAISUBJUI BAIBJ3I [|IM SJUBPN)S PalIIUSP| ‘SUOlIEpUSWILWIODA) Jayoea)

pue juaied pue sjuswssasse ybnoiy) Buiyoes) pajahie) pue uonuaniajul
10} paynuapi aq |Im 13 Joy Alobajes Buiwiopsd moy ay) ut sjusapnig
‘s19ad 118y} yum Jed uo wuopad 0) 9jqe 2q o} pasdu uayo

s|idnd poddns jeuonippe ay) apiaoid [1m 1ayoes) uoljuanIslul pajesipap v

"I |BOS) Ul pRSSBIPPE SI YIIYM “YJEW pUB Y3 Yl0g Joj uonuaniaul apinosd
SI9qWaW JE)S 8S8Y | 'UORUSAISIUI 10} SIUB)SISSE [BUOIIDMIISUI PUB J3Yoes)
uonuaAIaul 1 4 G & apiroad [jim am ‘JuawaAllyoe Juapnis anoidwi o]

sjuejsisse
[euoRONNSUI
pue Jayoes}
uonjuaAIRW| 314 &

SO

00°€89'99%$

"Z pue | oujaw o} saydde uonoe siy)

"I [0S Ul passalppe S1 Yyaiym ‘yiew pue y3 yjoq 404 poddns sapiroad
Jayoea) siy] 'sjidnd pajeondnpun 103 poddns siwapese jeuolippe apiaoid
0} JaYoea)} WOOISSE]D SY} JOj W[} 10U MO||B SOSSE|D UOIJEUIqLIOD -UuoU
Jey} sn umoys sey aouauadxy 'sasse|o UCIJBUIGLUOD 10} paau ay) 2onpal o)
Jayoea) e Buizin a1e am 'sjuspnis || 10j JuswaAsiyoe Juapnis aaosdwi o]

uonoNpal
SSE|D UoHBUIqUIOD
Jo} Jayoea |

I'e

Bunnguuon

spund jejo}

uonduosag

L

# UONOY

\

~/




L. jo Gz abeg L3I j0oyds Alejuswa|3 uolun Uewyao|g 10} Ueld AMIGEIUN0ddY pue |0uoD [BJ07] 92-5202
[ - _ | sMous SYVSIeD ale s1ayoes) _
‘aulaseq ayj -oiseg- | [|B SMOYS SYVSIED| 2Je SI9yded) ||B SMOYS _
WwioJ} adualayip ou ‘JaWw aq 0} Ajiol4 - s101e1puy| - a1seg - | Ajuocud SYvSIeD - aiseg - |
AjuaLing si 219y | SNURUOD |[IM DB | _ |20 G202 | - Siojeodlpu| [e207 $202 | Aol - SI0)edipu| [eD0T]| 2 |
_ - “ f ‘paubisse _
! Ajarendoidde
_ ale siayoea) ||e| ‘paubisse Ajajeudoidde
SMOUS SAYdIVD aie siayoea}| -paubisse Ajpjeudoidde _
‘sulleseq ay} -o1seg - || [le SMOYS SAYdIVD | & 2Je SISyoes) ||e Smoys _
_ Wwou} 30uUalayip ou ‘Jew &q 0} AQjuoud - siojesipu) | - oi1seg - | Ajuoud SaAvdlv) - diseqg - |
_ Auaiung s1 a1ay] | anuiuos [Im RN |e307 GZ0Z | - SiO)edipu| |ed07 $Z0Z | Aol - S10jedipu| [e20| L'y |
— . ! |
. owww_wm_mn_m«:Eooh“w 3 7 ¢l mwﬁwwwu%m_m 1 awodnNO Z Jeay | SwWoNg | Jea) auleseyg eI NN ETT] # oUW |

s)insay buioday pue buunsesa

ou jey) os siseq Jenbal
Ul PRA|OAUI Bq 0} SalIUNY

‘passiW ale salunpoddo [euoianlisul
e uo |ooyas Buipuape Jo aouenoduw sy} puejsiapun o} sjuapnis Joj Juepodwi OS|e S }| "uoleaNpa s,udlpP|Iyd J1dY)
oddo aaey Aay)} |99} 0} sjualed JO} pue [COUIS JB SWOI[DM PUB JJES |93} 0} SJUSPN)S 10} Juenoduw) SI | DA AN

‘leob siy} padojaaap sey y37 ay) Aym Jo uoneuejdxa uy

{Buiuiea Jo suoIpPUO)) $8399Y 8sIn0Y) ;2 Ajlioud
(uawabebuz) sjewn D |ooyos g Ajioud
(juswabebu]) uswabebu3z pdng ¢ Ajuoud
(luswabebul) juswaajoau| [elualed ¢ Ajuoud
(Buiuiean jo suopuo)) aiseq :| Auoud

‘leob siy) Aq passaippe SaljlioLid 9)elS

.EEco_m_zaxmw.amw:OEmoocm_mluE %
uoisuadsns pue sjeJ WSI9SUBSYE J1UCIYD pJeoqyse( Yy} ‘Hoday swelIpn Yl ‘elep SYvSieD ‘elep

|eogy| Jojedipul [e20] preoqysed Aq papiaold aq [jim ssaiboud jo adueusjuiBW JO SOUBPIAT “SIEWID |O0YIS
ssaiboid Jo asueusjuie pue ‘Juawabebua dnd ‘Juawanajoaul Jusied Buipnjoul Juawabebua |ooyos anoidun 0} Juem app ¥
{eog jo adA | uondjioseq # |eoS

|e0o
SUOI}oy pue s|eoo)

- ),



L2 jo gz ebed 1PUIsId 100Y2S AlBjuswa|g uolun UBWYD0|g 10} UBld ABIGEIUNOIDY PUE |0JUOY (8507 92-5202
- Juawabebu3| 9,96 S| 9je) aouepuane
"auljaseq au} pdng -g| juspnis - juswabebul| -sjes asuepuaje Juapnls
wiol} aduaiayip ou "JoW aq 0} Auolid - sioleaipul pdnd - G Auoud| - juawsbebu3 ndnd - g
Ajjuand s1 219y | SNURUOD ||IMm JLIBN [e207 G202 | - S10)edIpu] (8207 20T | Aol - Siojedipul |e20 | 9'f
%L6
SEM $90U319)U0D "S92UI9U0D JaYyoea)}
Jayoeajjualed ‘9,06 Sem| -jualed Ja)saw] s
‘Juiod abejuaaiad Jajsawil] i1si1 je S$32UDIBJUOD JBYIed) Je ‘sjuapnjs uoneanpa
| JO aseasoul 2ouepuaye jualed -Juased Ja)sawil | je1dads jo sjuased
ue s| aulaseq ay) - JUBLUIBA|OAU| 15414 Je @ouepuaye Buipnjou ‘8ouepuajpe
pue JeaA Juaund |[ejualed - € Jualed - JUBLUSAJOAU| Juased Jusoiad 6 -
ay) usamiaq "Jawl aq 0} Ajioud - sJojeaipul [ejuaied - ¢ AJUOld | JUSWDA|OAL| |BJudIRd - €
9oUBIBYIP BY] | BNUIUOD [|IM DL |e207 G20z | - Siojedipul (207 202 | Alioud - Si0jedipul [e20| G
“Jedal
poob ul paulejurewl
ale saly|ioe} Jedas poob ui
[O0YOS SBJEJIpUl| PAUIBJUIBW D1E SBIY|I0.) ‘Jeda.
|00 uondadsu) [ooyos sajeaipul| poob ul paulejuiew ale
Sall|ioed DUVS |00 uonoadsu|| sal|ioey |ooyIs Sa)edlpul
‘auljeseq sy} ¥c0c - diseg - | saoed DYVS | 100 uonoadsu| sanyioe
WO} SoUBIBYIP OU ‘Jew aq 0} Aol - siojeaipu)| £zoz - aiseq - | Aoud OHVS - oIseg - |
Ajjuaiino s1 a1ay] | anURUOD |IIM DUIBIN |00 GZ0Z| - Si01edIpU| [B207 $Z07Z | Aliold - S10)edIpU| |eJ0T|  b'¥
‘s|elsjew
|euononlysul
paubie-spiepuels
0} ssa00. ‘s|elajew
aney sjuapnjs |e |jeuononyisul paufiije|  “sjelsjew [euoRonsul
SMOUS uonnjosay -SPIEPUB)S 0} SS8%0€ paubije-spiepuels
pJeog s|ela)ely | 2ABY SJUSPNIS ||B SMOYS| 0} SS90 aAeY sjuspn)s
[euolonsu| uonnjosay pieoq [|B SMOYS uolInjosay
‘auljaseq ay) -0I1SEg - || S|euajely |[euononsisu| pieog sjeusjep
Wo4) 8oUaIayIp ou oW aq 0} Ajioud - si10jed1puj -oi1seq - | Ajuolld| |euononnsu| - oiseg - |
Ajuauing si a1y | aNURUOD ||IMm JLBIN [E207 G2Z0Z| - SJOIEdIpU| [B207 $20Z | Al1old - SI10leDIpu| |BJ0| €%
‘pPajenuspald
Al2yeundoidde ‘pPejenuapald ‘pa|enuapald
ale siayoed) ||e Ajojendosdde Ajoreudoidde
mowmw_wm_mn._n._u“%# 5l ¢ Ewﬂ_wwwqh%m_mh BWOdINQ Z 1BBA | AwodnQ | Jea auljeseg MBI # SR

-

o/

</




123042 mmmn_ aulsiqg [ooyas bm«:m&m_m uolun uewydo|g Jo} ue|d .ﬁ___nmu::ouo( pue [ouoD |BI07 92-G202
pajiciua "$3sIno2 paubie "§9SIN02
sjuapnjs |e -Splepue)s pajjoiua paubije-spiepuels
SMOYS SAYdIVD - SJUBPNS ||B SMOYS paj[0Iud sjuapnis
‘auljsseq ay} $8800y 98In0)D - L SAVdvO - ssadvy lle sSmMoys Savdivo
W01} 82UBIAYIP OU ‘Jow aq 0} Aioud - s1ojeaipu| 2sIno) - / Ajoud - $S329y 9sIN0Y - /
AjJuaund s) a1sy ] | SNURUOD (1M SLIBIN 18007 GZ0Z | - S10]ed1pu| |B207 $Z0Z | Aol - siojedlpu) |20 LY
%0 s! |jel %0 S!
"sulaseq ay) uois|indxa - ajewn|D | 9yel uoisindxa - ajewn|D “ajel uois|ndxa
WioJy a2ua1apip ou ‘Jow aq 0} jooyasg - g Ajuold |jooyas - 9 Ajuouy - ajewl|D [ooyos
AuaLInD si 819y | | SNURUOD ||IM LB - 1sanpD ejeq 20 -1s9np eleq £z20Z| - 9 Auoud -1senp eleq; oLy
%S'C "% S| 3jel
Aq pasealsap uolsuadsng ay| %Gy
sey ajel "10]02 aduewopad S| 9je) uoisuadsng
uoisuadsng sy} usalic) e sey| sy "Jojos asuewsopad
puUE u3alc) 0} pay ajes uoisuadsns pay e sey ajei
wouy panosdwi sey | ‘pleoqyse(q ay) uo - sjewn|D uoisuadsns - ajewl|D ‘ajel uoisuadsns
J0j02 souewuopad| SS9 10 9%E aq ||Im |jooyos - g Aloud [ooyos - g Auoud - ajewl|n) [o0Yos
juaund ayj | ael uoisuadsng - preoqyseq #2202 - pieoqyseq £z20z| - 9 Aluoud - pieoquseq 6'v
"JOJ02 @ouewlopad
usalo) ke sey "10]02
aje) wsiasjuasqe aouewlopad usslo
JlUCIy2 | B SBY Jje) WSI9djuasqe "ajel
"aulaseq ay} - Juawabebugy| ouosys - uawabebug wisisajuasqe d1uoiyd
WOl aduaiayip ou ‘18w 8q 0} jdngd - ¢ Ajuoud ndnd - ¢ Quougd - Juswabebug idng
Ajuaund s1 13y | SNURUOD (IIM JLIBN - pieoqyseq +20¢ - pleoqyseq €20z | -G Ajuoud - preoqyseq| 8y
"9,0 S 9jed o
doip |ooyos 3|ppiw %0
- juawabebuy| s 9jel Jno dosp jooyos "2jel
‘dulaseq ayi dnd -g! sppiw - juswabebug| no doip jooyss sjppiw
WIOJ) 8oUI8YIP OU ‘2wl 8q 0} Auoud - s10jedipul ndnd - ¢ Ajuoud| - uawabebug pdng - g
Auaing si a1ay] | 2nNUUOD |jIM DLW (8207 GZ0Z| - S40)edIpul |B20T $20Z | Aluold - S10)ed1pul |e30|  /L{
‘pouad
Buipodal -4 ay)
4O SB %96 S el
souepualie jJuapnis
oomw___wmmmﬂﬁmﬂﬂ 5l ¢ ._mwﬂhwwwqh%m._m_. awodnNQ zZ leax | awodnQ | Jean auljeseg I ET # PN

\

o/

</




1/ jo gz abed 2SI 1ooyas Aejuawia|3 uoiun uewyso|g Jo) ueld >«___nmuczouo< pue [0JJu0D) |B207 92-S202

‘g |udy Jo sy "uaaln) 0} pay Wolj 0B 10|00 pieoqyseq JNC spelwl YdIum ‘9,G'Z 0} pasealdap papuadsns sjuapnjs J0 Jaquinu ay) ‘yZ-£202

Ul ‘YNsal B Sy "SUOUSAISIUI Y}eay [ejusw pue JOIABYSQ] Z 131} UC SN20) pasealoul pue ‘Loddns jeuonowa-je1dos buisanbaa sjuapn)s 10) Aoijod
Joop uado ‘SUOSSI| IUIW Y} EDY [BJUALL WOOISSED ‘SJUBPNIS YUMm Sul-¥2ayd [euojowa-jenos Bulobuo se yons swelboid pajnjijsul pue sadiales
Bujjesunos paseasoul papinoid isibojoysAsd jooyos InQ -owspued ay) jo sjoedwi jeuoowa-jeIo0s Bulabul ay) o} anp ||1)s sem asealoul

sIY} SaA3I1Rq )siBojoyaAsd jooyas inQ “pleoqyseq 2y} uo Bunes pay B aa92al 0) sh pasned yoiym ybiy aq o} ajes uoisuadsns Jno pamoys
pleoquseq 8y} ‘a10jiay | "%G 0} pasealdul ajel uoisuadsns Ino ‘gz-zz0z Buung "loireyaqgsiw 1o JoIL0I JUapN)s 10} ssjunpoddo Jama) o)
pa| sadnoeid Bupuelsip jeloos asay ] ‘sapelb 1ayjo wol) sjuapnis ypm Buixiw jou alam sjuapnys pue sainpasold Buioue)sip jeoos Buanoeld
1S a1am am ‘gz-1z0oz Buung ‘oiwapued ay} jo asnedaq A|BLIOUR UB SBM SiY]) aA3Iaq am Ing ‘ZZ-|Z0z Buunp papuadsns sjuapnjs ou pey apa

(5202 ‘g Iudy jo se)
%G 0 92-620¢
%S¢ ¥e-£2¢0¢
%S v £¢-2c0d

%0 cc-leoe
ajey uoisuadsng Jes A |00Y2S

122-120z @2uIs sjeJ uoisuadsns Ino jo Alojsiy ay) smoys ejep Buimojoy sy

‘Bulag-||om [BUOIIOWS-|BID0S JIDY) YIIM SJuapn)s sisisse pue sjuased yim 10ejuod uiejuiew sdiay isibojoyoAsd jooyos jenbujjig 1nQ

‘|leob ay) psemo) ssaiboid Buiyew ul ajep o} suonae J1199ds ay) JO SSOUDAIIDBYBUI IO SSBUBANIDBYS 3y} jo uonduosap v

‘gain)ipuadxe [enjoe pajewlnsa pue sainjipuadxa pslabpng uaamisg SOoUSIDYIP [BLISJBW OU 3Je 219y |

"$821IM9G panosdul) o sabejusolad [enjoy pajewlsT pue ssaiAeg panoidw)
jo sabejuanlad pauue|d Jo/pue sainjipuadx3] jenjoy pajewnsy pue sainjpuadxg pajebpng usamjaq saoualaylp |elajew Jo uoneueldxs uy

"SUOIoE 959y} JO uonejuaws|dwl [enioe SY) pUB S9IIAJISS pue SUCHOE pauue|d 9y} U2aM)aq S80UBIaYIP OU Bl 318y

‘uogejuswadun yum paoualiadxa sassaoons pue sabuajeys jueaslal Aue pue
‘suorjoe asay) jo uonejuawajdul (enjoe pue suoljoe pauue)d u) SeoualayIp aAjUBISNS Aue Buipnjoul ‘uonejusw|dwl |je1aAo Jo uondussap v
‘1e3A snoiaald ay} ul Jno palsed sem |eob siyy Moy Jo sisAjeue uy

[sz-¥z0Z] sisAeuy |eo

"$95IN02
paubije-spiepuels

auljaseg WoJy awooINg
sousleyq uelng | ¢ see o} 9Bie] awoonQ Z Jeas | swodng | Jesp auljasegq U # duaiy

(& N, -/




L2 40 6Z obed 1oUISI[ J00YIS AJRIUSWISIT UOJUN UBIYIO(G 10} UB|d ANIIGEIUNOODY PUE [0/UOD [B907 92-6Z0C

"2202/120Z W suoisuadsns 018z ay) 0} £20z/2¢0Z Ul suocisuadsns jo| [
Jaquinu ay} Buedwos usym Ajewoue ue pajeald sy "sucisuadsns [00YDS | _
-Ul XIS pue suoIsuadsns [00YIS JO N0 831y} pEY 8m Pue ‘S|aAd) o_Emucma_ m
-21d 0} pauinjal ajel uoisuadsns INC ‘€Z0Z/Z20Z Ul [BulOU 0} pausn)al | _
Juswabebua |BI00S usypp ‘sainpadoid Bupue)sip |e190s Jlwapued ino B_ _
anp suolsuadsns ou pey am ‘2z0z/120g Ul ‘Buipesisiw jeymaos s| ajey | _

uoisuadsng £z0z/2Z0zZ 3y} 0} paubisse |aA9] J0J0D 3y "10|02 }SaMO| Y} O} |
PuU023S ay) SI Y2IyMm ‘10j09 asuewlopad sbueso ue panaaas sdnolb Juapms | _

S)JIUAA pPue dluedsiH ay| ajey uoisuadsng ayj Joj 10jod @auewiouad |

pal e paalaoal dnoub yuapnys abejueapesiq AjEDILICUCIA0ID0S Y|

‘Preoqyseqd £20¢2/¢c0c |
3y} uo ajey uoIsuadsNg ay} Joj PaAIRda) SJUSPN]S N0 10j0o souewlopad |

paJ ay) 1091109 0} djay |IM uoioe Sy} Jeyl aAl|eq apA “welboid | |
Jajoeleyd Ino 10} WNNILING JUaLIND INO ash 0} anuluod pue ‘dnoib Juased | _
uoneanpa |eads ay) Buipnioul ‘syualed yum joejuod uiejuiew ‘)sibojoysAsd

ON 00'¥.€'9/% ~looyds 314 G° B ym poddns jeuoijowa/|elocs apiaoid 0} anujuod |im spn | IsiBojoydhsd looyds, L'y
o L et L s 1
Bugnquuod spund |ejo] | uonduosag mz_._.__# uonoy
suol}oy
‘aqeL

ajepdn fenuuy suonoy BunnquIuos sy} ul punos aq Aew suoloe s Jeak Jse| 10} SadlAlag paaoiduwl Jo sabejuadied |enjoy pajewnsy
sy} Jo Jodal vy *ajqe] ajepdn [enuuy ayj ul punoy aq Aew suonde sJeak Jse| 104 sainjipuadx3 [eN)oy pajewi3sy [ejo] ayj} jo uodas v

“ieah Buiwod ay) 1o} |eob siy) 0) sabueys Aue Buiyew jou aie spp

aanoeld Jond uo
Suoljoa)al wWoly paynsal jey) Jeak Buiwod ay) 104 SUORIE Jo ‘sawoono jabie) ‘soujaw ‘[eob pauueld sy 0} spew sabueysd Aue jo uondudsap v

"saljaw paje|al
ay) Aq pajesnsuowap ssaib0ad ey UIBISNS |IM SUOHOE 9y} JBY) PUB SPUN) JO 3SN SAIJ03YS UE 1B SUOIOe SA0CGE aU} JeY) SMOYS Blep aY|

"Ingssa29Ns aq 0} papaau s|ps Bulyses) ul jnydjay si wesboid ay)
Jey} S31BJIpUI SJUSPNIS PUB SI3Y2E3} WO JoBgPaa 4 "AOUal|ISal PUB ‘JUSWSASIYSE JUapn)s ‘YIomwea) SB Yyons S|(I4S |euoljowa-jeroos ajowold
0} paubisap welboid peseq-yoleasas e s siy] ‘welbosd dayg puoseg ay) Juswsaldwi 0} siaysea} ypm Bunsom osje st 3sibojoyohsd jooyss InQ

“Jeak 0] Jeak woyy £jleanewelp abueys Ajjeguajod ues ajes uoisuadsns
ay) ‘uoneindod Juapn)s INo JO 921S |BLUS 3Y) O} anp ‘19AaMOH "Jeak Joud ay) Jano uawanosdw ue si SIY] %G 0 Si a)el uoisuadsns Ino ‘GZ0Z




101381 (0042 ABJUSLIR|T UoIUM) UBWYD0|g 10} UE|4 A)I|IGBIUNOIIY PUB |01U0Y) |BI07 82-6202

L£ o ot abeyd
‘sjuapn)s
pabejueapesi(] Ajjeaiuouo230120S 1IN0 UO SN0 Jejndiped e yum ‘sjuapnis
Ino 0} sa21Aas pue poddns |Bucijowa-|e100S apiacid 0] aNURUOS |IM A
Bunnquijuo) spund |ejol uonduosaq 3|} 4 uondyY

\

-/




1250 LE mmmn_ PUIsIg [ooyas amucmgm_w uoiun uewlyoo|g Jol uejld >~___nmu_.._30n.o< pue |0JJU0D |B207 92-S202
[ T e uo papiacid Buisq S1 uooE SIUY) ‘JOASMOH . )

P = SR = a

"SJUBpPN]S JO SPaau |aAa| apelb ay) uo Apoalp :adodg)|
SNO0J 0} SIAUOBA) SMO||E SSSSE|D UONBUIGLIOD 10} “
paau sy} Buianpal Jey) Sh UMoYs sey aousiiadxa "Ylew Jo} pJepuels| _
aSNE2aq SUSPNJS BLUOOUI MO JNO 10) S|E0B aY)|  9)e)s By} Papasaoxa Jo JaW SUSPN}S aLwooul |
(11 owsN) sessers | Bunsaw ul aAndeaYe pue piemo) pajoalp Ajjediouud O] N0 J0 %c9 /7 AJUO ‘JUDUSSISSE Ylew |
UCIJBUIGWICD JO UCHEUILLI| S| UONOE SIY| "S)USPNIS JBYJ0 UBY) SAOIAISS|  Boueleg JaUeWS yZ0Z-£Z0Z SU) O} m_.__Eouo<_
ay) wouy Bunysusq UOIUBAIB)UI BI0W Paau SJUapN}s asay) SE Jsi1) :poaN | .
sjuspnys |le pue dnoiB|  palapISUOD BiaMm SJUSPN]S BLUOIUI MO| JO SPadU _
juapn}s awodul mo| Jno 1o} ay} .wHCGU_‘_um Jle slijauaq sossejd uoijjeuiquiod uononpad sse|d uoljeuiquuiod 19} I1syiea |
ssaBoad Joyuow im apn|  10) pasu ay) aonpai o} Jayoea) e Buipiroid ajypn uonoy| L'l
[ i — — ! -
SSSUBAIOAYT SISBg 9PIMOOYDS 10 8pIM-yT] UR UO PSpIAcId # UONOY
J0UON O} (S)2LIS | S1 1 AUM PUE (S)PSaN SS2IPPY (S)UOROY o} MOH (s)p3aN POUHEOPI pue jeoo

(s)dnoub Juspnys pajesldnpun

ay} Jo} sawoono buiacidwi ul uoloe ay) JO SSBURANDAYS aY) 2INSEaLU 0] pasn (s)auaw ay} () pue ‘siseq apIMooyds 10 3] ue uoc papiaoid
Buiaq s1 ) Aym pue (s)pasu payijuapl ey ssalppe o} paubisap si uonoe ay} moy (z) ‘paroanp Ajlediound si uoloe ay) woym Jo} (s)dnosb Juapms
pajeaiidnpun ayj jo (s)paau payuapl anbiun ay; (1) Jo uoneuejdxa ue apiroid ‘|00YDS 10 3] a1ua ue o) papiacid Bulaq uonoe yaes 104
SUOOY SPIM]OOYIS PUE BPIM-YT]

suondiiosaqg pasinbay

"a|qe] suonoy Bunngquuon ayy ul punoj aq Aew Bunnguiuo) se paijjuapl suonoYy 10j sainypuadx3 pajabpng syl

%1568 00°0% %0000 %¥S6'8

m Jea) jooyds = B Jea) |ooyos Buiwoy |
| Buiwon ay; 1oy seoinleg aaosdw) Jejloq — Janokuen 4497 obejuaniad — JanoAued 4407 2y} 10} s821AI8G daoadw| 1o
10 aseaiou| 0} abejusiad |eloL . asealou) o) ebejuaniad payoaloid

189 d¥D1 24} 10} sadiA1ag aAoldw| 10 asealdu| 0) abejuasiag palinbay

_ 00°0% zszoles
JUBIS) UONENUSUOT) 4497 Judasad G| |euchippy pajaalold SJUBIS) UOIBIIUSOUOY) Jojpue [ejuawajddng 4497 pajoaloid |ejo 1|

[92-5202] s1uepn}s awoou|
-MO] pue ‘siauiea] ysijbug ‘yino A 19)S04 10) S92IAISG paaoidw| 10 pasealou|

- N’ l\



L2 Jo gg sbed

1PUISIQ 10042S Aljuawia|g UoIUM UBWIYDOIG JO) ueld ANJIqEUNCOdY PUB [OAUOD) [B20T 92-GZ02

pue Jaydea} uolJuaAISul PajedIpap B asnedsaq
sjuapnis spaau ybiy Jno 104 sjeob ay} Bujaaw
Ul SAI08YS pue piemo) pajoalip Ajjediouud si

1I81) '1I9ASMOH ‘plepue)s ay) aroqe
syuiod ¢°g Bulwiopad Ajuanino ase sdnoib
lle ul sjuapn}s ‘pseoqyseq €202 duUi Jod

uonoe siy] ‘sjidnd Jayjo uey; $a21AI9S UCHUSAIS)UI :pooN
2J0W pasu UAYO SJUBPN)S aSAY) S ISl
(sdnoub Juapnis| palapisuod aiam spdnd pajeoridnpun Jo spasu ay) sjuejsisse
I18) V13 10} JUSLISSASSE| ‘SJUBpNIS ||e SHiauaq SJUe)SISSY JBUOJONIISU] PUB|  |BUOlONJISUI pUB Jaydea) UouaAIdU| 314§
ddSVYVD - pleoquseq| Jayoes) uonuamsiul pajedipap e Buipiaoid sjiypa :uonay raAt
"Sjuapn)s
e J48Uaq |[IM )l DSNBIAQ SISE] SPIM|O0YOS
e uo papiaold Buiaq si Uonoe SIY} ‘JenamoH wu_>».<m_._
"SJUSPNIS JO Spasu |9As| apelb ay) uo Apoaap s
SN0} 0} SI8YJE3} SMO||B SOSSEJD UOBUIqUIOD
1o} paau ay) Buonpai Jey) sh umoys sey "1eal Joud ay} woy spuiod £ Jo asealosp
aouauadxs asnedaq sjuapnis spaau ybiy 1no Joy B S| SIY} ‘J28A3MOH 'pIEpPUB)S 8y} aAcqe
s|eob ay) Buneaw ul sAoaYS puB PIEMO)] PajoalIp syuiod ¢'¢ Buiwopad Apuasing ase sdnosb
Ajjediouud s uonoe sy “sjdnd Jayio ueyY) SS0IAISS [|e ul sjuapnis ‘preoquseq £z0Z Sl 194
UOIJUDAIIIUI 2I0W PA3BU USYO SJUIPNIS 9SOY) Se :poaN
(sdnouf uapnys | 141} palapisuod alam sidnd pajesidnpun Jo spasu
l1€) Y13 40j Juswssasse 24} ‘SjUBpNIS (B SHj2uUSQ SISSE|D UoeUIquIOD uonRoNpPal SSEJD UOIBUIGUIOD JO) JBYJED |
ddSvvD - pieoquseq| Joj pasu ay} sanpal 0} Jayoes) e Buipiaoid 3jIyaa :uonoy L'
‘'s19ad Nay)
yyum Jed uo wiopad o) pssu uayo sjuapnis spesu 0u_>>_mo;ow
~-y61y yey) poddns |euoijonijsul pue WooIsseo -ododg
|euciippe ay} apiaoid Im SIUB)SISSY [BUOIONASU|
pue 13Uyoes} UoNUSAISUI PRJEJIPaP B aSNeaq ‘plepuels ayj mojaq
sjuapn)s spasu ybiy 1no Joy sjeob ay) uyasw sjuiod 6'0g Buiwiopad Ajjuaiung ae sdnolb
Ul dAj33Y2 pue piemo) pajoanp Ajjediouud si [|B ul sjuapn)s ‘pseoqyseq £zZ0zZ U J18d
uoloe siy] ‘s|idnd Jayjo uey) sa01IAJ9S UORUSAIBIUI ‘peeN
SI0W pPaau UaYo SJUSpN}s asay) Se sy
{sdnouB yuspnis| palapisuod alam sjdnd pajeandnpun Jo spasu ay} sjuejsisse
[1B) Ylew 104 JUsWSSasSSe |  ‘SJuspn)s ||e S}iyauaq SJUBISISSY [BUOIONIISU| pUB|  [BUO(IONIISUI pue Jaydea) uojuariajul 314 §
ddSVVvO - pieOqUseq| Jaydea)} uoluaAIaul pajedipap e buipiacid spyss uonay 'L
‘sjuapn)s
[le JyBuaq ||Im }i 8Snedaq SISeq SpIM|ooydS apm|ooyos
S$S9UAANIBYT sISeg apIM]O0YIS 10 8pim-yY3] UB UO papiAold # uonoy
JONUON O} (S)oulay |  SI ) AYAA pue (s)pasn ssaippy (s)ucloy ay) moH (s)pesN paynusp) DUE [EOD)

-

-/

<~/




12 J0 g¢ obeg PUIsIq [00Yog AlRjUBWa(T UOIUN UBWIYDO)G 10} Ue|d AJ[IGEIUNOO0Y PUE [0)UOD) [BI07 9Z-G20Z

‘g|gedijdde JoN

‘ajqedijdde se ‘sjuapn)s awooul

-MO] pue ‘siaulea) ysibug 'YinoA 18)so} jo (Juaalad GG anoqe) uonesuaduca ybiy e aaey Jey} sjooyos je sjuapnis o) Sa21a1as Joaup Buipiaosd
Jels Jo Jaquinu ay) asealdul o) pasn aq |lim aAoge paynuapl Buipuny uo-ppe jJueib uoneuUadUCD |eUOIPPE aY) Moy 10} ueid ay) Jo uonduassp v
Buipung jueis) uonesuasuos) jeuonippy

‘8|geddde joN

‘g|qesiidde se ‘abejuassad jeuoipodold sy} SpJemo) UORDE By} JO UOINGLIUOD S} AUILLISISP
0} pasn sem jey} AGojopoylaw ay} 8quosap ‘spuny 4407 Jo ainjipuadxa ue uey) Jayjel ajqe . Arewwng Buinguiuo) syj ul SadIAeS pascidw|
jo abejuaoiad pauue|d B UIm pajerdosse si jey) Juswalinbal saoiaes pasoldwi Jo paseasour ay) Bunesw o) Bunnguiuos uonoe paywi Aue 104

$S3UBAIOBYT (s)paaN (s)paaN paynuap| uﬂu m.ww

lojuopy 01 {s)ousn $Sa1ppy 0} paubisag ale (s)uonoy ay) moH

‘painseawd aq |im (s)dnoub Juapnys pajedljdnpun ayj Joy sawoano Buiaocsdw ul uoROe By} JO SSBUBAIOBYS
ays moy (¢) pue ‘(s)paau paynuap: ay) ssalppe o} paubisap s1 uonoe ay} moy (z) ‘pantas Buiaq (s)dnoib Juapnis pajesydnpun ay) jo
(s)paau paypuapi anbiun sy} (}) jo uoneuejdxa ue apiaoid ‘(s)dnolb yuaspnys pajeadnpun aiow Jo auo o} papiaocid Ajgjos Buiaq uonoe yoea 104

suonoy pajyuwi
BPIM|OOYOS
‘s19ad N2y} ‘edoog
yum Jed uo wuouad 0) pasu usayo sjuapn}s spasu
-ybiy Jey; yoddns jeuolONIISUI PUB LIOOISSEID "Jeak joud

|euonippe ay; apiacad |im sjuelsissy jeuononnsu| ayl woly syuiod £°61 Aq asealoap aduewopad

# Uuonoy

SSaUaADaYT siseg apIM|O0YDS JO 8pIM-\YgJ] UB Uo papiacid (5)pooN paunuap|
: pue |E0S)

IoNUOy O} (S}olyBN |  S! M AUAA PUE (S)PasN SSaIppY (S)uonoy ayi moH

- </ )




LZ 10 +€ mmm& prolNitoi g olelVioloy BN«COEO_N uoiu} uellyaolg 1oj ue|d Aj|IgRIUNODDY pue [0NU0D) |BI0T 9Z-GZ0Z

SJuUapNIS 0} SBJIAISS JoalIp
Buipiancid yeys pajesyiuao
JO ojel Juspnis-0l-jels
SjUapN}s 0} SAJIMISS Jo3IIp
Buipinoad Jers payisseld
0 onjel Juapnis-oj-jjeis
sjuapnys pajeandnpun
jusasad $$9| JO uopesuUa’IUoI

GG uey} Jajeaib J0 UONBIUSOUOD JUSPNIS B YIM S|00UIS | 10 Juadlad GG JO UOIJEIJUSIUOD JUBPN]S B YIIM S|O0YIS pue jooyas jo adAy
Aq sonels juapnis-o}-jels




L2 40 € 2bed

1OUISIA 100YIS AUBIUAWR)T UOIUM UBWLINE JO) LBl AIGRIUNOI0Y PUe U0 B0 §Z-6202

uaxog
utueluag
00 B0y
‘PLEBLS 0008 0008 00tBETIS 00°06E'E88 00°0$ 00Fig'ess  BuipBug  oypedg oN [ 18|0ojoyoAsd j0oyoS L 14
jeoyog At
BRIUBLWAY
usxod SWODU| MO
uwelusg  yino Jaiscd awaoau| Mo sjum)sisse
a0 ‘Sjooyos slawean apm YInoA JBIS04  JRUONONNSUI PUB Jaydes)
0 6Z6'99%  000% 0'0% 00'0% 00'626'90¢ 0008 00526'988 OBuobup  oymedg ysnBuz  [oopRs LETN s191ues7 Ysybua uonueAsBlLl 3145 2 £
teouos Al
Bluawglg
uexod auwodup Mo
uweflusg  YnoA 18)504 DUWIODU| MO
00 S|o0yaS siawea] apm yInoy 131504 UORONPA SERR
0 '£89'99%  000% 000$ 0008 00'Ee9'e08 0008 00'ce9'ees OBuwbug  oywadg usuBuz  v31 58\ siewee] ysibug  uopBUIQWOD JO) JBIPERL LT £
tooyes A
BlUSWA
uexo4
uureluag WALIBOABD
SO0LPS [euomssopud
00'0% 00s 00'0% 0008 0008 0008 00°0$ Guobug  oyweds oN I pue Buuen seyoeel 12 T
8-
joouag &
BIUHUIIT
uaxod SUWIOAU| MO
unuelueg  YInos Jaso4 S| MO SIUBISISSE
00 SIooYRs sPwesT apm yino, 181504 [BUONDNUISL| PUB JaYDB3)
0 '626'098  0O'0% 00'0% 00°0$ 00°526'06% 000$ 005ze'9ps Guobug  oumedg ysiiBug ours $9A sewes ysbug uopusmal LIS TL ]
-
A
BUwS|3
uaxXed  AWICIU| MO
upue{uag  WINOA J8)S0d S| MO
(is1] Sj0oYRS sigwean SpM WINo A 8IS0 UORONpaAJ SSRR
0 '£689'99%  00'0S 000s 00'0s 00'E89'0S 0008 00'cep'ges  Buipbup  oypedg ysbug ouas S84 e '

EEEIER
paacdy Jo

abejuaziag spunyg

spun4

|BulGsIad

lauuosiad

{s)dnougy
wapnig

isanialag |
paacidu 10
pasealau] 0

sspwee ysybug

UOHBUIGUIGD J0j JOLDRS |

pauue|d |elot

|eJepay

|2u CDm._wa.CDZ |ey0

Spun4 [E207

Spuny alels 13y

00065 EPES

19UUCSIad [B10]

SpUn4 4497

-uoN 1E10)

00°'065°EVES
spung [BI0]

12101

vedg aun)

00’08

spung |e1apad

uoneso | pareandnpun

0008

Spun4 o6

adoag | Bunnguion | (s)dnoig wuspnis

00'PBB8'ZLS
Spun4 aieIg 1310

a|iL uonay

00°'909'0EES
Spung 4427

| #uonoy | #ie0n

seloL

s|eio]

%000°0 LFZ'BYE'T $1¢0)
{amap JoL14

woy) sbeuaniad induy)
abeuaviag

— 1aachlien 4407

%FG6'8 FArA |4
{1 Ag papinip 7 |
163 |00Y2S | {iuncwy sejjoq 1ndu|)

B BNR M CEEVE SIURID UDJRIIUAIUGD
!Wod Ui 1ok S | Jojpue [Rwawae|ddng
anoidw| 10 aseaidau| o)

abejuasiag paroaloid g | 4497 paiasfold 'z

|
{unowy Jeea indul)
u:—mLO
_ aseq 4407 pardafoid |

1B A (0042G

Buiwos a4l 1o} 53214495 B3\ V21

aaoidul) Jo asEaI0U|
o0} sbejuaniay [F101

a|qeL saimipuadx3 |ejoL 92-S20Z



L4 Jo ot ebeq

1oatog A
BlIBWAIS
ERIEVELS
paaoidiu] jo
abieluadiay spuny spund
pavuerd 1E30 ] |2J3pa S

4583|A13T
(s)dnoigy paAosdw| Jo
jauosiad | (suuosiad uapmsg PasSeaisu| 0}

SpUN4 |BI07] -UoN [E30 | [L:2leX R

(sjdnougy tuapmsg

a11] uoendy

PUISIJ [00URS ARIUILSIT UOILM LRWYI0(g J0) ueld AIGRIUNCIDY PUB [OJU0T |BD0T 9Z-5202

Spun4 a1e15 1ayiQ) [ spund 4427 uedg swi | " uvonescT | paeadnpun | adoog | bunynguuon

| # uouoy | #1209



L2 Jo 4¢ abed 19U1SI 100Y0S AIRJUSWS|T UCIUM UBLUYD0|g 10} UB|d A)IGEILUN0IaY PuUe [01UCY) (8207 92-SZ0T

jooyog Aejuswe|3 BUWOoU| MO
uaxo4 uwelusg yino A 18yso4 SJUBISISSE |BUOIJONJISUl pUB
0 00'526'09% 'sjooydg oyoadg  siausesn ysiibug SpImjooyos S3A Jayoes) uohuaaded] 344 § [ £
jooyas Aejusig|3 BLooU| MO
uaxo4 uwelusg yino A 1sjso4 uononpal sseo
0 00°£89'09% 's|00y9g oyadg  ssewes ysibul apIM-YIT SOA UOIBUIqLUIOD 10} Jayoea | Ve £
8-M
jooyog Alejuaws|l BULIOOU| MO
uaxo4 uwelusg yino 1ayso4 SJUBISISSE |BUOIIONIISUl pUB
0 00'526'99% 'sj00yag oyadg  sseuwies] ysibul apIMjooYsS SIA Jayaes) uofluaalalu| 314 §° FAl }
8-3
Aeuslwis|y BLIOOU| MO
usxo4 ulweluag Yino, Jajso4 uononpaJ ssejo
0 00'£29'09% :sj00yos oyoads  siswes ysibug apIM|OoYDS SaA uoneUIqUIOD 1o} Jayades | Ll !
(%) sadinleg uu_UAM.UMHm_:od i S8IAIBG
paaoaduy 6 : (s)dnoigy Juapmg paaociduw|
unnqgluuon uoneson L uenoy # UORDY | |BOD
jo abeiluasiad 10} SBINYIpUSdX paieandnpun 10 pasealdu|
pauue|d 4 uw:pw_n_ 3 o) Buiynqujuon
I ‘[ejol
00°€£5°002% apIM|OoYoS
00°0% 1Bjo) pajunr
. :|ejo
00689998 oo
00'912'292% [ejol % 6.€°L1L %000°0 00'9L2'292% %568 %0000 %PS6'8 gseoLe (B4 A

{(gsmd ‘L (% {1
Ag pspraip ¢) 1anohue) + ¢) Ag pepiaip Z)
iea) |o0Yyog iea ) |o0yog lea A [ooyog
Bunuon ay) (o) Buiwon ayy {Jea ) Buiwo) ayy SJUBIC)
10} S321AI3 S301A1D spun 104 S3821A13 1004 WoJy 10} S3DIAI2S | UOIIEIJUBIUOD
3401180l Aa sielol w:;:n_E_ > um>oarm_ Am%:«_m%%%ﬁ.m M:,P_QE_ ° afiejuaoiay) aacidwy 10/pue
10 aseauou| | jo aBejuadiad | Bunnguiuon 10 @sealau| abejuasiad JO asealou| | [Bjudwa|ddng juein
0] afejuadiag pauue|d pauue|d 03 abeluagiag | — JaanhAues | o) abejusdiad 4401 aseq 44971
pauue|d ejc] 'S Iejol ‘v [El0L 4407 pajoaloid € pajoslosd 2 pajoaloid |

a|qe] suonoy bunnquuo)d 9z7-5202
L —r’ L

spung adh]




1L o g¢ abed 12UISI] [00UoS AlBjuawa|] uolun UewY30]g 1o} ue|d AlIqeIUNn0aoY PUB [0U0Y) |E20T 92-6202

00v2€'9/$ 00'v2£'9L$ ON 1siBojoyohsd jooyos (8 4
SJUBISISSE [eUOlIoN;SUl

00°626'99% 00'5¢6'99% SIA pue Jayoea) uonusAlal| 314 & AL €
uoijonpal

00°'£89'09% 00°€89'99% SaA SSE[2 UoneuIquiod Joj Jayoes | L'E €
weludojanap

00°0% 00°0% ON jeuoissajold pue Buuel) Jsyoes] VZ z
SJURJSISSE [2UOIIoNISu

00'526'09% 00°626°99% SaA pue Jayoes) uohjusalajul 314 §° rAN 2
uononpal

00¢€89'99% 00°€89'99% SAA SSEJD Uoljeuqiod sof layoea | i b

spund |e3o] Indu) spund |e3o]
salnyipuadxy salnjpuadxy £5921A185 paaosduw] 10 # |EOD)

|[ENIOY pajewinsy pauue|d SJeaA 1SeT] pasealou| 0} pajnguuc) 3311 IVIAITGJUOIDY 0L d Uoi}oY S Jea A )58 | SJBIA ISET

00°065'EYES 00'065'EvES slejol

spung |B)o|

(spund |g301) sainjipuadx3

sain)ipuadxy
pajewisy |e301

pauue|d [BI0L
S,JB3 ) 1SET

a|qe] ajepdn |enuuy GZ-¥Z02
L "’ l&



LL Jo 6¢ abed JouisIq [o0Yog AlRjuawa|g uolun UBWYD0|g IO} UB|4 AJIGRIUNOIaY pUe |0IIU0Y) |EJ0T §2-620T

SJUBISISSE [RUOIIMSUI pUB

0 0 00°626°99% 00'526'09% SIA Jaydes) uousABl| 314 & [AL S £
uononpail

0 0 00°£89'99% 00¢£89'09¢ SaA SSEJD UOHBUIGLUOD JOJ JI3YJEd |, L'e €
SJUB)SISSE |BUOIONISUI pUB

t] 0 00'626°99% 00°626'09% SaA Jaydes) uoliuarielu] 314 §° [AN I
uociionpsal

0 0 00°£89'09% 00°£89'09% SaA SSE0 UONEBUIqUIOD 104 Jaydea | Vi }

spundg 4407 induj
CERITVETS sSU0IY 4407) suonay £S301/43G paroidu] # UCHDY | # |EOD
parocsdw) Jo Bugnguuon Bunnquuon 10 paseaidu| 3] 2DIAIAGIUOIIIY I101id SiEDA | SJBIA

{abejuaziag Indu|)
S321A43G pancudu)
10 abejuadlad

[ENOY palewnss abejuasiad pauue|q | 10} saunjipuadx3y 10} sainjipuadxy 0} Buiinguiuon )seq 1587

[EMJY PIBUWHIST | PAUUB|d SJBBA 1SET

%000°C %0000 %0000 00°0% 00'91L2'292% 00'9LZ'2928
junowy
wodyj g 1oengns) . woJ4 / JorAqNng) Jde|joq nduj)
S321A18G (%) suoljoy (spung 4407) sjuelcy
paacuduw) mmu._?%w Bunpnguiuon {(spung 4427) sainjipuadx3y UONEIIUBDUOD
panolaw] {2,) saoinieg 10} sainjipuadxy SUoNaY Buinquuon 10/pue

Jo abejuasiagd .
pajeWnsT [210) '8 paAciduw| pajew}sy pue Bunnquuco pauug|d |elC] b [ejuswsajddng

J0 abejuaalag

pajewisy pue
pauue|d uaamiag Jo abejusoiayd pauue|d usamiag | Joj sainjipuadxy 44971

22usiapig pauueld [elo] 'S aoualaylg palewnsy |ejol L pajewns3y ‘g

ajgel ajepdn [enuuy suonoy Bunnquuod gZ-+Z0z
N S lk



L2 0 Ot 9bed

%000°0

(6 Aq papinIp Z1)
abejuaoiag

— J3A0MlIED
4421 '€l

00°0%

(6 Aq Adiynws
pue gl wou}
L1 Joedgng)

unoLwy Jejjog

— Janohuien

4407 2L

%1202l

{g snid
‘6 Aq papIAIp £)
CERIFSETS
paaoidw
10 pasealdu|
10 abejuaolad
[enjoy
pajewns3y “L|

RIS jooyas AlBjusLwa|g uolun uewyoo|g Joj ueld AMIIGeIunoIdy pue [oiuo) [8207 92-5202

%0000 00'91LZ'292% %000°0 %000
+ 6 AQ papiaIp g)
B3\
|cOYDS JuaLINg
2y} 40} S921A18g
aaolduw|
10 a5EalIU|

0} abejuaniag
Ie10l 0|

(%) (spung 4407}
SERINYETS SUQIOY
paaotdu) Bunnquuos 40y}

jo abejuasiad sainjipuadx3g
[en1oy |[enidy
palewnsy pajeLuysy
lelol ‘g lelol "2

{iea p 10114 W04y
abejuaosiay)
ebejuaniad —
13A0/UBD 4457

ST
UOBJILAIUOY)
J0jpue
[eiuawa|ddng
4407 1enjoy
pajewns3 -9

886'22ec'cs

(junowy
le|joq induj}
juelD) aseq
4407 lenjoy
pRajeWnsy 'g

o|qeL JonoALie] 4407 S7-¥202

'



L£ 40 L abed PUISIQ (00YdS Aejusiisig uolun UBWL0IE Jo) Ueld A)[IqeUNco0Y PUE [0U0D [B307 92-5Z02

03 ‘pz—cz0oz u Buuuifag ‘senuoud aje)s auy) Jo yoes 10} paasiyoe ag 0} ‘Z60zs uonoas N3 o) uensind payipuapr siidnd jo dnoibgns
yoes pue s|idnd [je 10} ‘s|eob jenuue sy} jo uonduosap e apinoid 1snw 4o a4l (LXA)re0ze uonoes N3 ul pay1oads sy (310N =

([2] pue [L][aly902s
suoljoas D3) souew Aloinjels pue seale Ajsond Aloynjels ay) ssaippe Jey; ‘seanppuadxa pajejds pue suonoe Aq papoddns ‘sjeob Buiysigeisg o

‘([o-Pllalyo0zs uonoas 13) 4497 Jepun sjesauab sjuepnis asoy) Buipuny [euoIippE 40 JUNOWe 2y} 0} uciodoid Ul SJUSPN)S SWODUI-MO|
pue ‘siaultes) ysibug wial-Buo) Buipnioul ‘sisutes| ysyBu3 ‘'yinoA 19)s0y Joj saoiaies Buiacidu Jo Buisessou sie sy37 jey) Bugensuowasq o

:Algejou Jsow ‘suoneinbas pue senels 4497 Y3 Ul payads sjuswalinbas snouea yum paidwod aaey Asy) 18U} MOys 0} Sy3 alinbal
suoIas aje|dwa) 4y SWOoS JO dInjeu auy) 9SNedaq uonouny AlNIGeIUNcde Juepodwl UB SAIBS dyD 8yl :9aueldwoy pue AIIejunoddy e

‘dvO7 8y} Ut papnjoul

aq 0} suonoe pue sieob |jenuajod Auapl 0} Japio ul sjybisul pue saaoadsiad asay) sjelodiooul |im Buiuueld aibsjens aanoay3 "S90IASS pue

sweiboid s,y37 ue Jnoge sybisul pue saaoadsiad ajgen|ea ssassod siauped jeuoneonpa (2007 ([L1[8lF90zs uonoes H3) uswabebua |nybulueaw
ybnoiy) apew suoisiap s19914a1 Jey) DT Ue ur jnsal pinoys $s900.1d Juswdojaasp dyoT 9yl s1duped jeuonesnp3 jo juswabebug injbuiuesy o

‘SUBpNIS (e 10} paaoidiul a1e saWooiNo pue saljiunpoddo sinsua o) spasu AHUNWWoD

PUE JUSPN]S JoaW 0} S92IN0SSI PAJILI JO SN BU) INOge e AsLj} SS20UD piey SY) ajen|eAa Ajjlenuijuod pinoys sy37 elep aouewnousd Buluies)

pue Buiyoes) 0} suoisioap Aejalpng spoauuoo ansusyaidwod si ley) Buiuued aibajens ([LI[Rly90zs uoncag [D3] apon uoileonpd eluIoj D)

piecquyseq |0oydg eluIoy e ay) Ag paleaipu sdnolb juapnis uasmiag sawWwoono pue saunpoddo ul sanledsip aonpal pue ssaippe o0} Apenoiped
‘Buiuueld si6oyens anisusyaidwos spoddns 4yo eyl Bugepdn Ajjenuue pue Guidojaasp jo ssaooid ay] :Buluueld 216ajens aaisusyasdwon e

'SUOIJOUN PaJEJaL ING ‘IDUNSIP 93JY) SaAlas $5800.d Juawdolaaap dvyoT @yl

‘uoneanp3 jo pieog sjels ayl Aq pajdope ajejdwia) ay) Buisn dyD 2y) wi ssa0ad Bujuue|d siy) Jo synsal ey} juswnoop sy
‘(senuoud ajeys 0| aaey s309) soujaw Aonje)s e Buissedwosus seale Ajuoud aye)s Jybie uiyum ssalboud nay; ajenjeas o) ssasoud Buiuue|d
|enuue ue ul sisuped |euoeanps (e20] Ji2y) abebua 0} (sy37) salouabe jeuoneonpa |B20| salinbal (4407) einwio4 Buipun 4 [ouos (207 Sy |

SUOI}9NJ}SU| pue UOoI}ONPOLIU]|

A0B B3 8poW@HJD ] € [1ews Aq 10 6080-6L€-916 je suoyd Aq
‘2010 poddns swialsAs Aousaby 18207 (s,3Q0) s,uoieonp3 jo Juswpedaq eiuioen ay) 410 (300) uoyeanpa Jo 82140 AJunod [eI0f ay} J1oBjUoD
aseoyd ‘sjejdwa} (v ueld ANjIqelunosdy pue j04uos) 207 8y} Jo uoneIdwod 8y} 0} pajejal doUL]SISSe [ediuyda) 10 suonsanb (euonippe o4

SJUSPN]S SWODU[-MO | PUE 'SIauiea] ysibug JIno A 19)S04 10§ Se0IAISS paaoidu| 10 paseaidu]

SUOHOY PUE S|B05)

SIaujed [euoneonpg bulbebug

Kewwng uelg
suolon4sul ueld AJjiIgeunosdy pue |03uU0) 18207

. - -



1L Jo 2 abed 1IsIQ [004S Algjualia) uoiun Uewyoo|g o} ueld AIIGeIUNcDoY pue |0Auo) (B0 92-5202

"SaAIaS uoljoas jey) asodind ayy Buiziseydwa
uoljewuojul sapn|aul uonoas ajejdwal yoaea Jo Buluuibaqg ay) ‘Ajleuoippy JUBWN20P 4y 3yl buneidwos pue 4y97 ay) buidojsasp
usym saajoeld aAlloayS INoge uoewIoUl apn[oUl ABW NG 4D 2Y) JO UCOSS |oBs 10} Sjuawalinbal sy} ssaippe suoionIjsul asay |

"SJuUSpNIS Z1-M.L Si Jo Jleyaq uo 1oedw )sebbig ay) aaey |im saAslsq Y3 ay) ‘siauped
[euoneanpa woly pasayed Jndul pue ‘aousuadxe ‘Ysieasal uo paseq ‘Yoiym Suolloe pue SoUSLW JO 189S B U0 snao} 0} pabeinooua ale sy

£ SIUBPNIS SWOJUI-MO| pue ‘siautea] ysiBug ‘YInoA 19)so} 1o} saoinIas ancidwi 1o
aseasoul 0y uonebiqo sy Bunsaw Aq Buipnioul ‘sdeb ssuewsopad Aue ssaippe pue ‘spasu AJunwiLuod pue Juapnis g—y1 0} puodsal 0}
saainosal Aejabpnq sy Buisn w37 sy} s1 moy ‘pleoqyseq 2y} Ul s1ojeaipul uo pue sanuoud ajels ay) ssoloe aduewlopad Juasald uanig

:suoiouny Juswabebus Jauped [euoneonpa pue Buiuueld oibajens
3y} Jo o104 Y} Je awel) Buiyoselano Buimojjoy ayl daay o} pabeinooua ale sy37 ‘uondope 10} 41 oY) Buizieuy pue Buidojaaap y

"211gnd Jope0iq 2y pue siouped [BUONBINPS BSIBAIP S Y9 @Yl 1o} 9|qIssadoe pue |njbuiueaw aq o}

papusiul sdyD7 paidope 11ay; Ul 1ejop JO |9Ad] e pue abenbue| asn 0) pabeinooua A|Buoss aie sy3T 'SjUSpnis 10} SBWO0IN0 pue saijunuoddo
pencidwi 0} Buipes) ale saibajens asoy) Joylaym pue ‘Aym puejsiapun o} siauped [euoljeonpa moje os|e Ing ‘(Z1—ML1) arlem apelb

ybnoiy; uapebiapury [euonisues Ul SuapMs Joy Buiop sI w37 sy) Jeym isnfjou (Insip 0} idwsye pinoys dyD paldope ay) ‘Jiseq jsow sy 1y

'$Z0Z J0 senels ‘g¢ 1sjdeyd ‘€Sl (g AJeusS pue £Z0z JO SaNjelS ‘gy Jaidey (malasy [eosid pue 1abpng uo sajIWWOD)
pLL g jeuas ybnosys spew sabueyds Aioinjels sjoa|ya) sieak |00Yds /Z-9Z0Z PUE ‘9Z-SZ0Z ‘SZ—H20Z dUY) 10§ djejdwia) 4D pasiaal ay

‘paubije aie sain)puadxa [enjoe pue

pa1ebpnq |je (sjooyas Jo Juapuajuliadns AJunod 10 Joulsip jooyas) 1ebpng s Alus Yyoiym o) ajeinaiue AlJes|o 1snul 4v07 Yl 02026 Pue ‘89025
‘99025 ‘2902S ‘090G Suonoas 3 ul sjuswailinbal syl yum Jualsisucd 4y 91buis e jeaocidde pue mainal 10} sy pue jdope Aew JoulsIp |00Ys
3y} jo pseoq Bujuianob ayy pue uonesnpa jo pleoq AJunod ay} ‘oulsip [coyas ajbuls e Jaao uonoipsunl sey s|ooyas jo juspuljuuadns Ajunos e §|

‘siauped [euoneonpa buibebua 1o} |00y

e Se papuajul Jou si jjasy ale|dwa) 407 eyl se isnl ‘ssasoud Juawdojaaap [Iny ay) 1o8)as Jouued pue jou op 3je|dwa) 4D 2yl ulylim papnjoul
suoloas 3y "4y paidope |euy sy} ul palosyal se ‘sjuawalinbal (eba) sjesw (2) Jey) sisuped [euonednpa yum uawabebua jnjbuiuesw
ybnouy (q) ‘(preoqyseq) pieoqyseq |00Y2S eiUIOf|ED By} Ag pajesipul sdnolb Juspn)s usamjaq sawodno pue sapunuoddo ul sailredsip
aonpals pue ssaippe o} Apenoiped ‘Buiuueld ai6ajels anisusyasdwos Jospal {e) :Jsnw yoiym ‘ssaesoid Juswdopasp 4y 119yl JO awoodino

3y} 9zijeuowaw 0} aje|dwa} ay} asn JsNW Syg "$sad0id B Jou ‘JusWinaop e s| ‘qy D] paldope [euy s,y yoea ayl| ‘eyejdws} 4D 8yl

'([11] pue ‘'[g] ‘[ollalro0egs suonoas H3) JvD1 dul Ul pajdayel se ‘1sAokiied 4407 Jojpue
Buipuny uo-ppe JueIf uoneUS2UOY Buipnoul ‘suoneINoed Juelb uonesjuasuod pue |Bjuawalddns o) s|genquUNe sasealou e jey) Buunsug  ©

‘([2)[al¥90zs uonoes 13) sieob ay) pJemo) ssaiboud 1oapal 0} 4D 2yl Bunepdn pue Buimalasl Ajlenuuy ©

‘sjuspns
Gl 1e @ =oyiubis |[eouawnu & yum dnoibgns jidnd jounsip pue ajesedas = = siswies] ysijbug wus)-Buo| saynuapl Z602s uondesg

S o



1L 40 £F obed JoulsIq [0oys AIBJUSWS|T UOIUM UBLIYIOIG 10§ UB|d AJIGEIUN0IDY PUE [0NU0D (8907 9Z-6202

‘pleoqyseq
£20Z 8y} U0 S10}e0Ipul 8)B)S SI0W 10 SUO UO [9A3] soueLIouad }SSMO| BY) PSAISJaI Jey) y3T Sl UIyIm jooyos e uiyyim dnolb juapnis Auy

Jojpue
‘pJeoquse( £20z Y} Uo SI0JedIpul 31B)S SJOLW JO BUO U [3AS] d2uewouad }SOMO| 2y} paAadal Jey) w37 ay) uiypm dnoib Juspnis Auy e

‘pleoquseq £Z0Z Y} UO SI0IedIpU| 3)e)S a10W 10 SUO UO [3A3] @ourLLIONSd JSOMO| BY) PaAISAL JeY) Y3 3y} UIylim [ooyds Auy e
191942 gy Jeah-aaiyy sy} Buunp pabueyaun ujewsas |Im yoiym ‘Buimo)joy auyy Auapl jsnw y37 sy} ‘asuodsas siy) jo ped sy

"asuodsal sy}
Jo Jed se 4o 3y} uiyum sjooyos Jo/pue ‘sdnolf Juapnis Jo spaau payuapl ay) Buissaippe ale Aayy moy ybiybiy o0y pabeinoosua ale sy

‘ssa20.4d Juawdojaaap ay) Buunp v31
ay) Agq payuapi sabuajieys pue $assa00ns Yjog apnjoul Aew siy) ‘elep |20 pue pieoqyseq ay} uo asuewlousdd fenuue s,y37 9yl uo joeyey
"BJep |B20] pue (pJeoquse) pIEOqUSE( |00YDS BILIOJ R SU} JO MSIASI B U0 paseq aouewopad [Enuue Uo Uoioayal v
92UBWIOLIB [ENUUY SUONJIBY
‘Buipuny Jauduiny ANNb3 BuiAleaal w31 Sy} UIYylm S|O0YIS [je AJjuapl ‘asuodsal siyl Jo ped sy e

012 ‘uoisia ‘ueld o1Bajeas Jiay) Inoge uciewojul apirold osie Aew Sy e

‘dvD1 8,.¥31 @Y} puBIsIapun AN} 250Ul 0} Japeal B 9jqeus UBD apnjoul 0} Ysim Aew w3 8y} UORELLIOJUI Yons JaYjo pue ‘sabusjieys
Ajunwiwoo Juadal ‘sjooyas aoads Jo 8zZIs pue Jaquinu ay) uswAioidws ‘Juswijolua ‘Aydesboab jo swus) u Y37 ue Jnoge uonewlojul ‘ajdwexs 104 e

‘w37 8U} 0} a|qesidde se ‘z| -1 sopelb ul s)uspnis s)i pue ‘sjooyds si ‘Y3 9y} aquassp Ayaug

‘0@ ‘uoisiA ‘ueld 16aje)s Jay) JNOQE UOoNBLLLIOJUI

apinold osje Aew sy37 w31 9Y3 0} a|qedndde se ‘z | —uapebiapuny jeuoisuel) sapelb ul sjuapnis s)i pue ‘sjooyos sji ‘y37 ays Jo uonduasap v
UOHBWIOJU| |BIBUIS)

suoljonijsuj pue wn—.._m..:&.__:_uwﬂ_

dVO7

ay} Jo uonoas Jusnbasqns yoea Jnoybnoly) papnoul Juajuoo ay; o} pajejal AjinjBuluesw pue Aleajo g piNoyYs uondas SIY) JO JUSIU0 3yl ‘v
8y} 40 }saJ ay)} Jo} 1xauod |niburuesw e Jussaid 0} Japio U] ‘eouewLIopad pue SPasu JuapN)s INOJE UOIBWIOJUI JUBASIA) SE [|BM Se AJunwiwod
$,Y37 ue Inoge uoneuloyul sapiaoid uonoas siy| "4y Syl Jo) 1X83u09 |njbuluesw e sapiroid uopdas Aewwing uejd padojpasp-|em v

asodind
Alewwine uejd

» - L



LZ i0 i ebed J2MIsIQ [00YDS AlBjuswalg uoIUM UBLIYDO|g 10} Ueld ANIGeIunoddy pue ooy (8307 92-G202

Lolqenddy JoN, se Jdwaoud siyy 0} puodsal ABw w37 9y ‘90UR)ISISSE |BIIUYDS) Bulai@oal 10 104 9[qIBI2 JoU S| YT 8Wl Y e

‘30D 119y} Woyy asuejsisse

[e0IUYD3) pajsanbal aAey JBY) SyYJ] SOPNJoUl OS|E SIY) JOASMOY ‘90UR)SISSY pPajeluaiayl] Se o) paiiajal Ajjuanbal) si aoue)sisse [edIuyoa) SIy)
JO WJOJ UOLULLIOD }SOW 9U| ‘oue)sisse |eauyda) Buiaiaoal jo ped se Aemuapun yiom ayj Jo Alewwns e apiaoad pue ‘G'Z202S 10 ‘2202S 'S' 12025
‘12026 'S’ 209/ SUOIIDS DT YUM JUSISISUOD 9IUBISISSE |B2IUyDS) pajsanbal sey 1o 1oy 31qibIa s1 w37 9y (s)uoseal ay} Auapl Ajlenuuy

"@0URJSISSE [BIIUYDS) JO Bed se Aemiapun yiom ay) jo Alewwns e ‘s|qeardde sy
32UR)S|SSY [BIIUYDID] SUCHIOIIY

'SdvD1 8¢-L20¢ Pue [¢2-920¢
‘9Z-G202 3u} UM Spun} HE3Y Y}im papun} SUOROe SpNIoUl 0} 10 SA0GE paljljuap! uociewlojul ay) apiaoid 0 *(P)9gsze uondag
53 Aq paiinbal Juawssasse spasu ay} Jonpuod o} pasnbal Jou S| Y37 9y} ‘spunj Hggy papuadxaun sAey Jou Saop 38Ul )| ©

"aJUBWICUa [enuuy
'SU0NI3YaY 2y} jo Ked se uey) Jayjes uonduasap uonode ay} Jo Jed se suoijeuejdxa asay) apiaoid Aew Y319yl e

‘suoneue|dxa asay) jo sasodind 1oy Jayiabo) padnoib ag Aew suondy e

-abed qam TOREWIOJU] WEIbold Hgdd] 9y} Uo ge} uoneuuoju| welbold
ay) 99s asea|d JusLissasSe Spaau pannbal sy} pue Spuny Jo SOSN S|qEMO||E 8Y) O} Pale|al UojeLlIojul 104 ©

‘P)9ZGZE Uonoas O3 Ag pasnnbal juswssasse spasu
3y} Ul payuapl SjooYIS PUB SJUBPNIS JO PAsU JO (S)ESIE SU) SSaIppe 0} pajoadxa S| uoyde ayj Moy Jo uojeueldxa uy e

pue
[2N0}9ZGeE uondas D3 ul paynuapl spuny Jo sasn s|qemolle ay) ym paubije si uonoe ay) moy Jo uoneue|dxe uy e

“apnoul Jsnw uoijeue|dxa siy] "sSpun; OGN YiIMm papuny uonoe yoea Buijosjas 1oy sjeuolel ay} jo uojeue|dxs uy =
pue ‘spuny gy yim ‘Ued Ll 1o Sjoym Ul JayNs ‘papuny aq ||IM Jey} uonoe Yyoes Joy Jaquinu uchoe pue jeob ay)  «

:Buimojjoy sy} apiroid Jsnw 37 8yl spuny HG3YT] papuadxaun sey Y37 8uly| ©
189k 4w
ajqeoydde ayj Joy spuny HGIYT papuadxaun sey w37 ay} jou o Jayiaym Anuspl ‘siesh 4y 82-2L202 Pue 'L2-9Z0T ‘92—GZ0Z 8y Jo4 e

:BuImo||o) 3y} op 1SNW Sy (1€ ‘&' #9025 Uoi0as DT Jo sjuawalinbal

ay} Juawajdwi 0] 37 8y} 0} dqedlidde se ‘'sdy 82-/20¢ PUB £Z-9Z02 ‘92-G202Z dY} ulylim spunj Og3 41 ylim papuny sucijoe a0
10 3uo apni~ 'snw spuny (9g337) Juei) yo0|g Aouabilawg Asnooay £ '1ea papuadxaun sey jey) 37 ue jey} sasnbal 4490z~ 09S OF

— - -/



L4 J0 G abey oulsIq |ooyos AlRjusLWS|3 uoIun Uewyso|g J0j ueld AJIjiqelunoady pue [0Juod |eaoT 9Z-5202
‘slayoea| e

:dvD71 2y} Buidojanap

uaym paynsuoo aq jsnw jey; sisuped jeuoneanpe ay} Ajoeds TBJ9902S Uondes o pue (B)090Z6 UoNDaS OF :$30D Pue SJauIsIp [00Yds

sjuswaiinbay

sjuswalinbay

"UoI0as

siy} Bunajdwods uaym Juolgalo) ayy ul [eob siy) daay o} pabeinosus ale sy37 Juswabebua jey; jo joedwi ay) pue siauped |euonesnpa pabebuas
¥ @y} moy puejsiapun 0} angnd Japeocuq ay) pue ssas0.d Juawdojeasp 4y a2yl ul pajedioiped jey) sisuped jeuocneanpa mojje o) si| |eob
a3yl 'dvo1 paydope ay) u pajos|al suolIsinap ay) pasusnyul sisuped [euoneonpa Jo Juawasbebua sy moy Jos5a1 0} paubisap sI uonoas siy |

‘ssa20id jenuue ‘Buiobuo ue s| sisuped jeuoneanpa jo Juawabebug ([L][e]ro0zs uondes 93)

sanuold paynuspl Aedo] pue sanuoud sjels ay) ssosoe Juawaaosdw pue ‘Aligeiuncooe ‘preoquse ayl Ag pajesipul sdnouf yuspnis usamiaq
$8Wo2)No pue sanunuoddo ul senuedsip aonpal pue ssaippe 0} Aeinoued ‘Buiuue|d oibajens anisuayaidwod poddns pinoys Juswabebus
yans ‘anje)s ypum jualsisuos ‘ssasoud Jabpnq ayj pue 40 aul jo Juswdojaaap ay) 0} |eoll2 si ‘4407 Aq payiuapi sdnoif juapnls

ay) bunyuasaidal asoy) Buipnjoul ‘siauped jeuoleaNpPa J2YJ0 pUe ‘SI0eoNpa ‘sjuapn)s ‘sjualed jo Juswabebua njasodind pue Juesyiubig

asodindg
siaulied jeuoneosnpy buibebug

Juawisaoidw [00yds pue Juapnis uoddns o) ue|d |5 BY) JO SSBUSAIDBLS puUE UonEUSLIS|dWI Y] S)EN|BAS PUEB JONUOW [M Y3 U} MOY aquIsaq e

‘Juswanoidwi jooyss pue jJuapnis poddns o} uejd ay) s)enjeas pue Jojuow I 3] Ay} moy jo uonduosap v
S$SoUaAloay3 Bugenjeag pue Bupojjuop

‘ued 1S9 8y} Jo uoneuawadw ay) ybnosy) passalppe aq 0} sainnbaul 821n0sal AUB JO UoNEILNUSPI BY) PUB ‘SUOIIUSAIS)UI PasEq
-20UBPIAR UBLUSSISSE SPaalU |aAa|-ooyds e papnjoul 1ey) sueld |g0 Buidojaaap i sjooyds paynuapl a2y Yoddns [im Jo SBY Y37 8y} MOY 2quosa(] e

‘'sued Juawanosdw pue poddns aaisuayasdwos Buidojaaap ul sjooyas 9|qibie sy poddns [im 10 seyY Y3 a2yl moy Jo uonduassp v
sjooyog paljusp| Joy poddng

'ISD 40} pauuUap! USG SARY JBY) Y3 Y] UIYIM S|00YIS Bu} Ajjusp| e
uawancidwn pue poddns saisuayaidwiod 1oy 91qibis ai1e Jey} Y3 a4} Ul S|ooys ay} Jo isl| ¥
payijuap| s|oo0ysg

:sydwoid Buimo)joy 3y} 0} puodsal

IShW 1oy Spad2ang Juapnis Alaag ay) Japun (|S9) luswaacidwl pue poddns anisuayaiduiod 1oj paiijuapl S|00Yds 10 [00YDS B YUm Y37 Uy
juswaaordwy pue poddng aaist  udwon

N p— /.\



L 40 9y obed JoUISI [00YoS Alejuawis)g uoIun UBLIYOO|g Joj Ueld AlIeIuncooy pue (013u0) 8907 92-5202

G000/ UONDSG 9p07) UONEonpS 995 ‘S|O0YDS JOUEYD 10 e

pue ‘8902G UoNoas 8p0,) LONEINpS 89S 's30D J04 o

"(8)2902S
uoNoas N3 JO sjuawalnbal ay} 19w ISNLW JUSLISASIYDY JUSPNIS 10} UB|d [00YDS Y} se dyo ay) Buisn sjooyos Jspey) :9JoN ©

‘7902G U009 9p0,) UOKEINpS 99S ‘SjoUISIp [O0YdS Jo4 e

:sjuswannbail eba| Bumol|o) By} 19aW ISNW Y37 84} ‘dyD] 2Yi Jo uondope ay) sIapisuod Y37 ue Jo Apog/pieoq Buiuianob ay) aiojeg

‘abedqem dvyD1 5,300 2yl U0 $821n0say Japun punoy aq ued ‘uopisodwod

dnolb Auosiape Joy sjuswailinbal ay) apiacid pue ‘uoleynsuod juapnys suyasp ‘awabebua aajosye Hoddns jey) saounosal pue uoleULIOU|
‘s|eob |aAd-ouysIp pUB a)Is|0oy2s usamiaq Juawubije ajeioe} 0} ‘(-0)e ‘sdnoib Aiosiape Juapn)s ‘siIouno? Alosiapy Jaulea ysibu3 ‘spounod
aysjooyos ""6°8) ajqesidde se ‘sdnoib Aiosiape 1aas]-a)is|00Yyos ‘woyy ndul }sanbal pinoys Sy3 pue ‘yim paleys aq os|e pjnoys 4y 94l

‘Jooyos ay} 1o} jeob snooy pasinbal ay) jo Juswdo@aap sy} ul ‘Ajleadads ‘dyD 3yl jo Juswdojanap sy

spunj saldyinyy Aunb3 Bunessuab jooyos ay) Je siauped jeuoeonpa Yum }nsuod osie jsnw spunjy jaidiyinyy Ainb3 Buiaigoal jooyos Japeyd
sjuapn)s e

pue ‘sjualed

‘lPuuosiad jooyas 18Yi0

‘siojelisiuwpy

‘sjediduy

‘sioyoea ]

:dvD1 2yi Buidojaaap uaym yum paynsuod aq siauped [euoneonpa Buimo||os syl 1ey) sannbas (P)G 9097 UOROS O J :S|ooyds Jayeyd

‘dvD1 2y burdojanap uaym (s)iojessiuiwpe ease ueld |eoo| uoEINPS |BI93dS AY} YIIM JNSUOD OS|e ISNW SO pue
S]OLISIP [00YOS "S9aRILULLIOD 9S3U) WO} PaAIaoal sjuawiwod ay) o) Bunum ul puodsal 0} apnjels Aq palinbai s Juapuajuuadns ay] “suolaniisu|
pue sjuswaiinbay Japun mojaq payljuapl se ‘seaIwod a|qesdde ay; yum § aleys jsnw s300 pPue SPUISIp [0oyos ‘dyD au) Bundope alojeg

"looyas ajqeaidde yoea o) |eob snooy pasinbal ay} Jo Juawdojaasp ay) ul ‘Ajledyidads ‘4D 2y Jo Juswdojaaap ay) ul spuny

Jandynpy Aunbg Buneiauab sjooyos 1e sisuped [euoeONpPa YIMm Jnsuod os|e jsnw spuny Jandiiny Ainb3 Buiaiesas 300 10 J0U)SIP j00YOS Y
SjuSpNIS e

pue ‘sjualed

“v37 a2y1 Jo sjiun Bujuiebieq [eso7

‘|]suuosiad jooyds J1BYI0

‘slojelsiuiwpy

‘sledi g

) p— ~’



VLo /i ebed 1ouIsIQ (004G AlBjuaWa|3 uojuN UEeWYdold 03 Ueld ANIGeIuUn0ady pue [04U0)) (8207 9Z-5202

Woeqpaay) Jauped [euoleanpa
ay) 0} asuodsal ul padojaaap 1o AQ paauanpul a1am Jeyl 4D 3yl ul sainypuadxs pajabpng Jo ‘sucioe ‘soujaws ‘sjeob Aue aquasaq

‘siauped jeuoneonpa Aq pepiaoid yoeqpasy ay) Aq peouanjul sem 4y peldope ay) moy jo uonduossp v

‘Jooyos a|qealdde
yoea 1o} jeob snooy pasnbai ay) Jo juswdojaaap ay} ul ‘Ajleaipdads ‘qyDT @y} Jo Juswdojaaap ayy u spuny saidiyny Aunbg Bunesauab
S|00Y2S Je SJauped JBUOBINRS YIM PRINSUCD ) MOy JO Alewwins e apn|oul os|e 1snw spuny Jandyinpy Aunb3 Buinigdal w3 uy e

‘sJjouped |ruoneanpa sy Builbebua
0} yoeoudde jeaiydosopyd s,y37 ue Inoge uoljewlopul apn[oul osje Aew asuodsal v ‘siauped jeuonesnpa yum saibajess juawabebua
layjo Jo sbBunjeaw pue ssas0o.id ay} Jo aulawy sy} Inogqe uolewlolul [esauab apnioul jsnw jdwoid siy) 0} asuodsal JusPYNs y e

val
jo adA) ayy o} s|qesiidde se ‘siauped jeuojeonpa palinbai AjLIOJN}E}S [{B Y)M YNSuoD o} uolebigo sy jaw JI moy aquosap ISNW y37 Sy} ‘wnwiuiw
BV 'dVD1 2y) o Juswdojaaap ay; ul (s)lauped [euoneanpa payijuapl 8y} aAjoaul 0} 3 oyl Aq pasn ssaco0id yuawabebua ay) aquasaq

juawabebu] 10) ssa201d
'd¥91 2y} Jo Juswidojaaap ay) ul pabebua asem jey) (s)dnoib 1o (s)iauped jeuoneanpa s|qedydde sy Ausp)
slauped |euoneonp3

:SMO||0} Se 3|qe} 8y} a)e|dwo)

‘looyos aqedijdde yoes 10} jeob snooy palinbal ay) jo Juawidojaaap ay) ul ‘Ajjeaisads ‘'qv0 9yl Jo Juawdojaasp
8y} ul spuny sandiynpy Aunb3 Bugeisuab sjooyos je sisuped [BUCHEDINPS YIMm JNSuod osie jsnw spunj saidyiny Aiinb3 Buiaigasl w3 uy

‘dvO1 2y} Jo Juawdojansp
3y} Ul Sjuapnis pue ‘sjualed ‘|ouuosiad |00Ys JaYi0 ‘siojeasiuiipe ‘sjediduud ‘s1ayoes) YIim Jnsuod ‘wnwiuiw B je ‘Jsnwl Sjooyos Japeys)

'dvO1 9Y: jo Juawdojsaap ay) ul sjuspnis pue ‘syuaied ‘spun Buiuiebieq |eooj
‘leuuosiad [00yos Jayjo ‘siojesnsiuiwpe ‘sjedioulid ‘S1ayoes) Yim JNSucd ‘WNLWIuL B Je ‘Jsnil UCHEINPa JO S391)0 AUnod pue SjoulsIp jooYas

‘dvD1 8yl o wawdojaaap ay) ul sisuped jeucesnpa afiebus o) pasn ssasoud ay) jo Aewwns vy
:smojjo} se sydwoid ay} 0} puodsay
suonannsuy
‘ajqesidde se ‘sapiuwod KIosSIApe JUspn}s ay) ‘pZ0z ‘1 AInr JO se ‘pue aapiwod Josiape jualed Jauled| ysibu]

ay} apnjoul Aew pue aapwwod Alosiape Jusied ay) sapnjoul SIY] '9A0GE Pa)S]) SUOIDaS 3P0 UOHEINPZ 9y} Ul PaljiJUspl SS3RILLILIOD
s|qeonddr ~yi Aq paai@oal sjusWwiWos 0} ‘Buum Ul ‘puodsal Jsnw JO~ 0 1DUISIP J00YDS B JO Juspusjuuadns oyl ‘Jopulwai e Sy (3N e

L\ N’ -



L. jo gt abed 1PuSIQ 100Yag Alejualus|3 uojun Uewyao|g 0} ueld ANIGelunoody pue |oAUo)) (B0 92-G202

ey} Buluue|d a16sjens ‘payels Aisnolaaid sy ‘D] oyl uiyim sjeob sy azipioud o) moy pue Jaylaym Bujuiwialep ui ‘preoquse( sy ul papnjoul
ale Jey} SIoJedIpUl |220] 8y} 10} Blep papodal pue pajoa| oo Ajje2o| Jisy; Buipniour ‘siojedipul [B20] pUE 9)E)S SY) Lo douewIopad JapISuod Jsnw
sy31 'senuoud a)e)s 210w JO 3U0 UIUNIM JvDT @l UIYUm papn|aul sainjipuadxa pajejal pue ‘suonoe oyioads ‘sjeob ayy aznuoud pinoys sy37

suononisuj pue spuswaiinbay

‘sieob yons aAalyoe 0} suojjoe pajejal ay) pue sjeob Buidoaasp uaym sdnoib
Juapn}s J13y} Jo asuewlopad sy} SSasSe pinoyYs syJ "sawoojno joedwi o} pajoadxe salbsjens Jo sweiboid Bujuaws|dwi 1o ‘sdeb souewopad
Buimosseu ‘(s)dnoib yuspnys aioads e ‘sjuapnis || J0j SALJBW J10 JjW B 0} aAe|al dduewlopad ay) uo pasnaoy ag ued |eob padojsaap-||am v

"saInjipuadxa pue 'Suoijoe ‘SaWodno
pajoadxa ‘soujew pajelal ay) pue ‘|eob siy} ansind o) papioap w31 sul ‘pensind ag pinoo jey) suoljoe pue saifsiels pue ejep 2suewuopad AQ
pajybijybiy yuawsaaoidwi Jo) seale pue syibualls snouea ay} Buowe *‘Aym 211qnd 3y} pue sisuped [euonesnpa o) ajealunwwos Apes|o 0} sy37

10} Ajunpoddo ue si (eob e papnjoul Y37 8y} Aym 104 uoneuejdxa ay] Juswubije ul aq jsnw jeob ay) ul papnoul SUOO. Sy} PUEB ‘SBWOJINO
pajoadxa pue soujaw pajeioosse ‘Juawa)e)s |eob v “|jeob ay) paysidwosde sey )1 usym mouy |[Im 37 ayl moy pue ‘jeob ay) ysijdwooaoe
0} Jap.io ul op 0} sue|d 3] ay; teym ‘ysidwoase o} suejd Y37 24} Jeym siauped euoijeanpa o} ajesiunwiuiod Ajliea)d |im sjieocb padojanap-||apn

asodind
SUOI}IY pue sjeox)

suonoe jo uoiejuawsajdwi sy} Ul s9ssaoans Jo sabuajjeyo Jo sisAjeuy
ssaoo0id ajepdn jenuue a3y} uo paseq Jeak 4yD7 Buinsua ay) 104 [eob e 0) apew sabueyd jo sisAjeuy
sainppuadxa Ul Sa0UaJaYIp [BLBJBW JO SISAleuy
|[eob ay) aaslyoe 0] suoljoe olIoads ay) JO SSIUBAIDBYS JO sIshjeuy
sjuapnjs pajedldnpun Jo} sa21A19s panoidul 1o pasealoul 0] Buingujuod se (S)UoIJIe JO uoISnjou|
SUOII0E 210W 10 auo 1o} sainjipuadxa pasodoud jo [aad] ay) 0} sabuey)
suoloe Jo dnoub Jo (s)uonoe jo uogeuin3
suonoe Jo dnob e Jo (s)uonde jo uoisniou|
uonoasqns synsay buipoday pue Buunseap syl W sdnolb Juapnis al1ow Jo auo AQ 2suewuopad JO uoISndU|
SOLIJSW 3J0W JO 3UO UO awoNo Jabie) ay) Jo uoneulwlsiag
SOUjaW palinbal Ajuojnjels ay) Uey) JaYlo SaljBW JO UoISN{ou|
(mojaq paguosep se) |eoc) snoo4 e ansind o) uoisioap Jo [eob e jo uoisniou] e
:0} payw A|Lessanau jou siIng ‘apnjoul osje Aew siy) ‘ydwoid siy) jo sesodind ay) 104 e

‘dv0 paydope ay) jo Juawdojaaap ay) pasuanjul spuny sandiynpy Ayinb3 bunessush
sjo0yos e siauped jeuoieonpa Yym uolelnsuod ayj moy jo uoiduosap e apnjoul 3snw spunj sandyiniy Aunb3 Buineoal y3juy e

"dYD1 9Y) UIYNM SN2y Jo seale paziuold asIMIBYI0 J0 S|gelieA. sadinosal Alejabpng ay) Jo 1xajuod ay) ulyum sisuped [euoneanpe
Jo sjsenbais paziyuoud w37 ayi moy Jo uondussap e apnjoul Aew sIy] ‘4D Uy Jo Juswdojaaap ay) pasuanjul ssadoad Juswabebus
8y} * "y Jnoge uoiewIopul oyoads Jead yum olgnd ay) pue sia =d jeuoieonpa apiroid im jdwoad siy) o) ssuodsal Jusioy Yy e

, ‘e’ T



L£ Jo 6 obed 1u1SIQ J100Y2S Alejudua|3 uojun Uewydo|g 10} uejd AUIGeIUNoIdY pue |osuo) (207 92-520T

‘leof siy) Aq passaippe saljold 9)els
‘|leos) sna204 e se pajuswa|dwi Guiaq [eob jo adA} ay; Ajuapi
[eoo) Jo adA)

‘leob ay) aasiyoe o} syoadxa Y37 ayl yoiym
0} BuipJoooe awely aw 8yj PUB painseaw aq [Im [eob ay) JO JUSWBASIYIE Yolym AQ (S)oujawl ay) aoualayal AJioljdxa ued [eos) snooJ ay| e

"yseoidde anisuajul ejep pue J199ds S10W B WO Jsuaq 10 alnbal ABW JEY) PASU JO SBaIE SSAUPPE 0] [BOS) SNJ04 B SdojaAsp yI Uy o
‘punoq awi} pue ‘s|gesnseaw ‘oyioads aq }snw {E0S) SN0 E Joj papiaoid uonduasap ay)
uonduosaq
(s)ieogy snoo4
:3|qeandde se ‘sjdwoid Buimoljo) ay) o} puodsay

"dvD1 28U} Jo awidojanap
ay} ui pie o} (P)9902S Pue (P)090ZS Suoioas O3 Jo Alewwns e sapiroid ATBWIWNS SBA1I0Id 1elS 4407 UL "v31 auj 0} sjgedldde
se ‘(p)990Zs Pue (P)090ZS SUoNoas D3 Ul PajeINJIUE SDL)BW PajeIcosSSe pue safliold 4407 Jje SSaIppe ISNW ¢vDT @Yl ‘winwiuiw e 1y

seljLoud 21€)S 4407 3Y) SSAIPPY 03 Juswalinbay

"d¥ D1 38Ul JO s|eob 12110 ay) U1 passalppe jou soujaw Aue uo asuewlopad Joel) 0} Y3 UE SMO||e
pue sabueys yueoyiubis Jnoypm Bulobuo aq Aew jey) suoiyoe sapnfoul [eon) ssaibold Jo aouUBUBUIBY Y (|BOS) ssaifiold Jo adueujulel

"soljaW
J0 abuel apim e ssoloe aosuewousd Buinosdwi uo snooy Aew pue adoos s} Ul pajeljuaducd SS9| A|SAllE|S SI |BOS) pEOI] Y (|BOS) pEolg e

‘mojaq Buipun4 Jandiyniy Aunb3 Buiaieoay
sSy37 10} (s)eos) snoo4 palinbay aas ‘uonewlojul jeucyippe 104 ‘sjeob snooy se padojanap aq isnw sjeob sadyny Aunb3 |y ©

"painsesw aq o} si [eob ay) Moy Jea|s 9yewW pue punog aLw} a4 [[IM JUSWI)E]S |BOS) SNJ0H Y Juswarosdw
2JNSE3W 0} SOLIBW JO JDGUINU J1OM3) B UO SN0y ABw pue 8doos Ui pajesjuaouod aiow Aj@Alje|as s| |BOS) SN0 Y (|BOS) SNO04 e

:sjeob Jo spury usJayip sa1y) Buidojaasp Jo uondo ay) yum sy3] sapiaoid sjeldwas) 4o oyl ‘sjeob jo uonezyoud poddns o} Japio |

"‘preoqyseq ayl Aq psjeaipul sdnoib juapnis usamiaq sawoNno pue saljunpoddo u) sanedsip 2anpal pue SSaIppe 0) pue ‘sjuspn)s
jje 104 paacsdull e $aWo)N0 pue sauNpoddo aINsua 0} spaau AJUNWLLIOD PUE JUSpPN]s J9aW 0} $321N0Sa) pajiwi| Jo 8sSn 8y} Jnoge axyew Asy)
S92I10Y2 pIP'* 9Y) 91EN|eAS A||EnUIjUOD pINoYys Sy "Ejep aouewousd B uesj pue Buiyoes) o) suoisioap Alejebpng sjoauuod aaisus ~1dwod st

- L _—



L 40 0 9beq JolSIq 00y AIBJUSLUS|T UOIUM UBLUYIO(g 10} UB|d AIqeIUNOadY PUB [0NU0T (B00T 92-GZ02

‘|leob siy) Aq passalppe saiuold )els
‘|eog)y snoo4 Jandiyniy Ainb3 ue se pajuswaldun Buiaq jeob Jo adAy ay) Anuap)
|eoo) jo adA]

‘s|geadde j ‘sicjeonpa
$,/0040s 8y} Jo ucnuajal pue ‘uoljesedaid iayew 103lgns ‘Buienuapaid ul Bupuauadxs ale $a)SI00YIS BY) $8NSSI uoWWICd ay| ©

‘10 Buissalppe $I |BOS) SN0 3y} ley) pJeoqyseq sy} uo sjans| asueunouad
ay} pue sdnoib Juspn)s ay) Auapl isnw |eob ay) ‘sapsjooyss Jandiyny Aunb3g aidynw 1oj jeob ajbuls e Buneald uaypp ©

"$JOJBINPI $,|C0YIS Y] JO uonualsl pue ‘ucieledaid sapew 3(qns

‘Bunenuspais ay) ul sanssi Jejiwis 32uaLadxa ‘10 pJeogqysSe( SY) UC SIOJEDIPUI S)BJS SI0U 10 U0 UC |[9A8] sauewopad jsamol ay) je
Bulwiopad (s)dnoib Juapnis awes sy} aAey S3)IS|0040S 2s0U) I saus|ooyos Jaldiynyy Aunb3 adynw Joy jeob ajbuis e ajeasd ABW yIJuy e
‘a|qeaidde se ‘dnoib Juapnis paynuapl Yyoea oy soulaw ayads Ajjuapl isnw ajsjooyas Jaljdynpy Ainb3 Aiaas pue yoes Joj S|eoc) SN0 e
"a|qeandde j ‘siojeonpa s |00Yyds Sy} Jo uonualal pue ‘uoneledald Jepew yoalgns ‘Buljenuspalo ayy ul senssi Bulfpapun Auy (g)
pue ‘pIeoqyse(] Sy} UC SIOJEJIPUI SJB)S SI0W JO BUO0 UC |9A3] adueulopad Jsamo| ay) aaey jey) sdnoub Juapns 1y (v)

:BuImol|o} U} SSaippe Jsnl saps|ooyos Jandyny Aunb3 soy speob snoo4

‘sjuawasinbai Buimoj|o} sy 0) aisype Jsnw sy37 ‘sroge paquasap sjuswalinbal jeob snooy ayy Buissaippe 0}
uoippe u] ‘Buipuny sondiynpyy Aunb3g Bunesauab jooyas yoes 1oy sjeob snooy ssow 1o suo apnjoul }snw Buipuny sedynpy Ainb3 Buinesel sy

uonduasaq

Buipund sa1dnyny A3nb3g BulAlaosay sy31 10} (S)je0S) shoo palinbay
‘leob snooy e ansind o} uoisiosp ayy punoie Buipuejsiapun pue Aouasedsuel) ajowold o) pabeinooud ale sy37 e
‘s1auped [BUOBONPS YJIM UOREYNSUOD JueAs|al Bulpnjoul ‘uonuape pasnooj 104 [eob siyy paynuap! Y37 2yl Moy aquosap JSnl Sy3 e
"BJEP Pa)0a)|02 A||ED0| JAYJ0 JO Elep PJBOQUSE(] UO paseq aq jsnw uojeue|dxs uy e

‘leob siy) aznyuoud 0] ussoyd sey Y37 ay) Aym uie|dx3

‘leoB siy} padojaaap sey 37 au) Aym Jo uojeue|dxs uy

‘~gaippe 0} papualul si |eob siy) Jey) sanuoud ajels ay} Jo v~ "3 Auap)
- p— —t



L 40 LG abed 1PUISIg [00Y2S Aejuawialg uoiun UBLIYS0|g JO) Ueld ANJIGEIUNODDY PUB |0Jju0)) |80 92-SZ0Z

‘leob ay) Jo} papn|oul SaW00N0 Sgeinseall pajoadxa ay) yum paubije Aea)o aq |im jeob peoiq e jo uonduosapayy] e
‘leoB ayy ul papnjoul suonoe ay} ybnouy) ansiyoe o} sue|d Y37 oyl Jeym aquasaQ

uondussaq
|eos) peoud

"aouewlopad Juapnys Jo/pue ‘|ooyds ‘37 JO SOUIBW JO/puUe YIJeasal

[euopEINPa U0 paseq Ajuowwod Jsow ale salfisjens pue spyoddns paseqg-aouaping ‘spoddns pue sadiaes 3sS0y) Jo uoneaYyIpow ay) sapinb
lo/pue poddns 10 ad1/u8s ay) jo ubisap ay} pawlojul SeY Jey} asuapiAd aadalqo uo paseq ale spoddns pue sadlAIes pasEq-a2uapiAg "sjuapns
Joj spoddns pue sadinas paseq-22uapIAS JO uoiIsIacld By} 1oj pasn aq spuny Jaldiynyy Aunb3 jey) saunbas (L NQ)PZ0 8y UONI8S DI 80N

"ddSDD Byl Jo/pue ‘SHYT U} ‘d-013 3y} Jo suoisiAcid Juawa|dw)
0} 9AI929] SSIMIBUI0 pInom ayisjooyas Jaldyinpy Alnb3 ue Jey) Jo 4D 92U} Ul payiluspl sUoioe apim-yy3 Juswa|duwi 0} a1l
asIMIaYI0 pinom ajisjooyos Jadiny Ajinbg ue jey) Buipuny soejdas 0) pash aq jou jsnw spuny Jandyny Aunb3 jey) suesw siy) e
(ddS99D) weiboid diysiauped s|coyag Ajunwiwos) eiuiojijes) ay} Jojpue ‘weliboid
1welo) (S¥97) sisienadg Buipeay pue sayoeon) Aseia)] ayl {4-013) weiboid saunpoddp Buiuiea papuedx3 ayl ‘4407
ay} jo sasodind 10} saysjooyos sandyny Ainb3 oy pepiaosd Buipuny ‘Jueiddns jou ‘Juswiaiddns 0) pasn aq isnw spuny Jandyiny Aunb3

‘spuny Jaidiyny Aunb3 o} uomppe ul Buipuny Jayjo pue 4497 jo asn ay) ybnoiy sswoano
Juapn)s aziwixew jybiw jeob syl moy Bunspisuos Juiodpuels ansijoym e woly [eob Jaydyny Aunb3 ue yoeosdde o) pabeinoosus sle sy

saldde jeob ay) yoiym o} S[OOYDS 10 joOYIS 3Y] ©
‘AJljuap! os|e IsnW 37 Y} ‘Uoljewlojul Sy} 0} uolippe u| e
‘reoB snooj e ansind 0} uoisioap ay) punoJe Buipue)siapun pue Asualedsuel) ajowold o) pabeinodus aje sy37 e
"slauped |BUOCIIBONPS YlM UONR)NSUOD JueAd|al Buipnioul ‘uocijualie pasnooj 10 [eob siy) payiuapl Y37 Y} Moy aquosap Isnw Syg]
"glep peyas||09 Ajjeso] Jaylo Jo Bjep pieoquse uc paseq ag jsnw uojeue|dxa uy e
‘leob siy; aznuoud o) uasoys sey Y37 sy Aym uieidx3
‘leob sy padojaasp sey y37 8y} Aym jo ucijeuejdxa uy

"~saJppe 0} papuajul s [eob siy} jey; sanuoud S3e)s ay} Jo U~ =3 Anuap
) L _—



1L Jo Z6 abeg ouIsIq jooyos Asejuswa|g uolun Uewyd0]g Joj ueld A)|Igejuncddy pue |oauog 8207 92-5202

:s]|nsay Bundoday pue Bulnseap

"soujaw paje|ai ay) Aq payijdwaxa ssaiboud ay) ureisns jim suonoe ayj moy uiejdx3
‘leob siy) padojanap sey y37 ay) Aym Jo uoneue|dxs uy

"$Saippe 0} papusjul s |eob siy) jey) sanuoud ajels ay) jo yoea Ajpuap)

‘leob siyy Aq passalppe saijoLd 3)BIS

‘leoc) ssaiboid jo aoueusjule e se pajuawa|dw Bulaq |eob jo adA) ayy Ajzuap)
[eoo) jo adA|

ay) ul sjeob Jayjo Aq pasarod suofjoe ay) uo suoys uonejuawaldw Buisnoo) ajym ssaiboid Jojuows pue sSuoljoe ulejulew o) um:_En_._MwM

sey ‘siauped |euoilEONPa UM UOE)NSUOD Ul “vwJ S} YOIYm JO) BSOU) S1B UOIO3S SIY} Ul passalppe aq 0} soujaw pue saioud ajejs ayl »
"d¥D1 9y} ul sjeob Jayjo ay) ulyum passaippe jou soujaw a|qesldde pue sapuoud ajels ay) ssaippe o) [eob jo adAy siyy asn e

‘d¥D1 9y} ul sjeob Jayjo ay} Aq passaippe Jou saplIoild 1e1S 4407 ay) Ul apew ssasboud ay) urejuiew o} spusiul Y37 Sy} Moy aquasa(

uondussaq

[eoo) ssalboid Jo adueuajulep

‘{eob ay) anaiyoe djay |m 1ayabo) padnosb soujaws pue suonoe ay) moy pue |eob siy) padojaasp w31 sy} Aum uieidx3

‘leob sy} padojaasp sey 31 ayl Aym o uoineue|dxs uy

‘ssalppe 0} papuajul s| jeob siy; jey) sanuoud ajeys ay) jo yoes Auap)

‘|eob siy) Aq passalppe sanlold ajels

‘|eos) peolg e se pajuswajdwi Buiaq jeob jo adA) ayy Auap|

jeoo) Jo adA |

‘leob ay) piemo) ssaib60ad Bulnseaw 1oy solEW JUaIayIp AuBw ale 913y} ‘9|qeinseaw 39 0} ybnoua oyioads si ) 9IYAA “Jeob snooy
e se ouoads se jou s |eob peoiq v "swua) aaneyenb 1o aaneuenb Jayya ul ajgeinseaw aq o} ybnoua oyoads s) uonduosap jeoby e

“Jauuell JU3]sISU0D pue sAlsal0d B Ul s8N0 pajoadxa pue suoloe ay) wwN_:mth :O_U—Qtowwﬁ _mom Y

S o _—



Lz Jo g5 abeg 1PUSIg 100Y2S AlejuaLws|g uoIuM UBWYIo|g J0) UB|d ANIgeIunoosy pue |04juocy) (8207 9Z-SZ0T

SIHET
JAQUINU J1J8W By} JBJUT e

# OUIBiN
:SMO||0} Se 3|qe} By} aje|dio)

"d¥D1 8y} Ul papnoul suoioe pue s|eob spiemo) ssasboid ainseaw o) pasn Buiaq Apealje aie jey) sousw ag Aew
Aay) 'soujpw mau aq o) paanbal jJou a1e spunj HGINT Yum papuny uoide yoes jo joedw ay) Jojuoll 0} pasn Bulaq soujew 8y ©

‘leob
ay} u1 papnjaul spuny g3y YIM pPapuny uolioe yoaea jo Joedu sy J0juow 0} dujeW U0 JSea| JB apnjoul Isnw spuny g3y papuadxaun
YiM s3] ‘#1902 uoloas D3 Jo siuswannbal ay) juawaidwi o] spuny o5 g3y Aq peuoddns suonoe 10} soujow padinbay e

"a)IS|00y2s D10ads Yoea Je uonuals)
Jojeanpa 1o ‘uoneledasd Japew joalgns ‘Bulenuapals o) pajejas |eob ay) Bunssw i ssaiboid ainsesw o) pasn saujewl oyads ayy ©

Jo/pue ‘|eob
ay) psemo) ssauboid ay) ainseaw o) ‘siqeadde se ‘ajsjooyos oioads yoea je dnoib juspnis payiuap yoea Joj soujaw onads ay| ©

Auapl 1snw w37 2y) ‘jeob sandynpy Aynb3 yoes 104 :sjeob se)diyiny Aunb3g o) soljew palinbay e

‘0} Aldde (s)oujaw ay) Jey) (s)uonoe
3y} pue uoioe ay] JO SSBUBAIJIBYS Y} Jojuow o) pash Buiaq (s)aua ay) Auapl AJead 1snw uonduosap ayj JaAsmoy ‘Uoloas
$30IM8s panoidw 10 pasealdul ay} ul Jdwoud 3sii 3y} Jo uoidiosap uonoe sy} UIYRM paljuapl aq Aew sajdw palinbai asay| ©

"sainypuadxa pajebpng sii pue UOKIE 3Y) JO SSBUBAIIBYS BY) JOHUOW O} SIS SIOW JO U0 AUap! }SNW Y3 3y} ‘SISeq apim-y3
ue uo papiaoid Buiag (Z pue sjuapnis awosul-mo| pue ‘sisuies| ysibug wis)-6uol Buipnoul ‘siaulea| ysijbul ‘YinoA 18)so} 10} SIOINISS
anoidwi 10 asealoul 0} Juawalinbal ay) spJemo} Bunguiuo (| Se pauiuap! UCHI. |oea J04 'SUOI}OR apim-y3] 40} soujaw palinbay

"pJeoquse( Y} Uiylim $j00) L0IJoa|aI-)|9s Jojedlpul |B30| JueAs|al ay) ybnolyy psyodal 1o uo
paseq sousW asn 0} pabeinooua ale sy ‘sanuoud a)els asay) 104 "dyoT @Yl Ulyiim asn 0} Julawl B Anuapl isnul w37 ay) ‘(splepuels
aouewlopad pue Jusjuod JlWBped. AJE)S JO uoleuawdun B°8) soaw a1ow 1o auo Alvads jou saop Aluoud ajels B JUSIXD BYL 0] e

‘w37 jJo adhy ayy 0} siqeaidde se Jeah 49| yoes ul ‘sapuoud sjels pajejal ay) Jo) souRw 3)qed)dde
3y} Jo ||e Buisn painseaw ale Jey) s|eob apnjoul s 4y07 S,v¥37 UB ‘wnuwiuiw je ing ‘aaijejienb 1o sajeuenb aq Aew sojowi ay) e

-sdnoub Juapn)s usamlaq SaWoINO0 Ul
sanuedsip aanpal pue SSaIppe jey) sawoono paroadxa Buipnjoul ‘sjeudoidde se ‘sdnosb yuapnis oyioads 1o} soujew Ajuspi JSNW Sy37] e

"SWO02JN0 pajoadxa oy} pJemo] ssaibosd =1 0} asn [pm YT 2yl 1ey: (S)aujew ay) Aluapl ‘Jeak Jy-  'Joea io4
| - L _—



L2 40 v obed 1oUlSIQ (000G AsRJUBLUSBIT UOIUN UBWILDOIG 10} Ueld AJ|IGEJUNOIDY PUE [OUOD 180T §Z-GZ0Z

‘saljdde ejep ay) yoiym 0} JeaA |00YOS By} SJeIIPU| "SIE|IEAE BJEP JUBDS) ISOW BU} JAJUR ‘/Z—9Z0¢ 10} v aul Bupe|dwiod uaypy e

BWOooINQ0 Z JeaA
Le
~9Z0Z 10} BWOANQ Z 1BSA 8y} 9pIrcid PUB 9Z—GZOT 10} SWIOOINQ | JBIA 3y} apiroid Aew 10 /Z—-9Z0Z PUB 9Z-620Z Uloq 10} dvO1
2y} Buns|dwos usym awodng | feaA ayl apinoid Aew 4yo1 Jeak-auo e Buidojaaap s|jooyss Japeys) S|o0YdS JOUBYD) JO) BJION ©

‘sal|dde ejep ay} yaiym o} Jeak |0oyos 3y} SJEDIPU| IJUB|IBAR BIEP JUIDAI JSOW BY) JBIUD ‘92-6207 10} dvD1 Y} Buia|dwod usyppy e
3WooNQ | JeaA

‘a|qesydde
se ‘1eaf yoes auljaseq mau e Aiuapl Aew 4y 1eak-om] 10 -auo e Buidojaasp sjooyas Japey (sjooyas apeyd 1oy 8joN ©

"siauped [euoieanpa 118y}

0} abueys pasodoid ay) ajesiuNWIWIOD 0} pue auljaskeq e 3SIAa1 0} Jou JO JaYJayMm JO UoISIosp ay} ul siauped jeuonednps

l1ay} anjoaul 0) pabeinooua Albuciys osje ale sy37 |eob auy oy sish|euy |eo) ay; ui Jdwoid sabueyd jo uonduosap ayj o)
asuodsal sy jo ped se afiueys ay) 4izuapi Ao Ishw ) ‘wnwiuiw e je ‘uay} ‘ejep sulaseq s}l SSIA3) 0} SIS00YDd Y ueyj -«

"glep ajeindoe ayj Buisn synsas sy podas pue ssaooud ejep ajeinsoe
alow ay) yum ubije o} ejep aunaseq sy} asiAal 0) y37 oY) 10} ajeudosdde aq os|e pjnom } ‘elep aleIndde uleqo o} sanoeld
S}l S9SIARI PUR Blep ajeinaseu) o) Buipes| sie oujaw Jenaiued e 1oy saoioeld OO0 BIEP S) Jey) sayuap! Y3 ue

J ‘ajdwexa 10 '0s op 0} AJessaoau si ) I ejep sulaseq ay) Buisiaal woly sy37 usAald 0) papusiul jou st Juawaanbal siy] -

"dv0 Jeak-aaly) ayy inoybnosy) pebueyoun uiewal jsnw ejep aujjeseq 8yl ©
‘saljdde ejep aul@seq ay} yoiym o0} Jeak |ooyas ay) ajealpu| ©

‘SAVdIVD 0} papiwgns Ajusoal sey y37 aui jey) ejep 10 (SQYd VD) WaisAg ejeq Juswanalyoy dnd
[euipnyifuo eiuiopeD 8y} 0} ucissiwgns Joy Buuedaid s1 37 ay; ejep Buimalaal aajoaul Aew a|qejieAe ejep juasal jsow ay) buisn ©

‘(9381 Uoenpelb jooyos ybiy '6°3) ejep s|ge|eae Juacal jsow
ay} syuasaidal eyep jey) Jl Ajuo ol B Jo auljaseq ay) Jo} pJeoqyse(] £20Z 9y} uo papodai se ejep asn Aew sy37 "ueld Jesh
-23JY1 2y} Jo Jeak isuy 3y} Joj 4D 241 Jo uondope Jo awi} 3} Je 3|qejieAe JUj3W Y} YIM PaleId0oSSE Blep JUada) Jsow 8y} asn ©

'GZ-¥20Z 10} dvDT1 24} Buiajdwod usym aulaseq sy) Jsug e

auleseg
‘jeob au) yum pajeroosse suonoe
2JOW 10 BUN ‘0 SSAUDAIDDYS 3y} 2INSEaLW 0} Jo/pue [eob ay) spiemo} s<~ hosd aulwiajap o) pasn Buiaq ainsesw Jo piepuels ay) A o] e

| - L il



1L jo GG abed PUIsIg 100yag ARuUaLWS|3 uolun uBWYDO|g Jo} Ueld AN(IGEIUNOIDY PUE JOIUe) [BOOT 92-5202
. 8|qeol|ddy JON, S dvO1 §2—#202 @Yl Ul sidwoud siskjeuy [eo) ay) fuapl pue sisAjeuy |eoo
ay} a39|dwod o) ajejdwa} sjepdn |enuuy Ueld Al|IGEIUNCDIY PUE [0UOYD |1BI0T HZ—£Z0Z U3 9SN ‘gD §Z—+20Z 2ul Buna|dwod usypa :3joN

‘pajonsisul se sydwold

ay) 0} puodsay "} nsaJ 1abie} ay) Buianpoud ul [nyssaoans aJam suonoe pauueld ay) yaiym o} asibap ay) suesw 91293, |ech ay) buinaiyoe
SpIEMO]) SA08Ye a1am suoijoe pauueld ay} Jayjaym azAjeue ‘pieoqyseq ay) wol ejep Buipnour ‘ejep swoono s|geinseaw jenuue |enjoe buisn
JesA dv37 2y} Jojuz

:sisAjeuy |eoo)

= - T T 1

Ul SAED ..:w;u — "oujow mau e buippe "uayy |pun yue|q ‘uay) |hun yue|q | -oujow mau e Buippe | ‘oujaw mau e Buippe
HEA pue wqul“umow«u%om Usym 10 GZ—$20C 10} | Sne3T "LZ—9Z0C 10} °ABS7 '92-GC0C 1O} | UIYM U0 GZ—2Z0C 10} | USUM 10 GT—$20C 10}

au Bunerdwes | IYI19W Bunaidwod | v sy Bunadwod | gy ay Bunaidwod | 4y ay) Buneidwod | 4y syl bugsidwoo
dvoT Fp__w;__s.xn_ﬁ sy | uaym xoq siyj uaym xoq siy} usym xoq siy} | uaym xoq siyy | uaym xoq sy}
ul uoeuLOu _mﬁ._m_ Ul uoljewlIojul J3)UT | Ul UOIjeLUICUl 18U ul uoljewlojul isjug ul uoljewoju) jayug _ Ul uoljewilojul 193U |

S | owosno awoojnQ Z Jes wEoo‘: les suljese INE) _
souasayiq uauny | g uea) Jojjebie] INQ ¢ 1esi N0 | Jes) Ijeseg DET |

‘leos) ay} jo yed  synsay Buipoday pue Buunseap, ay) bua|dwod 10} SO pue s)oulsip |00Yyos 10} aujawi |
‘a|qeoldde se
‘Z 13\ 10} SWONO0 AjJeak 8y} pue SUIBSE( BY) UBaM}aQ SOUBIBYIP JUSLIND BY) JO/pUB | Jea A 10} awod)no AlJeak ay) pue aujjaseq
Y] usamMiaq adudlaYIp JUB1IND ay) Auapl [IIm dyD Jesh-om) 1o -auo e Buidojaaap Sj00yos Jajey) [S|00YDS 1apeys) 10y 8JoN ©

‘?jqeodde
SEe ‘swo2)no AjJeal ay) pue aul9sSEq aU}) USIMIS(] SIUSISYIP JUALIND By} JBJUL */Z—9Z0Z PUB 9Z—GZ0TZ 10} v ou) Buiajduiod usypy e

aulleseq WoJj 20uUaIBYIQ JuaLN

‘g|qeondde se ‘'z
lea, 1oy )abie] Jo | Jea 10y 10bie] e Anuspl Aew dyD] Jeak-om) 10 -auo e Buidojaaap sjooyss 1speys (S|00ydS Japey 10} 3JoN  ©

‘910A0 4yD Jeak-aaiy) ay)
JO pua ay} Aq aAaiyoe 0} s)oadxe vy 8y} dujBW JueAs|al ay) 1o} awodino Jabie) ay) Jojua ‘gD Sy 4o Jeak isii ay) Buna|dwos Usyppn e

8O02JNQ € Jea A 1oy 19bie )

"/Z—920T 10} dWONQ ¢ Jea A ay) spiaosd Aew Jo /Z-9Z0Z 10} dvO1 ay) bunsidwod
uaym ajqe~de jou se swodnQ g 1ea A ay) Auapl Aew 4yo7 Jeak-ar - e Buidojaaap sjooyos JajeYD S|00YOS 1SHEYD J0) BJON



L j0 95 ebed JousIq |00y2S AIBJUSLUS|T UOIUM UBLIYIO|G 10} Ul ANIGEIUNOIDY PUE [0AUOD) (E907 82-GZ0Z

:Buimoljoy ayy jo uondiosap B apNjoUl JSNW pue
uoloe aAoaYaUl Byl AIUSPI JSNW YT SU) ‘SAIDBYSUI SB Paljjuapl USaq SARY JBY) SUOOR 10 ‘pouad Jeak-2aI1y) e JaA0 SAIl03YD
uanoid jou aaey Jey} suoioe abueys 1snw w37 8yl ‘dvD1 SZ—Z0Z 92Ul Jo Juswdojaaap syl yum Buluuibaq ‘aroge pajou sy ©

"2|qedl|dde se ‘ejep [e20] JaYJ0 10 preoqyse( ay} ui papiacid ejep ay) Jo sishjeue
pue sisAjeue siy) Jo }nsal e se |eob sIy) aAdIyoe 0] SUOIJOR 10 ‘SoulaW ‘sawoo)ne pajoadxa ‘|eob siy) 0] apew sabueyo Aue aquosaq e
‘2onoe.d Joud uo
suoljdajjal woly pajnsal jey) Jeak Buiwos ay) 104 suoljoe 10 ‘sawodyno Jabie) ‘soujaw ‘|eob pauue|d ay) o} spew sabueys Aue jo uonduosap v

‘pouad Jeak
-931U) B JAA0 SAIOBYS uaaoid Jjou aaey Jey) suocioe abueys isnw v 8yl ‘dvD1 SZ—rz0Z 2ul jo Juswdojaaap ay) yum Buuubag ©

‘pajeloosse A|9s0j2 Jou ale Jey} SOLPBW pue suoljoe ajdiynw
apnjaul sjeob uaym yoeoudde ue yons asn o} pabeinoous ale sy37 siauped jeuoneanps 1oy Aouasedsuel) asealoul pue Buppom si
soujawW Jo jJos payoeads e oedwi 0) Buisn si w37 ay) ABajes ay) soyiaym Jo sISAJeu JSNQOJ SI0LL 1O MO|IB [|IM SOUJBW YyPm suonoe
Buidnous) ‘(s)uonoe ayj o} a|qeandde ale jey) [eob ay} ulypm sauaw o110ads jJo dnoib 1o oujaw ajbuls B uo aduewlopad JO IX3)U0D

ay) ui jeob ayy uiyum suonoe jo dnoib so uonoe ajbuls e Jo ssauaAlloaye ay) ssasse Aew sy37 ‘ydwoud sy 0] Buipuodsal usypp ©

‘|eob ay} ylim PaJeIdOSSE SoLjSW Y} JO [|e uo souewiopad aacidwi O} papuajul 39 |Im [eob e ul suoijoe ||e Jou ‘Sesed awos U] O

‘Ynsai pajabie) 1o ueoyubis Aue aonpoid
Jou pIp suojjoe ay) Jey) suesw ,$SausadIayaul, pue ynsal jabie) ay) Buisnpoid ul |njssa2ons a1am suoloe ay) yaiym o} aaibap ay)
sueaw SSaUaAoay ], ‘|eob ay) piemo) ssalboid Bupjew ul ajep o} suojoe 2Y10ads ay) JO SSUIANODYBUI 10 SSBUSBAIOBYS Y} 8quUISI] e

‘leob ay; premo} ssalboid Bupjew u) ayep 0} suUoOe JYIVads aU) JO SSBUBSAIOBYSUI JO SSBUBANOAYS Y} Jo uonduosap v

‘pasinbay Jou si Bujunoooe Je|jop-i0j-1ejop B pue ‘passalppe aq o) paau jou op sabejussiad
Jo sainjpuadxa ul saoueLeA Joulpy ajqedldde se 'sanialag panocidul] Jo sabejuaniad [enjoy pajewsy pue saoiuag pasodw jo
sabejuaoiad pauue|d ay) usamjeq pue sainjipuadxd |enjoy pajewnsg pue sainypuadxg pajebpng uasmiaq seouaiayip |eLajew uieldxy e
"$921M98 paAcidu Jo sabejuaniad [ENOY pajewsy pue ssdialeg paaoidw)
jo sabejuasiad pauue|d 10/pue sainyipuadx] [enjoy pajewnsg pue sainjipuadx3 pajebpng usemiaq sasuaiayip |eualew jo uoneue|dxs uy

"dvD paidope ay) ul paquUosap SEM } MOY WOl AISAIZUBISONS SIayIp Jey) Jauuew e
ul uonoe pauueld e pajuawsjdwi 1o uonde pauueld e Juswajdu Jou pIp Y37 9y} S18ym aoue)sui Aue apnjoul JSNW UOISSNISIP SIY]  ©

"$sa004d uonejuawsdwi sy} yum pasusiuadxe sessadons pue sabuajeyo Jueasjsl Jo UOISSNISIP B 3pnjou| ©
"uonejuaws|dwi ypm pasusiadxa
$9s5220Ns pue sabusjjeys jueas|as Buipnjoul ‘jeob pajejnoile 3y} aA3IYIe 0] suoloe ayj Jo uoiejuawa|dul ||eI9AC BY) 3qUISS] e

‘uonejuawa|dwl yum pasusiiadxs sassaoons pue sabuajjeyd jueas|al Aue pue
‘suonoe ~ ~3y} Jo uonejuswaldwi jenjoe pue suoioe pauueld ul saous “yIp aAjueisgns Aue Buipnjou; ‘uonejuaswaldwi [|esaAo0 jo U~ uosep
h o — g



L2 40 1 obeq 1oU3sIq (00Y9S AIBJUSWSIT UOIUN UBWIYDO|G 10} Ueld AJIIGEIUNOD0Y PUe [0U0D) (8907 92-G20Z

"dV2O7] 2U} JO UoNIaS SAJIAISS
paAocidw) Jo pasesasdu| 8y} ul 9615 E UoaS [0 Sl G 2L ‘suonenbay jo apoy eilioies ul sjuawsaiinbai ay) ssaippe o) uoloas
$80IM8G panosduw| JO paseasdu| Sy Ul uoijewlojul jeuciippe apiacid 0} pasu ([im Y3 8y} ‘uoiyoe Bunquiuod yans yoea Joj :8JoN ©

"ON JO} ,N, UB 10 S3A Jo} A, B Buisn uonoss saoinag paroidw
1o pasealou| ay} U paquosap se Juawalnbal saoinas panosdwi 1o paseassul ay) Buiisaw o) s8jNQUIUCD UOHOR Ay} JaYlaym SjedIpu|

Bunnquyuon
‘'$9|qe} uonoe ay)
ur papinoid aq |im $a2n0s puny oyidads wWol) sainypuadxa paysbpng "uonoe siy) Yyum pajeidesse Sainjipuadxa Jo Junowe |ejo} sy} Jajug e

spun{ |ejol
‘01 Aldde (s)aujaw ay) 1ey; (s)uonoe
2y} pue uoyjoe ay) Jo SSaudAdaYa ay) Jojluow o} pasn Bulaq (s)oujaw ayy Ajuapr Apes|o jsnw uolduoasap ay) ‘19AaMoy (Uoljoas
saoinas panoadul 10 paseasoul ay) ul Jdwoud isiiy ay) 1o uolduosap uoloe Ay} ulyim pauuapl aq Aew soujaw pannbal asay) ©
‘sainypuadxa pajabpng s)l pue uoI. SU} JO SSBUDANIYS SY) JOHUCL 0] SIJB 3I0W 10 Buo AJjuspl }Snw 3T sy} 'siseq
apIm-3 ue uo papiacid Buiag (Z pue sjuapn)s awWosUl-Mo| pue ‘siauled| ys)bug wusy-6uol Buipnjour ‘siausea) ysibu3 ‘YinoA
J9)s0} 10} $921/u8s aaoldwi 10 asealoul 0} Juswalinbal ay) spiemo) Bulnguiuos (| se payluapl uoloe YIea 1o} ‘pajou Ajsnoiaaid sy ©
"UOIJI9S SJUDPNIS SWOIUJ-MOT] PUE ‘siauieaT ysI|Bug ‘YIno A 121504 10} SadIAIag panosdwi| JO pasealou| ay) Joj SUoioONASUl SY)
u| paquUasap se ‘sjuapnis pajediidnpun 1o} sjeob s,w37 ay) Bunesw ul aapays pue spiemo) pajoalip Ajediound s) uonoe yoes moy
10 uonjeuejdxa ue apn|aul Aew Y37 sy} ‘Juawannbal saoialas panoidwi 10 pasesaisul sy} Bunasw 0} sjnguUIuod jey) suoioe jo4 ©
‘uoIoe 8Yj JO UonRdUISaP JalQ B APINOI] .

uonduosaqg
‘$3|ge) uonoe sy} ul seadde os|e ||IMm 3} SIYL "UOIOE 2y} 10} 31} HOYS B PIAOIH

L
“JOqUINU UOIO. 8y} JSjUT] e

# uonoy
‘A1BSS803U SB SMOJ [BUOIJIPPE PPY "SMO||0} Se 3|qe] 3y} 219|dwo)
:SUoOIOY

‘yoeoidde pauayibuails JO mau e u) nsal ||Im Uoloe ay} 0} sabueys moH

PUE 'SS3UBAIJOaYaUl 8y} IO} SUOSEAI BY] =



L2 40 86 9bed 1PUISIQ j00YIS AJBIUSWA|T UOIUMN UBWYD0|] 10} Ueld AN[IGEIUNOIDY PUE 0U0D [BI0T 92-5202
Sg34] 24} uo qe) uonewloju] welboid ay) oas asea|d Juawssasse spasu pannbai ayy 0} pajejas uogewoul 104 TB)9ZSee
UOROSS H 3 0) Juensind JUBUISSASSE SPaau B }oNpuod o} painbal st w37 8yl 4y @Yl Ul papnjoul suooe ay) BulAyjuapl o) 1oud ©

"dvO1 2yl Woy paaowual
ag Aew SUOOB aY) AW} Yyoiym Jaye ‘spuny g3y SH JO Jepuiewal sy} papuadxs sey y37 ay} (nun 4D 9l Ul urewal jsnuwl spuny

98347 YIm papuny suohdy "y37 au} o} s|qeodldde se ‘sqyD 82—220Z PUe ‘/2-9202 ‘925202 aY} Ulyim spuny ©g347 yim papoddns
SUOIJOE BJOW JO BUO SPNOUI ISNW Spun} 5 g3y papuadxaun Ylim sy37 ‘¥ #902S uonsag N3 4o sjuswalnbal ay) yuswajdwi o]

spung g3y papuadxaun YIIM svI1 404
"9J0hd JyD JeaA-2a.y) 8y} 10} 2ARDSYS aq |jIm suooe pasnbal asay] o

"SUONoE aJow
10 auo AQ passalppe aq }shw pieoqyseq £Z0Z 24} U0 |aAs| aouewlopad 1samo] 2y} Saalanal Jey) |0oyas Jospue dnoib uapnis
yoe3 ‘pleoqyseq £z0¢ 24} U0 [9A8] asueuuopad jsamo| ay} paaiasal |[coyas 1o dnoib Juapnis syl yaiym 1oy (s)iojeaipul aje)s
paynuapl sy} ssaippe }snw pue ($)jooyas io/pue (s)dnoib juspnis payijuap ay) spiemo) pajoallp aq jsnwi (s)uoioe oyoads ayj ©

:dVD1 2Ul Liyim suonoe oiiaads S10LL 1O SUO IPNIUI ISNLU Y3 Y} UIylim [00Yds AuB uIypm
dnoib yuepms e (¢) Jospue ‘v 8yl uiypm dnoub Juspnis e (z) ‘37 Ui uiyiim [ooyos € (|) J0j SI0jedipul pleoquseq pay aAey Jey) Sy3] e
$10)e21pu| paeoqyseq Buiwiopad 3Somo 104
"2OUBJSISSY pajenualayiq se 0} paliajal Ajjuanbaly si asue)lsisse [BOIUYDS) SIY)

JO LI} UOWILLIOD JSOW 3Y] SoUB)SISSE [B21UYD9) Jo Jed se Aesuapun ¥iom ay) jo uonejuawsajdun sy 0} pajejal dyDT 2yl uiyim suojoe
ayoads IpNIoUI ISNW 'G'220ZS 10 ‘ZL02S 'S 1202S ‘12025 ‘€ 209y SUONOas DJ 0} juensind Soue)sISSE [e0lUydS) 4o} AqIbie Sy e

aoURYSISSY [e21UY23] Jo4

‘sJaulea)| ysi|Bug wie)-Buc| pue sisuses; ysibug
410q 10} SUOHOE BPNOUI JSNW Y37 3y} ‘s1auses| ysybug wus)-Buol 210w Jo G| pue siausea) ysibug aiow 1o Og Yjog sey Y3 uey ©

"$19Y0ea) 10j JUusWdO|aAaPp |BUOISSSJ0Id ©
pue ‘sjuspnis 0} papiacid ‘gog uonoag NI ul pauyap se ‘sweiboid uoysinboe abenbue ©
‘wnuwiuw e je
‘0) paje|al D1 Ay Ul suoijoe auoads apnjoul jsnw sisules| ysijbug wia)-buo| aiow 1o G| Jojpue sisuies| ys||Bug aiow 10 O¢ Ypm Sy3 e
sJaultea] ysijbug wia}-6uo pue siauses ysibug Jo4
sSuondy palsinbay
"SJUBPN}S YINoA 18350} 0} Jlj1aads spaau Jaaw o} paubisap 4y 2yl Ul suoljoe ayioads apnjoul 0} pabeinooua

ale dnosfi~ns Juapnjs YInoA J2)so) Juesiubis A|jeauswinu B 9ABY Jey] ~ ~0yds JSUBYD pue ‘S307) ‘SIOUISIP |00YIS (YINO4 489S0 °  Suonody

) — St —t



L 40 65 abegd Ui [00Y9S AIBJUSLUSIT UOIUN UBWIYOOIG JO) UEld AIIGEIUN0IDY PUE [0AURD |80 9Z-G20T

23 '[1lelzo0'8szey uonoag H3) w37 2ul ul sjuapnis pajedidnpun Jo UOEIIUSIUOD PpUB JaguInu 8y} Uo paseq SaAI9oal )l Bulpuny ul asealoul
ay} 03 uotpodoud ul syuspnis || o) papiacid $ao1/U3s 3] 0} pasedwod se ‘sjuapnis pajesiidnpun se o) pauajal A|9A1J03}j09 ‘SWOdUI-MO| J0/pue
‘siausea) ysibuz ‘YINoA 13S0} e oYM SjJUSpN)S s) 10} S9IAI9S Buiaoidu Jo Buiseasoul s1 i MOY 4y SH Ul 3lesjsuowap o} pannbail sl y37] uy

sjuswalinbay Aloymels

"dnoib Juspn)s Jausea| ysybug ay) ul papnjoul ale siauled| ysibug
wiua)-Buol ‘Zo geZe Uooas D3 Yyum Jusisisuod pue Juswalinbal saoinieg panocidw) 1o pasealdu| ay) Bunesw jo asodind ayj 104 :3J0N ases|d

‘Buinguiuos sk uoloas SUOIDY pue S|EOS U} Ul papn|oul

suonoe ay) ypm ubije ysnw uonoaes siyy ul uonduosap s,y37 uy ‘Indul apiacid 0} Ajijige 11ay) aje|ioe} 0} s1suped [euoneanpa jo buipuejssapun
Japeolq e ajowold 0} JPuUDINS AJUSBIOIYNS 34 19A |IEJSP JUIDYYNS apn|oul pinoys papiaold suondiuasaq sjuswalinbal Aloje|nbias Jasw

asodind s|y) 10} payUSPI SUONOE IPIM|OOYDS IC IPIM-YT ] Moy pue ‘ajgedldde se ‘Z -1 sepelb ul sjuapnis e 0} paiedwod se Z| -1 sopesb
Ul ZO'8EZeY UONISS HI Ul pauysp se sjuapn}s pajeddnpun sy 1oj $321A9s anosdw Jo asealdul 0) sue|d Y3 ue moy jO ‘UOIJISS pajedipap
3|buis e uiypm ‘uonduosap amsuayaidwos e yum siauped [euonesnpa sapiroid uoloas sadIAeg PaacIdw| JO PasSealdU| UaRLM-|jam

esoding
sjuapnls
9WOJUJ-MOT] pue ‘sidules _._m__m:m ‘UINO A 19})S04 40O} S©JIAISS 30>O._QE_ JO posealdu|
‘uonoe ayy yoddns o} pasn Buiaq spuny ©g3y7 Jo Junowe sy} Ausp| =
pue ‘uonoe ay} jo Joedw ay) Jojuow o) pasn Buiaq (s)oujaw ayy Ajuap|
‘uonoe pajos|as ay} spoddns yoseasal moy Jo uoneue|dxa ue apnjou| =
‘uojoe g3y ue se uonoe sy} Ajjusp| =

‘1snw uondussap uonoe ay) Buipuny ©g347 Ag papoddns uoloe
yoea 104 "‘dyD7 2yl uiyim spunj 59347 Agq papoddns suoijoe 210w 10 U0 apN|IUI ISNW SpUny g3y pepusdxaun ypm syg] ©

T2)([@)0zG 2z Uonoag Hg ul pajejnoile sasodind ay) jo aiow Jo suo uswsa|dwi 0} pasn ag Jsnw spun} HgIYT ‘JopuUlLBI B Sy ©

‘ssao0.d ajepdn [enuue 4y ay) Jo ped se pasinbal suoioe 3y} Jo uciejuawaldw Jo UojeNnjeAd ay) Jojpue ©gIHT] )
AQ papun) suoloe Jo UOIO3|9S BU) ‘JUSWSSaSSE Spasu palinbal ay) Bunonpuod ul joLysip jooyoss ay) Yoddns o} ssad0id aoue)sISse
[e21UYo8) 8y} asn o) pabeinoous ale aouejsisse [eILYDd) Buipincid SO0 pue asuelsisse |eauyoa) Buinissal sjouysip jooysg ©

(p)9zsze

uoioag HJ Jo sjuawannbal oy} sjeaW N )i JYD7 2Y) Joj Juswssasse spaau Jeinbas sy3 ay) jo ped ag Aew JuaWSSOSSE

spaau o g3y pasnnbai sy obed qgom S30IN0SSY HE Iy ] HOAANS JO WAJSAS SPIMIIEIS BIUIOJI[ED 3y} U0 punoj ag Aew 9g3y47
3y} '~* $99IN0SSI PASEQ-22USPIAS pUE JUSWISSISSE SPIaU Sy} N~ = UoKeLLIojU| [euclippy ‘obed qam Uonewloju] weiboid




L2 40 09 @beq 1o1ISIJ (00428 AJBIUSLISIT Lo UBLILDO|E 10} Ue(d AMIIGRIUNO0DY PUE [013U0D [BI0T 92-5202
SjuRIS) UOHRIIUSOUOY) Jo/pue [eluawalddng 4497 pajosioid |eloL

'SMOJ|0} SB Sajqe} ay) ale|dwo)
suononisuj pue syuswaiinbay

‘Aloay) [euonesnps Jo ‘asuauadxa ‘yoleasal

Suipoddns ‘paiapisuod saajjeussie Aue Buipnjoul ‘uoneuILIB)EP SIY) 10} SISeq ay) apiaoad jsnw uonduosap ay] ‘sealse Ajuoud |eoo) Aue

pue &jels ay) ul sjidnd pajeondnpun sy 10} SjeOb SJOLISIP U} J9AW 0} SpUN} 3Y} JO BSN SAIDBYS JSOW BY) aJe Suoijoe asay} moy Jo uondiosap
e apnjoul osfe }snw sjidnd pajesidnpun jo juawijosua Juassad gF uey) ssa| UM S|OOYIS 10} SISeq IPIM|OoYIS & uo papiroid suonoy

‘AJosy} jeuoneonpa 10 ‘asusuadxa ‘'Yyoieasal

Buioddns ‘paiapisuod saajeuss)e Aue Buipnpoul ‘uoieulLIBap SIY) 104 SISeq oY) apiaoid jsnuwl uondudsap ay] sease Ajuoud |eoo) Aue pue
ajels ay) i sjidnd pajeosidnpun sy Joj s|eob $10UISIP U} 198W 0} SPUN} 8y} JO 3Sh SA108))3 }SOW U} ale suoljoe ay) moy Jo uodudsap e apn|oul
osje }shw juadiad gg uey) ssaj| jo abejuaalad idnd pajesijdnpun ue yjm S}2143SIP [OOYIS JB SISeq apIM-y3] Ue uo papiaold suonoy

AJuQ syoLsIqg |00Y9S 104

‘sjuapns Buialas se awes ay) jou si sjuapn)s Buy[olus asnedaq pJepue)s Saoialas pasoidwl 10
pasealoul ay} }9aw jou saop sdnoJb 10 dnoab juspnis oyoads e jo abejuasiad juswijoiua ybiy e sey w37 ue jey) Bunels Adwis ayung e

‘JUSIDILNS JoU 8Je ‘MoY 0} Se uoneue|dxa
Jaypny 10 uoNaUUOoD Noidxa ue Jnoyum ‘|eob ay) 1o} aWOooIN0 Pajoadxa Ue aasIyde d|ay |Im S0IAISS B Jey) sjuawalels AIosnjouoy) e

‘sjuapn)s [|e o) patedwod se {s)dnoub Juapn)s pajeddnpun 104 s8LI02N0 sA0IdWI 0) papuUdlul S| UOIOE U} MOY pue sjuepn)s |e
0} papiaoid Buiaq si uoijoB IPIM|O0YDIS 10 apIM-Y3] ue Aym Jo} uonedyisnl e apiacid Jsnw sy ‘suoljeue|dxs palinbal anoqe ay} 0} UOIPPE Uj

SUORIY IPIM|OOYIG puE 8pIM-YIT

"(SsauaAjoay ] Jo Juswsainseay) seale Ajuold jesol Aue pue ajels ay) ul sjidnd pajesijdnpun sy 10} s|eob sy37 3y} sj@aw uoljoe sy} MOH e
pue ‘(ubisaqg uonoy pue spasN pauiuap|) (s)dnoib uapnis pajeadnpun ayy 1o} $821A19s Buirosdwi Jo Buisealoul S| uoljoe ay} MOH

110 uojeue|dxe ue apn|dul JSNW 37 dY) ‘Juswalinbal saoialas paaoidwi Jo pasesldul ay} 1eaw o} Buingujuod uoljoe Aue 1oy ‘alopaiay |

‘(uonoe paywi) (s)dnoub Juspnis pajesidnpun aiow 1o auo 0} papiaoid

A1210s Jo ‘(uonoe IPIMOOYIS) [00YIS U ue o} papiacid ‘(uonoe spim-y3T) Y] 2J3Us ay) ssoioe papinoid ase Aay) 1ayjaym Juswaiinbal
$901A198 panosdull 10 pasealsul ay) o) Bunnguiuod Se uoIDas SUOHIY PUe S|BOS) au) Ul paijijuapl ale Jey) dvo7 3y Ul suoioe asoy) Aq paaciduwi
10 paseaioul ale 801198 “Azuenb Ul sad1A1as moib 0} suBaw s80IAISS 9SBaI0U) 0) puk Aljenb ul sa21A19s molb 0) Sueaw $301A19s aroldwil o)

"UOI}O3S SJUBPN}S SWOJU[-MOT pue ‘sisusea ys)Bug ‘yinoA J8)s04 1o} sa0I1AI9G pancidw| 10 paseasou| ay} ul papiaold

suoneue|dxs sy} ybnoayy (Z) pue ‘a|ge | suoljoy Buinguuod sy} Ul PajUSLLINOOP SB $a2IAI9G pancidwy Jo abejuadsiad pauueld e Jo uoiesyluapl
ay) yBnoay} 10 spuny 4497 4o ainypuadxa ay) ybnosyl (1) :pioj-omi st 44N SH Bunasw si 1 SOjeLSUOWSP Y37 UB Ydiym ulssuuew ayl ddi.
10 abejuar-~4 Ayjeuoipodold wnuwiuiw, ay; se umouy osje si abejuasi~ ' Kyjeuoodoid siyi ([e]loers 1 uonoes y00 ¢ [allgllalye” ~ uonoes

| S_— e _—



1240 )9 obed 19HISIQ |00Y2S AJejuaLWal3 LoIN UBLIYDOIG Jo) Ueld ANIqeIUNGIOY PUE [01U0D [B207 92-5202

‘pajoalp Ajjediound si uonoe ay; woym Joy (s)dnolb yuapnls pajesiidnpun s y37 aU) Jo (S)pasu payiuapt anbiun ay) jo uoneuejdxa ue apirold

(s}peaN paynusp|
'$MO||0} Se 3|qe) ay) a)8jdwo))

"9|qe} 9y} UIyIM Yons Se a)e)s ‘suonduosag uonoy ay) ul uonduasap pannbai siyy papiaoid sey w37 ayl 4|

‘(s)dnoub Juspms pajedijdnpun

ay} 10} sawodno Buincidw ul UOIR BY} JO SSBUDAIJDAYS Ay} aINSEBAW 0} pasn (s)oujdw ay) (¢) pue ‘siSeq apiM|ooyds 10 Y3 UE uo papiaoid
Bulaqg s1 1 Aym pue (s)pasu paljuapl ayj ssaippe o0} paubisap s uonoe ayy moy (Z) ‘pajoaanp Ajjediduud si uonoe ay) woym 1oy (s)dnoib Juapns
pajeaidnpun ayj jo (s)paau payiuapl anbiun ayj (1) jo uoneuejdxa ue apiaoid ‘|oOYIS U0 37 aijus ue o) papirosd Buisq uonoe yoes 104

SUOROY SPIM|OOYIS PUE SPIM-YT]

:suonduosaqg pasinbay
"(2)(e)96PpS1
uonPas &N G 0} Juensind paje|nojed se ‘Ieak 4D 8y} Ul sjuapnjs ||e o} papiacid $321/u8s ay) 0} pasedwod se paaoidwl 10 pasealoul
aq ishw sjdnd pajeandnpun 10} sa21A1as Yaiym Aq abejusalad s,y37 2yl st sy “abejuaniad ay) Apoads pue sbejuadiad Jsnolie)
pannbay 4497 |euciuodold ay) pue Jea A |00yog Buiwos) ay) 10} saoinag anosdw| 10 asealdu| o) abejuadiad pajoalold ayl ppy e

Jea A |ooyog Buiwosy ay) 1o} s@21A198 anosdw Jo asealou| o} abejuadiad |ejol
"(0$) 0J8z J0 Junowe ue Ajoads ‘ajqe] JanoAne)
4407 2Y3 Ul paiijuapl Jou si Junowe JanoAlie B J| ‘ejqe) Jaaoiuien 4407 8y} Ul payijuapl Junowe Jejjog — Janollied 4407 syl Aioadg e

lejjoq — JaaoAled 4401
"(9%00°0) 0Jaz jo abejuadiad e Apoads ‘ajge] Janchie)
4497 au) ul payuspl Jou si sabejuasiad JoroAued e §| "ajge ) Jarofiie) 4497 ay) Ul paynuapl abejuaciad — 1anchue) 4407 su) Aoadg e

abejuadlad — 1anohuen 44917

"(L)(e)96¥S 1 uonoag YOO § 0} Juensind paje|nojed se Jeak 4y 8y} ul sjuspn)s |je o} paplaosd
sa0IAes ay) 0} paledwos se paaoidwl Jo pasealoul aq Jsnw spdnd pajesndnpun 10} $92118S Yoiym Aq abejuaasad pajewsa ay) AJioadg e

Jea ) jooyog Buiwon ay) 1o} sadinag anoldwi 10 asealou| o) abejuadiad pajosliold
“Jeak BUIWIOD Y} Ul BAI993L (1M )
$9JeWSa Y37 9Y) 1BY) ‘Z0°8EZZy UoNoas HJ Ul paquossp se ‘Buipuny uo-ppe juelBb uoneuasuod 4497 [BUOHIPPE jO JunowWe ay) Ajdadg

JURIS) UOlENUAdUCD 4407 Juadlad G| [euolippy pajosiold
‘JUBIS) UOBHUSIUOYD) 4407
aoiad G| jeuonippy 2yl S3PNJIUI JUNOLWE SiY| “SJUapn)s aWodUl-mo| pue ‘Jjaulea| ysijbu3 ‘yinoA Ja)soy Jo UoEUSOUOD pue Jaquinu auy)
uo paseq '»aA BuILLoD 3y} Ul 2AI923J [[IM }] SSJBWISS YT @Y} SPuny Jur'f uonejuadsuod pue [ejuawalddns {497 jo Junowe ay) Ai~~1g e

) o —t



L2 Jo zg abey 1PUISK] (00Y2S ARUSLIS|T UCIUM UBIYD0|g 10} Ueld ANJIgRIUNCIDY pue [o)juo) (8207 9Z2-GZ02
‘poAIas

Buiag {s)dnoib Juapnis pajedldnpun ay} Jo (s)pasau psyuapl anbiun ay) ssaippe o} paubisap si uoyoe ayj moy Jo uonjeuejdxa ue apiAold
(s)peaN ssauppy 0} paubisag aJe (s)uoiyoy ay)} MoH

‘yoeqpas; Jauped |BUOESNPS PUE BlEP JUSWAA3IYOE Juspn)s 9jqeoidde Jo sisAjeue ‘wnwiuiw e Je ‘Sapnjoul JUaLSsasse spasu |njbulueaw y
‘JUSLWISSasse spaau s,y37 9y ybnoiyy paynuapl pansas Buiaq (s)dnosb Juapn)s pajesiidnpun ayj jo (s)pesu anbiun ay) Jo uoneuejdxa ue apiacid

(s)paaN paynuap)

'SMO||0} SB 3|qe] 3y} 3)8|dwo?)

"yans se ajejs ‘suonduosag uonoy ay) ul suonduosap pasnbai sy pspirosd sey 37 oyi 4

‘painseawl aq |m (s)dnosb juapnys pajes)dnpun ay Jo} sawooino Buiaoidw Ul uonIe 3Y) JO SSBUBAIDSYS

ayl moy (g) pue ‘(s)pasu payuapl ay) ssaippe o} paubisap si uonoe ayy moy (g) ‘panas Buiaqg (s)dnoib Juapnys pajesidnpun ayj Jo
(s}peau paynuapi enbiun ay} (1) jo uoneuejdxs ue apirold ‘(s)dnoub Juapnis pajealdnpun aiow Jo auo o) papiacid Ajsjos Buleq uoloe yoes 104

suondy pajiwi

"SNOWAUOUAS 3 0} PaIapISU0D aIB apIM-yYJ ] PUB 2PIM|O0YDS ‘S|O0YIS JdPBYD pue SO JO 9SED dU) U| :S|00YIS 1a)ey) pue s30D 10j 3JON
‘(s)uonoe auy} Jo ssauanoaye pue ssalboid sy) ainseaw o} pasn Buiaq (s)auawl ayy Auap)

SSOUDAIDB)T JOJUO O} (S)d130|N

‘sjuapn)s Buinias se awes ay) Jou s sjuapn)s Buljjoiua asnesaq piepuels $8a1A3s panosdwt 1o
paseaJoul ay) }esw Jou saop sdnoib Jo dnoisb Juapms oyioads e jo abejusaiad Juawijoiua ybiy e sey w3 ue jey} Bunels Aiduwiis ‘Jeyung e

‘JUSISYNS JOU 21. ‘MOY 0} Se uojeue|dxs Jayuny 10
uonoauuo udxe ue Jnoyym ‘[eob ay) 1oy awoaIN0 pajoadxs ue aASIYDER d|ay |IM 301AIBS B JBY) Sjuswalels AiosN|ouod ‘anoge Paje]s sy e

"SISEQ SPIM|OOYIS 10 BpIM-yJ"] ue uo papirosd Bulaq si uonoe ayy Aym Joy ajeucnel ay) pue pajoaap Ajediouud si uoloe syl woym
Jo} (s)dnoub yuspms pajesydnpun s,y37 sy} Jo (s)pasu payiuapl anbiun ayj ssaippe |im paubisap se uonoe ay) moy Jo uoljeue[dxe ue apirold

siseg apIM|00Y2S 10 apIM-YYT] UB UO PaplAoid S131 AYp pue (s)pesN ssalppy 0) paubiseq aJe (S)uonoy ay) moH

oeqpsa’y

Jsuped jeuoljeonpa pue gjep juswaAsiyoe Juapnis sjqedijdde Jo sisAjeue ‘WnWIUIW € Je ‘Sapn|dul JUSWSSasSe spasu njbuiuesw v “way)
SoSsalppe UoNoe Sy} MOY pue Juawssasse spaau e ybnoiy) paynuapi (s)dnoib uapnis pajedldnpun ay) o (s)aouejswinond Jo ‘(S)uopipuod
‘(s)pe~r oy} suie|dxa v37 2u) uaym (s)dnoib yuapnys pajeosidnpur ‘e spiemo) pajoallp Ajjediouud S| uonoe ue moy sajessuor’ N Y3 uy

N | — “mart’



12 40 £9 9bed 1UISIQ [00Ydg AIEJUBLWS|T UOIUM UBWILDO|G 10} Ue(d AJ(IGEIUNOIDY PUE [0UOD) [B907 92-6202

"a|qeoldde
jou s1 jdwosd sy} 0} asuodsai e jey) sjeaipul 1snw uo-ppe Juelb uoienuasuod ayl Jo Juelb uoenusIuod B SAI929) JOU SA0p Jey} Y uy e

‘v3] oy} 0} s|qeandde se ‘suonduosap Buimojjoy ay) apiaold

‘JJIS |BIPOJSND SOPN[OUl JB)S PIYISSED ‘Y3 2y AQ paAojdwa Jels payisse

Jo/pue Jjels paleoiyiia aq 1SNl Suspn}s 0} S80IAIaS J0alIp apiacsd oym yes sy Juadsad GG uey) ss9| 40 0} jenba si Jey) sjuapnis pajealdnpun
JO JUBW|OIUB UE YJIM S|OOYDS Je SJUapnis 0) SadIAI9S J0aJip apiaoid oym Jels Jo Jaquinu ay) o) paredwod se jusosad GG uey) 1a)ealb s

Jey; sjuapnis pajeslidnpun O Jusw([0Jua Ue Yum S[O0YDS Je SJUapn)s 0} SJIAI9S Joalip apiAoid oym Jels Jo Jaquinu ay) SSealdul 0) SpUn 9say)
Buisn s 31 moy ajeisuowap o} palinbal s Zo'gEzzy UoII0as HF Ul paquoasap Uo-ppe Juelb UOIJeJUSsUOD [BUOIIIPPE 9y} SBAIJa JeY} Y] Uy

"g|qeoidde se 'syjuapn)s awoaul
-Mo| pue ‘siauled| ysibug ‘YinoA 1a)so} Jo (Juatiad gG aaoqe) uoieijuaduod ybiy e aAey 1By} S|OOYDS Je Sjuspnis 0} saaialas Joallp Buipiaocid
JJels Jo Jaquuinu ay} asealoul 0) pash aq ||Im aaoge payiuapl Buipuny uo-ppe juelf uoieUaoUOD jeuoyippe ay} moy 1o} uejd ayj Jo uonduossp v

Buipund jueis) uokeHUIdIUCY) JRUOIIPPY

‘uonoe ay) 1o} SVIAIRS paacldull jo abejuadiad pauueld ay) si abejuadsad siy| ebejuadiad

€ 0} Jusijonb ay} 12AU0D UBY) pue 3|qe| saInjipuadx] pauueld |ejo ) Yy} ul payhuapl Guipung 4497 jo Junowe sy} Aq 000'G91$

JO 1509 pajewl)sa ay} SpIAIP PInom v ay; ‘sjdwexa sy} U] ‘syuspn}s o} Joddns 1961e) 0} siapincid Buluies| papuedxa pue sjue)sisse

|euononsul AQ papiacid S801A19S SJeUIPICOD 0} Blep SU) asn |im oym siediduird 8IS yum paleys aq uay} |im sisAjeue siy | “yinoA 1a)so}

ale oym sjuapnys o} bunejal ejep azhjeue 0} awi) geys bunsixa jo uoluod e aziIn 0} S8S00YD YI ] Y} ‘pealsu| "000'691$ 1S00 pjnom

sajewnsa Y3 ay) ‘ajess Aed juaund s3] 8y} Uo paseq ‘Yyoiym ‘syuspnis Joj spoddns SjeulpiooD 0} pue Ejep 8zA|eue pue }99||03 0}

yeis jeuoippe Buuiy Ag uonoe siy) Juswsidwi pinoo w37 8yl "YInoA 18)so} ale oym sjuapnis 0} apiaoid o) spoddns psjabie) jeym mouy
siapiaoad Buluies) papuedxs pue sapie Jeuojoniisul JeY) aINsua 0} Bjep azA|BUR 0) paau B S$i 2.3y} Jey) Saulwis)ap Y3 ue ‘a|dwexs Jo{ e

"pPapun} a19m J JI uonoe ayj Juawsajdwi 0} puadxa piNoMm )i Sajew)ss Y31 ay) jeu} Buipuny 4497 Jo Junowe
ay) 0} sSpuodsallod uoloe Ue 10} S32IAI9S panosdwi Jo abejuadiad ay| abeuadiad [euoiodoid 3y} SpIEMO) UOIIO. BU) JO UOKNGLIUOD
ay) sulwialap 0} pasn )l jey; ABojopoylaw ay) aquasap 1snw Y37 ay) ‘'saoinieg paacidw) jo abejusoiad pauueld e BuiAmuspl usypy e

‘pasn sem jey) Abojopoyiaw
ay} aquosap pue Jagquinu uonde pue |eob ay) Amuapl ‘seinag pancidw) Jo abejuaniad pauuge|d payjuapl Ue Yiim UOKOE Yoes 104

‘gjqeoldde se ‘abejuasiad |euoipodoid ay} spiemo) uoljoe ayj JO UCHNGLIUCD 3Y) auILLIB}Bp

0} pasnh sem jey) ABojopoyiaw ayl aquosap ‘spun} 4497 Jo ainjipuadxa ue uey} Jaylel ajqe ] Alrewwng Bunnguiuod sy ul saoIAI9S pasoiduw)
Jo afiejuaniad pauue|d e yum pajeicosse si Jey) juawalinbai saoines paaosdu 10 pasealoul ay) Buasw o} Bunnguiuod uoyoe pajwij Aue 104
‘(s)uonoe ay} Jo ssauaanoays pue ssalboid ay) ainsesuw o} pasn Buiaq (s)oew ay) Ausp)

SSOUSAlD8Y T JOMUOW ~© ‘S)oLBIN
S S ,.II-%..



L2 40 g 9bed 1PUISIJ [00YIS AIBIUSWISIT UOIUM UBWYI0|] 1O} UBld ANIGEIUNOIDY PUE [0NU0YD [B207 92-5Z0T
:Apoq Buiwiaaob 1o pieoq Buiuianob 00| oy Agq pajdope dy0)1 8y) Jo ped se papnjoul aq 0} palinbal ale sajqe} Buimojoy ay

'$9|qE)} UONOY Bululewal ay) o PaIsluS JoU SI UCHBLLIOJU| ‘PaISIUS 8] [[IM UOREWIOJUI 81ayMm (S)uwnjod

ay) Buynuapl ul ple o} s1speay uwWwN|od 0} pappe uaaq sey Jndul, piom ay] "ajgel JaaokleD 4497 dYi pue ‘s|qe] ajepdn [enuuy Suonoy
Bunnquiuon ay) ‘s|qe| syepdn [enuuy ay) ‘e|qe sainypuadxs pauueld [e}0L aYi OJul palajua AJUo SI UONELLIOJU| "S3|qel UOHOY JaUl0 au}
sjeindod Ajjeonewolne [[Im 2|ge) SIY} OJUI PAISIUD UOIIBULIOIUI BY | "4V 24l Ul UoidE Yoes 10} a|qe | sainjipuadx3y pauue|d [ejo] ay} aja|dwon

s9|qeL uondy

“1eaA yoes Jo 1aqojdQ Ul Aepsaupaps
JS1i) BU} UO PAJUNOD SE SJUBPNJS PI)|CIUS JO Jaquinu Sy} pue Lels 3] 4 Jo Jaquunu ay} uo paseq aq Jsnul oljel Juapnis-o}-yejs ay| o

V31 ay; 0} sgediidde se ‘(sjooyog ybiy pue ‘Yybiy Jounpaippin Aejuswall) ueds apesb Aq sjooyos sy dnoub Aew ygj a8yl ©

"¥31 9y} 0} ajqeandde se ‘Juasiad gg uey) Jajea1b si jey) sjuspnis pajedydnpun jo uoizeUIDUOD
B YUM S|00YDs JB SJuapn)s 0} sadialas 19alIp Buipianoid yels pajesiiyad Jo onjel JUuapnis-0j-jels ayj pue ssa| Jo juaniad GG Si jey) sjuapnys
pajeaiidnpun O UCBIJUB2UOD B YJIM S|O0YDS JB SJUapn)s 0} sadlAlas joallp Buipiacid yels pajesyilad Jo oljel Juapn)s-0)-4els sy} aplAold e

‘1e9A YOBD JO J9g0190) Ul ABpSaUpPapA 1S1l 8y} Uo pajunos
SE SJUapNIS P2||0Jus JO Jaguinu ay) pue yels (31 4) Jusjeainba awi-|jn) 40 Jaguinu ay) uo paseq aq Jsnw oljel JUSPN]S-0)-Jels Yyl ©

"v37 2y3 o} ajgeddde se ‘(sjooyos ybiH pue ‘ybiy Jowunp/elppiy ‘Aejuaws|3) ueds apeib Ag sjooyos sy dnoab Aew w38y ©

Vw37 @Y1 0} ajqeoldde se ‘Juadiad GG uey} Jajealb si jey) syuspnys pajeaiidnpun jo
UOIJBIJUS3UOD B YUM S|O0UIS JB SjUapn)s 0} sadiales Joallp Buipiaocid yels palisseo jo oljel Juapnjs-0)-y4els ayj pue ssa| Jo Juadlad ¢g s
ey} sjuspnis pajeslidnpun Jo UOIJBIJUSDUOD B UM SJUSPN}S 0] SaDIAIaS Joalip Buipiacid yejs payisse|d Jo oljes Juapnis-0)-4ejs ayl apincld e

'SMOJ||0} SE 8|qe]} 2y} 9je|dwon)

Juaaisad g uey) Ja1ealb s) ey} sjuspnis pajedldnpun JO JUSW|I0JUS UB UIM [O0YJS B JB Sjuapn)s 0} SadiA1as Joalip Buipiaoid yeys uiejal
0} spunj ay} Buisn s1 )1 Moy aquIsap Jsnul w31 ay) ‘Jusssad ¢ ueyy Jojessb s) Jey) sjuspnis pajeddnpun JO JUSW||0JUS UB YlIim |00YDs
€ ]e SJUapn]s 0} SaDIAI8S J0a1p Buipinoid Jjels 9SBaloul 0} JUSIDIYNS JOU SI UO-PPE JUEID UOHEIIUSDUOD |BUOHIPPE UB JBy) JUSAS Sy} U] e

‘poddns
Buie)s jeuonippe alinbal S|O0YDS YJIym aulLLLIS)ap 0] pash BLIS)IO Y} PUB S|O0YDS Pajad|as Je Sjuapn)s 0} Sa01AIas 1oallp apiacid
oym ‘Yels [e1poysnod Buipnpoul ‘yjoq Jo ‘Yels payISSeld ‘Yels pajejuapald O Jaquinu sy} asesasdul o} spuny ay) buisn s )i moy agquosap
Isnw Juaaiad gg uey) Jajealb s jey) syuapnis pajesijdnpun JO JUSW|I0IUS UB LIm S[ooyos sey AJuo jeyl Y3 ue 10 y37 [ooyos-s|buls
e SB 4ons ‘spuny uc-ppe juelb uoijenuasuod ay) buisn si ) moy 2quUISap 0} Yaym wolj s|jooyss uosiiedwod aaey Jou Saop Jeyl Y3 uy e

usoled
GG uey) 19)ealb s) jey) syjuapnis pajesldnpun JO JUSLW|IOIUD UB YA S|O0YIS JE SJUSPN)S 0} SAJIAISS JoalIp apiroid oym Jels Jo Jaquinu
2y} ssea'ui 0} Juswalinbal ay} 198w o} Bunuawajdwy si Y37 2yl ey’ "yOT 94y} Ul SUCIIOR Y] JO S1aquinu uoloe pue [eob ay) Y I e



L4 Jo 69 3bed PUISIQ |00ydG AlBjUBWI] UK UBWIL0|] JO) Ue(d AJIIqeunodY pue [03jU0D [B307 92-$Z02

— Janoluen 4407 au) pue JeaA |00y2S Buiwo) ay) Joy saaIneg aaoidul) 10 asealou) 0) abejuadiad pajoalold ay) uo paseq
pajenojen si )l ‘paiajud aq jou |im abejuasiad siy] :Jeaj [ooyds Buiwo ay) 40} s8diAles aacsdw| JO 8SeaIU| 0) abejuadiad [BjO]

"(9%00°0) 049z Jo abejuasiad e Ayoeds ‘a|qe ] Janciuen 4407 2y} Ul payiuapi jou si abejuadniad Janolises e )| Jesh
dvD1 Joud ay) woyy siqe) IanokiieD 4497 eyl ul paynuapl abejussiad — 19A0AiieD 4497 2y} AJjioadg ebejuadsiod — JoaoAslen 4407 e

1eak 4y Buiwoos ay) u sjuapn;s ||e o} papiacid sadines 8y} o}

paiedwod se paaocidwi Jo paseasoul aq isnw s|idnd pajeandnpun Joj saoin8s Yyaiym Aq abejusalad sy si siyl (g)(e)96HS L Uoiloas yo0

G 0} Juensind 'sjueio) uoljejuadUOY Jo/pue |ejuswa|ddng 4407 pajoaiold ay) pue juels) aseq 4497 pajaslold sy} uo paseq pajejnojed
S| )l ‘paJajua aq Jou |im abejuadiad siy] deap jooyas Bujwon ay) 10 sadtaleg aaocsdw| J0 asealou| 0} abejuadiad pajosifolgd ‘g o

‘1eak jooyos Buruod ay} 10) sjuapn)s pajedlidnpun JO UQIIBJJUSILOD PUB JIBQLUNU 3Y) JO SISB] 3y} U0 pajewnss sjue.d
UOIEUIDUOD pue [ejuaweddns 4497 JO JUNCLIE |B)0} SY) SPIACI4 :SjURIS) UCeIIUaoU0Y) Jo/pue [ejuawalddng 449 pajoafoid 'z

‘SuoIRINIED

Juswapua 4497 o4 ‘s|qeaijdde se ‘(s|ooyos Japeya pue sjoulsIp [00yIs 10}) Z0'8EZZy Pue (S30D 10)) $/GZ SU0lIas O3 99S

"'S30D 10} Juelc) suoiesad( AJuUnos) pue ‘sjoLISIP |O0YIS 10} SSIUBMO|E

19b1e] A1ano29y J1WIOU02] pue s|ooYIS [[ewS AlessadaN ay) sapnjaul os|e 4y 2y} Jo sasodind 10) Jueis) aseq 4407 3y} Jeu} 8Jo0N
{8)(e)96¥G 1 uonaag & G 0} uensind ‘weiboid uoneuodsuel] oIS [0OYIS ||lBWS Y} pue ‘weiboid uoljepodsuel| |00YydS-0}-aWOoH

Jawnoy ay) ‘welboud Juei) ¥o0|g Juswaaoldw) leuononsisu| pajebie] ay) Joj suo-ppe ay) pue sjuelb uclyeluaduod pue jejuawsaiddns
ay} buipnjoxa ‘Jeak jooyas Bulwod ayj 1oy JUsWaiIUa 4497 PRIEWISS JUNOWE |Bl0) 9Y) 3PIAOI4 Juels) aseqg 44071 pajoaload ‘| e

e A dvO1 alqedidde ay) Auap| uesA dvDT e
1eah dyo 91qeoidde 1ey) Joy 4D SY) Ul uonoe yoes Joj uonewsoul Buimoljo) ayi Jndui ‘ajqe sainyipuadxg pauueld |elo] oy} uj

ajqe ] sainyipusdxg pauuejd |e}of

"JeaA dyO UBLIND 3Y) 8 |IM $Z—EZ0Z PUe Jes\ dyDT Builiod ay) 8q |IM §2-¥Z0Z ‘dvD1 G220z dui Buidojanep usym ‘sjdwexa
104 "uonejualaldwi Jo 1eak Jualnd ay) sl Jeak 4y 1Uaund ay) ajiym ‘1o) pauueld Buiaq si Jey) Jeak ay st lesA 4y Buiwos ay) :ajoN

(Jea ) dvD]uaund ay) Jo)) a|qe ] Janckiie) 4407:G9|gqel e

(1ea A d¥D1IUaLINg ay) 10) 9|ge] ayepdn |enuuy suondy Bunnquiuo) pojge) e
(1eap 4y wauno ayy ioy) s|qe] sjepdn |enuuy g S|qe| e

(deap 41 Buiwod ayy Jo)) sjge suoldy Bunnquiuo) :Z sjqel e

{1ea A " 07 Buiwos ayy 10j) ajge] sainypuadx] pauue|d [BJO] (| &2 e

) o —_—



L£ 40 99 abed JoLISIQ 100Y9S Algjusuia|g uolun UBWYI0|g 10} Ueld AIIJeIUNOD0Y PUe [O1U0D (8907 92-5202

"UWINjOD SpuUn4 [elo] ay)
pUE UWIN|OD [SUUOSIa |BJ0] 2y} Ul papiroid uoljewlojul Uo paseq pajejnojed AJleoewoine a4 [|IM JUNOWR S| | [SUUOSIS4-UON |BJO] e

‘uofjoe sy} Juawajdwi 0) paziyn sainjipuadxa [puuosiad Jo Junowe |Bjo) ay) JJuUT ([PUU0SIad [ej0]

. SYIUOW O, 10 ‘SIBD A Z, 10 JeaA |, 19jud JyBiw w31 ue ‘sidwexs 104 ‘pajusiuajdwi 2q 1M Uoide ay) yaiym
1o} alwi} jo ueds ay) ajedIpul ‘asIMIBYIQ "Bl JO pouad ajeulLLBIapUl LR Joy pajuawajdill aq |im uonoe ay) i Buiobuo, Jaju] :uedg awi] e

‘sjeudosdde se ‘(aay spelb ybnoiyy uapebiapuny jeuolyisuel) sape.b 1o sjooyas ybiy

[le “B-a) sueds apeib 10 $jooyds JO }2SUNS B 10 |00YDS [BNpIAIpUI By} Ajuap| suedg spelc) oyinadg, 10 $|00yog ayvads, 1ajus

1Isnw 37 ay; ‘Ajuo sueds apelb ainads Jo Y37 Ay} uiyum sjooyas oyioads o) papinoid si Uoioe ay} § , SI0042S (1Y, S1EDIPUI SN
VY37 U} ‘Y37 au} uiyim s|ooyos ([e o} papiaold st uohoe 3y} 4| "papiacid 2q ||Im UOKOE By} B18UM UOREIO| By} Aijusp| :uoREedD] ©

‘QAIS03) SUBPN)S
Ile eym o} pasedwod se paaoidw 10 paseasoul Buiaq ale saa1nas woym Joy sdnolB Juapnys pajesldnpun aiow 10 auo ajedlpu|
'sdnoub yJuapms pajeoaldnpun alow Jo auc aalas suocloe Bunnguiuos ‘edoas jo ssapiebay (s)dnoig Juspmg pajesndnpun ©

‘sdnoub Juspnys pajeadnpun
alo0w 10 suo Ajuo samas Jey) uoljoe ue si adods sy ul pajiwi| si Jey} uoioe uy ‘jooyds 3)Buis e jo weisboid [euonednps anua
ay} sopelbdn adoos ul epimjooyos si jey) uonoe uy “y37 ay) jo weiboid jeuoneanpe ajus ay) sepesbdn adods ul apim-y37 si jey)
uoloe Uy ‘pajwi| Jo ‘apIimjooyas ‘(apimuapieyd Jo ‘apimAlunod ‘apimjollsip 'a'l) apim-y31 2g Aew uoljoe ue jo adods ay) 8doag ©
“SUWINjo2 Buimojjo) ay} 219jdwos uay) ‘uwnjod Bunnguiuoy) auyy ojul paIsjud sI SOAH

“Juawalinbal
s8I/ panosdwl Jo paseasdul sy Bueaw o) Buiinguod se papnjoul Jou S| uoloe syl i oN, adA} ‘MO Juswsainbas saoines pasoidu
1o paseausui ay) Bunssw o) BunguIuod SB papnioul §i UoIOE B} )l SBA, 8dA) ¢ S891AI9G paAocidu Jo pasealou] 0) Bupnquiuo) e

‘sdnoib 10 dnoib yuspnys olyoads e
Buusjus Aq 40 'y, Buusjua Aq uonoe ay) jo Aeoyauaq Aewud ay) aq [im oym sdnoab o dnoub yuapnis ayi ajeaipul :(s)dnods Juspmg o

'UOO. B} JO S} B SPINOI BJIIL UORIY e
180D 4vDT 3yl Ul pajesipul Se JaqLUNU S,Uchoe 3y} Jaju] # UOROY
"uonoe 8y} Jo} JaquInU |e0S) D S} JoJUT # |e0D) e

1eak 4y o7 Buiwoo ay} ur syuapn}s jje o} papirotd sairIes B}
o} pasedwo~ <e sjidnd pejesidnpun ioj sasinies aaosdwit 10 aseald’ snuw w37 oyl yaiym Aq abejuasiad ayy si siyj sbejue ¢

j S— o —



LLjo L9 abed JouIsIg [0oyog Atejusuia|g uoiun UeLWYIo|g 10§ Ueld ANIGeIUNoIDY PUe [0AU0) (8207 92-5202
"Uoijoe 9y} 10} SAIABS panoldw Jo abejuasiad pauue|d ay) si ebejuaosad siy] ‘abrjuadiad e o} Juagonb
3y} HaAuod uay) pue sjge) Aiu3 ejeq ay) ul paynuapl Buipung 4497 Jo Junowe sy} Aq 000'G9L$ JO 1500 pajewsa ay) SpIAP
pinom 37 ay; ‘sjdwexa siy) u| ‘syjuapnis o) poddns jabie} 0} siapiacid Bulules| papuedxa pue sjuelsisse [euononisul Aq papiaosd
S81AI9S SJBUIPIOOD 0} BJED aY) asn [|Im oym siedidund a)is upm paseys aq usy) ||Im sisAjeue siy] "yinoA 19}s0j ale oym sjuapnis o}
Bunejal ejep azAjeue o} aw yeys Buysixa jo uopiod e azi|jn 0} SBS00YD Y3 Y} ‘pealsu| 000’91 $ 1S02 pInoMm Sajewisa y31 ay)
‘ajeos Aed Juauno s,y37 9y} uo paseq ‘yaiym ‘sjuapnis Joj spoddns sjeuIpiood 0} pue ejep azAjeue pue }93||09 0} JJelS |euclippe
Buuiy Aq uoioe siy) Juawajdun pined 37 ayL "YinoA 19)so} ale oym sjuapnis o} apiaoid 0} spoddns pajabie) jeym mouy siapiaoid
Bujuies| papuedxa pue sapie |BUCIINIISUI JBY} 2INSUS 0} BlEP 9ZA|RUR 0} P38U B SI 318Y) JBy) Saulwialap 31 ue ‘sjdwexs 104

‘papuny a1am JI JI uoloe ay) Juswsidul 0} puadxa PINOM )i S3JBLUISS

V31 2y Jeys Buipuny 4497 Jo Junolue ay) 0} Spuodsali00 UOIO. Ue 10} S30IAISS pancsdull Jo abejuadiad ay) ‘abejussiasd

|euociuodosd ay) spiemo) uoioe 3y} JO UCIINGLIUCD SY) SUILISISP 0] pasn )i jey) ABojopoyjaw 9y} aquUosap ISNW Y31 sy} ‘SaoIALeS
panoidw jo abejuaniad pauueld e Buikjuapl usym ‘uoNjoas seoIneg paacidll| JO pasealdu| a8y} Jo) SUOIIoNIISUl 9U} Ul pajou Sy ©

"$JUSPNJS SWOOUI-MO| JO/pue

‘s1aules] ysiibug ‘YinoA 19)s0) S9AISS AJUO Jey} UONOE. Ue S| uoijoe palwl v (%00 0) Uipaipuny jsaieau ayj o} papunos abejussiad e

SE uoKoe 3y} 104 pajedionue Juswanoidun Ajenb pauued ay) JBJUS ‘UOHOE BU) Yim pajelcosse Buipun) aaey Jou s20p Jey) pue ‘sjuapnis
pajeoidnpun o} siseq pajwi] e uo papiaoid Buiaq ‘Bunnguuod SB paynuapl UoROE Aue JO4 :SadlAlag paaocidull jo abejuaslad pauueld e

"SUWINJOD INOJ sno1Aaid By} Ui PAISJUS SJUNOWE UO Paseq palenajed Ajjedijewlolne s Junowe siy) :spund |ejol e
"AUE ji ‘uonoe sy} Juawaldwi 0} pazijijn spun4 |e1apa4 JO JUNCLUE |BJ0} 3y} JaJuT Spund |elapad e
‘Rue y1 ‘uonoe siy) Juawajdwi 0) pazin spun4 |20 JO JUNOWE |BJO} Y} JAJUT :SPUNd [EJ07]

‘ddS30

a3y} Jo/pue ‘SHOT Yl ‘d-0713 @y} jo suoisiroid Juawadw 0} aAI8931 3SIMISYIO pinom ajis|ooyas Jalidnnyy Aunb3 ue jey) 10 4o

S,\Y37 2y} Ul payiJuspl SUOloR SpIM-YJT Juawajdwll 0] aAIaDa) ISIMISYI0 pInom ajIs|ooys Jaldiyny Ainb3 ue jey) uipun; aoejdal

0} pasn aq jou jsnw spuny 1aidniny Aunb3 jey) suesw siy| "ddSDD 8Uy Jo/pue ‘SYOT 3yl 'd-013 3y} ‘4407 ay) jo sesodind

1o} saysjooyas Jaydnynyy Ainb3 o pepiacid Buipuny yuejddns jou ‘yuswalddns 0} pasn aqg jsnw spuny Jadyniy Aunb3 ‘Jepuiwal
e sy ‘Alobajes spun4q 4497, au} ui jou ‘Aiobajes spund a)els 19yYj0, ayl ul papnjoul aq isnw spuny Jaidyiny Ainbg :ajoN ©

‘Aue J1 ‘uonoe siy) Juswadw 0} pazin spun4 9)e)S JaYID JO JUNOWE |Bjo} 8y} I8juT :Spun4 9)els JaYlQ

‘uoioe ayy Juswajdwi o) pasn Buiaq Buipuny 4497 2Y) uo paseq si Juawainbal sao1AIas paarcidwi 10 paseasoul ay) bunaasw
0} $8]NQLJUCO UOHOE UE USIUM O] JUDJXD BY] JOASMOY ‘S92IN0S JaYJ0 Woly Buipuny apnjoul osje Aew uoioe ay] Buipuny 4497 Jo
2JnsSesaW awos apnjoul Isnw I ‘Juswalinbal saolAlas paaoidw Jo paseasoul ay) Buijoaw SpIEMO) 31NquUIU0D 0} UONJE UB 104 :9JON ©

‘(uonepodsuel | |00Y2S-0]-8WOH pue ‘Juelc) }o0|g Juawanroidw|
jeuononyisu| payebie] uelb uonesuasuod yuelb jeyuswsiddns ‘Juswisnipe ueds apelb ‘yueib aseq “a'1) jabie) 4407 )0} S,y Ue
dn ayew *~'1) spuny J|e apnhjoul spuny 4497 "Aue JI ‘uonoe siy) Juswajd ' 0} paziin spuny 4497 JO JUNCWE [Bj0) 8Y) J8jug spund # N\ e

hgi s L



LZ Jo g9 abed JoulsIq [00YoS AJBjuswa|3 uoiun UeWY20]d Joj Ueld AJIGRIUNCI0Y PUE [04U0D) (B30T 92-G202

‘wesboud Jueis) yoolg Juawanoiduw jeuononisu| pajebie] ay} Jo) suo-ppe ay} pue sjuelb uonesnuasuod pue jejusws|ddns ay) Buipnoxae
‘JeaA |o0Yas Jualind ay) 10} Juawug 19bie| 4407 palewiss Jo JUnowe (B0} ay) SpIADI4 Juels) aseq 4497 |en}dy pajew}sy ‘g o

ajqe] sjoA0Aue) 4497

"UoRO. 3} IO} SIIIAIDS

pancidw) jo abejuaniad |enjoy pajewisy ay; sl abejuasiad sy abejuadiad e 0} Jusyonb ay) JaAUOD U3y} pue ajqe] Anug

eleq ay) ul paynuspl Buipuny 4437 Jo Junowe ay} Aq 00G'69L$ JO 1SOD [BNJOR PIJBWRSS By} PIAIP PINOM Y3 YL Juswisnipe

Buiay Jo 1502 B 0) anp 00S'69 1§ USAY Ay PINOM JSOD |BNJOE PajeLLINSS JBY) SjUapn)s 1o} spoddns ajeuipiood o) pue

elep azAjeue pue J039)|02 0} JE}S [BUCHIPPE Pally }I PEY Jey) SAUILLIB)SP PUE UOIJE ay) 10} }S09 pajewijsa |eulbuo ay) smalaal

V31 9yl "pancidwi sjuapnis Yok 18)s0) 10j SSLUODINO Jey) pue Ajjapl ypm pajusws|dwi sem uoljoe ay) jey} sauiwisiep

puE Blep awoa}no Juapn}s pue uciejuawa)dwi smalasl 3 ayl ‘ssaoold sjepdn [enuue ay) Jo ped sy “uonoe ay} sjuswa|dwy
adwexa ay) ul ¥ ay) ‘saoineg panosdw) jo abejuasiad pauuejd ay) Bunenojes 1oy snoqe papiarosd sidwexs ayj uc Buipjing ©

"(9%00°0) Yipalpuny }saleau ay} 0} papuncs abejuadiad e se uoioe ay} 10} pajedidiue Juswanoidw
Ayjenb jenjoe pajewi}sa |e)o) 2y} Jajua ‘uoijoe ayl yum pajeicosse Buipuny aaey Jou saop Jey} pue ‘sjuapms pajedldnpun o} Ajuo
siseq pajwi] e uo papiacid Buiaq ‘Buinquiuco se paynuapl uonoe Aue 104 :sedjales paacuduw jo abejuasiad |enjoy pajewn)sy e

"Aue j1 ‘uonoe siyj Juswajdwi
0} PAsSN spuny 4477 JO ainjipuadxa |enjoe pajeLulsa (ejo} ay) Jajug :suoioy Buinquiuo J0j sainjjpuadxy |enjoy pajewn}sy e

“Jeak |00UOS JUSLIND BY) Ul SJUapn}s pajesiidnpun Jo UOREIUSIUOD PUR JISQUINU 3y} UO paseq pajewsa sjuelb uonesuasuod
pue |ejuswajddns 4497 JO JUNOWIE [B)0)} U} SPIAOIJ :SIURIE) UONBIIUSIUOY 10/pue [ejuswelddng 4497 |enjoy pajewysy ‘g

:1eak 4y JueAs|al ay} 1oj 4y

ay}) ul uonoe Bunnquuod yoes 10j uoijewisopul Buimoljoy ay) apinold ‘sasuodsal ,Sa A, 84} Ajuo Ja)jy 0} Jepeay uwnjod sy} ul nuaw umop-dolp ay)
@sn ‘uwnjod ay} ul Buikeidsip Jou aJe Bunquiuod aie Jey} suonoe i Jo pake|dsip ale 0N, B Uim suonoe J ‘Buikedsip ase s\, € YUm suonoe
Ajuo j1ey; ainsua 0} UWN|od ¢ SadIMBG paacidw| Jo pasealou| o) Buinguiuod, ayl ¥o8yd ‘s|qe) alepdn [enuuy suolay Buinquiuod ay) u

ajqe| ajepdn jenuuy suonay bunnqLpyuo)
‘Aue J1 ‘uonjoe siy) Juawadwi 0} sainjipuadxa |enjoe pajewilsa |ejo) ay) Jaju] isainjipuadxy jen)oy pajewnsy e

1edh dyD JUBAS|a1 BY) 10} 4D BU) Ul uoljoe yoes Joj uonewojul Buimo)joy syl spinoid ‘sjqe sjepdn [enuuy ayy uj
ajqe] ajepdn jenuuy

‘sesuodsal SaA, Y} Ajuo Jay|y 0} Jopeay UWN|OD BY} Ul NUBW umop-doip By} asn ‘uwn|od ay; ut Buikejdsip Jou ase BupnqLIuoo sle Jey) suonde
J1 Jo pake|dsip a1e ,ON, € yim suohoe J| ‘Buikedsip ale ,Sa A, € Ylim SUOIOE AJUO Jey) 8INSUS O} PaXOBYD 84 O} PASU f|IM ULIN|OD ¢ SBOIAIBS
panoidu| Jo paseasou| o) BunquIuD, Sy} ‘ISASMOY B|qe] SUORDY BUNNQUIUOD SU} Ui PBISIUS 3q JOU [|IM UOIELLIOU} ‘SA0GE Pajou Sy
ojqe] suonady m:.ﬂﬁab.cﬁ:oo

, S ~ ot



L2 10 69 abey 1251 [00Y2S AJBIUSLLIB|T UCIUM UBWIYD0|g 104 ueld AN[IGBIUNDIIY PUE [OIL0D) (B0 92-6202

sjueID) UopeUSIUD) pue [ejuswajddng 4497 [enjoY pajewysg ‘g o

. painnbay JoN, Aejdsip ||im sadiaag pasoidwy jo abejuadiad

[eN}OY pajewi}s] pue pauueld usamiag asualsyiq ay; ‘(9) siuelo) uonenuadsuos) pue |ejuawalddng 4497 1ENIOY pajewilsg sy} uey)

18jealb 1o o} jenba si () sainypuadxg Bunnquiuo) pauueld |e30] au} jj (2) seoineg pasoidw) jo abejuadiad [Enjoy pajewiysy |ejo] ay) pue
(g) saoimeg panosdw Jo abejuaniad pauue|d [BJOL Sy} Usamjaq acualagip ay) alejnojed o} pannbal si y37 ay) ‘(9) SjuBIS) UORBIJUSIUOY) pUB
|ejuswalddng 4437 |enjoY pajewns3 ayj uey) ss| si () sainyipuadx3 Bunnquiuod pauueld |Bj01 3y § (2)(0)20'8£22H U0I08S DI 0} Juensing

a|qel 9yepdn |enuuy suoRdy Bunnquiuon

‘(g) seaneg panoidwi) jo abejuasiad pauueld |ejo] a2y} 0} 3t Buippe pue ‘abejusoiad e o} Jusonb ey} Buipaauod
‘(1) wels) aseq 4497 paalold ay Aq () saanppuadxg Bunynquiuon) pauueld |e1ol ayj Buipiap Aq pajelnojes st abejuadisd siy) ©

(g snid ‘| Aq papIAIp P) Jeeh [ooyos Bujwod ay} 10} s8d1A1ag aacidw Jo aseasau| o) abejuaslad pauueld o
‘uwIN|od saoIneg panoidwl) Jo abejusalad pauueld ay) Jo |ejo) ay; si sbejussiad sy ©

S991AI9g paaosdw) Jo abejuadiad pauueld |BJOL G e
"uwinjo2 (spun4 4497) suonoy Bunguiuos) 1oy sainjipuadxy pauue|d auy} JO |BJo} 34} St Juncwe siy) ©

(spund 3497) seamyipuadxg BunnqLiuo) pauue|d |ejoL ‘p e
alqet suonay Bunnquiuo)

"M0|3q papiaoid aie pasn suone|nd|ed pue Ajjeuonosuny
ay} ‘Aouasedsuel) 104 "s|qe] suooy Bunnguiuco ay) pue ‘s|qe| Aewwng ajepdn ([enuuy ay) ‘a|qe] Aiu3 ejeq ay} ui papiaoid uoiewoju)
ay) uo paseq s||99 pue spjay Jo uoeindod-aid se yons Ajjeuoiouny apnoul $3jge UCOY Y} ‘S]] JO HoYa Jo uoned)dnp ay) aonpai 0}

sajqe| uoIndy 8y} ul suonein|e)

JBaA 4v97 1usung ay) ul sjuapnis |je o} papinoid
$221A19S 3y} 0} pasedwoo se paaosdw 10 pasealoul aqg isnw spdnd pajesndnpun 10} $221M3S Yoiym Aq abejuadiad ay) st siy] "Jeah soud
ay} woly abejuaniad — 1anofiier 4497 aul snid ‘(g)(e)a6#S | U0NAaS M S 03 Juensind (g) sjuels) uoieIIUSIUCY) Jo/pue |ejuaws|ddng
4497 [enjoy pajewns3 ay) pue (g) Juels) aseq 4407 [emoy pajewnsg ay) Jo sjunowe ay) uo paseq pajejnojes st abejusaiad

ay] ‘paialua aq jou |im abejusalad siy]| dea [00YIS JUALINY AY) 10} S9dIAIeg anosdw) Jo asealou| o) abejuasiad |Bjo) ‘0L o

"SUOIB|NJJBD JUIWBPRUS 4477 10} ‘9jqeandde se ‘(sjooyds Jspeyd pue Sjou)sIp |00Yos 104) Z0'8ECTY

pue (S309D 104} $26Z SUOIDaS HT 998 "SI 10} JuelS) suoiesad Alunos pue ‘soulsIp jooyos 1o} saduemolie jabie ] Aianooay
JILWLIOU0YT pUB S|00UIS jjBewS AIBSS09N B} SapN|aul 0s|e 4D 9yl 4o sasodind 10} Juels) sseg 4477 9yl jeuy} a)oN (8){(e)96tS|
uonoas M~ 6 o) uensind ‘weisboid uoneupodsuel | ouUISIg jooYos |1e 'S oY) pue ‘welboid uoijepodsuel | [00YDS-0}-aUWI0H JaWICT Y}



1240 02 abed US| |00yoS Alejuawa)g uoiun UBWyoo|g 10} Ueld AUIIGBIUNcdY pue joAjue) [0 92-5202

(6 Aq A|di3jnw pue g wWods || 30BIIgNS) JaAcALIED) 4407 JUnouly Jejjoq — JaAa0huie) 44971 2L »

"(g) seaimuag panosdw Jo abejuaniad BNy pajewsy |ejo] ay) Buippe pue abejusalad e o} Jusyjonb ay) Buipaauod
uay} ‘(6) Buipun4 4407 au Aq papialp (2) suooy Bungquiuog Joj sainyipuadx3 [en)oy pajewns3 [ejo] auyy st abejuadiad siyy ©

(g snid ‘g Aq papialp 2) sedialag paaocadul) Jo paseasdu| jo aiejuadiad [enjoy pajewysy "Ll e

-1eak Joud ay) woy abejuadiag — 1an0huer 4497 ay snid () Juels) aseg 44907
jenjay payewns3 ayl Aq papiaip (9) sluelS) uonesuasuos) Jospue [ejuawslddng 4407 |enjoy pajewys3 ay) st abejusasad siyy o

(% 4on0Auien snid g Aq papiAlp 9) JEaA |0OYIS Jualing 3y) J0) Sa31A19G anoldwy 10 asealou| o) abejuaalad [ejo] 0L o
a|qe] JoAchuie) 4497

"(g) saoinag panosdw)
jo abejuaniad (enjoy pajewlsd |elo] ay) wodj pajoesgns (G) sadineg panoldwi jo abejusdlad pauue|d |ejo) 3y} sl junowe siy] ©

(8 woyy g 1oRNgNG) S9vIAIBS parcidul Jo abejuadlad [ENjay pPajewI}ST puke pauue|d Usam)og aoualaylq o
‘uwIn|og $a91n8g pancidwy Jo abejuasiad [BNIOY pajewns ay) Jo |Bjo sy S junowe siy| ©

(¢,) seoinleg paaciduw) Jo abejuadiad [enjoy pajewysy |ejol g o
"ULINJ0D $821AJ9G panoidwl Jo abejuadiad pauue|d ay) JO |BJo) ) 1 JUNOWE SIy| ©

{9%) sed1na8g parosdw) Jo abejuassad pauue|d |BJOL G

‘(¥) sasnyipuadx3 Buingquyuo)d
pauue|d |ejo 3y} woy pajoenqgns (/) suonoy Bunnquiuoe) Joy sainjipuadx3 [enjoy pajewsy (8o ay) st junowe siy) ©

(p woyy 2 yorA)qNG) suoay Bunnquiuos 1o sainjipuadxy jenjay pajew|isg pue pauue|d Uaamjag aoualagiq e
"(spun4 4497) suondy Bunnquauo Joj sainyipuadx3 |enjdy pajewisy auy) Jo |ejo} su) sl junowe siyy ©
suonoy bunngquuos o sainjipuadx3 jenjoy pajewysy |ej0] L e
"(spun4 4497) suonoy Bunnquiuoy) o} sainjipuadxg pauue|d sJeaA }SeT ay) Jo |ejo) ay) sl junowe s|yj| ©
(spund 4497) saunyipuadx3 Bunnqujuo) pauueld |ejoL 'y e

*1e2A |00Y0S JUBLIND 3y} Ul SJUSpN)s pajeddnpun JO UOHEIUB2UOS Pue Jagquinu
ay} uo pa~rq aai@dal A[ENJOE |IM )i SSJBWINSD YT 8y} S)ueib uonesy’ - ~uod pue [ejuawsalddns 4497 o JUNOLWE [e}o} BY} SI SIY L

- S _—



L2 o |2 abed JPUISIq (002G AlRJUSLWIS|T UOIUM UBWIYI0IY 10} UBld ANIGRIUN0IDY PUB [0U0Y) (B0 §Z-S202

¥20Z JoqUIanoN
uonesnpd jo Juawpedaq eiuioN e

‘(8) Buipun4 44907 a43 Aq (z}) Jenohuen 4497 ayy Buipiaip Aq pajenojen s1 abejuasiad ayy 1eak 4y Buiwoo
3y} ojul Jaao Aured 1snuwl 3 8yl 1ey) saoiaes anosdw Jo aseasou| o) abejuasiad ayy jo uoipod Jowun ay; s1 ebejusssed siy| ©

(6 Aq papIAIp Z1) aBejuadiad — 1aA0kueD 4407 °EL o

“1eaA Buiwoo ay} o} J19A0 palled aq 0} paanbal s Jey) spuny 4497 JO JUNOWE 3y} S1 Junowe siy| ‘(g) Juess) aseg
4497 |emoy payewns3 ay) Aq BuiAldiyjnw uayy pue (01) sedines pancsdw) Jo pasealou| Jo abejuadiad |enjoy pajewnsy ayj woy
(1 1) s@ainueg anoidw) Jo aseasou| 0) abejuaoiad [Enoy pajewnsy ay) Sugoenqgns Aq pajejnoled si spun) 4497 JO Junowe ay|

"'spuny 4497 19a0 Auled o} palinbal s1 y37 au) (01) s991neS anoldwl| 10 9sealou)
0} oF "'180194 |BNOY pajewsy ay) uey) ssa| si (| 1) seoiuag pe - ~dw| Jo pasealou| Jo abejusdlad (enjoy pajewiisy ayj i






;-ﬂ‘lu.

Blochman Union School District
Benjamin Foxen School * 4949 Foxen Canyon Road
Santa Maria, CA 93454 * (805) 937-1148

BOARD OF TRUSTEES MINUTES
Tuesday, April 8, 2025
Library
5:30 p.m. — Regular Meeting

A regular meeting of the Board of Education of the Blochman Union School District was held at the
Benjamin Foxen Elementary School Library on April 8, 2025.

Members present: Shannon Clay, Daniella Pearce, Jeania Reasner, and Kelly Salas-Ernst. Absent:
Thomas Gibbons.

L PUBLIC SESSION: Mrs. Clay called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m., led the flag salute,
and welcomed the family and friends of Peggy Salas for the Peggy Salas Memorial Building
dedication. Doug Brown, Shannon Clay, Trisha Vais (via a written statement), and several

members of the family spoke about the powerful, positive impact Peggy had on this school and
the community.

II. Reports
A. Charter School Reports
i. Family Partnership Charter School — A written report is attached to the end of
these minutes.

ii. Trivinm Charter Schools - Trivium is going well and we are gearing for state
testing which will start right after Spring Break. In the past, we have opted to
spread the testing over many weeks; however, we are going to try and use a more
condensed schedule this year and see how that works for our students. For next
year we currently have 1107 students who have accepted a spot at Trivium and
another 88 students still on the waiting list. These numbers will change as the last
many years have proven; however, | am hopeful we will begin the next school year
with more than 1000 students. As you know, we cover History and Science on the
ACE days for all students. We currently offer remote classes for English and Math
for 4th grade and older. In this upcoming school year, we will be offering Math and
English classes remotely for all grade levels. We think this addition will help our
families and students who need or want more support. Families will still have the
flexibility, at any grade level, to choose alternative courses or curriculum,

B. Teacher Reports - none

C. Principal’s Report — Current enrollment is 199. Tomorrow night is the Altrusa dinner
where Kailee Brown will be an award recipient. Thursday is the end of year basketball
celebration. April 17 is the Talent Show. Doors open at 5:30 at which time a snack bar is
available. The show starts at 6:00 p.m. Spring Break is April 18 — 25. The week of May 5 -
9 is Teacher Appreciation Week. We will be honoring all staff during this week.

III. ITEMS SCHEDULED FOR INFORMATION
A. Facilities

L 1 L
April 8, 2025 Regular Meeting Board Minutes



=y

i. General maintenance Routine, regular maintenance is being performed. We
are planning to paint a mural on the front of the library building, promoting

self-esteem and school connectedness.

IV. ITEMS SCHEDULED FOR DISCUSSION

A. 2025/2026 budget and LCAP public hearing and adoption dates — the board agreed

with the following schedule:
i. June 10, 2025 regular meeting at 5:30 p.m.
ii. June 12, 2025 special meeting at 5:00 p.m.

B. LCAP - The public is invited to make comments and suggestions. There were no

comments or suggestions.

V. CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS

A. Approval of Minutes
i. Minutes of March 11, 2025 Regular Meeting

*** IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT the Board of Education approve the Minutes as presented:

MOVED: Jeania Reasner SECOND: Daniella Pearce
YOTE:

Shannon Clay: Aye Jeania Reasner: Aye

Daniella Pearce: Aye Kelly Salas-Ernst: Aye

Thomas Gibbons;  Absent

B. Approval of Monthly Warrants — March, 2025

i. Payroll $239,610.02
ii. Commercial Warrants $ 512,464.84
jiii. Revolving Fund 3 0.00
TOTAL $ 752,074.86
*#% IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT the Board of Education approve the Warrants as
presented:
MOVED: Kelly Salas-Ernst SECOND: Jeania Reasner
VOTE:
Shannon Clay: Aye Jeania Reasner: Aye
Daniella Pearce: Aye Kelly Salas-Ernst: Aye

Thomas Gibbons:

Absent

C. Approval of the 2024/2025 Second Interim Report for Family Partnership Charter
School:

*%% [T IS RECOMMENDED THAT the Board of Education approve Family Partnership
Charter School’s 2024/2025 Second Interim Report as presented:

~2 o~

April 8, 2025 Regular Meeting Board Minutes



MOVED:

VOTE:

Shannon Clay:
Daniella Pearce:
Thomas Gibbons:

Kelly Salas-Ernst SECOND: Daniella Pearce
Aye Jeania Reasner: Aye
Aye Kelly Salas-Ernst: Aye

Absent

D. Approval of the following 2024/2025 Trivium Charter School Reports:

i.

ii.

iii.

Trivium Charter School
a. 2024/2025 Second Interim Report
b. 2024/2025 LCAP Mid-Year Update
Trivium Charter School: Adventure
a. 2024/2025 Second Interim Report
b. 2024/2025 LCAP Mid-Year Update
Trivium Charter School: Voyage
a. 2024/2025 Second Interim Report
b. 2024/2025 LCAP Mid-Year Update

**% T IS RECOMMENDED THAT the Board of Education approve the Trivinm 2024/2025
reports as presented:

MOVED:

VYOTE:

Shannon Clay:
Daniella Pearce:
Thomas Gibbons:

Jeania Reasner SECOND: Kelly Salas-Ernst
Aye Jeania Reasner: Aye

Abstain Kelly Salas-Ernst: Aye

Absent

V1. ITEMS SCHEDULED FOR ACTION

A. Approval of the Benjamin Foxen Elementary School March 2025 Attendance Report.

**% IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT the Board of Education approve the Benjamin Foxen
Elementary School March 2025 Attendance Report as presented:

MOVED:

VYOTE:

Shannon Clay:
Daniella Pearce:
Thomas Gibbons:

Daniella Pearce SECOND: Jeania Reasner
Aye Jeania Reasner: Aye
Aye Kelly Salas-Ernst: Aye

Absent

B. Approval of First Quarter 2025 Williams Report

**% IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT the Board of Education approve the First Quarter 2025
Williams Report as presented:

MOVED: Daniella Pearce SECOND: Kelly Salas-Ernst
VOTE:
Shannon Clay; Aye Jeania Reasner: Aye
Daniella Pearce: Aye Kelly Salas-Ernst: Aye
Thomas Gibbons:  Absent
~ 3~

April 8, 2025 Regular Meeting Board Minutes



C. Approval of Blochman Union School District’s 2024/2025 P-2 Attendance Report:

**% [T IS RECOMMENDED THAT the Board of Education take action to approve Blochman
Union School District’s 2024/2025 P-2 Attendance Report as presented:

MOVED: Kelly Salas-Ernst SECOND: Daniella Pearce
VOTE:

Shannon Clay: Aye Jeania Reasner: Aye

Daniella Pearce: Aye Kelly Salas-Ernst: Aye

Thomas Gibbons:  Absent

D. Approval of donations:
i. Jim Zepeda; $90.00; ASB 8" Grade

*** IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT the Board of Education take action to approve the
donations as presented:

MOVED: Daniella Pearce SECOND: Jeania Reasner
YOTE:

Shannon Clay: Aye Jeania Reasner: Aye

Daniella Pearce: Aye Kelly Salas-Ernst: Aye

Thomas Gibbons: Absent

E. Approval of inter-district transfers

**% [T IS RECOMMENDED THAT the Board of Education take action to approve the inter-
district transfers as presented:

MOVED: Daniella Pearce SECOND: Jeania Reasner
VOTE:

Shannon Clay: Aye Jeania Reasner: Aye

Daniella Pearce: Aye Kelly Salas-Ernst: Aye

Thomas Gibbons:  Absent

VII. PUBLIC COMMENTS - none

VIII. MISCELLANEOUS AGENDA ITEMS
A. Items Proposed for Future Action or Discussion - none
B. Blochman Union School District Board Member Items - none
C. Items not on the Agenda - none
D. Next Scheduled Board Meeting: May13, 2025; open session at 5:30 p.m.; Library.

IX. CLOSED SESSION: The board adjourned to closed session at 6:29 p.m., where they
may consider and may act on the following:

A. Certificated and Classified Personnel Actions

P~ 4 L d
April 8, 2025 Regular Meeting Board Minutes



i. The board will be asked to review and approve hiring, transfers, promotion,
evaluations, terminations, and resignations.

X. RECONVENE IN OPEN SESSION - The board reconvened in open session at 6:30 p.m.

A. Report of action taken during closed session — Mrs. Salas-Ernst reported that no
action was taken.

XIl. Adjourn

TIME: 6:31 p.m.

MOVED: Jeania Reasner SECOND: Daniella Pearce
VOTE:

Shannon Clay: Aye Jeania Reasner: Aye

Daniella Pearce: Aye Kelly Salas-Ernst: Aye

Thomas Gibbons:  Absent

~5 o~
April 8, 2025 Regular Meeting Board Minutes



April 2025 FPCS Report

Enrollment as of March 31 = 387

It was announced by CDE’s charter school committee FPCS is recommended for 100%
funding for the next four{4} years!

2025-26 Enroliment has started off strong with a high number of returning students and
solid interest for new centers.

WASC Mid Cycle Visit is on April 17, 2025 and will be virtual. We have an agenda filled

with instructional observations and focus groups of students, staff, and educational
partners.

MBM location has been given one more year’s lease; SMLC will be at the Orcutt Center.

March 6th, a virtual Family Education event with Ron Huxley, LMFT was held to share
strategies and ways to support students manage anxiety.

Field Trips continue to enrich FPCS students’ educational experience:
Fresno Chaffee Zoo, LA Museum of Natural History, Lompoc Tide Pools

i

The Morro Bay Center had an Art
Exhibition showcasing K-5 masterpieces.
Including a quilt sewn by 4th/5th grade
with fabrics from around the world.

Los Osos students made pizzas on pi day.







WdEE'L $202 2 AR (NY3JvHSZO0) Jajeus Aouen Joj pajelsusg JoU3sIQ 100YDS uoun uBwIY20|g - Z00

L jo | abed

AdvIs3 (sz0zI0E = @eQ Aed Buipu3 'sZ0z/Livp = aleq Aed Buine)s ‘Z = B10) Aq paseliy ‘Bi0 Ag padnoisy  UoiRs|es

-1 Z8ELL0ZL AVLOL
18N .27
SPIOH %93UD
12N aanebaN 1T'9s9'6LZ 1ZT989°682
HOV 18N [ened SUGRNOUILOT "g2'000'E0 §2°090'€9 Aunqer] puisig
z 2£'606'L D SUOHINP3Q £g'LOY'95 6¥'5L5'9L1 sbunwes ssorg
e SPPOT'TLL susedaq jpanq Aed BN zg'el1'02)
13N| | V1vad ONIONVIVE
HOV PIoA 1T S¥'ZZT56LL
S¥98YD [BoUeD ¥z S8°S82'81 ) sellIqer] Jopuaa
panssiay € 09°9€/ SHHIBYD) JOPUIA

§TOZ/0E/¥0 NIYY STOZ/0LIP0 BQ SS3I01d 40 ANSSIAYadUR) _ _ SZOZ/OLIPO MW SZOZ/OLIVO 1eq Aed Joj Aewnung JOPUSA

S¥'ZTS'6LL 8L°090°¢9 L9°19¥°9S §Iviol
Zrocs'ae 09°¥6LSL ZELYETL vLcLENnsS reregzLL £2 69'925'91) 14 IvLioL
£0'B9S'LS ¥8'8L9 8819 saxe)
8¢ 6EV'SR 0S'LFL'2L 0s'IrL'eL sbuieg Jauung
818l arigL o514 TTR08'eE ol Z1'9L2'ls Ll paysse|D
09'v6L'S1L Q9'¥62'S1 sjysuag 2L95¢E'6L £l LE'66L'8LL 81 PRIBYUSY
8065040 elqng €101 sakojdwg askojdwuz SNOILLONA3Aa _ _mugo_o_Ew ajeutad adAj uosiad SONINYY3
S0°Z0¥'8S 6€°2£9°8¢ 99'¥3L'6L Iviolans 6¥'SL5'9LL IvioL
ZL'sss 21’858 o8Iy
06'9vE'y GLe09 SLERL'E slysuag
0e8'5ZL'8l 09'.8%'S £9'946' 2670161 29/84ls 6961} spuadng
S0vLL'GL L0zeT'ee LELOF'YL 0209’2 09/84lS 05°61 awsAQ
80°€20'29 veeeL'lz EPLLLGL L6'196'Y 29/ 84y3d 95ZI'L Snosue|RasIy
2Z°L68'LL Z0'LS0'y 1Z8LE'E 19°2€8 S43d ¥5'EC'ELL fed aseg
sess0u9 3qng |ejor Jafojdwz safojdwy mzoFu:omu_ _8._25_.._3 awoIu| dnoss Aq SONINYVI
86°¢82'Z¢ 62°829'8 64'554'sT Iviolans 6¥°915°'9L1 aviolL
TTLIT'TLL 606551 60655’} dwoy SIDPOM
2TLLT'TLL Sl'9g 5198 Ins
TTLITTLL 86'G66'Y 6626V 66°L60'2 UedIpaW
SSLVE'TL FANELY: 95’58k a5'sar'y Aunoag |epog
£8°018'9G} LLUEYT LLSPE'Y Buipiouyim RIS
£8'01L8'951 £6°225'CL £6'425°CL BuIpIoYUIAA (BI3P3 67545941 Jejnbay
sassoun Yasfqng |0l Jafojdwy aaAopdw3 mmx<._._ _ﬂ:o._.ans__.i awodu) apog sbutuseg Aq SONINHYI

6ip Aq Aeununs Jjoiieg

SZ0Z/0/v0 UBnolyy 5ZoZ/0L/v0 e Aed

el0Aed




ReqPay12a

Checks Dated 04/01/2025 through 04/30/2025

Board Report

Check Check Pay to the Order of Expensed Check
Number Date Fund-Object Amount Amount
01-839503 04/07/2025 Kraus, Janet 01-4300 31.09
01-839504 04/07/2025 805 Dairy Distributing LLC 13-4710 349.50
01-839505 04/07/2025 Advanced Wireless 01-5910 287.54
01-839506 04/07/2025 Amazon Capital Services 01-4300 61.20
01-839507 04/07/2025 American Star Tours 01-5800 25,589.60
01-839508 04/Q7/2025 Best, Best & Krieger LLP 01-5830 364.10
01-839509 04/07/2025 California Dept. Of Education 13-4710 183.30
01-839510 04/07/2025 Church Paper 01-4300 208.18
Unpaid Tax 13.79- 194.39
01-839511 04/07/2025 Coast Networx, Inc. 01-5800 50,00
01-839512 04/07/2025 Edna's Bakery 134710 37.40
01-839513 04/07/2025 Farm Supply Company 01-4300 33517
01-839514 04/07/2025 Marlin Leasing Corp. 01-7439 592.69
01-839515 04/07/2025 Mission Linen Supply Inc. 01-4300 116.88
01-839516 04/07/2025 Procare Janitorial Supply 01-4300 757.55
01-839517 04/07/2025 Sisc Il Insurance 67-5450 20,824.70
01-839518 04/07/2025 Smith's Alarms & Elect Inc. 01-5800 265.06
01-839519 04/07/2025 Valley Fresh Produce 13-4710 369.00
01-839520 04/07/2025 Viking Mechanical Refr 13-5800 505.00
01-840647 04/14/2025 805 Dairy Distributing LLC 13-4710 219.00
01-840648 04/14/2025 ALD TELECOM 01-5810 12.16
01-840649 04/14/2025 Amazon Capital Services 014300 157.50
13-4300 10.81 166.31
01-B40650 04/14/2025 Culligan San Paso 01-4300 247.80
01-840651 04/14/2025 Edna's Bakery 13-4710 223.60
01-840652 04/14/2025 Go To Communications, Inc. 01-5910 523.25
01-840653 04/14/2025 Jordanos Food Service Division 01-4300 75.93
13-4300 1,356.24
134710 2,038.76 3,470.93
01-840654 04/14/2025 Mission Linen Supply Inc. 01-4300 116.88
01-840655 04/14/2025 Pacific Gas & Electric 01-5520 441.86
01-840656 04/14/2025 Procare Janitorial Supply 01-4300 101.25
01-840857 04/14/2025 School Spedialty, LLC 01-43C0 254,61
01-840656 04/14/2025 US OMNI & TSACG Compliance 01-5800 50.00
01-840859 04/14/2025 Valtey Fresh Produce 13-4710 461.90
01-841949 04/21/2025 Dekorte, Holly J 01-4300 10.76
01-841950 04/21/2025 805 Dairy Distributing LLC 134710 394.50
01-841951 04/21/2025 Blochman Union School District 01-5200 50.00
01-841952 04/21/2025 Depariment Of Justice 01-5800 96.00
01-841953 04/21/2025 Gold Star Foods, Inc. 01-4300 388.74
13-4710 277.98 666.72
01-841954 04/21/2025 Golden State Water Company 01-5530 447.77
01-841955 04/21/2025 MarBorg [ndustries 01-5570 1,343.34
01-841956 04/21/2025 Mission Linen Supply Inc. 01-4300 355.62
01-841957 04/21/2025 Nancy B Shafer, CPA 01-5800 4,217.50
01-841958 04/21/2025 O'Connor Pest Control 01-5800 307.00

T}l-e-preoeding- Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization
of the Board of Trustees. It is recommended that the preceding Checks be approved.

002 - Blochman Union School District

ESCAPE
Page 1 0f 2

Generated for Nancy Shafer (02SHAFERN), May 2 2025 1:32PM



ReqPay12a

Checks Dated 04/01/2025 through 04/30/2025

Board Report

Check Check Pay to the Order of Expensed Check
Number Date Fund-Object Amount Amount
01-841959 04/21/2025 SoCalGas 01-5510 812,11
01-841960 04/21/2025 Staples 01-4300 140.85
01-841961 04/21/2025 Trivium Charter School 01-8096 95,046.00
01-841962 04/21/2025 US Bank Corporate Payments 01-4300 554.27
01-5200 304.51
01-5800 1,176.75
01-5910 1,417.25
01-9505 1,883.83
13-4300 738.78
13-4400 21345
134710 483.89 6,772.73
01-841963 04/21/2026 Valley Fresh Produce 134710 335.90
01-842933 04/28/2025 Edna's Bakery 13-4710 129.25
01-842934 04/28/2025 FAMILY PARTNERSIP CHARTER 01-8096 33,204.00
01-842935 04/28/2025 HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES 01-4300 310.44
01-842936 04/28/2025 Jordanos Food Sefvice Division 01-4300 53.41
13-4300 185.76
13-4710 2.048.02 2,287.19
01-842937 04/28/2025 Mission Linen Supply Inc. 01-4300 116.88
01-842938 04/28/2025 Pacific Gas & Electric 01-5520 252.97
01-842939 04/28/2025 Santa Barbara Co Ed/Communicat 01-4300 56.25
ions
01-842940 04/28/2025 Trivium Charter School 01-8096 104,132.00
01-842941 04/28/2025 Valley Fresh Produce 134710 87.20
Total Number of Checks 55 308,880.70
Fund Recap
Fund Description Check Count Expensed Amount
01 General Fund 42 277,420.55
13 Cafeteria Spec Rev Fund 17 10,649.24
67 Self-Insurance Fund 1 1 20,824.70
Total Number of Checks 55 308,894.49
Less Unpaid Tax Liability 13.79-
Net (Check Amount) 308,880.70

The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization
of the Board of Trustees. It is recommended that the preceding Checks be approved.

ESCAPE
Page 2 of 2

002 - Blochman Union School District

Generated for Nancy Shafer (02SHAFERN), May 2 2025 1:32PM



| abeg

0005 00°05 V1oL
0005 00'08 BUE BJUES JO [BUONEWIBIU| BSTUYY [BJ0L
000§ 000§ puny Buinosay Snoaue||sosIy 69ZL  SZ0Z/G0MD yo3yD
EUBN BJUES JO |[EUONEWIIIY] esna|y
souejeg wnowy nds e Junoooy owow wny aeq odAl
§Z0Z judy siseg |ens2oy

[1eyaq Jopuap Aq sasuadxy
aNNd ONIATOAIY NYWHOO14

S’

-

STITOIS0
WNd 9¢°1






UONEIMISD MBIA

SUCN ‘uopEesNp3 Jo 8L AUnoD
NV B-9E: L1 SZ0Z/S1/p - LUMOIQP (DINS|] 100YI8
WY 1G:16:6 GZ0Z/S1iy - uabifias iyBisueng 191038)Q - [00Y9S JoueyD

UOHEWLIOJU| UOHESYIBD

WY G1:05°6 SZ0Z/SLiv 9je( UOREPIIEA 15€
vabibes Ag uogepjieA 15€7

WY 0Z 6v'6 SZ0Z/SLiv aleq paaeg jsen
wabibes Ag paaeg jse1

sjieleq

C azv %08
S ez ¥Rl
"PRIRNBS SHOR) € JO] UHIELLIO]N
_ e Lt 0} pesu im Anue erep Juanbasans :BION 18pJo [efegeydie
U] OB JRUOIHPPR YOS PUR Y YIRIL JO) XOG Sy} HIYD
‘Je uf pOIDNIOS STM (NITINHNI) SOA H 1SHIRY) [RUOROARSU)
T (41 91Bu)S} ON
S L8MoR} | nsuy odjint )R18da [0OYIS JSLITYD S| $200
Y {wormni) S3A
D Leden | nsU) B|dNW Neledo [GOYIS JeHRYD F|y) S80Q
a018346 a1 meg
snjelg Jopeyd
SSJON fewwing uoneso|iy vay vav sneys Jspey’
SIEBQ UCHEPljEA MBIA _
SBA UOREP|IEA €2 pessed
! sBujuiep Jo Jequiny
1] 104437 JO Jequiny
9 $PI0DEY JO JoquInN
UOHELLIOU| UONEPIIRA
QoLe3Le al =ea
£940 JaqunpN Japeys
€LLLLL0TLIEI T 8poJ SUY
Japeyd diysieuped ey |1ooyag
ejequeg ejueg funon

1ooues Jeusy)) ssuBpueNY / saLRYT diysiauped Awed

Z-d 5T-¥20T ‘poued Buodsy ‘Z-d 62-¥202 8194 Buisseoosd

uoneuuou Aiguz
UOIBLUIOU} Pi023Y

JOOUIS I8Py SOUBPUARY

1 100y0g Jeleyd J Ajug eleq / eweod

(DQVd) uond3|j0) eleq Juawuoipioddy [edulid



U8

U9

agan

8Ly

LY

v

BLy

Fa )

vy

v

a5y

G-y

5v

qe-y

L

az-y

pEY

v

ER T

qweL

DpeiL

g3oelL

R pper) sjbus

“lenuuy

1@ SI00Y9S Jalieya (I 20} peuinbey Jess |eosy ey} Buunp uogesado
Pasead [00YIs )t 2+d PUE |-d I8 pasnbal Aug “uepesedy jo sheq

ER LT

axel

el

a¥el

o yors pped) eibus

pesea) uopanysu) Jo voneiedg (AAALppuw) mwg

{£-v supy o) vo srow) ON

(g~ eur o) uo eaow) SIA

Lausd jEasy Jueund

np Bupnp uopsNsY) J0 uopeIedo 8SRED |0OYYS JELIRYS SY) PIT

Jpell

Qe

0peiL

9pell

v eIl abug

peduRUIoY uoponnsuy| (AAALPRAUW) #1eg

(~v sufT 0} uo acw) OM

(v oup 03 vo sAOW) SIA

uoneiado J0 JR0A 1RILY B3 UL [OOYIS JEJRYD SIY) §]

ER T

Q¥oel)

Dpely



00'0 00'0 00°0 000 000
_ |
000 | ooo 00'0 000 000
joo'o | oo 00°0 000 000
[Lovee | sezo1 9Z'vs oLoL ¥8'98
ooo | [oo0 | looo | jeoo 000
oo0 | ooo 000 000 000
[oo0 | oo 000 000 000
000 | o000 000 000 000
000 | o0o 000 00'0 000
oL 216 sepergy L sepeuD of SOpRID ML
V 5L 21BuIs

oQC
:

Joppue {{zNe)99e95 O3] 00U URLEIIASUDN
L] 'GNAUON - UOHEINPS [E106dS JBB) PEPUBIXT

YOV POSEG-WO0ISSRIUON
SUOHNHISU| SUBIPPYSD) PASUSII - SIOOUDS

ot ueuElsasuoN "aanduon Jospue [{ZXE)g9Ees 23)
SIO0YOS el 10N 'ognduol - voneonp3 jeeds
0 (§21 1651M1Q) YW PESEG-LIOOISSBOUON
{eHalsreas D3] vonesnpy |eeds seay p 3
Lo VOV POSEQUOOISSRRUON ‘_u_:wox
YAY POSEG-WOoOISSBIDUON
{t-g ybranp

sg

18 J0 WNS) ¥3e3 | 10} S{e16) YOV PESEHUOOIESE)

{521 103MQ) YOV PISRG-WORISSED SUOIMYSY)
SUBIIYT PESUSON - SOOUIS UBUEIDESUON “djqnduc
sopue [{1)(e)gaEas 93] SOoYRS vBLEResUON
‘qnAduoN - UONEDNP3 (B1edg JeeA pepuslg

vay peseq
“UO0ISSE)D SUOMASU] UBIPIYD) PESUEdN - SIo0UdS
UBURIISSUON ‘MNiGRduo sopue (2 Xe)aaees D3]
SIOOUIS UBLESSUON "Hiqnduoyy - UONEDNDP [BReds

(521 J0SIND) YOV Pesequonsse|

&8 [tealsyeas D3) voneanp3 jeraeds Jeos pepuaixsy

-8 YOV PISEq-WOMSSE]) enbay
YAV pesRqwooIsse|)

¥0R1] |RUCTONRSUE
"qey, uGEIONY YOV 4l 8161
0s(@ 150w (1)509,F UORISS D3I O wensind uoneanpa
10 PUEOE BIEIS Syl AQ pancsdde SIeleD PUe §'500Lp

23 0) juensind PAZUCING SIOpBLE SPIMAUNDD

5

ybrauy z spucoas 0} Bunebineu £q 3 °Q ' 'G SH0BIL
20 ¥y wodes pue (G Jo | prosad) v M LHL sbuig
Uny #0841 IO} Y Hodel $xOTg [eutiianis sidnw
Buneuado S)00YS J0peyD) "PI00RI W ML BIbws
U Ul VY |18 Boday Slooyas Jopewd el siburg

vayv pepodey
G 10 | ploday

vav

uonEUWO?
PeSeq-LIOTISSEPUON
PISEQUUOISSELD

uonoNAsY| Jo AL B Bje3pu|

-



fooo | o000 00'0 000 00'0
000 | ooo 00°0 000 000
000 | ooo 000 00°0 000
000 | [ooo | [oo0 | tooo | [oo0
[oo0 | [ooo | {000 | looo | o00
[oo0 | [ooo | fooo | [oo0 | ooo
R ! [tezer | lozvs | lozoz | [reroe
{000 b looo i {ooo | loco | [ooo
000 000 000 000 00°0
_ | | | | | | | |

|ooo | fooo | fooo | oo | [oo0
[L2o2e | 16201 | Jozs | [ozoz | [reoe
[1evee | 16201 | lozs | locoz | [re9e

3

$3

3

€3

23

5-a

Q

-G

-2

funesado sjooyos Japey?) 'pIOdE ¥ WX LMEL Bug
8y} ul YOV [Ie Bodas Sj00yds JeueyR Xory Jbuig

vy peuodey

S Jo  piodey

vav
3 Ul papnpu
‘g'sr 1S pue {qlgZ1oLr 53 o wensind ‘Bujpuny
10) e1qiBe 1ou wOw ApriS wepuadapu) peseg esinag

S0 VI PAPAPUL S'6PLLS O3
o) wensnd 'yQgy APnig Juapuadapu) paseg s5IN0)

§-0 Ut pepniou
10U pue §'5hZ LG PUE (Q)5Z19LY O3 of Iwensund
Bupury 103 2By 1ou y(ly PaSEQ-UOOISSeRUON

Yav ayo

(z-3 pue |-3 Jo wng) (2)0008F D3 01 Wensund
uepebiapury [RUOqISURL) L) SIUBPNIS J0) YOV IEI0L

{AM0

VOV RS S04 "UWNOD §-HHL) $-D BUIY Ul PepnpUl
{2)0008Y 03 01 wensnd veueBispury [EUORISURLL
Ut SILSPNIS 10} VOV PESEQ-LIOCUSSEIT-LON

(AuO vQV 188y, 1s11d uwnoD XML -8
8up ul papnipul (2)0008Y D3 0) luensind usleiapuny]
[EUOHISURIE W1 STUSPNIS 103 YO POSEQ-WO0ISSEID

Aepying yis

JOL) (U JESA [O04IS WY JO PUD Y} PUE PUg BUNP
ueamjeq § Bujwing susprys 10} YAY 8PN[IXT seek

Jooyas s Jo Aep 1say oy Buluu|Baq ygv mimisust
Aew pug sunp pue pug Jequieides usemoq

S WM oM Kjuo wek |00ydS STHZOZ

vay vourBiapuny [Ruonisurl]
{#~0 ubneuyl 1-Q jo wng) Y11 JOj SIEI0L vaY

{0 + v-8) vav (521 sosq) suognnsuy

SUBIPIYD PISUNT - SIOOYIS UBLEIDBSUON “JIGNOUON
1opue [(2Nelg9c9s D3] SICOURS UBLEIDISUON
'aqnduop - uoneanps [epads JeaA PopLSIXT |I0L

(g-0+ £-8) vav

SUOAMASY] URIPRYD) POSUST - SIO0UDS UBLIEDISUON
‘aljanduon Jojpue [(2){e)eoeas 03) sicouss
UBLIEIOBSUON "IGNduoN - UOREINPT jerdadg [0l

(2-2 + 2-8) {62} Josmq) vQv lig)
(a)5p£9S D3] voneanp |eads JBBA PRPUBINT [BI0L

(10 + 1-8) vay Jainboy 1210,

%IeJ) 10} S|10), YOV

{~D ybnong |
-3 0 WING) ¥R 30} SIEI0) YW PASEG-LIOCISSBRUON

{621 JOSINQ} YOW POSEGHLOOISSBIIUCH SUORNINSY)
SUBIPIYD) PASUSAIT - SICOYRS LeURIDaSI~ ‘Dgriduon

s’



[oo0 | looo | [ooo | |ooo | looo |
oo'o | [ooo | looo | [ooe | (000 | ea
looo | [oo0 | [ovo | looo | looo | zo
fooo | |ooo | [ooo | |ooo | [ooo | o
oo-o | fooo | fooro | [ooo | looo | so
[oo0 | 000 000 000 000 o
{000 | o000 000 000 000 &0
[oo0 [ 000 000 00'0 00'0 zo
ooo 000 00°0 00°0 000 =
{o0°0 | |ooo | fooo | [ooo | [ooo o8
{ooo | ooo 000 000 000 8
loo'0 | oo0 00°0 00°0 00'0 ¢
oo"o | 000 00°0 000 00'0 8
[oo'o | 000 000 00°0 00°0 v

=100 T1-5 sepes 8- SepRID ¥ SIPRID ML

ta oeaL
S S’

1opue [(£Xe)}ogees D3] sIooyds ueueRasuoN
‘omgnducy - uoNEdNP] [B1DedS JEBA pAPUSIXT IRI0L

(€0 + £-a) vay

SUGIIMISU| UBIPRYD) PESUSIN - SI00MOS UBLERIDSUON
‘angnduon sorpue [(He)estos 93] sieoucs
UBLEISSUON '3GRAUON - UDEINDT [€12adS Jej0)

(2-0 + Z-8) {541 JoswnQ) vQv [(g)
(QsEas D3] voneanp3 (eneds Jes), papueixg 1oL

{1-0 + 1-8) vQw 1epnBey |eoy

¥3R1j Joy S|€0L VOV

{p-2 ubnosp |
-0 Jo WNg) KoeL| 0} SIBIOL VY POSEQ-LOMSSRIDUCN

{541 10810} YOV POSEG-UGOISSERLON SUCHNSY|
SUBIPYIYZ) PRSUBOI - SIOOUTS UBLIZIOBSUON "IIqnduoN
sopue [(2{e)egees D3] SI0040S UeLERESUON
“2{laNDUON - UOREINP3 |eedg Jee Papuelxy

YV PESEQ-OGISSERUON

SUOHNIISU] SUSIPIIYZ) PESUSDTT - SIO0USS
ueueisasuoN “signduon Jopue [{zXe)optes 03]
SI00U0G UBLIETSSSUON "ANGNAUON - LONEINPT [BrAdS

(5L} 10SINI(]) VO POSEQ-LIOCISSBUON
ligHalspeas D3] voneonp3 [ewads o papus

VY pIsEqrwocsseRuoN Jenbey

VAV PISEG-WIOGISSRIIUON

(-8 ybrang
16 JO WS} YoRIL JO) SIEI0L WY PASEg-uOQISSelD

(G521 J0SMQ) YOV PASEG-WOCISSE|D SUONIgSU
SURUP(ILD PISURTNT - SIOOYIS UBLBIIASUCN “alanduon
1opue [(1Xe)garss D3] SIoyDS UeNEISUON
‘spgnduop - UONEINDT [BPBdS JESA POPURIXT

Vv peseq

-WOCISSEID SUOKMNSU UIPIYD PASUILT - SI00IPS
ueyERRsSUON “agnduony sofpue [(2KElstes 23]
$)00Y3E UBLIBRASUON "HIGNGUON - UORENPT [e103dS

(G241 1051MQa) Ty PESEGUIC0ISSED
lelasrees 23] uoneanpa [epeds Jess papuag

wQY peseq-woossey Jenfioy
YOV PeseG-wooisse|)

ey |eUonINgsu)

"qeL UONERIY YQY o
osje jsnw {(}509Lp uonoes 03 0l Juensind uoneanp3
Jo preog ajleis 8y Aq pasosdde sialeyd pue 95094k
23 01 Wensind paZUCNE SIBEYD epmAuno]

k

yBnaiy Z spsooes o) Bupebieu £9 3'Q "D '8 spovaL
10} YOV Hodas puE (g Jo | I008s) v HHLHYL B1BuIS
U] ¥ HORLL J0) YO Modas syoen feuonan isul i

~



[oo-o | oo0 000 000 000
|oo0 | 000 000 00'0 000
L TG $epRI9) L sepeid g sepR1D €Ml
0 eiL
[oo0 | ooo 000 00'0 00'0
[oo0 | 000 00'0 000 000
[oo0 | o000 000 000 000
looo | looo | oo | [ooe | fooo
oo | looo | fooro | |ooo | oo0
oo | [oo0 | jooo | [ooo | ooo
fooro | fooo | fooo | [ooo | [ooo
e P

(641 JOSIIQ) VW PESEG-WODIESED

e [ighalspeas D3] uoleonp3 [e0eds JeRA PIpURXT

18 VOV Peseq-woossser) 18|ty
Yy PESTG-WOOISER])
A3 [BUORINASU)

‘el uenesolly YOy 8k} alejdwoo
os|e 13nur (Y)509. ¥ uogoeg 33 o) wensind uonesnp3
o pieog O1E1g W Ag peacsdde SIBLBYD Pue 9'500L

23 0} uensind PaZEOUINE SISHELD BpIMAINGY

k-

ybnouy Z spuaoen o) Gugebineu £ 3°'Q "0 "G $HoRIL
1) 9 Lodal pug ‘(g Jo L PRoa) ¥ LML eibuig
U) v H0RIL S0} YAY Bode S8 uoqonnsu sidiynw
Bunesado SI00UDS JBHRYYD ‘PIOSSI Y NI Blburs
ay) Ul QY [[e Bodas SJooyas Jeeyd yoes ebuls

VaV pepodey

§jog piodey
vav

3 Ut pepnpw
o3 FEPLLS Pu (9} ZL9LE DT 01 uensund “Buipun)
10} 24qiBije 10U YOV ApMIS Juspuadapu) paseg asNod

S-2) Ul pODNEDUL ‘GG LS D3

§3 oy wensind gy Apm wepusdapul peseq sainoD

G0 U1 pEPARAN
3 100 pug 9'5t2 LS pue (9)5°ZL9.p D3 of Juensind
Butpuny Jo; siqbiie 10U VY PESBA-WOMSSBRUON

vav o

(z-3 pue -3 jo wng) {3)0008F D3 o) Juensind

©3 oueBuepun) suoRrsuel) U SIUSPAIS 10 VOV 210,

(Ao

VAV JE3A 1S4 U €34 1) 6 U] Ul papnipul
(3)o008r D3 01 uensund uslefuapun jeuonisuel)
Ul SIUBPNIS 10} (T POSEC-UOOISSELD-UON

3

[AUC vV 04 1504 'UWNeD £WML) 58
1-3 S v papnpw (9)0008% 53 ol Juensind usuetuapuny
JeudiliSuel) Ul SIuSpMg JO) YOy POSEQUOCISSE]D)

AepuLIKt IS

21911 [BUN Jee [00YIS B4 JO PUD S4) PUR DuE aunf
usomIed § Bupung SWApNS Joj YAV NG esh

Jooyos ey Jo Aep ysuy ey BujuuiBeq wav sivseual
Amw puz sunp pur puz Jequieides usamsq

§ W) oM Suepn}s Ajuo Liesk [0oyos SE¥T0T

vy ueebaepury [euogisvel)
] {3 uBnong |-Q Jo WS} HOBJ) JO) SICL YAV

{#0 + -9} wav (521 1051010) SuCHMySLY
SUSIPIYS PASUSIN - SIOOUIS URLIRIRaSI~ e ‘JigrduoN

-



loo-o

| Jooo

| [ooo

| Jooo

(2)0008r D3 01 wensind uspefuapury RUONISURL)
_ 000 73 U SIUSPNIG JOf YV POSSG-UIOOISSEID-UON

{AUD VOV J28A 15414 MunieD) ¢ ML) §-8

000

i {ooo

| oo

| [o00

_ oge 13 eunu pepnpu) (3)0008F 53 01 Wensind uskebiepun

[BUCIISUBLL W1 SIUSRNIS 40} YOV PSRq-LIOCISSPI])

ARPUMIG WIS

SO [RUN JRBA [OOYDS B JO PUR B PUT PIg BuUNp
usameq 5 Bujwing KUSPNIS 10) YOV #PRIIT e
100419% a4} Jo ARp 33y sy BujuuiBeq vy #jeisust
Aew pug sunf put puz Jequindes ussmeq

5 Wng oym Uepns Ajuo iwek looyos §2-4Z02

way ueneBiopuny |euogisues)

{000

| looo

| Jooo

| [ooo

_ _co.o _ sa {7~ ybnouyl 1-Q 10 WNg) ydeuL 20} SereL YaY

{72 + +-8) vav (S4) 1081AIQ} SUOTNINSU

{000

| fooo

| fooo

| looo

. PHUZ PESUSON - SIOONTS UELEIRasUON “Jlqnducn
_ _oo 0 _ ra sopue [(KE)egEes D3] SIPCUDS UBUEDISUON

‘anducN - ucneInp3 [epeds Jeex PEPUSIXT 0L
(gD + c-g)vay

[o00

| jooo

| |ooo

| [oo0

_ _ 000 _ g SUOUNINSUL USIDID PESUEI - SIOUIS UBUEDBSUON
‘aqnduon sorpue (1 Ke)e0ees D3] sloouds

UBNEIDESUON 'SiandUoN - LOGEINP3 [B12RdS (BI0L

{000

| feoo

| looo

| |ooo

| oo | 2o (20 + 2-9) (644 Joswia) vav [(¢)
il (Q¥5TEDS D3 uopeanp]) (eads Jess, PapUR (BI04,

{00

| [oo0

| [oo0

| [ooo

; 000 _ -a {1-2 + 1-8) wQv seinbey jeey

WIRIY 10y SIEOL VOV

o070

| [oo0

| fooo

| fooo

_ _ . _ & {0 ubnoag L
%00 =0 JO WNS) ¥ORJL S0} S|EICY, WY PISEG-UIONSSERUON

000

| oo

000

| oo0

[

| o00

000

| 000

000

000

000

000

000

000

000

000

{521 HBIMQ) VOV PESEG-WOOISSEROUON SUCHIASUL

. SUIPIYD PISUINT - SICOYRS URLIEIIGSUON “Hqnducn
000 v2 Jojpue [(2N2)99£96 D3] SOUOS UBERBSUON
"2iInduc - uoIEaNp3 |esds Jesa papuaRa

YOV PISEG-LUOMUSSRRUON
o suonmasu| PIYD P M = SIoRs
000 &2 ueuEIesUON 'sanduon Jompue (L e)egres 03)

d d

SIS UBUBIIGSUON "DRANCUON - WKHIEINRT [BR8US

. 29 (521 JosinQ) YOV PESEQ-LLOCISSeDUON
Loy [ieMalsreas DI voneonp3 (R1EJS JeBA POpURIXT
000 0 V¥ POSEG-LUOOISSBIUON Jeinbay

YV POSEQ-WOOUSSE|JUON

{00

| [o00

| [oo0

| [oo0

_ _ . ca (r-g ySnoap
00°0 1-§ JO WNG) HOBIL JO} SIEIOL YTV PESEq-Wo0ISSEl)

fooo

| ooo0

loo'o

| ooo

000

000

000

000

(521 JoStQ) VOV PISEG-LICOISSELD) SUOHRISU}

" e SUBIPIIND PASLIBNN - SICOYIS UBLEIDASUON 'Dilanduon
L sopue {(22)99€95 D3] SIO0UOS UBUEDRSUON
"2INdUON - UONEINRT (BI0RdS JR9A Papusix]

vav peseq
N -WOOUSSBID SUOHNSY} USIPIIYY) PESUBIN - SI00YIS
000 o8 ugpepesuop ‘opgnduon somue [(2Xe)gsess 03]
$I00UIS URYEY: IN ‘2lgnducy - uogesnp3 jeneds

—




oo'0 | ooo 000 00'0 000
oo | oo 00°0 00'0 000
[ooo | fooo | looo | fooo | [oo0
{000 | oo 000 000 000
o0 | oo0 000 000 000
000 | ooo 00'0 000 000
000 | oo0 00'0 00°0 00'0
oL Z1-6 sepe1 8L sapRID 9-p SOpRID £AML
axoeul
o0 | o000 000 000 000
oo-o | 000 000 000 000
oo | 000 00°0 000 000
000 | fooo | fooo | [oo0 | [oo0
N —’

8

-8

o3

3

{521 205100} YOV PISEG-LOCISSEIOUON
leXa)sreas Dal voneanps [epeds Jees pepusixg

VAV peseq-WoossepuoN Jenbey

YOV POSEG-WO0ISSE|IUON

{t~g yBnang
1-8 O WG} xoRI{ 40} SIEI0L YOV PESEqrWOSSE)

(521 JoSINQ) YOV PESEQ-WONSSED SUORSY]
SUSIPIYY PESUSSH] - SIOOUSS UBLEIOBSUON “Handuon
soppue [(2)()goees D3] SI0oyds uenepasuoy
'HGNIUCH - UONEIND3) (eRedS Jeay pepusa

Qv peseq

~UOOISSEID SUCIMESU] BBIRIYD PesLeon - S00uDS
uguEpesuop “gnduoy Jopue [ Helggres 03)
$00UIS UBUEIRESUON "HGNdUON - uoREINDT feReds

{521 JOSINO) WO PRSEG-WOCISSEID
l(e)a)sreas D3] wonenpg feeds Jeap papuely

vQY pIseq-woossse senbey
VAY PIsRg-ucIssR)

¥oe feuotongsuy

*qey UORBIOHY WY S H31duod

os(e 1snw (N}5094F vonees 03 o1 wensund vonesnpy
o preog Blelg el Aq peacsdde sseUeYd PUR 9'S0DLY
23 01 wensund PIZUOLINE SIGLEYD SPIMAIINGD

i

yBnouy z spaoasy o) Bunebinew 4q 3 °Q "D g SyoesL
20 YT Lodas pue (O | Piooas) ¥ ME LMY, eifuis
Uy 'y ORI} JO) YOV Hodas SHORI |RUORdTULSY sidninw
BuiRsedo SJ00UIS JELIGYD 'PI0OB) Y M L) 8jBurs
oY1 W YV I Bodas $1004as JepEYS 3Rl sbuig

vQV pepedey

g Jo ¢ p1ooay
vav

3 Ul papnpul
'9'5pLLS pue {gig'Z192k D3 0 wensund ‘Buspury
) Bl 10U wav ApniS Judpuadapu) peseg esine)

SO Ul PAPNUL G GrLLS D3
of Juensind ‘yQy Aprig uapusdepu) peseg esine)

§-0 ul pepnpul
10U pue 9'SPLLS PUR (Q)5Z192p D3 Ol juensund
Gujpun) Jo} Q5118 10U YQY PRSRG-MIDMISSRUON

vay spo

{2-3 pue |-3 jo wns) (2)0008P D3 01 uensind
uapeBiapury (BUOHISUBLY U SWUSPMIS 10 YOV IB10L

(A0
WO B84 1544 “UWNIOD £-331L) §=D Sur 1+ D3pnpWL

s



000 | oo 00°0 00°0 000
oo’ [ 000 000 000 000
000 | ooo 00°0 000 00°0
|oo0 | [oo0 | [ooo | {000 | fooo
|oo0 | |oo0 | [ooo | Jooo | oo0
000 | [oo0 I looo | [oo0 | o000
000 | fooo | [oo0 | |ooo | [o00
|oo'0 | fooo | fooo | looo | [o00
[o0'0 | [ooo | Jooo | [oo0 | [oco
foo'o | fooo | fooo | [oo0 | looo
000 | oo | looo | [ooo | looo
000 [ Jooo | looo | [ooo | fooo
oo'0 | o000 00'0 00'0 00'0
oo'o | oo0 00°0 000 00°0

93

$3

3

€3

¢3

-3

£qQ

23a

g

50

€0

vav
3 Ul pepnpL
'9'Gr2 1S Pue (9)5°ZL9.p O3 of yuensind ‘Buipury
Jo} eibile jou YAy ApMIS Juepuedopu] peseg &N

§-0) W pOpNPUI 'S EPLLS D3
o) wensuind yOy Apms wepusdepu| peseg esin0g

§-0 u1 pephpu
jou pue 9'5PLLG pue {QYS°ZL9Lp 93 0f juensind
Bupuny 204 8161548 10U Yy PISEQ-WOMSSEIOUON

vav o

{z-3 pug 1-3 jo wing) (2)0008F D3 01 wensind
veueiiepUI [FUOLISURI] Uk SIUBPNLS 1O} YOV [RI0L

(Ao

VY JE8A 1544 ULNOD €=/ L) §- U] Ul pepnioul
(290009 23 01 wensind vepefsepuny [puonisuel)
Ul S1USPMIS 30} QY PESEQ-LLI0QISSEID-UON

(A0 wa Jeex 1814 "wwnoD) £-MML) §-8
Bur W papnpu (2)0008+ O3 01 ensind vapeiapun
JBUONISURS | Ul SIUBPIS SO} VY POSEG 19

ARPYLIG YIS

A1eY) |RUR JERA OIS BUL JO PUS B PUR PUE SuNP
yaq 5 Buy PMS 10} YOV epnox3 uesk
ooyds gy jo Aep 351y ay BujuwBeq yay aeieual
ARW puUZ Sunp pue puz JAQUSAeS usemeq

§ W oym SUEPNE A|UO RS [00YIS SZ-¥Z07

vay wapebispury jeuopsues)
{p-0 ubnoy) 1-0 JO WNG) YIe4Y J0) SIEIOL VY

(=0 + -8} vaw (521 10510Q) suopsy)

SUBIDIIYT) PISUSINT - SOOHIS UBLERIISUON *djqnduoy
Jopue [(1)e)est9s D3] SI00UIS LBUEISSUON
‘HgnduoN - UORESNPST [ERACS 1BTA PEpUBIXT (101

gD+ gl vav

SUONMASU] USIPIYD PESUBIIT - SICOUIS UBLZIDASUDN
“sugnduop so/pue [(1eleacas D3 stooyds
UBLEIOESLON "qndUo - UGIEINP] [B10605 B10L

{z-0 + z-8) (524 soswa) vav [{c}
{q)sveas D3] uonesnpy (eoads Jes) pepuaixd [BI0L

{1-0 + |-9) vQv Jeinbey g0l

NIRIL 10) SIRI0) VOV

{p-0 ubnosmn t
-0 J0 WNG) Yol 10 SIOL YOV PESEq-WOSSEIOUON

{S21 J0SINQ) YOY PESEG-WOOISSEOLON SUCHNIASY|
SUBIPHILD PESUSNT - SIOOYDS UBLTOESUON ORGNOUCN
Jo/pue [(e}99£9G D3} SIOOUIS UBLERSSUON
‘auqrduon - uoieInpl [Breds Jee) papuaixy

YO POSeqQ-LOUISSEPUON

SuoANIISU) SUBIPIUD PASUBDN - SICOUDS
ueuepRasuoN ‘danduon Jopue [(2)ielgetes o3l
SIOOYIS URLISIDISUON .U_B_JQCOZ - uoqeanpy _W,_Osm

-



ooo | looo | fooo | looo | [o00 | =
joo'o | fooo | [ooo | looo | ooo | o
[oo0 | oo | [o00 | fooo | looo | <o
oo0 | ooo 00°0 00°0 000 0
000 | ooo 000 000 000 &0
oo | ooo 000 00'0 000 z0
oo | o000 000 00°0 000 vo
[oo'o | Jooo | [o0o | looo | jooo 58
oo | ooo 000 000 000 re
foco | ooo 000 00'0 000 &8
oo0 | 000 000 000 000 za
ooo | ooo 000 00°0 000 v
oL T1-6 sepea) &L sepRip b SOpRID EAUML
3 e
N S’

{2=0 + Z-8) (524 sosua) QY [(E)
(a)srEes D3| voneanp] (eeds Jea) papuoy |EI0L

{£=2 + 1-g) wQv JeinBey jeog

A3RIL Jo) S|eloL Vay

{#~D unoap 1
-0 Jo WING) ¥oR.Y J0; SIEI0L (Y PASEQ-LIOMSSEOUON

{S.L1 108IMIQ) VY PESEG-WOISSERUON Suoimasy)
SUBIPIYY) PSUES - SICOUIS UBLEIDASUON ‘angnduoN
so/pue [(£)(e)gasgs D3 S10042S URLERESUON
‘gnducy - uoneanp3 jereds JEaA PIpURIE

V(Y PRSEG-UOCISSEIOUON

SUCINISU) SURIPHYD PASURIT - SI0OUSS
vepEivesuoN “axgnduoiy Jospue [(ZKelagess 23l
${O0YIG UBLEIDASUON *OHQNAUON - UoREDNPT [enads

{521 10510} YOy PISEQ-LOISSERVON
[(eXa)sreas D3] voneanp3 jepeds Jee), pepusing

V(Y PeSeq-WoSSERUoN enbey

YOV PeSEQ-LICOIESRIOUDN

(-8 yBnong
1-8 0 WS ORIL IO} SIRIOL VIY PISEQ-WOMESRID

{541 JosiNQ)} YOV PASEq-LI00ISSE]D SUCHNINSY|
SUBIPIYD PASUID ~ SIO0YDS UBLIBIIBSUON "qriduc
Jo/pu [(Ne)SFE95 D3] SIOOUDS URUERBSUON
‘QnduoN - uoneanp3 |eeds Jes) PapUsIXg

VOV peseq
-WOOISSELD SUCHNIISU] USIPINZ) PASURAN) - SIO0UDS
uenesesuoN ‘angnduon sopue [{2Xe)esres D3l
SROUDS UBUBDSSUON "IIGNdUON - uonesnpa [eeds

(SLt J08IMT) YOV PISEG-WOQISTELD
Helaksreas 03] vonesnpy epads Jesp pepusixg

WY peSequ00Isse|D ._Q—_._wlm
VOV POtRa-wooissad
¥oelL [euonongsy]

"qE) UORE30Y YAV Sy Aetdwioo
osje 1snw (31500 ¥ UoRsRS D3 0} juensund uoeanps
Jo pueoq 81:1g s Aq peacsdde SIBLEYD PUB 9'G0DLY

03 o) Juensind pazuoyINe SIBHEYD apMAINGD

G

yBnoup z spacoey o} Buneliaeu G 3 °Q "D ‘A SPRIL
10) WV pedas puk ‘(G 0 ) Pacosu) ¥ HELNY, ABug
ULy €41 JO) YOV HOds S0 FEUONINIISY| Sdmu
Bunesedo S|00UOS JALIBYD “PiOcE W HELHMYL MBUIS
a1 L1 QY i1e Bodas SpoyRs sepeud youn sbulg

vay papoday

G jo G piooay

—



| [o00

| looo

| |ooo

| looo

| |ooo

| looo

| [o00

| [ovo

| |6z

| [szvs

| [ozoz

| [veres

| liszan

| [sevs

| jozoz

| |vsos

| fooo

| looo

| [ooo

|

noL

Ti-6 sepuip

[oo0

| coo

[oo0

{ 000

000

| oo0

=L $pRID

00’0

000

000

000

000

ooo

000

0o'o

00’0

XML

[oo00

{ [oo0

| [oo0

| [o00

| [oo0

oo 0

| looo

| fooo

| [oo0

| o0o

[ooo

| jooo

| fooo

| [oo0

| o000

o0

| [ooo

| fooo

| [oo0

| looo

‘angnduop Jospue [(£Xe)geeas D3] sieoues
€T UBLEIIRSUON ‘2GRAUON - LONBONPT [B1D8dS |10

(z-Q spuossy Iy Jo wng) va [(€}

o (Qls¥egs D3] voneanp3 [e1eds Jeas papuaig jelo),

LT (1-0 SpeeoeY IV JO WIng) vav 1eynbay 1801

SHORIY ||V 10} S|1I0L VAV

(-0 spuodau 8 o

Tl Ling) swoe, Iy 10) SIEI0L VY PESEG-LOCISSERUON

{5+ spooa)
Il JO wing) s391L |1 J0) SIEI0L YOV PESEq-WOassse)d

SHIVIL IV 40} YOV Poreday jo Arwung

Alewwing

-3 Ul papnpout
o3 'gori1g puk (Q6'219Lr 93 0 uensind ‘Guipuny
10) €168 J0u Y(v ApMS wepuodepy| peseg esino)

§-0 Wl pEpRRUL 'S 6PLLS D3

3 ) uensind 'way Apmig wepusdepu) peseg esinog

S0 u papnpWL
3 10U pUB 9'SHL LS PUB (Q)5°Z1L0Lp D3 ) ensind
Buipuny oy epgbie 10u YQY PESEq-WNOISSRIIUON

Yav 2po

{z-3 pue 1-3 jo wns) (2)0008% 23 01 ensind
vepelisapuny [BUGSURIL U] SIUGPNIS JO) VY |BIGL

(Auo

VAV JBaA 18114 LUNIOY £-WHLY §-O BU U1 pepnjou
(2)0008r 23 o1 juensind uapebiapury [uopISURL)
U SIUBPNIS JQ) VOV PRSEQLIOCISSEI)-UON

€3

3

(MU0 YOy 189, 151 “Uwne?) £-3WHML) 58
1-3  eur) u pepnpu) (2)0008F 3 01 juensind uapeBiapury
|BUOISUBYL Ul SIUBPIUS 40) YAV POSEQ-UONSSRID

"REPYMIG YIS
1oY) |IUN JEA [OOLSS MR O PUS BY] pUR PIE BUNr
uesminq g Bupwiny suepms 10) ¥aY pnPx3 ek

jooyas ay) Jo Aep 152y sy GutuwBaq yov Bessust
Amw puz sunp pu puz Jequiades ussmieq
§ Winy oym sjUOpMS AUo 13e94 |0OYIT SZ-YZOZ

VOV usLIRBISpUI (FUORISURLL

_ 0 (-0 uBnoI -0 jo wNg) YIRIL JOf SIEIOL YAV

(70 + -8} vV (521 051MQ) SuonMnsY|

fooo

| Jooo

| [o00

| |00

| fooo

ovo

| fooo

| [oo0

| [oo0

| looo

SUBIPIIYY) PESLSALT - SICOZS URLIEIDESUON "IgNducn
Jopue [(2)(=)ggegs D3] SIe0UDS UBLERASUON
‘onqnducn - uoneonp3 |epeds Jee), pepUaIXS (B10L

(£-0 + g-a)vavy

_ 0 SUOAMASUL LIPIYD PESURIN - SIOOUDS UBLEIOSSUON

"angnduciy Jofpue [(£He)ooges 03] sioows
UBLIEI2ESUON “ANCUON - UCIEINPT JE13edS 18101

—_



Bujujewel zgp

ML JOHO JOU OP M

$3J0N

(7= ybinaug -7 o WRS) S1OUNSK] IV J0) SiEI0) VOV

¥

-H $pi00ay (I Jo wnS) vaV (SZ | Josiad) suonmasu|
SUBIPIYY PESUSOIT - SIOOYIS UBLIBIDASUON "anduon
sopue [{ Xe)oocgs D3] SI00YIS UBLEPESUON
"9)landUoN - UORESNPT (ED8dS JEaA POPUDIXT (B10L

(€-H $p1028Y |V JO WNG) YOV SuopnRsy
SURIPIUD PASUBITT - SIOOUSS UBLIEIRSSUON
“ayqnduop Jorpue [(1Xeloaces D3] sowRs
veuEResUON "oyqnducy - uoleanpy (Beds (ej0L

(2-H spscoay (Iv jo wing) (521 2sma) vaw [e)
{a)srees D3] uoneonp] [epadg Jea), papuaixd (eroL

{1-H spucoss e jo wns) yav Jeinbay iel0),

BIUSRIE8Y JO SIRLNSI] 1Y 404 BIN0L VOV

{§-D spuodal fie Jo
wiNS) SEANSI [y 20} SIEICL YOV PRSRQ-UI00ISSEIOUON

{g-J spacoay e
10 Wwns} SIS (Y 10} SIEI0L YOV PISeq-WIOISSED

SIoLEYDY pazZuane
uofleanpg Jo pieog ARG PUR §'509.¢ O3 0 wensind
PAZUCYINE SIO0UIS JAPELY SPAUNGD o) BB ddy

BOUSPISEY
10 SIMAISIQ IV 204 YAV Papodey jo Lewwng

{11 uBnoag 1-1 jo wng) ScRIL Iy 105 HEI0L YAV

(-0 SPIOD3Y | O WINS) Y'Y SuoRLsy)

{000 | fooo { looo | joo0 | [o00 | &
[oo0 | looo } looo | |00 | [oo0 [ =
{000 | {ooo | [oo0 | [oo0 | (000 ] e
000 | {ooo | [o00 | [oo0 | tooo | =
000 | looo | [oo0 | [o00 | [ooo |
ooo | {ooo | [oo0 | looo | [ooo | 2
ooo | fooo | [o00 | tooo | oo |
[Lovie | [15291 | |szvs | lozos | [seroe | s
oo | foo0 | [oo0 | looo | oo | »r

Py P ] - SPOUIE UBLERESUON 'iignduon
sopue [(2{e}e9ces D3 SIEOUDS UBUEDESUON
‘sijanduoN - UORESNP3] [eedS JRSA PAPUSIXT fBJ0L

(£~0 SP1009Y Iy J0 WNS) ¥y SuoRmMaSY|
SUAIPIIYY) PASUBIIT - SIS UP MDISUON

—






uonesyHas MalA

SUON :uoijeanpd Jo oo Aunod
Wd 9EEE- L SCOZILLIY - J19JeysL Pysiq [20YIS
Wd 71021 SZTOZL LY - SeAeysy) (UBISISAQ 1211181Q - |00YIS Jopeyd)

UOHERLIOI| UOHRIYILISD

Wd 16611 SZ0Z/LEY 8)e(g UOIEPIIEA 1SE]
SleARYSL) Ag uonepijea ysey

Wd t0:61 L SCOT/LLIY 8je(] paAes Jse]
SIRARYSL) Ag peaaesg 1307

sjielag

0ad

a2 gyl

Lt AR TR

“palaayes S |6 10) LORELLC)Y!

_ gy MEIIO0 O1 DOBL 4 ALUD ©1ED JENDOSGNS SGION 0PI reonaqEyd®
U1 HIRN) [SUOIIPPY YIRS PUR Y YOBIL SO} XOQ By} HINYD

n
O

05201042

1=V U] PEIIS|eS SEM [HIRININK) $9A )] 1SYDRIL [RUORINYSU)

{#2e41 9Buig) ON

Ll LEN2eJ] [euoInnsul spdimu fEiedo [0OYDS JBURYD SKY 5800

(oenminW) saa

[T
kv LS)IR1) [RUO) ) SpdnINW ejRiedo (00U JeLRYD ST $000

gl Meg

snjejs Japey)

seloN  Aewwng  uonedolyvQy  vaY  SMEIS Jspeyd

uonEpliEA eje(q passed
sBujwiepy Jo Jequiny
$40007 JO JAQUWINN
8pJ02aY JO JOQIUNN

uoREULIOJU| UOREPIEA

25L0v0J2 al=eq

6Ll Jaquinp eueYD

GSZYZLO ZLLE9 Y apod sS40
JOUBYD) WNALYL |ooyog
ejeqieg ejues funon

uoneuuoju) nu3
UOeLLLIcIU| PJO23Y

[OOUOS J9UBeY) SoUBPUSYY

19049 JOLRYD) SOUBPUBHY | JOLBYD WINIALL | |OOUSS JeHeYD [ ANug Bleq / SwoH

2-d 52-9202 ‘poued Buuoday ‘z-d 52-+20Z 1810AD Buissascud

(O@avd) uonaajio) ereq uswuonuoddy jedidpunig



09

(N

ogo

oy

Ly

Ay

gL

iy

-

:

i

v

qg-y

BG-y

5v

ary

ey

rv

ey

ER LT

qQyel)

D peL

€ §oey

¥ el elbuls

“fenuUy

1 SI00U3S JBLBLS ||B 10 peunbay ek jeasy sy Buunp voesado
PESESD [00UIS J) Z-d PUE |-d J@ pannbay Aug) 'uonesedp jo sheq

ER

apel)

Qprll

g93pell

¥ el el aibuig

pesees vonannsuy 1o voneltedp (AL ppruw) sjeg

{£-¥ ou|T ©) Uo BAOW) ON

{g~v sup ol uo eaow) §34

LIEa4 [ROSY JWALIND

ay3 Buunp uopsNAgsY) 10 uopeiado 8sveD [0OYSE IPRYD MY PIO

EE:CTE
Qe

DJpeL

88

v opRILpoel] sibug

pesusutog uonsnusu) (AAAAppauW) s1eg

(5~ w1 0} uo saow) OGN

{I-v ou17 0] V0 BACW) ST

Luaneiedo jo 1R 181y §1] W [OOY28 JBRYD SIY) 5|
ER=N

awelL

Jpoel)

_—



000 | ooo 00'0 00'0 000
[oo'o | 00 00°0 000 000
jooo | 00 000 000 000
ez 6ce | os69 £r'zs is'e8 LLSEL
oo'o | [oo0 | fooo | [ooo oo
foo0 | ooo 000 00'0 000
fooo | oo 000 000 000
ooo | o0 000 000 000
[ooo | ooo 00'0 00'0 00'0
lesoL Th6 sopRug o1 sepRID O SOPRID £¥NML
¥ MELHRIL 2buig
D -y
] agy
_..u By
| ov
N— N’

)

8

v

4

Joppue [(2He)aases 23] SIO0USS UBLEBIISSUON
"oignducy - uoneanp3 [ewads sea), papuAIXg

V(Y PESEG-WOOISSBRLON

SUOHMNSY) SUBIPILT PISUASNT - SISUSS
ueugoesuop; "oRgnduon Jorpue [(2Kelogess D3)
SIO0YIS URNEIRISUON ‘AIqnduoN - usliEsnps [eeds

(S£1 J081MQ) YOV PESEG-WOAISSEPUON
[(eXa)svE9s D3] uoneanp3 eds Jees PepuslX

vy pesed-wooIssepuc rejnbey

QY PREEG-IO0ISSRIIUON

{t-g ybnonp
1-8 JO WNG) YOBJ) IO} SINOL YW PISEG-LOGISSEL)

{621 10500} vQv Paseg-WO0ISSE|D SHoNMTS|
SUSUPIIYS) PESUSOHT - SIBOUSS UBLTIeSUON dnqnduoy
Jofpue [(1}(€)99595 O3 SI00UDS UBLEIESUCN
‘gnduoN - uoneanp3 |eeds Jea) pepusing

Qv peseq

~WOAISSE|) SUCHNINSU| USIPHUT PESUIN - SIOOUDS
ueurResuoN ‘shqnduon Jopue [{2 Helagses 03]
S{E0UOS UBLEIDESUON ‘JIIGNJUON - uoneanp3 lepeds

(521 s0%mQ) WOV PESEGUCMSSEL)
[(eXalsreos D3] voneanp3 [emeds Jesy, papusixl

WV PeSeq-LuocIsselD Jenbay
YV peseq-wooissel)

3oel) jeuonongsuyy

“ge) UOIBITHY VgV Bt
osje isnw (M)500.Lr UoIeS D3 0} wensund uoneonpy
10 peog )G ol Aq percidde SI8LEYD PUR §'S00.LK
a3 0) wensund pezuoyine suspeyd apMAIUNOY)

‘S

yBnoau z sproced o) Bunebueu 493 °Q "D "8 SPReIL
10} (v Wodas pue ‘(G Jo | prooe) w MY LML 8iBuig
U1V ¥0R1 30} WO Hodas Syorx [euoronisut ajdiinu
Bune.ado $|00Y0S JBURYD "RIIDRI Y HYLNEL SibuIg
o) u Yy |8 Hode Sjoouos JopeuR yoen eibuig

vav peuodey

S 30 | piooay

vavy

uoneUIWOY
PasEO-LOAISSEIUON
PoSeq-LOCISSEL)

uvonanssy) jo edf) aqp vpeapu)

-



o0

| ooo

o0

| oo

o0

| oo

000 000 000

000 000 000

000 000 000

[revs

| [o00

| fooo | [oo0 | [romn

[revs

| [oo0

| fooo | |ooo | vero

[oo0

| [ooo

| |ooo | fooo | o000

[erece

| [o669

| [eves i |58 | [ezeer

%3

53

3

€3

Bune.sda S)COUDS JBLIBYD "PI0TAN ¥ MHLHYL Sifuig
U ur (Y (I8 POda Sje0yds Japeyd yoen ojbulg

vav peuodey

S 10 Z picosy

vav

-3 W papnfowy
'9'srLLS pue (9)g'ZL9Ly D3 o1 juensind ‘Bujpury
10} spaifye 1ou yQv ApMS Iapuadapu] paseg asuneD

§-0 Ui pepRpUL “§'8bL LS O3
o) juensund 'yav Apms juepuadepy peseg esino)

§-0 W papnpul
10U pue 95215 pue (Q)5 21920 O3 O) wensund
Burpuny s0} #iq|BN3 10U YO PESEQ-LIOOISERPUON

Vav 10400

(2-3 pue -3 jo wng) (2)0008Y 03 ©) Jwensind
uspefuspury| |BUCHISUBIL U SUSPNIS 10} YOV 301,

Ao

YAV JBIA 1S4 "WWINIED £-HALLY §- BUIN Ul pepnidL
{530008F D3 1 Wwensund uepebiapury reuonisuRL]
U SIURPNIS 10) WY POSRQ-LIOOISSE|-udly

{AuO v e 18 uwnied £XML) 59
sury ut papnpul (3)0008r 93 o) iuensind uspeBiapuln
[BUCINSURI| Ul SIUSPMS 40§ WV PISEGLOMISSRID

Aepuuiq s

A0} Jrun JR6A 00O BYY JO PUS By} PUT PIE BUNP
usemieq G Bujin) BuUSpS 10) YAV BPIIXT e
tooyas ay) jo Aep 15ay sy BujuuiBeq vV sivisust
ABw puz sunp pue puz Jaquedes usamieq

§ Wn oym sjuepn]s Auo Liesd |0oyos SZ-¥20T

VgV uapeBiopury [euomsuel}
(p-0 ybnouu 1-0 Jo WNG) yIRIL K0Y SEI0L ¥AY

{0 + #-8) Qv {524 J08IMIQ) SuoINIRSU|

oo0

| loo0

| looo | [oo0 | looo

{00

| [oo0

| [oo0 | oo | looo

000

| fooo

| {ooo | [o00 | fooo

lessee

| [osse

| [eves [ |2ges | |26

es6ee

| [e669

| [eves | Jeses ] Jezesy

PHY2) PASUBOY - SIORIDS UBNEISBSUON “dngnducn
Jo/pue [(£)(e)e9ees 23] SI10040S UBUBKSSUON
‘DHaNdUoN - UOREINPT [2199dS JBIA POpUAXT |BI0L

(£-0 +£-8) VOV

SUONIMASU] UBJPEYD PISUBIT - SI0OUIS UBLEKISSUON
‘angnduon Jospue ({2 Xelaaces D3] siooues
URHEResUGH 'ognduoy - uoneanp] [eReds E10)

(20 + z-8) {51 soswq) vav le)
(Q)sregs D3 voneanp] 12Psds Jeap papuad jelo)

(10 + 1-8) vav senbey jelop

Yawi) s0} SjEj0L VY

(P2 ybnoutn |
-2} JO NG} 30BI1 J0) SIRIOL VY PASEQ-WONUSSEPUON

(621 051010} YOV PASEC-UIOOISSERILON SUONRINSY|
SURIPPUD PRSUANT - SIO0UDS UBLEIS™ "N "IIGNJUON



looo | [o00 | [oo0 | {ooo | [ooo | vo
000 | fooo | [ooo | [oo0 | loo0 | eo
[oo0 | looo | fooo | [oo0 | [ooo J
o0 | fooo | looo | fooo | [oo0 | o
000 | [ooo | [0 | Jooo | looo | s
000 | 000 000 00'0 00°0 0
oo'o | 000 000 000 000 &0
000 | ooo 000 000 000 20
[ooo | 000 000 000 000 10
000 | |ooo | oo | [ooo ] |ooo | s
000 | o00 000 000 000 re
fooo | ooo 000 00'0 00'0 c8
oo | ooo 000 000 000 z4
foo'o | ooo 000 00°0 00'0 ve

e CL-6 SepRID L sepRi 9 sepRID) ML

g0eiL
- p—

1opue {(LHE)9969S 03] SI00US uBURIDaSUON
‘QnduoN - voneanp3 [emads Jeas pepuendy (gjoL

(£-0+ £-8) vav

SUCHMASU] UBIPRYD PASUEIN - SIOUIS UBLRIIGSUON
‘mqrduon Jopue ({1 Xelagees 03] sieowes
UBLEISSSUGH ‘IqNAUCN - UONEINPT (B1DOdS (B10L

{20 + @ (541 Joswa} vav Ife)
(Q)s¥ees D3] voneanp3 |epeds Jra) pepueixqy (€10)

{1-0 + -8} vav Jeinbey moL

HIRIL 40§ SIBIOL VGV

(=9 ubnoan |
=3 JO Wng) IRl K $1E101 YO PRSEQ-UOISSRIDUON

(521 105WQ) Yy POSEG-UOCISSERUON SucIALTSY|
SUBIPHIYD PESLISON - SIO0UIS UBLRIDSSUON ‘alanducn
sopue [{ 1e}ogegs 03 S00UDS UBLIBBSUON
‘ognducy] - UDIIEINPT [BRI90S JEa) PEPULIKT

YV PASEQ-LIOMSSESUON
SUOANSY| SUBIPPZ) PESUSH - SIOOUDS
ueugaesUON ‘sligRduoN Jopue [{(2)(e)eeces D3l

" A

Sjooyag uer 3N "N N - UCflEdnp3 [eReds

(521 1051MQ) YOV PASEQ-UOOISSBIOUON
eXaksreas D3l uoneonpa [epeds Jess pepusixy

WOV POSEGLUOOISSBIUON Jenbay

VAV PISEG-UOQIZSR|IUON

(p-g ybnony
18 0 WINS) ORI 10} SN0 V(Y PESBGHUOISSED

(521 JosINQA) YOV PISEQ-UOSSE]) SUOHNISY)
SUBIPYIYY POSUSXT - SICOUIS UBLEIIISUON “Silgnduon
sopue [(2)(®)eaces DI S1ooudS ueueRasuoN
‘2UNDUCH - UOREINP3 |ewads teay, pepuelxy

vav paseq
“LLO0JSSELD SUORNINSUL UAIMIYL) PESUSIFT] - SI00UDS
uepetsasuoN ‘aqnduci so/pue [(Xeleaces 03]
SIO0UIS LRUEIDESUON 'NduoN - LoNEIPT eeds

($41 1081MQ) VY PISEG-WOISSE|D
[ieNalspeas D3] voneonpa fepads s pepusiy

Vv peseq-Wwoossse|) Jeinboy
VOV peseq-woosssng
FoeLL [EUOONASUY

‘qeL uenesolly vay ey aisidwon
osjE I1SnW (Y}500.p UON3eS D3 0] juensind uoyeanpl
1o pieoq 8jeys ey Aq pansosdde Sepeyd pue 9'S08LY

23 o} uensund PezUOYINE SIBUBYD Spwiunes

G

ybnauy Z spiooa o) Bupebineu 4G 3 "D 'g sHoBIL
303 YV Bodas pue (g jo | PIooas) v LML elbug
Uy Y9RIL 10) WY HOUSs SORA [BUONINASUL BfdiliMu

/



fooo | ooo 00'0 000 000
{000 | o000 00'0 00°0 000

le1oL T1-6 sopRiD O F SOPRID

0 yoeIL

foo'o | oo 00'0 00'0 000
ooo | oo0 00’0 000 000
ooo | oo 000 000 00'0
000 | fooo | looo | |ooo | |ooo
000 | oo | ooo | looo | 000
oo0 | [ooo | fooo | [ooo | oo0
000 | jooo | fooo [ looo | oo

N P

(SZ1 J0SING) YOV PRSEGUOAISSE)

&8 [(EMaIspEes D3] voneonp3 efaadg Jeay papuaps

] VQV paseq-wocissel) seinbey
VAV Poseq-woossse])

$ILL] [BUOnINASY|

"

‘qEL UOEIOHY VY S
osqe 1snw {}509LF UORISS D3 0} Juenund ucheanp3
10 pIRCE Q1ES aig Aq pancudde sisbeYd pue §'G09LY
23 o1 wensind pazuoyine siepeL apAUNGD

'S

ybnoay Z spoded o Bunebweu Aq 3°Q 'O *8 SHOBIL
10 QY Hode) pue ‘(G JO | [uoodI} ¥ HELHAL sibuls
Uy HORIY IOJ (Y WOd) SRS [EUCHINWISU! SN
Bupesado SpEOYSS 0Ny "PI0IRI Y N LMYL Bibulg
a1 Ul vV [1e Modes Slooyos JeueyD e AbuIg

vaY pedodey

§ 10 ¢ piovey

vavy
3 Ul papnpul
3 9'SrL LS PUR (9)5'ZL9LF D3 o1 wensind "Buipury
10} efqibi@ 10U YOV ApMIS juapuadepu) peseg aSIn0D

S0 W POPNIUI 'S'EKLLS D3

3 G wensind vy Apm§ Wwepuadapu) peseq 8sIN0D

S0 V1 pepApul
3 10U pue 9’5y LS PUB (Q)S5'ZLOLY O O luensind
Buipun) 40} 21qifije 10U YQY PASEG-WIOOISSEPUON

Yav 1o

(2-3 pue |-3 J0 wng) (2)0008F D3 O) wensnd

E3  Usuefiepury jeuonsuesy W SuspMIS JOy VAV IEIOL

(L1e]

VO JBRA 18IS “UUNIOD E-MALL) §-D BuI Wl pepnpul
(9)000tT 93 01 wensind uspebsopuny [BUCHISURIYL
u PNIS 0 YOV peseq 1O-UON

Z-3

{(AuO vaw Jeap 1811 ‘wwinied £-3H L) 58
1-3 W u) papnpu (2)p008Y D3 0 juensund uspeduspuny
[BUIISURIL Ul SIUBENIS 10} YOy PESEG-UOOISSEID

ARpyMIq Wis
1194} |RUN 24 [O0YDS B JO PUS BiR PUR PUE SUN[
eq § Buy PRI 10) YQV #pNT Ueak

100423 a3 jo Arp 31y oy BujuuiBeq yav sissusd
KArw puz sunr pue puz Jequweides uaamiaq
§ W oym pNis AUo UReA [0OUDE STHFZ0T

way vepelisepury leuomisuel]
$-q (-Q uBnouly L-Q 40 WNS) §IE1] 0] SRIOL VAY

{0 + Al vQv (521 sos1Ma) suonnasy|
SUBIPJIYS) PASUSNT - SIOOUDS URLIBIIACHINN "agnduony

v



oo

| [o00

| [oo0

| [ooo

| ooo

looo

| [ooo

| jooo

| jooo

| ooo

| [ooo

| [oo0

| fooo

I looo

| oo

| [ooo

| looo

| fooo

(2)o008% 03 01 wensind vauebsapuly [euUonISVe))
-3 Ul SIUSPIMIS 30} WY PeSeq-LUOMUSSEID-UON

{AuO yQy Jesp 1503 wwnod £-3HIL) §-8
13 sur U pepnpul (2)0008% D3 o) wensind uauetiepuny
[BUONISUR.L Ui SIWBPRIS 4O YT POSEG-WOISSED)

“ARpyLg wig

418y U JBSA [00YDS BUL J& PUS BU) PUR PIE SUNT
jeq g Bupung sjuepns o) Yy Spnjoxy e
|ooyas e jo Aep 35y o) BujuujBag yQy ejeioust
Aww puz sunp pue puz sequisides usemieq

S WIn} oym KuepnIs Ajuo ek |00YdS SZ-4202

vay vapeBiepury [puopisuel]
50 {0 ybnauyt 1-0 o wng) ¥.a1 J0) SIEI0L YOV

(-2 + £-8) vQv (521 J081AQ) SuoIMAsY|

SURIP{ILD PEEUSITY - $IO0YIS UBLEDISUON “DHqnduon
sopue [(2edoges 03] slooys ueuBRASUON
"aIKINdusly - UOHEINDT |eveds 189 PSPUBIXT JBI0L

(€D + Q) vav

{eoo

| Jooo

| [ooo

| [o00

| [ooo

{000

| |ooo

| fooo

| [oo0

| [oo00

oo

| fooo

| looo

| [ooo

| [oog

[oo-o

| oo

| looo

| looo

| [ooo

loo'o

| ooo

foo'o

| ooo

000

| oo

000

| 000

000

000

000

000

000

000

000

000

000

000

000

000

[ooo

| oo

| [o00

| [ooo

| [ooo

fooo

i 000

000

| oo

000

000

000

00’0

000

000

) UBIIYD PASUBN - SIOOUDS UBLERIDISUDN
‘ayanduon sofpue [(1{e)9ee9s 03] sjoaurs
URLEISISUON 'HMgnduo) - uopronpy [Epads Bo)

o (20 + 28} (21 sospna) wvav [(£)
(9)5+£95 D3] uonesnp3 (eRadS Jea), POPUANT |RI0L

1-a {£=D + 1-g) vV seinbey o)

¥IRiL 10§ SIBIOL VOV

o {2 ubnoag L
-2 )0 WNS) ¥3JL O} SIBI0L YAV PeSEq-UOSSEPUCN

(51 105MQ) VO PISEG-WODISSRIDUON SUCINIISY|
SUBIBIYD PESUBIYT - SIDOUIS UBUBIDSSUON 'JNIanduch
Jopue [(21(e)g9£95 D3l SIBOUIS URLERASUON
‘oqrduon - UOIIEDNPY [BISdS JBa) POPUIKT

2

VAV PESEG-WOOISSERUON

SUDAMASY] SUIPIYD PISUIIN - SHOMRS
VeuResuoN Hgnduon Jomue (¢ Neloarss 03]
S[OOUSS VBLBPDBSUCN ‘HMnducy - boneanp3] jereds

(§21 1050) YAV POSEQ-WOCISSEUON

&2 leKaspe9s 23 uoneonp3 mpeds Jee popueia

[Sg0] w(VY POSEG-WOMISSBIOUON Jeinbay
YAV POSEG-LUGGISSEDUON

{t~a ybnosg

&4 1+8 JO WNS) %9e4] JO) S{RI0L YOV POSBQ-LIOOISSEID

(521 1051MG) YAV PESBI-WOCISSED SUCHIMASUY|
SUSIPIIND PESUBNNT - SIOOYIS UBLEIDISUON “IHINduoN
Jofpue [{2}e}9oeas D3] SIO0YDS VRLEIRISUON
‘ongnduo - uoneanp3 |eReds Jess pepueixy

vav peseq
LUOCUSSEBID SUCHNINSU] UAIPIYD PESUR] - SIOOYIS
usuEpesuoN “aanduon Jopue [(Kelagcss 03]
SIO0YIS URLTIDASUON "HNduop - LoILEINPT |erRedg

W

£-8



ova | ooo 00°0 00'0 000 20
[oo0 | ooo 000 000 000 1o
joco | [oo0 | [ooo | [ooo | [ooo 58
fooo | 000 000 000 000 re
oo o | o0 000 000 000 ¢
ooo | ooo 00'0 00'0 00’0 28
fooo | oo0o 000 00'0 000 e

=0 Z1-5 sepRi gL SepRI) 9t S5pRID [ Tp 1

[a oeiL

000 | oo 000 00°0 00°0 o3
ooo | ooo 000 00'0 000 53
oao | ooo 000 00°0 000 v
{000 | [o00 | [ooo | fooo | looo | e

h, _— b

{521 05MQ) YO POSEY-WOAISSBRUCN
l(e)a)sreas O3] uoneonp] fepadg JeaA pepueixa

YV paseq-wonissepuon Jenbey

YAV peseg-I00ISST|JUoN

(r-8 ybnoag
18 JO WNg) yIRIY IO} SIEI0) YOV PESEG-UONSSED

(521 J051410) WOV PESEq-Wo0ISSE) Sucinsu)
SUBIPIIUD) POSURCH - SICOYOS UENEIDASUON 'aHanduoN
soppue [(2HE)o9e9s D3] SI00UDS UBLBPBSUON
"9HGNAUON - UOREONPT [EEdS ke PepusY

VY paseq
-WOOUSSEIT) SUONNISU) UUPIYS) PESUBNT - SRS
vepesesuoN "iqnduon to/pue [(2)eleages D3]
SI00UOS LBUEIASUCN "HIGNAUON - LoneaNp3 |eeds

(§41 J05W() YOV POSEG-LO0SSSED
ligMalspeas 03] vonwonp3 Ereds seep papusixy

vy peseg-wooisse|) ienbay
YQV PasRq-WoolsSeD)
I [euchInASu)

‘qEL UOReIO|IY YOV &) estdwios
osie J$nw (3)609, p Londes 3 01 enssnd uopeonp3
Jo paeeq 9)elg 8y Aq peacsdde SJOUBLD PUT 9'S09LP

3 ¢ Juensind POZUTLANE SIBUBLD SpWAIINGD

]

ybnosg z spacoes o) BugeBiaeu g 3 °Q "D g el
104wy Hodes pue g j0 | psooR) W LMY flbus
Uy YIRIL, 10) YW Hodes $yden Ruoinisul eidinw
Gunesado sjooyuos JOURYD ‘PIODH ¥ HHLHYL 2Ibuig
8U) Ul YOV [1e podas Sppoyas seueyD yoen aifuig

vav pepodey

§ 40 ¥ pJosay

vav
3 W papniou
‘O'SpLLS pue (Q)S'ZLOLp D3 o uensind Buipury
30 2iqiBye 10U YOV Apnig uspusdepu) peseq esINa)

§-0 U1 pepABUL 'S 6L LS O
o uensind "yQy ApMS Juepuadapu] peseq esinoD

§-0 U pEpNPUI
10U pue 9'SpL LG pue (Q)S 21941 D3 OF wensund
Buipuny Jo3 21qiie 10U Y'Y PISEqHUCOISSEPUON

vav apo

(z-3 pue |-3 jo wng) (3}000RY 53 OF wensind
uapefuspuIy |BUORISUEL] U) SIBPRIS S0} VOV 1101

(Awg
V@V JeaA 18114 "UWNIOD E-MHIL) G-~ ) Ul PaPNIU

~t



vav
3 Ul papnput
?o.o _ 000 000 000 000 &3 'BEVLLS Pue (Q5'219.p 3 B uensind ‘Gupury
103 sriiye 10U WY ApMIS Juapusdepu) peseg 8sNoD

B . . . . S0 U1 pepNUI 'S L 1S DI
_oo 0 _ 000 000 000 0o i o) juensund ‘vay Apms wepuedapy) peseq esined

S-23 W1 PRDIRU)
_oo.o _ 000 000 00’0 000 3 10U pUE §'5p21S Pu' (Q)S'TLeLY D3 O wensind
Buipuny 10j 8iqiENS 10U Yy PESEG-LIOGISSEPUON

vavapo

Jooo ] [ooo | fooo | [oo0 | [ooo I e e e

(Ao
Y . g . . VY JESA IS0 WINIED £-NL) S Sul Ul pepnpul
_co 0 _ _co 0 _ —oo 0 _ _oo 0 _ 000 3 330008y 03I 01 JUENSING UBLIEAIDPUT] EUONISUBI,

W SJUIPMS 10} Y(IY PESEG-WOOISSRI-UON

(AUQ vy 4292 18114 'UWNIOD E-ML) -8
_oo.o _ _oo.o _ _oo.o _ —co.c _ 000 1-3 sur u papapul {30008y 03 0) wensind uspieBiapun|
JRUSHISURL Ul SIUBPS 10} VY POSEG-LOGISSEL)

ARPYLIG YIS

A9\ [BUN JRDA 0OYDS BUL JO PUS B PUR PIg BUNP
jeq g Bujwing sUepms Joj wV #Pnjox3 ek
100Ya% au jo Aep Jsay 3y BujuuiBaq yay seseueh
AR puz sunp pue puz Jequialdes usemiaq

§ Wi} oym sjuspnys K|uo ek 00y S2-¥Z0Z

vay ueneBiepun] jeuop|sural

_cc.o _ _co.o _ _co‘o _ _oo.o _ _oo.o _ sa {10 yBriauty 1+ O WG} HoraL 10 SIEI0L YO

. . . . . SRR PP i IO N
oo | looo | looo | —oo 0 _ _oo 0 | ro opue [L2)elotes 53 00U UeEesUON

Nqnduoy - LONeINp3 |eads Jea) PIPUSIK] [E10L

{e-0 + c-alvav

[ooo | [oo0 | [ooo | [ooo | [ooo | e o ototeonss ol spots
UBNEI26SLON ‘HnducN - LoneINp3 [Eeds FoL

_oo.o _ _oo.o _ —oo.o _ _oo.o _ _oo.o |_ #0 (asvess oal cSaMM*_uMMMmﬂﬁzumw“wﬁm
looo | Jooo | loco | looo | oo | o (10 + 1-8) VGV 6In0oy wioy
WIRIL J0) SIRCL YOV

?D.o _ _oo.o _ _oo.o _ _oo.c L _oo.o \_ L) dhoeﬁ-ﬁe.puo_mﬁohqgvﬁnn.mﬂoe“mm””“_“

(521 J0SIND) OV PSEG-UIOAISSERUON SUORNISU

R . . . . SUGUPIIUZ) PESUBDMT - SIOOYDS VBVEIIOSUON "dNgqnduoy
_oo 0 _ 000 000 0o'e 000 2 sofpue [(£KE}99£95 D3] SI00UDS URKEIESUON
'QnAuoN - LONESNPT [eeds Jee) pepulixg

VY POSEQ-WOCISSEIIUON

i - . . . SUORNINSU] SUSIPIILY PESUBITT - SIOOUSS
—oo 0 _ eo0 000 000 000 &0 ueuersesuop ‘ongnduop Jorpue K Helegess 03]
S100YG LeL ION "HGNAULON - UGREINPZ EBdS

p - S’ lk.



000 | [o00 | {ooo | [ooo | |ooo | zo
loo'o | [o0o | [o0o I fooo | ooo ] +a
[oo0 | jooo | fooo | [ooo | ooo | o
|ovo | aoo 000 000 000 ro
o0 | ooo 000 00°0 00°0 £0
looo | o000 000 000 00'0 zo
o0 | ooo 00'0 00'0 00°0 1o
[oo0 | looo | looo | [ooo | [ooo | «o
o0 | ooo 000 000 00’0 v
{00 | o000 000 00'0 000 £
loo'o | 000 00°0 00°0 000 za
loo'o | oo 000 000 000 e
€1 cl+6 sepei) gL SepRsy Oy SO €L
3 RIL
S’

(2-0 + 2-9) (521 soswa) vav [{e)
{Q)sregs D3] voneanp] jepeds Jesp pepueIxd JRI0L

(1-0 + 1-Q) vgw senbay jeoL

¥3®1L 10} $1EIOL VAV

(=0 yBnoup |
-2} JO WiNg) yoea J0) S[BI0) WY PASEQ-UOMISSRIIUON

(G4} 1050} VY PESEQ-LICOISERIOUON SuOmAsyY|
SUBIPILD PASURDN - SIDOUDS URLIEIIRSUCN “onanduoN
soppue [(1Ke)agegs D3] SPPoUDS UBLERSSUON
‘giqnduoyy - uoneanpa [epeds Jed, papusx3

VO PISEG-UOQISERPUON

SUOHINYISU) SUBIPJILD PasUBdN - SIoIS
ueuEpasuoN ‘ognducn soppue [ Xelogeas 3]
$|00UOS UBHEIIGSUON "ORANDUON ~ UOREINDT [R1aadS

(521 JOSINQ} YOV PESBQ-LIONISSERUON
[(e)a)steos O3} uoneanp] jewads Jea) popUsHS

(Y peseq-wotssepuop Jejney

YaY PESEg-LICCISSEIIUON

{p-8 ybnoxp
18 Jo WNG) KoL) Jo) SiB10] YOV PISEQ-LUDOISSED

(S21 JOSMQ) YOV PRSEG-WLO0ISSE|S) SUoHSY|
SUBIPIYD PEEUSIYT - SOOUIS UBLBIDABUON "2IIaNduonN
sopue [(2He)er9s D3 SIBOUSS UBLERASUON
‘onqnduc - UCREINPT [B109dG JERA PApUSPE

vav paseq
“UIOOISSEI) SUOMMASU) USIPRYT) PESUSILT - SIOOUDS

URUEIISUON ‘JIgnduc sompue [{ 1Xelgaces 3l
S[ooyas ue IN "IARdUCH - UoREINp3 [eeds
(521 Jos1n0) YOV peseq-wonsseld

[eXalsreas D3] uoneonp3 [eoedg sea) papusia
YAV Peseq-uooissel) sejnbisy

YOV peSRG-ULIO0ISSR|D

NI [RUDNDNGSY|

"qEL UORE3O|Y YAy 3y alsiducs
osje 1snw (509, F uogaag D3 ©) wensind vojeanpy
o puEOg Jtels A Aq pancidde SIPBUD PuB §'S09LY

23 o} uensind pAZUOYINE SI3UEYD 3ppiiuncd

s

ybnoup z spuooes o) Bupebineu 40 3 'Q ‘D ' BpPel)
40) YO bodas pur (G )0 | poodl} ¥ NELMYL HBuS
u) Y 32RIL I0) YA HOda: $y3eq |euogonnsul odiynw
Bunesado SIO0US JaLRYD PICBI ¥ MY LML AIBuS
541 U YV |18 odau $10040S Jpey oo Sibuig

vay popodey

§ jo G piooey

~



000 | oo | fooo | [o00 | [oo0
000 | {oo0 | feoo | looo | [oo0
e 6ee | [ss69 | [eves | jzses | |26
lez6ee | |es769 | leres | [zs¢s | |eceer
loco | [oo0 | fooo | [o00 | [ooo
oL Z1-6 sepRu9 84 sepmi 9 SeprH ML
fooo | o00 00'0 00'0 00'0
o0 | oo 00'0 000 00'0
000 | oo 00'0 000 000
oo0 | [eoo | fooo | [ooo | [ooo
000 | oo | oo l |ooo | 000
{000 | looo | Jooo i |ooo | 000
[oo'0 | [oo0 | [eo0 | fooo | looo
[oo0 | [oo0 | [ooo | [ooo | fooo
loo'o | |ooo [ fooo | [ooo | Jooo

T

T

&3

§-3

3

€3

3

12

$a

Q

£a

‘onpqnduc Jofpue [(Xe)gacas D3] siouog
URURIOSUON ‘2gnduop - udileanp3 [eraeds eioL

{z-Q spsooey Iy Jo Wns) vav l(e)
(aspees 03| voneonp3 (eadg JevA PapuaIX] (RI0L

(1-Q spusosy |l Jo wng) vay Jenbey 1oy,

SYORIL [y 30) $II0L YOV

(5D spucom & jo
WING) SyoR.L |1 JO} SIEIOL WYY PASEQ-WOISSEPUON

{5-g spiooes
e 10 WNS) SYIELL Y 20} SIEIOL YW PESEGHUOMISSEL)

1R} |V 10} YOV Penodey jo Aiewung

Arewiwing

#3 ul pepnjour
‘9SS pue (Q)5Z19Lr D3 01 wensund ‘Bupury
10} oo 10U WO ADNIS Iuapusdapu| paseq esinoD

$0 U1 PBDRVY 'S'EYL1S D3
o) Juensund ‘wgy ApniS wepusdepu| paseg oS0y

S-D Ul papniau
10U puB 954 LG Pue (G)SZLOs P D3 0) Juensind
Buipuny Jo; aBie 10U V(Y PISEq-UDNISSEIDUON

vav o

(2-3 pue 4-3 jo wng) {2)0008+ 03I 01 uensind
uapefuapury [BUOHISUEI] W SUSPNIS JO) YAV I€I0L

(Ao

YOV JESA 1S VWD £-5HEL) S~ BUN Ul PEPHDW
(2¥o00er O3 o1 juensund uspefuspury jeUoSURIL
Ul SJUSPMS 40} YO PESeq-LIOMISSRD-UON

{Auo vav seey, 18113 uwnod £-3ML) -4
aupy w1 pepnpU| (30008 D3 0F uensmd uspeBaepury
|euoniSURI] L) SIUBPrAS JO0) vy PISEGUDCISSEL)

Aepulig Wi

11243 {RUN JESK (00YIS BLY JO PUS QY) PUR PIE Sunp
uepminq ¢ Bununy SUepNIs Joj YOy pRjIxg uesi
wouss syl jo Aep 1siy e Buluuibeq yay aieseush
Aewz puz aung pue pu? Jequeldes LsIMIq

§ LIN) Ot SJUBPIYS AJUO LESA [00YIS ST-FZOZ

vav uspeBlepupy [euonjsury
(-0 ubnouu 1-0 JO WS} 3oBIL JO) S{EI0L VAV

{0 + 1-8) Vv (521 J0SIMG) Suonninsu

SUBIPIIYD PBSULST') - SIOOYS UBLEIOBSLON "ianduch
Jopue [(21e)g0e9g D3] Sleoyds ueuepasuon
‘S)GNAUON - UONRONDS [BRedS JeeA PepUSIXT JB10L

(e-D + g0l vav

SUGONINSU| UIPRYD PRSUBITT - SIDOUDS UBLETDeSUON
"angrduon Jomue [(2Xe)eoces 3] siooyos
UeLEISaSUCH “Jlqnduo - uaheINpY 1S (101

7



Buuewsas gos

sbessaw Jnok wadh)

S3JON

_oo.o _ _oo.o _ _oo.o L foo0 | iooo _ S {r-1UERQM 110 WRS) SIRMISI IV 00 SIEIOL YOV
(¥

oo'0 | |oo0 | loo0 | {ooo | looo | » coepeto o) I RS kN

Jo/pue [(£)e)99€95 D3] SI00YS UBURIPESUON
ongnduoN - USHIESNDS (B2adS JEaA PEpUBN |0}

1g-H SPid8y Iy Jo wng) wdy suonmusy|

[ooo | fooo | [ooo | [oo0 | looo | o o, s Neksoros m oies
UBIIZIDESUCN ‘HINdUCN - uojeInpl [kj93dS [ejoL

_ {2-H sprosay i Jo wng} (521 Joswma) vav [e)

looo | ooo | looo ] _oo.o _ _oo.o {@)pe0s D3] onenp3 epsds Jees, PAPUR (BI0L

000 | [o00 | [ooo | [oo0 | [o00 | v {1+ Spico 12 10 Wns) vy JeinBou 1oL

SOuSPISY JO WINSI] |1V 10} SIBI0L YO

_ (50 spuooay e Jo

_oo.o _ _oo.o _ _oo.o _ —oo.o _ ?o.o EH s} swsia Ty 10} SIE101 YOY POSEG-UOCISSEIUON

_OO.O _ _QO.O _ _OO.O _ _G_u.o _ _OO.O _ A —oE:m-wﬁtﬁ_O_EB_m_ﬁwoF(Q(ew“%m__”

SIRPEYD paTUOpNE
UGHEINDI) 1O PIECY SIEIS PUE §'S09.Lt DT O wensind
POZUCLINE SI00YSS JALEYD SpAunea o) spqedddy

SOUBPISEY
10 S1N81A IV 104 ¥V penoded jo Aewwng

feseee | [os69 | leves | [zscs | [eeese | or  (rruBoons iors0 wng) soeuy iy oy seroL vay

{p=0 SPIODSY [y JO WNG) WY Suonmgsu)

SURIPIYD PISUICIT] - SICOYIS UBLIERSSUON "HiGNduoN

_ L so/pue {(£}®)ggcas D3] S0OUIE URUEIDISUDN
‘oyqnduop - UOREINPT jERedS e PapUaIXT oL

o0 | looo | ooo | {oo0 | [eoo

(£-Q sp2023) IIv JO WNS) yay suonnsu
SURIPRYS PESUBINT - < MBS UBLBIOSEUCH



1 - 2
[] az-v el
U mu.q ,,:EE

PoIISIes SR ||@ o) vofeuLOl

UJBIUGD ©) pBauU [ Anu@ BIED Juanbasqns (oloN UepIC |eoRsqRydiR
U] }IUA [RUOTPPE YO0 PUR Y HIRIL 10} XOQ BY) HI0YD

'y Ul pEyoejes aEM (HORNLINW) SOA J SINIL IRUORINNSY|

| v

Y (oea) sibuis) ON
S LsyoRuy |euonansy) s|dinw e1viedo |0oYIE JENRYD SIY} $900

ey (oeamInp) 534
D 2832R4) [RuopanAsU| 9|dNINW 8leedo (00429 JBLRYD K1Y} S80Q

YED0LYSL ) \eg
SMES Jeyd

ssloN  Aewwng  uonesollyvaQy VAV STIEIS JOWEYD

uohned MBI,

auop uoneanpg Jo 920 Aunod o] sBujuiep Jo Joquiny

Wd PP STOZ/LLIY - J8jedsu s 100Y2s [\] S10413 Jo JaquunyN

Wd €5:Z1°| SZOZ/LLIY - Zsteaeysul IBISIDAQ 19MISIQ - [90YIS JONRYD 9 $p1028Y JO JeqUINN
UOHEWIOHU] UONEIYIBY uoHeuLIOjU| uonepijes

PEDOLFS) qgieeq

Wd ZFOET L STOCILLIY a1eq UolieplieA 18T 661 JaquinN Jauey)
(AL Ag uopepijea 1se 118LEL021169 2 °ped SA2

Wd Z4:9€2t SeoZiiviy eqg pases s SUNUBADY JOOLRDS JaPRYD) WINIALYL |ooyag
Zsieaeysuy Ag paaeg jse eleqeq ejues Aunod

sjieyaq uoneuuoyu] figuz

UCIIELWLIO)L] Pi00ay

JoOYoS JapeyD SoUBPUIRY

[OOUDS JOMBYD SOUBRURTY | SHTUSADY [OONOS JBLIRYD WAL | [00Y0S JOLBYD | ANUZ Eleq ¢ BwoH

Z-d §Z-¥20T :pousd Bumoday ‘z-d SZ-+20T 91040 Buissaoosd

(Davd) uonaajjo) ereq Juawuoirioddy jediund

—~ 7



0

1

000

a8l

PLY

-y

iy

i

ar-v

er-v

rv

GEv

v

oz

Pz v

ERCCE
Qyoey
o oRil
9¥eeiL

v 3oesLoes) sbug

Jenuny

1€ SICOUIS JOUBYD e Joj paunbey ead eosy sy Buunp uonessdo
PESEsd J00YIS ) Z-d PUB |-d i paanbas AuQ) "uopessdo Jo sheq
EE=CTN

qwel

DoRIL

=R TR

v e el Bjbug

paswe2 uoRINNSU} JO LORRIEO (AAAAPPALIW) 1R

{£=w sur] 03 uo enow) ON

{9-¥ 8uy] 0) U0 sACW} ST

LIEBA [EOSY JUILIND
ap Bupnp uoy J| 10 uojjRsado OSREI [0OYSS JELEYD M) DI

ER LT

axel

2 woedy

R LT

vpRlLael abus

pesveue] vonarsy) (AALAppAUW) e
{g-w oury 01 Uo erow) ON

{t-v SuT ©) uo sAcW) §3A

Lucnmiedo Jo JREA 1841 S W] OGS J0URYD S)Y) 5|
3pelr

apel

ok, 200 N

~



ooo | 000 00'0 000 000
fooo | oo0 00°0 00'0 00°0
oco | oo 000 00°0 000
[se-9ez | o 8108 5859 90°€6
[oo0 | fooo | looo | [ooo | [ooo
[o00 | o000 000 000 000
000 | 000 000 000 00°0
[oo-o | o000 000 00°0 000
ooo | ooo 000 000 00'0
E0k Zl-6 sapeud 8L SepRNO S+ S9pe1) £UML
¥ M 1M1 31Buig
D End
S 8-V
D eg-v
v
N e

sofpue [(2){e}oness 23] sI00uDS UBUERASUON
[ gt] "HQRduo - uoNEINP3 |EDAAS JEBA Pepusi]

V(¥ PISEG-UOSSEQUON
suonNINSY) SUBIPRLY PISUAOIT - SIOOLDS
ueuRIEsUON “nanducn Jopue [(2 Xeeseas D3l
SO0USS UBLEISSSUON "ORGrGucN - vonesnp |enadg

[

{S£1 J08IMQ) WOV POSHG-WOOISSBROUON

¥ e)aisreas 03] oneons3 eads Jeas popusie3
12 VY peseq-waaussepuoy Jenbey

YAV PESRGILO0ISIR|IUON
Ao (-8 ubnosup

18 JO WNG) YILIL J0} SIBIOL YV PESBGWOAISSED

(541 J051A10) ¥OY Paseq-LI00JSSEID Suoqmasy)
SUBIPIINT POSUENNT - SI00YIS UBLEIIBSUDN ‘aHanduol
sopue [{21e}a9ees D3l sleoues veveRasuoN
anduoN - uoneanp3 (eeds Jgep pepueix3

Vv peseq

-UDOISSEID SUONNIASU| USIPILD PESURII - SIOYS
veueResuoN ‘angnduon Jopue [{2e)9ecas 03]
SI00U2S UBUEIESUON "JMGNdUON - Lenenps |eneds

£8

{521 J081:Q) WOV PISEGHUONSSED

&8 [{eMalsrEas D3} voneanpg (erweds seey, pepusix
-8 vay peseq-woaisse) Jembay
VOV PRSeq-Wo0ISER|)

Foe11 [RUCHINNSY|

QL UORE3ONY YOV Sl 2181dwod

osje 150w (1500 p VoReS 23 01 wensand uoneanpy
10 pieOg MG By Ag pescidde siebeys pue 9'G0aL
23 0} ensind PRZUOYINE SISLBLD SPMAIUNGS)

S
ybnauy z spiooed oy Bunebiaeu A9 3°Q "D 9 SoeaL
10Ty HOde) PUB (G JO | Poel) ¥ HHLHRIL eifug
Ur 'y 3ORIL JO} wOY Hodas Py [Euoidnstr sidinw
Buressdo SIDOYSS JBLBYD PIOISI ¥ HHLHHL IS
8U) V1 YOV (1€ kodey SIE0UIS JapE P} ouIg

vay pepoday
G JO | ploaey

vav

uoreuIquISY)
PRSEG-WODISSBIOUON
PESEQ-UCOISSBID

uoponusu| Jo edAL syl MENPU)

—



000 | oo 00'0 00°0 000
oo | oo 00°0 000 000
joo'o | o000 00'0 00°0 000
lsv'L | fooo | [oo0 | looo | [svs
fsv'L | jooo | looo | looo | svi
loo'o | fooo | looo | fooo | ooo
lse'egz | Jovi | [szos | [eess | |oocs
000 | fooo | loco { [oo0 | [oo0
oo0 | [oo0 | fooo | oo | [oo0
{00 | [ooo | looo | [ooo | looo
|s€982 | [ovee | lszos | [sese | [soce
loe-9gz [ [ovee | [szos | [sese | loocs
N

93

3

3

€3

3

=]
.

3

5Q

€-a

<qa

t-a

Bupesedo Sio0yas JapeyD "pIoaas ¥ M LML S6ulg
Y} ul WY e Bodal SooyDs JaueyD yoel bus

vav peuodey

S jo Z proday

vav

3 Ul papnpuI
'9'5r218 Pue ()5 Z194p 23 01 uensund ‘Buipury
10) 21q1640 10U vV APMIS wapuadapy] paseg asnod

§-D U1 POBNPUL 'S '6FLLS 23
o3 uensind "yelv ApMiS uspuadapy) paseg asInaD

$-0 ul papnpu)
10U pue 95216 PUB (A5 ZL9LP D3 OF wensind
Buipuny Joj 91q)By2 10U YOY PESEq-LOAISSEDUGN

vaveuo

(z-3 pue -3 Jo wns}{2)0008Y D3 01 uensind
uepeuspUNY [EUCHISURIL Ul SUSPNIS 10} YAV €101

Ao

VQY Je9A 1S4 "WINIeD £)HL) §-D Sur) Ul papniowm
(2)0008t D3 ©) Wensund uepefuapuny jeuogisuel)
w1 SJUBPNIS JOy YO PESEQ-LWLODISSEI-UON

{Au0 vay Jeep 1sng ‘uwniod £ §8
aury ul pepny (2}00081 03 o wensind uepebBiopury
RuoSURI] ) SIUSPNIS 10 WY POSEG-UORISSE)D

“RepyLg Wis

1843 JHUN 188K [OOYIS BU JO PUS Y PUB PIE SUNT

usemieq $ Bujlng SIVEPYS 1) YA SPNIOXT JEak

100428 8y} Jo Aep 131y oy} BujuuBeq yav sleseust
Avw puz sunr pue puz Jequerdes useameq

§ WIN) oym SUSPNYS Ajuo Rk |00UIE ST-¥TOT

vy vapebispupy RUOTISULSY
{#-Q ubneuyl 1-Q jo wAS) oeLL 10} SEI0L YOV

{2 + -9} vav (S2) Josimg) suonngsy

SUSIPIYD) PESUEDIT - SIOOUS UBLBIDASUON “HIQnduch
soppue {(2HE)99£96 D3] S100UeS UeWeResUoN
'HQNAUON - uaenp] |eReds 18aA PIPUSIXT (210

(g-0 + g} vay

sUoMASU| LAIPIYS PASUSAIT - SI0OUDS UBLEIDISUON
‘aifanduon Jo/pue [(1){e}agees 3] slowds
UeL=RasuON “aqnduon - uonesnp3 [epeds (e10),

(z- + 2-8) (s21 sosma} vav [{e}
{g)srees O3] voneanp3 jepads Jeak papusing (e

(1-2 + 1-8) vav 1enbay jeol

WIRIL IO) S|€I0L YOV

{2 yfinoaup L
-0 Jo wng) yoru) 0} S|E10L YO PISE]-WOGISSEIUON

{S21 JOSIMQ) YOV POSE-WOOISSEPUON SUOINILSU)|
SUBIPIUD PASLAN - SIOOUSS UeuEe ™ N "aIqndueN

~’



oo | looo | [oo0 | [oo0 I [ooo | o
looo | [oo0 | [oo0 | [ooo | fooo | oo
o0 | [oo0 | fooo | {ooo b Jooo | =0
[oo0 | [ooo | fooo | [oo0 | [oo0 | e
000 | [oo0 | looo | [ooo | [oo0 | so
[oo0 | o000 00'0 00'0 000 )
[ooo | 000 000 000 000 &2
000 | o000 000 000 00'0 )
foco | oo0 000 000 00'0 0
[ooro | [ooo | [ooo | fooo | |ooo s
oo'0 | ooo 000 00°0 000 v
looo | ooo 000 00°0 000 ¢g
fooo | ooo 00°0 00°0 000 z8
o0 | ooo 00'0 000 000 -8

fe1aL ZL6 sepeu) 4 sepRID ot SapmD ML

R
N -

soipue [(2Xe)agegs D3] sioouds ueveasuoN
“aqndudy - UOREINPST |Bro8dS JBs), POpUBIXT |I0L

{£-0 + -8l vavy

SUONNNISU| UBIDILT) PBSUBDIT - SI00LIS UBLBIIGSUON
‘mqnducny sorpue ({2 {E)00e0s D7) sleops
UBLE[I9SUON ‘JIQRIUON - UONEINPT (219905 IR0

(z-0 + z-9) (521 JoswQ) vav [(e}
(a)spees 53 voneanpy (eadg Jes) papuelnd (ee)

{1-2 + 1-8) vav seinbay oL

WORIL 10} S|TIOL YOV

=0 ubnoug |
=0 JO WNG) 0B 10) SIBICL V(Y PESBO-UIONSSERUON

{521 05INQ) YOV POSEG-WOOISSEPUON SUCINISU)
SURIPIIUD PRSUSNT - SICOUDS UBHEIIESUON ‘2ilqnducN
sopue [ 21elo9ees 93 s100u0g veuepesuoN
*9)qnAUON - UOHBONRS |RRdS JesA Pepueg

YO POSEQ-UCOISSEIDUON
SUOHMIISU] SUBIPRYS) PESUSTT - SIOOUDS
uepEIRSUON "ongnducN sompue [(2)®)eotos D3]
$I00LIS ueL N *aljand

IN - UOBINR] [BI0R0S

(S Josing) YOV PEsEq-LUIOCISIRPUON
[icHalsreas D3] uoneanp3 (eeds JeeA Papuap

YOV POSeq-woossepuon Jenbay

VOV PISEG-MOGISSE[OUON

(p-g ybnong
18 10 WNg) yo.1] IO} SIRIOL YV POSEGHLOMISSE|D

(541 408100} YOV PISEG-UIOAISSEL SUONMISU]
SUBIPIYY PAELADT] - SOOI UBLEIDBSUON "ananduon
opue [(:He)a9tes 3] sl00UdS UBLERIISsUON
"HGNAUCN - UOYEINP3 (erads tea), PapUAX]

V(v paseq
-UO0USSRED SUORAIMSUL USIRIYY PESUSON - $I00U0S
uelelasuoN ‘anduon Jopue [{£Xe)ageas O3]
SIOCUIS UBNEIIBSUON 'IGNdUON - LONEINPT |ededs

(5L 1 1oswig) vV PASEG-WO0Isse|D
[{eHa)sreas 3} uoueanpl (eRadS Jesp pepudixgy

YOV POsEG-LIo0Isse|D) Jejnboy
VAV PSEG-U0ISSEID

H2e1) jeucnangsy)

"qEL UONESIY VAY 8
osje 1snus (§)509.F voneeg D3 ol luensund uoyeanp3
o pueog G U Aq Peacdde SIBPBYD PUB §'S09.Y

03 0] luensind pazuLInNe sUBMEYS apMAUNOT

k]

ybnosy z spaoces o) Bupebiaeu 49 3°Q 'O ' Spel)
03 YT HOUBI PUE (G JO | P40301) ¥ MHLMML AbuS
Uiy ¥0RI] 10} WY HOdas SxoR) jeun~lsu) Sidinuw

<



[oo0 | ooo 000 000 000
looo | o000 000 000 000

[LCT ZL-6 sepmD gL sepRI g SOPRID

2RIl

{000 | o000 00°0 000 000
looo | o000 000 000 000
{000 | oo 000 000 00'0
{000 | fooo | [ooo | [ooo | [oo0
000 | fooo | [oo0 | [ooo | oo0
ooo | [ooo | [ooo | [ooe | 000
00'0 [ looo | Jooo | |ooo | [oo0

S -

(21 3051MQ) YOV PISBGUIO0ISSELD

e [(e)alspeas D3) voneonp] [epeds JeaA papUaIT

-] Qv peseq-ucisser) sejnboy
vay peSeg-UO0ISSRID

IR JRUOHINNEU]
“qe] UOREIONY YO By 218id

0S8 1SNW (4)}509.4F UONSS D3 ol juensind uopeanpa

J© PuRog B)EIS oW Aq peacudde sIBlEWd Pue §'G00.

273 01 WENSING PaZUORNE SIOUEYD SPMAIUNCD

5
yBnoay Z speooad o) BupeBueu 49 30 "D 'g BPBIL

10} Qv Wodas puB ‘(G JO | Pioaal) ¥ HY LML sibug
U1y ORY] IO YO HOC SHIBN ELCISIUISUI Sy

BuiieJad0 SI00UDS JAUBYS RIS Y HELAYEL SBuIS
o Ul YOV ¢ podas Soouds seueyd pes sifulg

Vav pepodey

G Jo £ pIooSy
vav

#-3 Ul papniouy
3 ‘g'srLLs pue (Q)5ZLELy 93 o) uensnd ‘Buipuny
10 2101642 10U YV AprIS Iuepuedepu) paseg #siR0D

-0 Uy PAPRU ‘G '6P44G D3

3 wensind WG Apms wapusdepu] peseg asunod

$=0 W papnpw
3 10U pue 9'grLLS pue (Q)5'ZLe.p D3 ) Juensind
Buipuny s0) ejqibije 10u YOy PISEq-WOUSSBROUON

vav o

(2-3 pue 1-3 jo wng) {2)0008 D3 01 ensund

Gt uapeblepuny FRUONISURIL Ul SIUSPNIS 0} YAV 101

tAwo

VAW [BIA ISI WINIOD £ L) 60 Bur w papnpuy
{20008+ 93 o wensind uapediepury [euOSURI]
Ul SIUSpN|S 10} YO PesEq T)-UON

3

(Ao vaw 1ess 1sid ‘vwinioD XML 58
-3 2un ul papnpur {(3}0008 93 0} wwensind ueyetiapuny
JRUOHISURL) W SIUSPMIS JOJ YOV PRSEG-UIO0ISSEL)

‘AepyLiq Wis
J1aY) [BUN JRBA J0OYDS BU) JO PUS ) PUR PIE SUNP
q § Buy JUSPNIS 10} YAV BPNIOXT Jesk

jooyas syj jo Aep 350y sy BujuwBeq vy seisust
Aww puz sunp pue puz Jequejdes usesyeq
S WIN} oYM SIWEPRIS AJUO LIERA |00YIS GZ-¥Z0Z

VY USLIRBIGpULY) |BUOISURIL

_ §-a (-0 ubnoay) 1-0 Jo wng) ¥oeAL J0) SIEI0L YAY

(-0 + v-g) OV (21 108I1M () suapninsu]
SUBIPLI PISUBONT - SIOOUDS UBLEI 17 ‘SanduoN

)



[oo0 | fooo | tooo | [oo0 | o000
oo | looo | [ooo | [oo0 1 o000
s | o I= I =
000 | [eco | |ooo | [oo0 | [oo0
{000 | looo | looo | [oo0 | looo
[oor0 | looo | looo | [ooo | oo
[oo0 | looo | fooo | fooo | [o00
fooo | fooo | looo | fooo | jooo
ooo | 000 00'0 000 00'0
loo'o t 000 00°0 000 000
000 | o000 000 000 00'0
000 | 000 00°0 000 000
000 | [oo0 | Jooo { [ooo | looo
oo-o | oo0 000 000 000
oo | 000 00'0 000 000

(2)0008r 03 01 Juensind vepefisapury [EUCISURIL
23 Ul SIUSPMS IO} YOV POSE-LOMISSEL)-UON

{AuE v 1884 150 'VWNOD £MML) 66
-3 eur ui pepnput (9)0008¢ D3 o1 luensund uspebispuly
[BUOHIISURLL U} SIUBPNIS 0) YOV POSRG-LIOISSRID

AepuRia Wis
219y |puUN JBsk |0CYIS BYL JO PUe MY PUR pUE BUNp
q Buy PIS J0) YOV #pNJIX3 Urek

[ooyas eyl Jo Aep ysdy my) BujuuiBag woy aeoust
Arw puz sunp pur puz Jequindes UseMIdg
§ Wi} oym sJUspr)s Ajuo Ieed [00YdS 52-pZ02

yay uenebiepury [euonsuRl)

_ 31 (-0 4Bnouy) 1-0 o wns) yorIL JO) SIEI0L YOV

(-0 + 9} v (52) J08iMQ) suonngsy)

SUBIDIYD PISUSNT - SI00YIS UBLEIOISUON *JIqnduoN
sompue [(21e}a9ees 3] SIK0YOS UBLEPBSUON
"HIGNAUCH - UONEINP3 (eads Jeay, papuelg =o)L

{(g-D + gl vav

SUONMTSU] URIP|IYL) PESUBILT - SIOOUIS UBLEISSUDN
‘ayqriduon Jo/pue [(2HE)9oeos H3) stoouos
uepeesUoN ‘HNdUON - UogRINPT [e1neds 1ejoL

(20 + 2-9) (541 +osmQ) vav [(E)

Lns {a)sreas D3 vopeanpa |ewadg JeaA PIpURDG |11I0L

-Q {1-0 + 1-9) gy senboy o)

0L 10} S|00L VOV

{2 ubnoap L
=0 J0 WING) YIRIL 20} SEI0L YAV PISEG-WOOISSRRUCN

{G41 JOSIAI0) YOV PISEG-LICOISSEPUON SUOINIASY|
SUBIPJILT PASUSINT - SIOOUYS UBLIEIORSUON "JIqnducN

o opue [(ZNE}eaess O3] S0oUSS UBLEDSSUON
"Jgnducy) - uoneanp3 [eeds Jess papueXy

YAV PasSeg-UOISSEPUCN

£ SUONNIISU| SUsJpuyD) PESUSNT - SJOOURS

uRUEIIYSUON “Hqnduo Jofpue [{1)(e)geees D3l
SROLOS UBLIESUON Hignduoy - uoneanp3 jeneds

70 (521 +081MQ) YOV POSBI-WOCISSEUON
[ieHaisyeas 23] voneanp3 Ereds Jeey, pepualxg
[Nl WV PaseQ-WONSSEPUCN Jeinfey

YOV pRegLIO0ISSRIOUON

{p-g ubnonp

e 1-8 JO WNS) ¥9.I) IO} SIRI0L YOV PESEG-UOAISSRYD

{521 205WQ} YOV PESEq-WO0ISSRID SLenmnsu|
SUBIPNYS PISUSNT - SIOOYIS LBUTIDASUON "DRgnduoN
Jojpue [(ZHe199£9G DI SI00UDS UBLERSSUON
*NKINAUON - UOIEINPT [eDeds JBRA POPUBIT

vy peseq
“WOAISSEL) SUGHMINSU] UBIPIUD PESUSDY] - SI00UDS
veueesuoN ‘ananducn Jospue [z Kelggtes 23]
SIOOYAG UBLEISSUON .o.._n_._nr_ez = uoneEdnpg (eads

~



[ooo | oo 000 000 000
fooo | ooo 000 00°0 000
oo | [ooo | Jooo | [ooo | [ooo
jooo | 000 00'0 000 00’0
ooo | o0 00°0 00'0 00'0
fooo | o000 000 000 000
fooo | o000 000 00'0 000
1218 ZL-6 sapeig &4 sepRin 9 SRpRID E-HML
|a ey
oo | oo 00'0 000 000
oo | ooo 000 000 000
000 | o0 000 000 000
oo | jooo | looo | [ooo ] looo
L g

0

(3]

s-8

8

19

3

5§32

3

(521 105110} YOV PISEq-LLOKISSEPDUON
[(eXaksrees D3] volieanp] (BedS JBBA PEPUBINT

YV PeSeq-WOMSSEPUON JejnBay

VAV POSEG-OOISSBIIUON

{p-8 ybnouy
18 JO WS} Hoed) o} SIRI0L WY POSEG-LOMSSED

(521 J0BIMIQ) YO PESBQ-WOOISSE]D Suomnsy|
suBIpIyY) p ] - SI00UOS UBLEIIESUCN "diqndusy
sopue [(7Xe)agses 23] siooyog vevepasuoN
*NNAUON - UOREINPT (BSOS JesA PAPUSIXT

vaw peseq

-WOISSEL) SUDHNMNISU| UBIPALT) PEBUBONT - SO
ueuIaesUON “augnduon Jo/pue [(1Kelastes 93]
/00435 UBLEIDESUON “DlINdUON - uoneonpy reneds

{621 108ng) vV peseq-uooisseld
[(eXalspeos D3] voneanp3 feweds Jeo) popuena

WV Paseq-WooIsse|) Jenbay
YOV Pasug-uoosse))
HIRIL [BUORINASU|

‘qe| uonedsolly yay eyl slejdwod
os{e 1snw (Y500, p voNRes D3 o) Juensund uoneanps
Jo purog EEg s Aq paacudde suepEyd PUB 9'S09LY

03 o) wensind pAZUCINE SIBUEYD Spmiuncs)

ki

ybnosyl Z spsooss o) Bunedineu 49 3 'Q "D 'g sioel),
409w Wodes pue "(g Jo | puooes) ¥ NI L Hbuis
)y yORIL 10} WO Hodal SH28J (BUCHIRUISU! BKININW
Bunrsedo $1004a% JeUBYD PUOd8I Y Hu LML abuis
84} U] VAY 1B HOdsy 50042s sapeys xor sbug

vQv peuodey

S 40 ¢ p1098Y

vav
#-3 Ul pepajaul
‘g'spLLS pue (95194 D3 O uensund ‘Buipuny
oy s{quByis You yQv AprIS Juspuadaepu) peseq esnoD

G- Ul pepnpul 'S'6r41E D3
0] juensund Yy Apnig Juepusdapy) peses ssnos)

S0 Ul pepnfour
100 pue 9'sp2 LS Pue (Q)G°2102p D3 01 Juensind
Buipuny 0} e1qiBile 10U QY PRSEQ-KIOMISSERUON

vav eno

(2-3 pue 1-3 J0 wng) {2)0008Y 23 O) uensmd
ualeBaspuy [BUOHISURI) U) SIUSPMIS J0) YAV 101

Ao
VY JROA IS4 'WWNoD) L) D * T un pRpnpLY

']

i



[ooo | ooo 00°0 00°0 00°0
fooo | 000 000 000 000
looo | 000 00'0 00’0 000
ooo | [ooo | [oo0 | fooo | fooo
ooo | [ooo | [o0o | [oo0 | oo
o070 | oo | looo { [oo0 | oo
oo’o | [oo0 | Jooo | fooo | [ooo
[0 | [ooo | jooe | fooo [ looo
loo'o | [oo0 | fooo [ looo ] jooo
000 | [oo0 | jooo | looo { oo
000 | fooo { [oo0 | loo0 | joo0
[oo0 | fooo | [oo0 | fooo | looo
looo | o000 000 00'0 000
ooo | oo0 00°0 000 00'0

a3

§-3

3

€3

3

§Q

+a

£a

f ]

-

50

2

vavy
-3 ut pIpNPUI
'9'sp LS pue Q)5 ZLo.2p D3I o1 wensand ‘Bupury
104 ejqiBye 10U yOY Apnis luepuedapu) paseg 85Ny

S0 Ul PPN 'S 6PLLS 0T
o} wensund gy Apnis Juepuedepu) paseg esanoD

S0 Ui pepnpout
10U pue g-5pZ LG pue (4)6°2194p 93 0} wensind
Butpuny 10) 8191648 10U YTy PESRG-LOQISSEIOUON

Yav mno

{2-3 pue (-3 jo wng) (2)0008k DI o wensmd
uspefuepury [BUONISUERIL W) SIUAPNIS J0) YOV (€101

{Auo

YQV B84 1301d ‘VWnio €W L) -0 8un Ul pepniou
(9)0008Y 93 0 wensind uepeBiepury jeuonjsuel)
U} SUIPNIS JO) YAY PRSEGLOOISSeID-UON

(A0 YOV BB, 1813 “UNoD) £- ML) S8
au w papnpul (2)p00sr D3 01 luensind uspeBispury
JBUCINEUEL], W SUSPNS 10} YV PISEQ-UDMSSRID

“Aepyuq uis
291y [BUN JeeA [0OYDS 4R O PUS bY) PUT PIg BuUnf
usamiaq 5 Buplim suspmis 403 YOV apn|axg wak

[0oyss aus Jo Aep Isay syy Bujuaibeq way sisseust
Aew puz sunp pue puz Jequades usemieq
§ Winy oum SJUepMS KJuo ek |0oYOT ST-PZ0T

vav useBuspupy [euohisurl)
[t~ yBnony 1-Q jo WNS) 3oBIL J0) SIE0L YAV

{72 + 8} YAV {521 J081AIQ) SUCUNNSY]

SUBIPIYD PASUETN - SIOOUIS LELEIIASUON 'SIIgnducy
Jorpue [(Ne)g9e9s D3] sioouos veneesuon
‘Sgnduo - UOREDNP3 [eeds Jea) PepUBINg |E10)

(€0 + £-8) vav

SUDHIMASY) UBIPIUD PSSUBON] - SIDOUIS UBLEIDISUON
‘augnduon sopue [(2Xe)eeras oal sioouds
UBLEIESUON 'IIANIUON - LOEIND (BadS IRI0L

(20 + z-g} {521 sosng) vaw [£)
(Q)5pEas 03] voneanp3 epeds Jeap papUBIXT e1oL

(1-0 + L-9) vQv seinbay |e10L

NIRIL 10} FIRI0L YOV

{#-0 ybinoay 1
-0 10 WNG) XORIL 40} SIZI0L YO PASEQ-LLIOOISSERUON

{521 J081AI0) YO PRSEQ-WOOISSRIRUON SUCAMSU]
SUBIPIIYY) PSUBOLT - SIOOYZS UBLIBIDBSUON ‘HIINUON
Jopue [(£X(e)g9e9s D3] SIK0US ueueResuoN
"J1[qnducy - UoREINP BNSdS JBAA PEpUSIXY

VOV PESEQ-UOGISSERUON
SUOIMINSY| SUBLPRYD PASUBIIT - SICOWDS
ueuRISESUON ‘dignduoy Jorpue ({2 He)9atas D3
SIO0YIS URURIDSSUON “Hiqnducy - uonednp3 [eReds

~



—oo.o _ —oo.o _ _oo.o _ _oo.o _ _oo.o _ 0 (qspees oal E:%Mﬂnﬂﬂwmwwﬁmﬂmﬁm
fooo | {eoo | [oo0 | [ooo | [o00 | +a (10 + 1°8) Qv Jenay oL

¥3eil 10} §|BI0L VOV
_oo.o _ _oo.o _ _oo.o _ _oo.o _ Fo.c _ it .03E:one._.ém_sﬁ<n<u$3hﬂu9.“wW__wc.”_“

(521 3050} YOV PESEG-WO0ISSEDUON SLONNISY)
- : . 5 i SUBMPAD PASUSONT - SIOYDS VRUEIZOSUON “2HGNALON
_co 0 _ 000 000 00°0 00'0 r soppue [(1)(e)o9£9s 03] SI00UOT URUEESUON

‘HGNdUoN - voneanp3 [erads Jeap papuANa

YOV PISEG-WOMISSEDUON

i i - . SUDHNISU] SURIBIYD PESUT - SOOUS

_ i e 000 LI &2 uBPEISeSUON "dianduon Jopue [(ZKelaeges 23)
S|004ag uBLeIRRsUON ‘HndueN - uoneaNp3 [epeds

i i - . . {521 1051M0) YO PSSEG-WOOISSEIOUON
_ Ll 0 00 009 E2 [exalsreas o] vopenpg jepeds sees papusia

_co.o _ 000 000 00°0 00’0 (25} YV PeSRG-usoISSERUON JRnBey

YAV POSEQ-IUOOISSBIIION

o0 | [ooo ] [ooo | [o00 | [ooo s8 .mss@ﬁetozsfﬂghﬂhﬁu

(541 JoBIAT) WOV PASEGIC0ISSED SUINRSY

i . . . SURIPIIYZ) PASUB0IYT - SIOOYIE UBLELSSUCH "dgnduoy

_ s o joi0 00 e Jomue [{He}e9ees D3] S04 UBueasUON
‘2ngnduoy - uoHEanp3 |eeds Jeas pepuag

vav peseq

i N . g -WOCUSSRID SUTIMASUY U4PIIYD PASUBSIT - SI00UDS

_ el Ll goo 000 &8 ueueidasuoN "alanduon Jo/pue [(NE)99Ees 03]
SI00UOS UEHEIIFSUON ‘IANAUON - UORRSNP [2105dS

foo0

_ (521 1031MQ) vV PESEQ-WO0ISSE]

oo ooo ooo 00’0 000 % lteNalsvees 03] uoneanp3 reweds eas papuaia

—oo.o _ 000 000 000 000 18 VO PeSEQ-IOAISSEYY JEbay

0L Z|+6 sepei9 g4 sepesn g sepRID £3ML YV POSeG-IDOISSR[)

ER LT ¥4 |BUCHONIISU|

‘qey, uonedo|y YAy ey Aeidwoo
os|e 15U ()09, UoNseg D3 o) Juensund uojedNp3
10 peog g au Aq pancsdde siaueyD puR 9'S00LY

23 ©1 JWeNsINd pazuoyIng SIPUBLD BpAUNGD

'S

ybnony z spaooas o Gugebineu 4g 3°Q °D '8 sweelL
o) eIy Lodas pue *{g 0 | picoa) ML) B1buig
un'y ¥R I0) vQw podes saen feuooruisu st
Gunesado SICODS JaURT PI0RI Y HHLMML 2IBUIS
By} Ul Yy Ie poder $100yas 1eeyd yoen sjbuis

vay pelodey

G40 § pI1039Y



{000

| [ooo

| [oo0

| tooo

| jooo

‘angnducny 1o/pue ((Kelgates D3l siooues
_ & URLEIDESUON “JlIgnduo) - uonednp]] RIS IZ10L

oo0

| oo

| fooro

| [o00

| |ooo

_ 2t (-0 spuooay Iy 10 wng) vay [e)
(@s+£95 D3] uoneonp3 jepeds JeeA POpUBIT (AL

598z

REET

| [ezos

| [sese

| [soce

_ tr {10 sptoady Iy jo wNg) vy senbey jelol

S¥RIL (I 10) BMOL VOV

[se°982

| levee

| lsz0s

| fseso

| {ooee

{5-0 spuoday 18 Jo

_ Tl Ling) oyeiy Iy 01 S0 va PesEq-woaisseRUON

[00'0

| [oo0

| [ooo

| jooo

| |ooo

_ . (5-a spooa
HE Jo WNg) SHI8IL I 40} SIEIOL YOV PISEq-WoaIsSel)

inoL

b6 SepRI

| oo

| oo0

| 000

6L sepEID

000

000

00°¢

oy sopun

000

000

000

000

000

000

12 B

SHIRIL 1Y 20} OV peLedey jo Lswiwng

Alewung

-3 ul papRpu!
3 '9'srs 4§ pue (Gl ZI04Y 03I 01 wenund ‘Gupuny
10} etquBie 1ou yOw Apnig Juepusdepu) peseg esinod

§-0 W PEPNPUL ‘G 6RLLS I
o1 wensind ‘YO APNIS 1uepusdepu peseg eRNCD

§-0) ul papnpw
3 100 pue §'5p2 LG pue () 2192 53 O Juensind
Buipun) Joj 91qIBN® 10U Y'Y POSEG-UIOMSSEPUON

vav 9o

[oo0

| [o00

| [oo0

| [oo0

| [ooo

(z-3 pue |-3 jo wing) (5}000gF D3 o1 wensand

T3 ousBiopury jeuonsueL] ! SUBPMS 10; VAV (€10l

[o00

| looo

| [oo0

| [oo0

| oo

000

| {ooo

| [ooo

| [oo0

| ooo

{Auo

WY JESA 15U "URICT £)3UHLY 60 BUIT LI papNiUY
(2)0008F D3 @ juensind uatieBiapun; jeucHisUel )
Ul SUBPNIS J0) VY PESRO-UOISSEL-UON

(AuO vay fesa 154 ‘uwniod £33 58
13 sur)u papnpul {3)000sY I3 o) uensund uspeBiapuly
(BUOQISURIL U} SIUBPMS J0) V(Y PESEQ-LLONISSED

Aepanq is

SIOUN (LN JBSA |0OYIB S JO PUS 0L PUR PIE dunr
eq G Bunum SUApMS Jo) YOy epnjoxg seek
(oouas sy jo Aep 1say oy BujuuiBeg yay sweusl
Aew puz suny pue puz Jequisideg usemeq

§ Win) oym SIUIPNIS Ajuo Bak 100YIS ST-FTOT

YOy uonebBaepuy jRUORISURIY

fooo

| [ooo

{ looo

| [ooo

| [ooo

_ - {¥-0 ubnouYy 1-0 JO WNg) yoeJL 40} SIEI0L YOV

(D + v8) YOV (521 J0SIAK]) sSuonMASU|

[oo0

| [oo0

| fooro

| [oo0

| [o00

SURIPIIYD PIFUSDIT - SIOOYIG UBLIBIDSSUON 'DINGUON
1o7pu [{2He}ooces D3 SI0UIS URLEIISUCN

‘agqnduoy - uoneanp3 (eeds Jes) POPUBI |10,

{£-D + e-8) vav

ooo

| fooo

| foo0

| [ooo

| [ooo

SUCHMRSU] USIPIYD PESUSDTT - SIOOUIS LUBLBIOBSUON
‘oygnduon sorpue [{2)e)gaeos O3] sooues

UBUEZIIRSUON "HIgNduon - UONEDNPT |e1ads jejoL

~?



Buyuyewsas pog

abessaw Jnok uradA)

S3JON

_oo.c _ _oo.o _ _ood _ _oo.o _ _oo.o _ §7  {r1ufinoxn 170 wing) SIISI] IN 40 SIEGL VAV
tv

B | fore | oo | [0 | [0 | 1 wievrn ene rm eroen

20spue [(Ke)99£95 23] SIo0uS UBLRIIGSUON
‘agnducy - LoneINp3 feneds Jeas, pepudlx] JeloL

(£-H Spsoo9Y IIv Jo WNS) YaY suonmasyy

[ooo | [ooo | [ooo | [oo0 | [oo0 | e ot e (| Nlo8£95 031 9008
UBLEID8SUON llqNducy - UoNEINRT R1adS [elo)

fooe | [ | [oo ] foro | [oco e aigncii il
[ooo | [ooo | looo I [ooo | looo [ e {1-H sPucoe: lle Jo wins) v einbay IEI0L
sausPIERY JO NILNSIQ IIV 10) S{EIOL YAV

—OQ.O — _OO.O _ —DOO _ _OO.O \_ —DD.O — el E:m“_ SIHASIA IV 40} 5|90l YOY Bﬂnamm%—“—”oﬂ
_oo.o _ _oo.o _ —oo.o _ —oo.o _ _oo.o _ = 0 WNS) SPUASIA IV 10} SIRI0L VOV u%%ﬁ
SIaUeYD PIZUOYINE

uoneaNp3 Jo puecq SIWS PUE 9'5002p D3 01 uensund

POZUOIINE SI00UIS JAURYD apIMAIUNCO 0] Biqednddy

10 SIS IV 40) YOV pouadey E.N,.uﬂm.u.”“

_mm.omm _ —w VL2 _ _m\..om _ _mm.mm _ Eo.mm _ & {#F yBnouy) |1 Jo Wng) syoRY) Iy J0) SIRNNL YAY
{v=Q sPuoo8s |fy 4O WNS) VY Suolmasu

fore | [0 | oo | [ | [ ety

"2iqnduon - UDREINPT (BRAAS JEOA PAPUTIXT [BI0L

(£-Q spioasy | o wng) yQy suonnigsy)
SURPIIYD PASUSIN] - SI00U~ MIELIEPIBSUDN



uonesysD Maln

BUON :uopkaNpT jo eouO AJUNoD
Wd LSSEL SZ0Z/LLIY - 18jeysu oIS 10oYas
Wd ZL6Z) SZOZILLIY - Es1eneysy) yBISIaa0 101181 - OOYIS JoLRYD

UOREBWIOU| UONEIYRISD

Wd vS8C1L STOZ/LLIP 2)eg uopepljeA Jse

£sierBysLy Ag uopep|iea 15T

Wd L8 L SCOLILLY 8je( PeAEg 1se]
g£sieaeysuy Ag peaeg 1521

sjie3eQ

D qaz-y a el

D ez el

"PBIDBIES SHIR) (|8 JO} UORBULIOM

o UIBIUOD O} PEBU [ ARUe E1ep Juenbasqns :BIoN 19pJIC [Raneqryd)e
Ul HI84) [EUCHIPPR YIRS PUB Y HIRIL JO} XOG G4} HIOYD

|-y U] PEISRIeS SEam (HORINIINYE) S04 4 1ENIRAL JRUCHINNSY)

T {naway Buis) ON
‘ £ 8yaea) [Ruoqonasu) s|dynw sjeiedo [00YDS JELEYD P S90Q

e (peniynw) s34
B LSy} [RuoIonuSY) 9(dpnu 918edo |0OLIS JSLIRYD S 800

gLeysed gl ejeq
snjejs Japeyd

S9J0N Aewwing uonedo|v Yay vay SNiels Jopeyd

S84 uogepi|eA ejeq passed
sBujuiep jo JequinN
50413 JO JagqUINN
SPIOS9Y JO JaquInN

w oo

uoieULIOJU| UOHEPIIEA

BLZrSed gl eea

SE61 Jaquiny Jeueyd

GEBLELO ZLLE9 Y #po2 S92

abefoa ;jooyog sepeyD wnagg [LLTET
eseqeq elues funon

uonewscju) fipul

UCIIEULICHU} PI022Y

[00YaS Jepeyn aoUepusiY

eolas JeueyD ecuepuely / #8A0A JROUDS JeURUD WNIALL [ (004D JBLEYD / Anug Eleg / ewoH

2-d 52-¥20Z :pouad Buuodsy *Z-d §Z-+Z0ZT *8I0AD Buissedoid

(Oawd) uonrajjor) eleq Juswuonioddy jednulgd



e

08

0goagd

aLy

PLY

Ay

Qs

er-y

Fis 4

agy

Bgry

Y

5%

sv

3

@y

Fpell

Qxoey)

2%

R TR

v poeiLnoRl) obus

‘enuuy

1B SI00Yos Jebieys e 1o pasinbey reed |2osy ey Buunp uogesado
POSESd [0OYIS }f Z-d PUB |-d I8 PauInba) Au( 'uopeledQ o sdeq
3wpeiL

awest

¥Rt

aeiy

W PRl poe), sbug

pesEs) UORINOSUL J0 uonRISd (AAAPPAUIW) Bleg

(£~w sur] 031 uo Bacw) ON

{9-v oun o) uo sacw) §3A

LIeoA RISy JusLnD
289D 00y MRy 3y PIG

”)

oy Bupnp vopangsul so

3 40ely,

a¥wel)

D HoBIL

g AoerL

VORIl Bilug

pesuswWILOY wononsu) (AAAppaLw) egeg
(s~v sur] 03 ue aA0W) ON

{=v dur 0} U0 Ba0W) I

Juoneiedo Jo seek 1851 S) W) OOUIE JSHRYD SIY) 5]
ER-LTIS

ey}

ey



{000 | o000 00'0 00'0 000
000 | oo0 000 000 000
foo'o | oo 00°0 000 00'0
lessLe | szes L0°65 5198 SPELL
loo'o | looo | [oo0 | [ooo | [ooo
ooro | ooo 000 00'0 00'0
ooo | o000 000 000 000
ooo | oo 00°0 000 000
loo'o | ooo 000 000 00'0
1oL Ch-6 sepeg gL sapRugy B-p SBpRID £ 1ML
V ML S1BuIg
D 28y
N qg-v
D Bg-Y
) oev
| -

ropue [(ZHelotes 93] s100usg veuEssuoN

) *oHQNGUON - UONEINPT [S19dS JEBA PepUSK
Yy pesed-uodISSePRuoN
&0 SUORNYISU| SUBIPIYD PESUSIN - SIO0UIS

veueesuoN ‘agnduoy sopue [(1{e)sstes 03]
$I004IS URLIEYISUGN "JIGNAUON - uoeanp3 [Bneds

{521 J081A1Q) V(v PBSEG-UOQISSERUON

&2 [{eMQ)srEgs O3] vonesnp3 [epeds Jee), pepuaxy

-0 VIV POSEG-UIOTSSRRUON Jeinbay

YAY PESEG-LOOJSTEIDUON

(- uBnonn
1-g JO WING) YOBIL 10} SIEI0L V(Y PESE-UODISSE(D

{541 105MQ) YO PeSEq-uo0SSES SUoinnsY)
PILD P 0} - SI00US Ue! N “sgqnduoy
soppus [{1)(e)aates 23 slooyss uepeldasuon
"MGNAUON - LONEINP3 [e1edg Jee) papuaig

Yy peseq
“UDQUSSE]D SLOANIISU| USIPIYD PaSUSdIT - SI004RS
VBUEIDESUON ‘HiGnduch Jo/pue [(2Keleaces D3]
SI00YOS UBLEIIRSUON "DIIQNCUON - UOMEBDNPT (BRadg

€8

(521 1051MQ) vV peseq-woassser)
[(eXalspeas A vonedanps [eneds Jesy pepuexg

8
4 WV PasBq-WooIsse))) Jemnbay
YAV POSEG-WO0ISER}D

#oBAL |BuoRInNgSY)

“qeL LoKetlly YOy 2 sle/dwoo

as{e 18nu (I$09Lr uenRes D3 o Juensund uonesnpy

10 pueog S1E1S Byl Aq pescsdde Suapeyd puB 9'S00LP
23 0) Juensind PEZUCYINE SIFURYS 3pWAUncy)

]
ybnouy z sp0oe: of Bunebineu 49 3 'Q "0 g sxoRIL
10} YOy Hodas pue (S Jo | piooa) v MHLMNL AlBuis
ULy ORI ) Y Bodas $y28I) [BUOHINIISU SN
Bunessdo SI00UDS JBLEUD PIOD8) ¥ HH LML Sifus
QU1 Uy (¢ Lodas $100y3s Jepeyd yoai ejbulg

vay pepodey
G 10 | piodsy

vav

UCHEUKILIOD
POSEQ-LIOUISSRIILON
POSBQ-UOOISSEID)

uonsnnsu) yo sdAL s sleanpu)

—



[ooo | ooo 00'0 000 00'0
o0 | ooo 000 000 000
[oo0 | oo0 00°0 000 00°0
[zs¢ | fooo [ fooo | [ooo | [ese
[zec | fooo | looo | fooo | eee
[oo0 | [ooo | {ooo | 000 | ooo
[essre | [szes | [206s | [szee | [sren
looo | looo | foo0 | [oo0 | oo
[ooo | [ooo | {ooo | [ooo { looo
|oo0 | fooo | Jooo [ {ooo | [oo0
[zssie | [szes | leoes | [szoe | [sren
[zs'ste | [szes | [206s | [s298 | [sren

&3

3

3

£3

S-a

tQ

&a

g

50

Bunesoedo SI004S JBUBYD PI02RI Y HE LMY L SIS
au) U1 QY |[B podad SI00yDs 1aueLD Yor) ajbulg

vQv pepodey

G jo Z piodsy
vav

-3 Ul pepnpul
'9'srlLS pue (Q)5'ZL9Lr D3 o) juensind ‘Bupuny
4o} alqib1a 10U yOv AP wapuadapu| peseq asuned

$-0 Ui pBpNPRUl ‘G GELLS D3
0) juensund "y gy ApmS Juepuadapu) peseg esnod

S0 Y| pepnpL
10U pue §'st2 LG pue {q)5'Z1 940 D3 0 juensnd
Buipuny 10} 2161618 10U WY PESeq-WOASSeRUON

vavago

{2-3 pue -3 jo wng) (2)0008F O3 A Juensund
uapiefuepuly [EUONISURLL U SJUBPMIS 10} YOV I€10),

(Ao

YAV JBA 150 'WINISD £-HALL} §-0 BN Ul pepNRUI
{9)0008r D3 o1 wensund uspebiepuny) [eussUel]
W STUBPNIS 10) (] PeSBqUOISSe)-UaN

(AuO wGv J80A 15I14 “UWNED E-HAIL) §-8
aur u papnpu (9X000ar 23 ©) wensind vepebiopury
JEUCILSURL] Ul SIUSPNIS JO; YTV PaSEq-WOocISERD

Kepulag s

Aoty [RUN JESA [OCUSE S JO PUB B} PUE PIE SUNP
ussmieq & Bujwing SIWBPRIS 10} YOV SPNEIXT JBek

1ooyas ey} Jo Aep Jsuy eyl Buluu|Beq ygv seseust
ABw puz sunp pue puz sequieides usemeq

§ winy oym sguepms fuo ieek |0OYIS S2-PTOT

vy vepeBiapuy [euensuRLy
{0 ubrcuyt 1-q ;o wAg) NoRIL 20§ SIBI0L YO

{0 + 1-8) vav (L1 Josiug) suognisyy

SUBIPIILD POSUEDI - SIS UBLIZIISSUON 'JignduoN
sorpue [(2{E)99e9s D3] SI00UDS UBLEKBSUON
‘aegnduoy - uogeanp3 [epads Jes pepues |BloL

(g-0+ -8) vOv

SUONMIASU| LBIPAYD PISUBANT - SO0 URLEIISSUON
‘sljanduony fogpue [(£Ke}goges 53l sieoues
URHRIDISUON '§qnducN - uoREaNnp3 jenesds @10k

(2-0 + z-8) (62} JoswQ) vav lig)
[9)5t£46 3] voneanp] eReds Jea, papuad (BI0L

(10 + 1-8) vav senBey 1e10]
WIRIL 10} |EI0L VAV

{2 ybnouyp |
=0 JO WNg) Joel) 10} $IEI0L YO PESBG-LOMISSRIOUON

(SL1 1081M0) YA PISEQ-WOVISSERUGN SUOHMsy)
SUBIPIILS PESUBOYT] - SIOOUIS UBLIERID™ "N "HINduoN

_—



[ooo | [oo0 | [oo0 | looo | fooo (==
o0 | fooo | |ovo | [ooo | jooo | ea
|oo'0 I fooo | fooo | [ooo | [ooo | =0
000 | looo | looo | [ooo | [oo0 | o
000 | fooo | [eoo | fooo | |o00 | so
000 | oo 000 00'0 00°0 0
o070 | oo 000 00°0 000 £
o0 | o0 000 00°0 000 20
{000 | o000 000 000 00'0 0
[eoro | looo | [oo0 | [ooo | [ooo L
[ooo 000 000 00°0 000 ra
oo | o000 000 000 000 &8
loo'o | 000 00°0 00°0 000 z8
ooo | 000 00'0 000 000 =

el Z1-§ sepeusy -1 sepesg) ¥ SOPRID ML

o |
S S’

sopue [(2Xelagces 3] SIeouas uBLELaSUGY
"Jgnducn - uCNEINP3 (B80S JBa PBPURIXT 18101

€0+ e-ghvay

SUOIAYISU| UBIDRYD) PASUBDN - FIO0UDS UBUEIASUTN
“augnduon Jorpue [(£)e)99e9s D3] souRs
UBLEIISUON ‘JIGNAUON - UONEINRT 13905 (B10L

(2-0 + 2-8) (g1 sosw) vav [(E)
{g)syEes D3| vogeonpl epeds Jes), pepusing (el

{1-0 « 1-8) vav sepnbay (g0l

¥IRI), 10) SIEIOL VAV

{2 uBnouy
-0 JO WNG) ¥0RIL 10} SIEI0}, YV PESEG-UIOOISSERUON

(541 108N0) YO PESEG-WOAISSBIOUON Suoaniusy|
SUIPIIUD PESUSN - SIDOYDS LUELEISUON "HIgnducly
Jopue [(Z{e)99£85 DT SI00UOS UeteRasuoN
“2I|qRAduoN - UOREINPS [ERRdS Jee), pepueIxa

YOV POSEQHLUOMISSRRUON

SUHMASU| SUSIPIYY PESUBN - SIO0YS
ueueasuoN ‘sngnducn sopue [(2{e)geres 03l
SIOOUIS UBLERSSUON 'onqnduoN - uogeonpd (eads

(521 JostQ) YOV PaSEq-LIOtISSERUON
[{eHaksreas D3] voneanp3 (ewadg Jeap papuepa

VOV PesSRG-WOoNSSRRUON Jeinbay

YAV PeLRG-WOMEER|DUDN

(t~g ybnong
1-8 JO WNS} ¥oB1] 10) SF30) V(Y POSEq-UIOSSRLD

{541 Jos1NQ) YOV PRSEG-WOOSSSID SUOHAsY|
SUBIPIIYD PASUACT - SIOMDS UBLIBISESUON "Sanduon
soppue [(2)(e)gaces D3] stooyos ueuspasuoN
"HYnduoN - UoEINP [eXAdS Jea) PepLRTA

wav peseq

-WWOCUSSE]D SUCINIASY) UBIPIIUD PISURIN + SI00U2S
vepERsuoN “oqnduon so/pue [(2(e)geres 03]
SIOOLSE UBLEIISSUON ManduoN - uoneonp] [eneds

($21 105M0) wQw poseq-woousser)
[{eXaispeas D) vonesnp3 ewads Jeay, papuaxg

vy pesegwoossse|d Jeinboy
YOV POSEG-UOISER)

AL jeuoongEY)

“Qe), UONBIOIY YAY Sy
ospe 1snw (N)500.Lp UORES DI o) wensind voneanp3
Jo jueoq Aels 24 Aq panaudde ieueyd PUe §'S09.LP
23 0] Wensind PBZUCRNE SIePBUS Spiiunc)

i

yBnoy Z spsoces 0y Bunebiaeu 49 3°'Q "D '8 SPRIL
10) (y Lodas pue (g Jo | p10oal} v MELR Sibuig
U) ¥ H0RIL JO) YOV HOCR) SRR [BUOS T ILSU) Hdnjiuw

-



[ooo

| ooo0

[0

| oo

1oL

| ooo

| ooo

| ooo

716 sepmIn

000

00’0

000

000

000

-2 S9pRiD

000 000

000 000

Gy SEpRID

e R TE

000 000

00°0 000

000 000

loo'o

| [ooo

| Jooo

| [oo0 | [ooo

[oo'o

| fooo

| fooo

| looo | ooo

000

| fooe

| fooro

| |ooo | o000

000

| [ooo

| [oo0

| [ooo | [oo0

(521 JosM0) WOV paseq-wooisse|D
[ieNa)s¥eas D3] uoneonp3 erads Jeep papus

4]
-8 WOV peseGocssse|D Jeinboy
YOV PISEGUIOO0ISSR|D

¥oel) feuniiongsuy

"

‘e UoNBIOYY YOV Sl 035t
osje jsnw {¥)509.p vonsag D3 of juenwund uopeanpy
o pieog a1e15 8w Aq panoxdde sisHEYS PUR 9'S09LP
93 o) JuEnsnd pazUCLINE SISLIBLD SPMAIUNeD

k]

ybnoay Z sprooas o) Gupebiaew A9 3°'Q *D '8 SwoRaL
30}y podas pug (g 10 | PI0oel) ¥ NHLHMYL eibulg
U1y 30eL J0) YA poda) syael [eucnaniisul apdinu
Gunesado $joouds JBUBYY 'PICOBI Y WY LML BlBulg
84} U1 YOV II2 bodas S100y0s Jaueys yoen abuls

vav pepaday

§ Jo g plooey

vav

#3 Ut papnpu
o3 ‘o'SpLLS pue (Q)5°Z1L9L D3 0 wensund 'Buipuny
Joy epqibie you wQy ApniS Juspuadepu) paseg asineg

G- U PAPNPIUL 'S GRS D3

53 g wensind ‘vav Apnig juepusdepu) paseg asmod

S0 Ul pepnpu
3 10U pUe O'SpZ1LS PuR (Q)SZL 941 D3 o) juensind
Buipun; so) efab11e 10U YOV PESEE-WOISSERUON

YOV 1800

{z-3 pue L-3 yo wng) (2)0008Y D3 O} juensund

T3 Loustipun euomsuzLy  SHSPNIS 10y YAV (€10

{Ano

YAV 4294 1534 "N £-XHL) §-3 eun Ul pepajour
(3)0008% D3 01 Wensund vepebiepun |euonisuRl)
U $JUBPNIS 10} YQY PISEQ-UOQISSEID-UCH

3

(AU VOV JeeA 1S4 "UWNED E-1HIL) 58
-3 ouryw pepnpul (Dj00dy ©3 o) uensind usuebispury
[RUCTISURIL Ul SIUAPNES 10} YO POSEGHUOMISSEL)

Aepyng uis

2191 [RUN JBSA [G0YIE B4 JO PUB B PUR pug U

usamjoq § Bujuiny KUBPNIS 10} YOy PN Sl

jooyas ey jo Aep jsuy oy) BujuuiBaq vy sjeieust
Aew puz sung pue puz Jequaidas usamiaq

§ LINy oym SAPNIE Ajuo IRad [00YDS SZT-FZOT

vay usuetisepu)) [euopsuelr

_ sa {0 4BRoA] 4-Q 4O UING) ¥DRiL 30) STEIOL VAV

(-2 + 8} vav (521 108} suonnnsu)

SUBIMIYD P 1« SIGOYDS URLIERA™ "M "I N

—




[o00

| fooo

| fooo

| fooo

{M0008Y DI o1 uensnd uvapetiapuny euonisues)
_ 000 z3 U SJUBPALS 10} YA PESEG-LIOGISSEID-UON

(Avo yav sees 1514 'uwneD e-4 L) §-B

o070

| |ooo

| fooo

| fooo

_ 000 -3 sur u pepnpu {30008y 33 0 ensind usyEBiapur)

leuonisug)] 1 SIURPNLS JO) YV PASEG-LLCOISSE)

Aepuypq wig
3B IBUN Jee [00YIB Sy) JO PUS B} PUR PIE BUNP
ueamjeq 5 Bupun) syueprus 10} YO Bpnjoxg Jeek

jooKa% ey Jo Lep sty ays BujuuiBeq vy sieseush
Aew puz sunp pue puz Jsqueides usemiaq
§ UM oYM SJUOPNIS AJU0 LIESA [GOYDS SZPTOT

Vv uspebuspury [Tucnisuel)

| fooo

| jooo

| [oo0

_ _oo.o _ sa {#-Q yBnouyl 1-0 Jo WNS) yoRIY S0 SIENC) VY

{#0 + 8} YGY (541 J081A1]) Suopnipsul

| fooo

| fooe

[ looo

: _ g SUPPIND POSUEIL] - SI00UIG UBLEIITUON ‘opqndud
_ _oo 0 lomue [(£){e)gaggs D3] Sicoyas UBPElISSUDN

‘onqnduo - uonesnpd [epeds Jes) papusix3 1810
{g-0 + £-g) vav

] fooo

| ooo

| jooo

._ gug  SUOINIISU) UBIDEUD PISUSOI - SI00YIS UBEROSUON

_ _oo.o ‘snanduon Jopue HHel9gc9s O3] sloouss

UeHEIRasUON 'HaNduoy - uoleanp3 jepads eIOL

| oo

| looo

| fooo

[ foor | 2o (20 + 2-9) (521 Joswg) vav [(e)
s (alsreas D3] uoneanpy |eReds JEAA PAPUSIKD [BI0L

| jooo

| fooo

| [oo0

_ _co.o _ 1-Q {1-2 + 1+-8) vay seinbay moL

WoRIL 30} SIRIOL VOV

| Jooo

| {ooo

| looo

. (2 ybnoay |
_ —OO Y * 2 -2 40 WA} }OBI) J0J S[ENDL VOV PESEQ-MOQISSERUON

| oo

foo'e

| oo

[oo0

| ooc

oo

| 000

000

000

Q00

000

000

000

000

000

(S} J0514Q) WY PESEG-UOMSSBAUON SUCIMASY|

. - SUBIPJIYY) PASUSHN - SIOOUIS UBLELDHSUON “I4ANUON
000 1o/pue [(£Ke)9E9s D3] SI00uIS venBRasUoN
"HKNAUON - UOIIEONET (B108dS Jea) papuapa

YOY POSEG-WLONISSERUON

. SUORNYISU SUBIPJIUD PASUDN - SIOOUIS
000 &2 veueesuon "argnduch opue [(2Xe)eeses 93]
SPOYDS UBLBIDSSUON "ORGNIUCH - UONBINP3 eReds

. (521 J081MQ) YOV PRSEQ-LIGQISSRPUON
000 %0 [(s)alsreos 03] uoneonp3 1e0ads JeoA POPUER

000 B VOV PESEg-WONISSEPUON Jenbay

VAV PesEq-W00IESBIOUON

[ooo

| [oo0

| fooo

| [ooo

_ _ N _ o {r-g ybnony
000 1-8 JO WING) YIRIL 1) SIEI0L WY PESEG-WOOISSELD

fooo

| o000

oo0

| 000

00°¢

000

000

000

{521 J0SIQ) YOV PESEq-L00ISSe|D SUGMIsY)

. SUGIPIILD PISUSNT - SIOOYIS UBLEIDASUON "InqnduoN
000 ve sojpue [(ZKelageas D3] sIooues veusresuoN
‘qnduon - oNEINP3 [Beds JBSA papusixa

vy peseq

, AUORISER|T SUCINISU] UBIPHYT PASUSHT - SI00UIS
000 &8 ueuecesueN "anduo Jopue [(Kelesees o3l
SIOOYHS UBUBIIASUON ‘MINAUON - ueheanp3 [eneds

—



oo | ooo 000 000 00'0
000 | o000 000 000 000
oo | looo | looo | [oo0 | [o00
jooo | oo0 00°0 000 000
[oo0 | o000 00'0 00'0 00'0
looo | 000 000 000 000
fooo | oo 00'0 000 000

leseL C1-6 sepeay 8L SpRID o+ 53pRID €MML

Q@ oriL

fooo | o000 00'0 00'0 000
foo'o | o000 000 000 000
[ooo | o00 000 000 000
fooro | Jooo | [o00 | Jooo | [oo0

j -

e

8

3

§3

3

{521 JOSIMQ) YOV Peseq-LooIsseouoN
[(e)a)sveos D3] vonesnp3 leeds Jeay, pepustny

WY POSEG-WO0ISSBIUON Jeinbey

YAV Pstg-WC0ISSEOUON

{t-g yBnonp
}+6 J0 WNG) ¥Oe4) IO} SIRI0L V(W PESET-LO0ISSELD

{521 xsMIQ) YOY PESEN-W0ISSE]) SucHNINSU
SUBIPHUZ) PIEUEAT - SICOYRS UBLEIIOSUON SIIGNdUoH
sopue {ZHe)ea€9s OI] SIOUDS UBLEIBSUCHN
‘anqnducy - LOREINPZ |EedS JEBA pepusixy

YOV peseq

-UOGUSEE]S SUCONINSU] UBIRIYT POSUSON - SI00UDS
uepEaesuaN "HanduoN sompue [ Xelgacas D3l
SIOOUSS URLEISSSUON "SHGNAUGN - uoneonp3 fepeds

{621 JosmQ) YO pesequotusser)

lieMa)sreas 03] uoneanp3 (ePeds Jeea pepusixy
wQv paseq-wooisse| Jejnbey

VOV PISRQ-LIGQIESE(D)

HoBIL JEUOINASY)

'geL UONEIOY YOV 2yl a1edwod
osie 15wl ()09, F UoRDeS A3 0) uensind uonesnpl
J0 paeCg 81T B Aq pencudde SieLRYD PUB 9'SOSLY

53 o) juensind peZUCUIne sIBELD BpwAiuncy

S

yBnouy Z spuooss o) Bunebineu £q 3 'Q "D g sHoel,
10} vy Hodes pue (G JO | piooel) ¥ HELMYL 8iBug
uy yoRIL Jo) YOy Wodas sxoen feuonanasul sdninw
Bungsedo SIeoues JaUeyD PIodal ¥ HELMYL sIfus
U Ul YOV (12 Loday S10040s Jepeyd ars SiBuig

vay pepodey

G40 ¥ pio23y

vav
3 Ul papniuy
'O'Sp21S pue (Q)5ZLELP D3 o wensund 'Buipury
20y 21q1By® 10U wQv APNIS luspusdepuy) paseg asinoD

S0 W pEPNIL 'S'E6PLLS D3
o) Juensund "yJv ApnIS Iuepusdapu) peseg esinoy

-0 Ul PApNpUY|
10U pUB $'§PZ LS PUB (QlGZ19LP D3 O Wensnd
Buypuny sty #)qiis 160 I POSAG-UODISSBIIUON

Vav 10

(-3 pue 1-3 jo wng) (2)0008Y I3 of wensnd
uapebsapury |BUOIISHEL) Ul SUAPMIS JO} YOV [210L

{Aug
WOV JBOA 18I UWRICD €MLY §=0 < 1 Ul papniauy

~—



vav
3 Ul papp
—ood _ 00°0 000 00’0 000 @3 weris pue Q157192 OF o wensind Buspuny
05 s1q:6e Jou yQV ApryS Juepuedepu) peseg emnc)

- = = - . G-0 Ul pepniaut ‘G'erL LS D3
foo0 | ooo 000 000 000 3 ensind 'va Aerus wepusdep poset stnos

§-2 U1 papnpU
—oo.o _ 000 000 00’0 000 +3 10U pUE 9'Gp2 1S Pue (Q)5'Z1L9.Lp D3 01 wensund
Buipuny 10} e1qiBIS 10U YOy PESEQ-WOCISSEPUON

vavy o

fooo | jooo | looo | fooo | [ooo ©3 cumanunt o WA 3 vy B

(Ao

B . R . , g VAW JE8A 1114 ULNOD £-3/ L) §-2 8UI Ul papapul
_oo 0 _ _co 0 _ _oo 0 _ _oo 0 _ 000 ot (2)0008% 53 o) Wwensind uepetepuny jeuoiisuri}
Ul SIUSPNIS 10} YO PISEG-LOOISSEI)-UON

{AuO vy 3605 1803 ‘owniod ML) §-3
{000 | [oo0 [ looo _ _oo.o | ooo 1.3 o) u papARUI {30008y D3 0} uenssnd uspeBiapury
JeUOISUBI. Ul BIUBPIS Jo} VY PISECHLIOOISSEID)

Kepyuiq yis

Jj8Y) |RUR JERA [S0YIS B JO PUD B PUR PUE sunf
d § Bupung spuepius Jo) gy epnpax3 eek

looyas oy 3o Aep isiy ey BujuurBeq way a1eseuet
Aew pug sunf pue puz Jequeideg usemiaq

§ LN} OyMm SIUSPNIS AU LIRSA |0OYIS SZ-PTOT

vay veneiuspupy [euop|sues)

_ao.o _ _co.o _ _co.o _ _m_o.o _ _oc.o _ ) (- uBnowp |~ Jo Wng) ¥orlL IO} SIEIOL YAY

{0 + +-9) vav (G2} JO5IMA) SuoAnINSY|

_ va SUBIPIYY POSUSDN) - SIOOYDS UBLEIIGSUGN “mjanduan
soppue [( 2K e}9ees D3] Siooyos URLEISUON

"GRAUSN - UONEIND3 [eRaeds Jeas pepuelxd 1eloL

000 | fooo | [ooo | looo | {ooo

(€0 + el vav

_ g SUOIFTISUI UBIDIID PASUBDI - SOOI UBUEIIISUON
"ongnduon Jo/pue [(2Heloaees 93] seoues

ueuelesUON 'JignduoN - UOREINPT [BRedS (E10L

[ooro I [ooo | [ooo | [ooo | fooo

[ooo | fooo ] ooo | looo | fooo eI

oo | fooo | fooo | [ooo | looo | +a (10 + 1-8) vaV seinbey feloL

¥3mi) 10) BEIOL VAY

_ (=0 ubnou |

_%.o \_ _oc.o _ _oo.o _ _co.c _ _ood ) JO W) ¥OR1] JO} $|2101 YOV POSEQ-LIOCISSRIDUON

(5.1 J051M0) YOV PAseq-LOMSSERUCN Suoniisy)

s . . . . SUBIDHYD) PRSUBDNT - SIO0UTS UBLIZISASUON 'SignduoN
_oc 0 _ 000 000 000 000 o o/pue [[Ne)9a£95 D3] 510040 UBYERESUON
‘agnducy - uoneInp3 (ereds JBBA pepuelNa

VOV PESEG-LIO0ISSBPUON

. . suonmasy| PRYD P M = S|o0Yyag

_oo.c _ 000 g0'0 000 00°0 &2 ueuedSsuO ‘Jygnduo Jospue [{£)E)gaces D3]
SIO0UIS uB), )N *24gnduop - uaneonp3 [ereds

| — L — —



(2-0 + z-g} (52t om0} vav [(e)

looo _ looo _ |ooo _ _oo.o _ _oo.o _ T0  (igrees 03] uoneanp3 jeeds sess papusixa sejo)

oo | |oo0 | looo | |ooo | [oo0 | o (10 + 1-8) vy epboy oL

yorly 1oj S|EI0L YAV

(- yBnong |

_oc.c _ _oo.o \_ —oo.o _ _oo.o _ _oo.o _ o -7 O WING) HOB1) JO) SRIOL V(Y PRSEG-LWIOOJSSEIUON

(S44 J081M0) YA PESEG-LUBOISSBRUON SUO(INASU|
SUSUPHYD POSUSIT] - SIO0YIS URLEISeSUON ‘Ignducy
Jofpue [(KE}99tes 03] SI00UDS UBLESSUON
'21/gnduo - UONEINPT eSS JesA pepuexy

[oco | ooo 00'0 000 000 o

V(Y PASEq-WOoMSSERUON
suonmpsU| SUBIPIIYD PESUBIIT - SIOOUOS
ueuEPSsUSN "agnduon Jopue [{2)eogeas o3l
$POYSS UELERaSUON ‘Hiqnduo - LOREoND |epeds

ovo | oo 00'0 00’0 00'0 £0

{S41 )0SIMQ) YAV PASEG-LIOOISSEPUON

_oo.o _ 00'e 000 000 00°0 &0 [(eMalsrEes D) uoneanp3 jepeds Jeay pepusxz

oo'o | ooo 00°0 000 00°0 1o VaY pasequoassepuoN seintoy

VAV PSR ILIOOISSRMUON

(-8 yBnoap
1-8 J0 Wng) XorLL 10} SIEI0L YOV POSEG-WOMISSELD

[ooo | [ooo | [ooo | Jooo | |ooo 50

(521 J0SIMQ) VOV PESEQ-UDOISSEED SUCKNASU}
BUSIHIYD P 17 - SP0YDS URLIEY SN ‘HNdUCN
sopue [{ 1 1(e)00£96 3 §100UdS ueuepasuON
“NQndUoN - UCTEINP3 |eReds Jess PapusIx3

o0 | 000 000 000 00°0 re

vav paseq
“UOISSE]) SUOBMINSU| USIPRYY) PASUSI(T - SI00WRS
UBNEROSUON ‘Hignduon Jo/pue [(H=)egees D3)

o A

SIOOYOS UBNEISSUON "JIlq N - Uofleanp erads

[ooo | ooo 00'0 000 000 ea

. . . . i {641 JosIMQ) VOV PESEG-UONISSED
_oo o _ 000 000 000 000 &8 lieHalsreas D3] uoneonpa jeweds Jeap pepuepa

loo'o | ooo 00°0 00°0 000 e vav pesac-woossse Jeinbey

el 716 sepesgy 8- SeprID &b sEpRY E-NPIL YOV PeSEQ-UO0ISERID

3 yori| ¥R jeuononasy|

"qEL UeneIo)y Y ay) alsidwos
osje 1snw (f509LE uosdag D3 o) wensind uoeanp3
10 PUEOg J|E1S By} Ag pancidde SIPEUD PUB §'S00LY

23 01 WENSING PIZNOUING SUAMRYD IpmAjunos)

G

ybnouuy Z spioaad o) Bupebinew 49 3°Q "D '8 spPRIL
0} WCIY Hodes pue (g JO | pIOSRI} Y ML, bug
U1V 941 I0) (Y Bodal 338 [euogdnusul sy
Guneiado S10040S JALEYD RIS Y HHLMHL 3Burs
oyl ul YOy 12 Loday $j00uDs JaLeYD yoed HEug

vav papadey

§Jo G ploasy

S S ~—t?



jooo

| jooo

| Jooo

| ooo

| [o00

[ooo

| fooo

| [ooo

| jooo

| fooo

[z5°81¢

| lszes

| [208s

| [sees

| [sven

[zs81€

| [szes

| |206s

| |seen

| [sren

000

| [oo0

| [oo0

| {000

| {000

1oL

[oo0

| ocoo

[oo0

| ocoo

foo-o

| oo

Z1-6 sepra

gL sepu9

000

000

000

ov sepeip

000

co0

€]

000

000

000

ML

oo

| looo

| fooo

| [o00

| jooo

ooo

| Jooo

| looo

| [o00

| oo

loo'o

| Jooo

| [ooo

| |ooo

| o00

foo'o

[ fooo

[ fooo

| {ooo

| [ooo

"agrduop Jospue {2 e)geres 53] sieoys
e UBLIRBSUCN 'JIQRUUON - UOREINDT [R199dS [R10L

o {7-Q spicoay (v Jo wing) wav (i)
(alspegs D3] veneanp] jewads Jeap pepuen |e1oL
[Ty {1-0 8p0dBY IIY JO WNS) vQ' Jejnbey |20

$3}aRJL I1Y 20) S|€I0L VAV

{50 spuoosu e jo

L WNS) SHoeUL (I 403 SIBIOL WY PISEG-LUIGOISSERUON

(579 spicoss
HE JO WNG) $49€JL IV O} SIEI0L VOV PeSeq-Aioaisse)d

42041 [V 40} YOV Pauodey jo Lewwng

Arewmiwung

3 Ul papnfon
a3 '9'Sp21S pue (Ql5Z192y D3 01 uensand ‘Bupuny
0 81qi5y@ 10U YO APMS uepuadepu] peseq 8sin0)

§-0 ul PBPNPUI 'S ETLLE 03

53 ojuensind vav Apnis wspusdspu) peseg ssinon

S0 W poprPY!
3 10U pue 9'§p2LS PuB (5 ZL9.Y DT 01 luensind
Buipun) Joj 1QIBIIB 10U YOY PISEG-LOOISSRRLON

vav eyo

(2-2 pue |-3 jo wng) {2)0008% 23 O) wensund

©3 LoueSsspury jeuogisuei) Ul sSiBPMIS o} VOV [EI0L

{tAuo

YOI JEBA IS4 UNOD £-WML) §-D BurT LI papnjou
(2)0008r D3 01 uensind vapefiapury |BUCRISUBLL

Ul UIPMIS 10} (I PESEG-LOISSeD-udN

3

(U0 vaY Jeax 1si1d 'uwnio) g-34HL) §-8
1-3 Ui u) paphpu| {3}00081 O3 O wensind uapebBispuny
[BUOHISURIL W SIUSPMS 10} VY PISEGHUCOISTEID)

ARpyLg Uis

J9UR [BUN 1204 JOOUDS M JO PUS U] PUR PIE FUNT
q § Buy Pras Jo) YOV epnjoxg week

100438 suy3 jo Avp 185 9 BuuuiBaq yay sessuab
Kew puz sunp pue puz J6quIsdes usamioq

S LI oYM SIWRPMIE Aju0 Lieak J00YIS SZ-FZZ

vav usHeBiepupy jRUCHiSURLL

\_ sq (t-Q ybnoayy |-Q Jo wWNS) XIBIL Jo) SI0L YOY

{0 » v-g8) vav {521 J0SIAIQ) SuoHINSUY

000

| [ooo

| looo

| [ooo

| looo

[oo-o

| [ooo

| [ooo

| [ooo

| |ooo

SUBIPHIUD PRSUBNT - SIC0LOS UBLZIDBSUON 'oRgnduoN
Jomue [(zKs)aac0s D3l sooyss veyepIsuoN
IGNduop - USEINPS (eeds Jeal Popusixa (B0l

(£ + £-8) vav

L gug  PUCTISU) URIDEIO PISUGOI - SI0OLPS UBIEESUON

‘angnduoy sofpue [{£Xe)egeas D3] speoyes
UBURIDRSUON "JIIgndua - uoneanps |epsds |ejo)

i



Bujujewes pos

sbessaw JnoA ul adA)

S9JON

—oo.o _ _mo.c I_ —oo.o _ _oo.o _ —oc.o _ §1  (r7ybnang -7 j0 WInG) IS INY 10} SIR0L YOY

»

-H Sp00ay (Iv Jo wng) vgv (G2 1 Josg) suouniasy|
oo | looo | fooo | oo | [o00 | +n semeisponrbors o rarion
ofpue [{2X2)998S 5] SI00YDS UBLEASUON

*aNANGUCN - UOREINDT (ERAS 1E3A PAPUIIXT (10)

(€-H sps022y |Iv Jo WNS) YOy Suonmysy|

. . o . 3 g SUIPJIYD PESUADNT - SIODUDS UELIEIDASUON
_oc 0 _ _oo 0 _ _oo L _ _co 0 _ Fo 0 _ & “aignducy sofpue [(£)(e)egees D3 slooyds
UBLEIIFSUON "GNAUCH - LONEINP3 (Bj39dS (Ei0L

_ 2 {Z-H spacoey IV Jo wing) (521 toswQ) vav (e
(Q)5¥eas D3] voneanp3 |ewads Jeas papusix] (eo)

-

jooo | looo | fooo | {ooo | [oo0

_wo.c _ _ood 1_ —co.c _ ﬁoo.o _ _oo.o _ t-1 (4-H sps0as ||e jo wns) way Jenbey jejolL

BouSpISaY JO TBUISIT (1Y J0) 101 VOY

_ (55 spsooau 18 jo

_oo.o _ _oo.o _ _oo.c _ ?o.o _ _oo.o T uns) 1M1 IV 10} SIBOL WY PRSEq-LIOBISSERUON

—OOQ _ —OOQ _ _OQD _ _OOO _ —OOO \_ A EE:muﬁuE_O_thu_ﬂbr(D(vo“.“.”ﬁn“ﬁ

SJaueYD pezHOYINe
uoRESNR3 JO Pi0g A1 pue 9'509.Lp DT O} Juensind
PAZUOINE SIO0UDS JALBYD SpMAILNGS O) Qedddy

auUspISey
10 SIS (1Y 40) VAV PeLIaday Jo Aewaing

[zs'81€ | {szes | 2068 | [szo8 | lsren | st rrusnans 0 wng) swes ivor smes vay

(-0 spIooed [y Jo wng) yQv suoiniisy|

_ PiUD PASUSON - SICOUIS UBUEIIESUCH “d1anduon
soppue [(£He}gaess O3] SI00U0S UeueRISUON

*AAnduoN - uonesnp3 ensds Jeaa PapusIxd [EI0L

oo | oo | loo0 | [coo | looo

(-1 SPUoaBY IV J0 WNS) YW sueimasy)
SUBIPPYD PASUBIN - SICOUDT UBNEIDIDSUCHN

- S’ o






4269112 Blochman
Union Elem District

4949 Foxen Canyon Rd., Santa Maria, CA 93454-9666
Generated on 05/02/2025 02:01:51 PM  Page 1 of 1

Attendance/Membership Summary Report
Start/End Date: 04/01/2025 - 04/30/2025 School(s): 1
Grade:TK, K, 1, 2,3,4,5,6,7, 8

Calendar{s): 2

SUMMARY  Total Schools: 1 Total Calendars: 2
StudentMembership Absent Present Unexcused Absences Percent In
Grade Count Days Days Days ADM ADA Days _ Avg. Dally Attendance
TK 4 64 4 60 4.00 3.75 1 0.06 93.75%
K 18 288 23 265 18.00 16.56 8 0.50 92.01%
1 17 272 10 262 17.00 16.38 3 .19 96.32%
2 18 288 7 281 18.00 17.56 3 0.19 97.57%
3 26 416 15 401 26.00 25.06 4 0.25 96.35%
4 21 336 20 316 21.00 19.75 4 0.25 94.05%
5 24 384 24 360 24.00 22.50 5 0.31 93.75%
6 25 400 12 388 25.00 24,25 2 0.13 97.00%
7 24 384 19 365 24.00 2281 4 0.25 95.05%
8 22 352 16 336 22.00 21.00 1 0.06 95.45%
Total 10 199 3184 150 3034 199.¢0 189.62 35 2.19 95.29%
School: Benjamin Foxen School _Calendar: 24-25 Blochman K-4
StudentMembership Absent Present Unexcused Absences Percent In
Grade Count Days Days Days ADM ADA Days Avg. Daily Attendance
TK 4 64 4 60 4.00 375 1 0.06 93.75%
K 18 288 23 265 18.00 16.56 8 0.50 52.01%
1 17 272 10 262 17.00 16.38 3 0.19 96.32%
2 i8 288 7 281 18.00 17.56 3 0.19 97.57%
3 26 416 15 401 26.00 25,06 4 0.25 96.39%
4 21 33 20 316 21.00 19.75 4 0.25 94.05%
Total 6 104 1664 79 1585 104.00 99.06 23 1.44 95.25%
School: Benjamin Foxen School Calendar; 24-25 Blochman 5-8
Student Membership Absent Present Unexcused Absences Percent In
Grade Count Days Days Days ADM ADA Days Avg. Dally Attendance
5 24 384 24 360 24.00 22.50 S 0.31 93.75%
6 25 400 12 388 25.00 24.25 2 0.13 97.00%
7 24 384 19 365 24.00 22.81 4 0.25 95.05%
8 22 352 16 336 22.00 21.00 1 006  95.45%
Total 4 95 1520 n 1449 95.00 90.56 12 0.75 95.33%






California Department of Education Consolidated Application

Blochman Union Elementary (42 69112 0000000) Slglus: :one
ate: None

2025-26 Certification of Assurances

Submission of Certification of Assurances is required every fiscal year. A complete list of legal and program
assurances for the fiscal year can be found at hitps://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/aa/co/caZ2dassurancestoc.asp.

CDE Program Contact:
Consolidated Application Support Desk, Education Data Office, ConAppSupport@cde.ca.gov, 916-319-0297

Consolidated Application Certification Statement

I hereby cerlify that all of the applicable state and federal rules and regulations will be cbserved by this applicant;
that to the best of my knowledge the information contained in this application is correct and complete; and |
agree o participate in the monitoring process regarding the use of these funds according to the standards and
criteria set forth by the California Department of Education Federal Program Monitoring (FPM) Cffice. Legal
assurances for all programs are accepted as the basic legal condition for the operation of selected projects and
programs and copies of assurances are retained on site. | certify that we accept all assurances except for those
for which a waiver has been obtained or requested. A copy of all waivers or requests is on file. | certify that actual
ink signatures for this form are on file.

Authorized Representative’'s Full Name

Authorized Representative's Signature

Authorized Representative's Title

Authorized Representative's Signature Date

***Warning***
The data in this report may be protected by the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA)
and other applicable data privacy laws. Unauthorized access or sharing of this data may constitute a

Report Date:5/2/2025 violation of both state and federal iaw. Page 1 of 5



California Department of Education Consolidated Application

Blochman Union Elementary (42 69112 0000000) Soved b NStatusé rI‘Jrfaﬂ
aved by: Nancy Shafer
Date: 5/2/2025 1:01 PM

2025-26 Protected Prayer Certification

Every Student Succeeds Act (ESSA) Section 8524 specifies federal requirements regarding constitutionally
protected prayer in public elementary and secondary schools. This form meets the annual requirement and
provides written certification.

CDE Program Contact:
Miguel Cordova, Title | Policy, Program, and Support Office, MCordova@cde.ca.gov, 916-319-0381

Protected Prayer Certification Statement

The local educational agency (LEA) hereby assures and certifies to the California State Board of Education that
the LEA has no policy that prevents, or otherwise denies participation in, constitutionally protected prayer in
public schools as set forth in the "Guidance on Constitutionally Protected Prayer in Public Elementary and
Secondary Schools."

The LEA hereby assures that this page has been printed and contains an ink signature. The ink signature copy
shall be made available to the California Depariment of Education upon request or as part of an audit, a
compliance review, or a complaint investigation.

The authorized representative agrees to the above statement Yes
Authorized Representative's Full Name Doug C Brown
Authorized Representative's Title Superintendent/Principal
Authorized Representative's Signature Date 05/02/2025
comment

If the LEA is not able to certify at this time, then an explanation must be

provided in the comment field. (Maximum 500 characters)

tltwarningtta
The data in this report may be protected by the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA)
and other applicable data privacy laws. Unauthorized access or sharing of this data may constitute a

Report Date:5/2/2025 violation of both state and federal law. Page 2 of 5



California Department of Education Consolidated Application

Blochman Union Elementary (42 69112 0000000) Status: Draft
Saved by. Nancy Shafer
Date: 5/2/2025 1:02 PM

( 2025-26 LCAP Federal Addendum Certification

CDE Program Contact:
Local Agency Systems Support Office, LCAPAddendum@cde. ca.gov, 916-323-5233

Initial Application

To receive initial funding under the Every Student Succeeds Act (ESSA), a local educational agency (LEA) must
have a plan approved by the State Educational Agency on file with the State. Within California, LEAs that apply
for ESSA funds for the first time are required to complete the Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP), the
LCAP Federal Addendum Template (Addendum), and the Consolidated Application (ConApp). The LCAP, in
conjunction with the Addendum and the ConApp, serve to meet the requirements of the ESSA LEA Plan.

In order to initially apply for funds, the LEA must certify that the current LCAP has been approved by the local
governing board or governing body of the LEA. As part of this certification, the LEA agrees to submit the LCAP
Federal Addendum, that has been approved by the local governing board or governing body of the LEA, to the
California Department of Education (CDE) and acknowledges that the LEA agrees to work with the CDE to
ensure that the Addendum addresses all required provisions of the ESSA programs for which they are applying
for federal education funds.

Returning Application

If the LEA certified a prior year LCAP Federal Addendum Certification data collection form in the Consolidated
Application and Reporting System, then the LEA may use in this form the same original approval or adoption
{' date used in the prior year form.

County Office of Education (COE) or District 09/10/2019

For a COE, enter the original approval date as the day the CDE approved
the current LCAP. For a district, enter the original approval date as the day
the COE approved the current LCAP

Direct Funded Charter
Enter the adoption date of the current LCAP

Authorized Representative’'s Full Name Doug Brown
Authorized Representative's Title Superintendent/Principal
‘ “*Warning**
The data in this report may be protected by the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA)

and other applicable data privacy laws. Unauthorized access or sharing of this data may constitute a
Report Date:5/2/2025 violation of both state and federal law. Page 3 of 5




California Department of Education
Blochman Union Elementary (42 69112 0000000)

2025-26 Application for Funding

CDE Program Contact:

Consolidated Application Support Desk, Education Data Office, ConAppSupport@cde.ca.gov, 916-319-0297

Local Governing Board Approval

Consolidated Application

Status: Draft
Saved by: Nancy Shafer
Date: 5/2/2025 1:03 PM

The local educational agency {LEA) is required to review and receive approval of their Application for Funding

selections with their local governing board.

By checking this box the LEA certifies that the Local Board has approved
the Application for Funding for the listed fiscal year

Yes

District English Learner Advisory Committee Review

Per Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations Section 11308, if your LEA has more than 50 English learners,

then the LEA must establish a District English Learner Advisory Committee (DELAC) which shall review and
advise on the development of the application for funding programs that serve English learners.

By checking this box the LEA certifies that parent input has been received
from the District English Learner Committee (if applicable) regarding the
spending of Title HI funds for the listed fiscal year

Yes

Application for Categorical Programs

To receive specific categorical funds for a school year, the LEA must apply for the funds by selecting Yes below.

Only the categorical funds that the LEA is eligible to receive are displayed.

Title I, Part A (Basic Grant)

ESSA Sec. 1111 et seq.
SACS 3010

Yes

Title Il, Part A {Supporting Effective Instruction)

ESEA Sec. 2104
SACS 4035

No

Title 1l English Learner

ESEA Sec. 3102
SACS 4203

No

Title Il Immigrant

ESEA Sec. 3102
SACS 4201

No

Title IV, Part A (Student and School Support)

ESSA Sec. 4101
SACS 4127

No

Title V, Part B Subpart 1 Small, Rural School Achievement Grant
ESSA Sec. 5211 SACS 5810

Yes

**Warning***

The data in this report may be protected by the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA)
and other applicable data privacy laws. Unauthorized access or sharing of this data may constitute a

Page 4 of 5

Report Date:5/2/2025 violation of both state and federal law.




California Department of Education Consolidated Application

Blochman Union Elementary (42 69112 0000000) S Slatusé Drfaft
aved by: Nancy Shafer
Date: 5/2/2025 1:.04 PM

2025-26 Substitute System for Time Accounting

This certification may be used by auditors and by California Department of Education {CDE) oversight personnel
when conducting audits and sub-recipient monitoring of the substitute time-and-effort system. Approval is
automatically granted when the local educational agency {(LEA) submits and certifies this data collection.

CDE Program Contact:
Hilary Thomson, Fiscal Oversight and Support Office, HThomson@cde.ca.gov, 916-323-0765

The LEA certifies that only eligible employees will participate in the substitute system and that the system used to
document employee work schedules includes sufficient controls to ensure that the schedules are accurate.

Detailed information on documenting salaries and wages, including both substitute systems of time accounting,
are described in Procedure 905 of the California School Accounting Manual posted on the CDE web site at
https:/fwww.cde_ca.govifg/ac/sal.

2025-26 Request for authorization Yes

LEA certifies that the following is a full disclosure of any known None.
deficiencies with the substitute system or known challenges with
implementing the system

{Maximum 500 characters)

“*Warning***
The data in this report may be protected by the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA)
and other applicable data privacy laws. Unauthorized access or sharing of this data may constitute a

Report Date:5/2/2025 violation of both state and federal law. Page 5 of 5



Z 1o | abed §202/2/5:91eQ Hoday
"ME| [e1epa) PUB SIE1S YJOq JO UOHB[oIA
& aymysuod Aew ejep siy) 1o Buueys 10 ssa00e pazuoyineun ‘sme| Aoeaud ejep 9jqedydde Jayio pue
(vdu34) 10V Adeaud pue sjybry Jeuoneonp3 Apwe4 au Aq paiosioud ag Aew Bodal siy Ul elep ayL

e DUILIEAA, ..
‘BaJE SOUBPUSNE S)OUISID BU)
JO apisino sjooyas ajealld Wwosduou ppe o) Buosie si Aouabe jeuonesnps [eJ0) 8y}
ON (s)jooyos eaJe aguepusYE-UOU PPV

uaJp|iyo jooyos ajeaud a)qibie o) 10adsas Yum aigenbe
10U s1 uBissp weuboid Yy pue JND90 Jou pip uoneYNSUoI [NYbuluesw pue ABwn (pA

uaJpiiyo jooyos sjeaud aqibie 0y 1oadsas uum ajgepnbsa jou si ufisap wesboud au) g A
IN920 10U pIp uoneynsued (NjBulueaw pue Ajwi (ZA
pana20 uonelnsuod jnjbuluesw LA

S3P07) S|qEMO|[Y UOIIB)NSUDY) JO S)INSOY PBAdI|Sg S,|]004dS dleAlld

'saoines alqepnba Buipiacid jo asodind ay)

10} pasn Buiaq s1 ) §t SNIeIS Jdwexa Xe) 8y} PUE BIEP JUBWIIOIUS JUSPN)S JO ADRINDDE
ay) Ajuaa uone)nsuo jooyas ejeaud ul pabebus sjousip Jey) pejoadxe si ) “Aoesndoe
sl 0] e uoisod ou saye) uoneanps Jo juawpedaq eluiope) ay) pue ‘payUsA jou S|
HABPIYY [00U2S BJBALd SU1 Ul UOHBULIOjU| 8Y ] YWABPLY |00YDS SjeALd [enuue s)l uo
jooyos ayeaud yoee Aq Ainliad jo Ajjeuad sapun pauodal ase sisquINU JUSLW||oIUd Y]

"(AY3S Paloid) weiboid

aous|oIA 0} 9suodsay Asuabiswg [ooyog 1o8l0ad sy o) psebas yum *LEgy uonoes
pue 'g Wed ‘Al OIlL iV Ued ‘Al 8L “uelBiww ‘)| spiL fewea ysibul |i| spiL

'V Hed ‘(1 SRIL ‘D Ued ‘| SpIL v Hed ‘| ap L Jopun sweiboid o) salidde siy ) “seyiwey
pue ‘sJayoes] ‘uaJpjiys jooyos sjeaud aiqi6ie Jo} sweiboid eanosays pue sjqelnbe
apinoid 0} moy uo Juswaalbe Buiyoeal Jo |eof ay) sAeyY ||eYS YIoq PUB S|RISI0
jo0yds ajeaud sjeudoidde ypm Ajjenuue ynsuoo jjeys Aouabe |euoneonpa [200) €
‘LS8 PUE 2L 1| Suoloas (YSS3) 10V Spesoong Juspnis AJsA3 ay) yim saueploooe uj

Z.P0-£ZE-916 ‘AOD B epomIasogaciy ‘20O voddng pue ‘weibold 'Adljod | 9L ‘8s0ye( BuUlY
8v60-61£-91.6 ‘AODEIOPIQIEUUBHS a0y Hoddng pue ‘weiboid ‘Adljod | Sl ‘euueH eINAS

Joryuon weabold 309

"mojeq pa)sy swesbosd au) Japun sjooyss AIBpUDas pue Asejualaje sjeaud yoiduou u| pajjolus
yels pue uaappiyo Sjqibie JO Spaau ay) SSaIpPe 0) SJYSUSq JBYIO JO SBOIAISS UO[eINpS |eads 'siseq ajgepnbe ue uo ‘apiacid jleys Aouabe jeuoneonpa [eco] sy L

uopeyNsuo? |0oYdS 8jeAlld JjolduoN 9Z-5202

Wd €0-L §202/2fs 81eq
Jojeys AoueN :Aq pases
ye.q snigig (0000000 Z1169 Zv) Aejuswsall uon uewydolg

uones)ddy pajepljosuo) uopeanp3 jo Juswpedaqg ejutoyed

|- - et



Z 10 z abegd §20Z/2/5:91eq voday
*ME| [BISP) PUE B)B)S LI0G SO UoNe[oIA
e ainsuod Aew ejep siy) jo Buueys 10 ssa3oe pazuoyineun “sme| Aaeaud ejep s|qeaydde sayjo pue
{vdy33) 1ov Loeaud pue siybiny [euonesnp3 Ajwed ay Aq perosiosd aq Aew podal siuy ul ejep syl

sraBUILIBM .
ad
uo uoeULIYY| 1B Juawaalby
USRI uonensuod) paunasg
Pappy 100498 |ap0o) uoneynsuc) paubig SEM uolePNSUOY) juswijjouy apoy) |ooysg aweN [ooyosg

“mojaq pajs!| sweiboid ay) Japun sjooyas Alepuooas pue Alejusws|@ ajeaud yoiduou u| pejjoiue
JEIS pue uaJppiyo 3jqibije Jo Spaau ay) SSSIPPe O} SIHOUAQ JAUI0 JO SBDIAIES UOHEINPA |eads ‘siseq ajqennba ue uo ‘apiaoid jleys Aousbe jeuonesnpe |2oo] ay L

UOHENSUOY [00YDS 3)BALd JoIduoN 9Z—-5Z0Z

Wd €0:1 S202/2/S ‘®1eg
Jaieys AsueN :Aq pases

yeiq 'snes (0000000 Z1L 169 Z¥) Aelusuis|g uoIuN UeIYOO|Y
uopesddy pajepilosuo’) uonesnp3 jo Juawpedaq eiuioged

| —-— L —



Board Policy Manual
Blochman Union Elementary School District

Policy 1312.2: Complaints Concemning Instructional Materials Status: DRAFT
Original Adopted Date: 11/14/2017 | Last Revised Date: 12/12/2023

The Governing Board uses a comprehensive process to adopt district instructional materials that is based on
selection criteria established by law and Board policy and includes opportunities for the involvement of district staff,
parents/guardians, and community members, and, as appropriate, students. Complaints concerning the content or
use of instructional materials, including textbooks, supplementary instructional materials, library materials, or other
instructional materials and equipment, shall be properly and fairly considered using established complaint
procedures,

Parents/guardians are encouraged to discuss any concerns regarding instructional materials with their student's
teacher and/or the school principal. If the situation remains unresolved, a complaint may be filed using the process
specified in the accompanying administrative regulation and exhibit.

The district shall accept complaints concerning instructional materials only from staff, district residents, or the
parents/guardians of students enrolled in a district school. (Education Code 35160)

However, a complaint related to the use or prohibited use of any existing textbook, instructional material,
supplemental instructional material, or other curriculum for classroom instruction, or any book or other resource in a
school library that alleges unlawful discrimination based on a violation of Education Code 243 or 244 shall be filed,
investigated, and resolved in accordance with Board Policy 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures.

When deliberating upon challenged materials, the Superintendent, or any designee or committee established by the
Superintendent to review the materials, shall consider the degree to which the materials align with the criteria for
instructional materials as specified in law, Board policy, and administrative regulation. In addition, such deliberations
may consider the educational philosophy and vision of the district; the educational suitability of the materials
including the manner in which the materials support the curriculum and appropriateness for the student's age; the
professional opinions of teachers of the subject and of other competent authorities and/or experts; reviews of the
materials by reputable bodies; the stated objectives in using the materials; community standards; the allegations in
the complaint, including the extent to which the objections are based on the dislike of ideas contained in the
materials; and the impact that keeping or removing the materials would have on student well-being.

The Superintendent, or any designee or committee established by the Superintendent to review the materials, shall
not prohibit the continued use of an appropriately adopted textbook, instructional material, supplemental
instructional material, or other curriculum for classroom instruction, or any book or other resource in a school library
on the basis that it contains inclusive and/or diverse perspectives, as specified in Education Code 243,

Additionally, the Superintendent, or any designee or committee established by the Superintendent to the review
materials, shall not authorize the continued use of an adopted textbook, instructional material, supplemental
instructional material, or curriculum for classroom instruction if the use would subject a student to unlawful
discrimination pursuant to Education Code 220.

If the complainant finds the Superintendent's or review committee's decision unsatisfactory, the complainant may
appeal the decision to the Board.

Any challenged instructional material that is reviewed by the district shall not be subject to further reconsideration
for 12 months, unless required by law.

Complaints related to the sufficiency of textbooks or instructional materials shall be resolved as specified in
Administrative Regulation 1312.4 - Williams Uniform Complaint Procedures.



Board Policy Manual
Blochman Union Elementary School District

Regulation 1312.2: Complaints Concerning Instructional Materials Status: DRAFT
Original Adopted Date: 11/14/2017 | Last Revised Date: 12/12/2023

Step 1: Informal Complaint

If a staff member, district resident, or parent/guardian of a student enrolled in a district school has a complaint
regarding the content or use of any specific instructional material, such individual shall informally discuss the material
in question with the principal. (Education Code 35160)

Step 2: Formal Complaint

If the complainant is not satisfied with the principal's initial response, the complainant shall present a written
complaint to the principal. Complaints regarding printed material shall name the author, title, and publisher and shall
identify the objection by page and item numbers. In the case of nonprinted material, written information specifying
the precise nature of the objection and location of such material shall be given. In order for the district to reply
appropriately, complainants shall sign all complaints and provide identifying information. Anonymous complaints will
not be accepted.

Upon receiving a complaint, the principal shall provide the complainant with a written acknowledgement of its
receipt and respond to any procedural questions the complainant may have. The principal shall then notify the
Superintendent or designee, the teacher{s), and other staff as appropriate.

During the investigation of the complaint, the challenged material may remain in use until a final decision has been
reached.

Step 3: Review Committee

The Superintendent or designee shall determine whether to convene a review committee to review the complaint.
If the Superintendent or designee determines that a review committee is necessary, the Superintendent or designee
shall appoint a committee composed of administrators and staff members selected from relevant instructional and
administrative areas. The Superintendent or designee may also appoint parents/guardians, students, and community
members, as appropriate, to serve on the committee.

The Superintendent or designee may provide training to the review committee to ensure that the review committee
is informed regarding its responsibilities, the criteria to follow when reviewing instructional materials, and applicable
laws, Board policy{ies), and administrative regulation(s).

Within 30 days of being convened, the review committee shall summarize its findings in a written report. The
Superintendent or designee shall notify the complainant in writing of the committee's decision within 15 days of
receiving the committee's report.

Step 4: Superintendent Determination

If the Superintendent or designee determines that a review committee is not necessary, the Superintendent or
designee shall, in a timely manner, issue a decision regarding the complaint,

Step 5; Appeal to the Governing Board

If the complainant remains unsatisfied, the complainant may appeal the Superintendent’s or review committee's
decision to the Governing Board. The Board's decision shall be final.



Board Policy Manual
Blochman Union Elementary School District

Exhibit 1312.2-E(1): Complaints Concerning Instructional Materlals Status: DRAFT
Original Adopted Date: 12/12/2023

REQUEST FOR RECONSIDERATION OF EXISTING
INSTRUCTIONAL MATERIALS

This form is only for use by district employees, district residents, or parents/guardians of students enrolled in a
district school to challenge the content or use of any existing textbook, instructional material, supplemental
instructional material, or other curriculum for classroom instruction, or any book or other resource in a school library.

Date:

Name of person filing complaint (Required):

Group represented (if any):

Phone:

E-mail
address:

Address:

Instructional Material Being Challenged:

Title:

Author:

Publisher:

Date of
Edition:

Name of school/classroom instructional material was used:

1. Please specifically state the nature of your concern or objection and identify your objection by page, website,
webpage and/or link, recording or digital sequence, video frame, or words, as appropriate. You may use
additional pages if necessary.

2. Was the instructional material of concern read/heard/viewed in isolation or was the entire selection
read/heard/viewed? If the entire selection was not read/heard/viewed, what is your estimate regarding the
percentage of the amount read/heard/viewed?




3. What is your concern regarding the consequence if a student reads/hears/views the instructional material? In
your assessment, is the instructional material appropriate for the age of the students being taught?

4, What would you like the school to do about the instructional material?

Signature of complainant
For District Use:

Request received by:

Date:

Title:

Action taken:

Date:




Board Policy Manual
Blochman Union Elementary School District

Policy 1340: Access To District Records Status: DRAFT
Orlginal Adopted Date: 11/14/2017 | Last Revised Date: 06/09/2020

The Governing Board recognizes the right of members of the public to have access to public records of the district.
The district shall provide any person reasonable access to the public records of the schools and district during normal
business hours and within the requirements of law. Public access shall not be given to records listed as exempt from
public disclosure in the California Public Records Act and other state or federal law.

In response to a public records request, the Superintendent or designee shall make reasonable efforts to locate the
requested records, including, but not limited to, any electronic communication substantively related to the records,
such as email, text messages, instant messages, and other electronic communications, regardless of whether they are
transmitted through a district-provided device or account or through an employee's or Board member's personal
device or account.

The district may charge for copies of public records or other materials requested by individuals or groups, in
accordance with law and as specified in the accompanying administrative regulation,

In order to help maintain the security of district records, members of the public granted access shall examine records
in the presence of a district staff member.



Board Policy Manual
Blochman Union Elementary School District

Regulation 1340; Access To District Records Status: DRAFT
Original Adopted Date: 11/14/2017 | Last Revised Date: 06/09/2020

This administrative regulation is a non-exhaustive list of records that may be defined as either public or exempt
and/or confidential. Other records which fall into these definitions may exist and may be identified in the future,

Definitions
Public records include any writing containing information relating to the conduct of the district's business prepared,
owned, used, or retained by the district regardtess of physical form or characteristics. {Government Code 7920.530)
Writing means any handwriting, typewriting, printing, photostating, photographing, photocopying, transmitting by
electronic mail or facsimile, and every other means of recording upon any tangible thing any form of communication
or representation, including letters, words, pictures, sounds, or symbols or combinations thereof, and any record
thereby created, regardless of the manner in which the record has been stored. {Government Code 7920.545)
Member of the public means any person, except a member, agent, officer, or employee of the district or a federal,
state, or other local agency acting within the scope of such membership, agency, office, or employment.
{Government Code 7920.515)
Public Records
Unless otherwise exempt from disclosure, pubiic records to which members of the public shall have access include,
but are not limited to:

1. Proposed and approved district budgets and annual audits (Education Code 41020, 42103)

2. Statistical compilations

3. Reports and memoranda

4. Notices and bulletins

5. Minutes of public meetings (Education Code 35145}

6. Meeting agendas {Government Code 54957.5)

7. Official communications between the district and other government agencies

8. District and school plans, and the information and data relevant to the development and evaluation of such
plans, unless otherwise prohibited by law

9. Initial proposals of exclusive employee representatives and of the district, once presented at a district
Governing Board meeting (Government Code 3547}

10. Records pertaining to claims and litigation against the district which have been adjudicated or settled
{Government Code 7927.200, 7927.205)

11. Statements of economic interests required by the Conflict of Interest Code {Government Code 81008}
12. Documents containing names, salaries, and pension benefits of district employees

13. Employment contracts and settlement agreements {Government Code 53262)

14. Instructional materials including, but not limited to, textbooks (Education Code 49091.10)

15. Executed contracts for the purchase of goods or services, even if the contract contains provisions specifying



that the contract is confidential or a proprietary record of the vendor {Government Code 7928.801)

Access to public records of the district shall be granted to Board members on the same basis as any other member of
the public. When Board members are authorized to access public records in the administration of their duties, the
Superintendent or designee shall not discriminate among any of the Board members as to which record, or portion of
the record, will be made available, or when it will be made available. {Government Code 7921.305, 7921.310)

Exempt and Confidential Public Records

Records exempt from disclosure under the California Public Records Act {CPRA) include, but are not limited to:

1. Preliminary drafts, notes, and interagency or intradistrict memoranda that are not retained by the district in the
ordinary course of business, provided that the public interest in withholding these records clearly outweighs
the public interest in disclosure {Government Code 7927.500})

2. Records specifically generated in connection with or prepared for use in litigation to which the district is a
party or to respond to claims made against the district pursuant to the Tort Claims Act, until the litigation or
claim has been finally adjudicated or otherwise settled, or beyond, if the records are protected by some other
provision of law (Government Code 7927.200, 7927.205)

3. Personnel records, medical records, or similar materials, the disclosure of which would constitute an
unwarranted invasion of personal privacy (Government Code 7927.700)

The home addresses, home telephone numbers, personal cell phone numbers, or birth date of employees shall
only be disclosed as follows: (Government Code 7928.300)

a. To an agent or a family member of the employee

b. To an officer or employee of a state agency or another school district or county office of education
when necessary for the performance of official duties

¢. To an employee organization pursuant to regulations and decisions of the Public Employment Relations
Board, except that the home address and any telephone number for an employee who performs law
enforcement-related functions, or the birth date of any employee, shall not be disclosed

d. Upon written request of any employee, the district shall not disclose the employee's home address,
home telephone number, personal cell phone number, personal email address, or birth date, and the
district shall remove the home address, home telephone number, and personal cell phone number from
any mailing list of the district except a list used exclusively to contact the employee

e. To an agent or employee of a health benefit plan providing health services or administering claims for
health services to district employees and their enrolled dependents, for the purpose of providing the
health services or administering claims for employees and their enrolled dependents

4. The home address, telephone number, or both the name and assessor parcel number associated with the home
address of any elected or appointed official posted by the district online without first obtaining the written
permission of that individual {Government Code 7928.205)

5. Student records, except directory information and other records to the extent permitted by law and district
policy {Education Code 49073, 49076; 20 USC 1232g; 34 CFR 99.1-99.8)

6. Test questions, scoring keys, and other examination data except as provided by law {Government Code
7929.605)

7. Without affecting the law of eminent domain, the contents of real estate appraisals or engineering or feasibility
estimates and evaluations made for or by the district relative to the acquisition of property, or to prospective
public supply and construction contracts, until all of the property has been acquired or all of the contract
agreement obtained (Government Code 7928,705)

8. Information required from any taxpayer in connection with the collection of local taxes that is received in
confidence and the disclosure of the information to other persons would result in an unfair competitive
disadvantage to the person supplying the information (Government Code 7925.000}



9. Library circulation and patron use records of a borrower or patron including, but not limited to, name, address,
telephone number, email address, borrowing infarmation, or use of library information resources, except when
disclosure is to persons acting within the scope of their duties in the administration of the library; to persons
authorized in writing, by the individual to whom the records pertain, to inspect the records; or by court order
{Government Code 7927.100, 7927.105}

10. Records for which the disclosure is exempted or prohibited pursuant to state or federal law, including, but not
Hmited to, provisions of the Evidence Code refating to privilege {Government Code 7927.705)

11. Documents prepared by or for the district to assess its vulnerability to terrorist attack or other criminal acts
intended to disrupt district operations and that are for distribution or consideration in closed session
(Government Code 7929.200}

12. Information security record if disclosure of that record would reveal vulnerabilities to, or otherwise increase
the potential for an attack on, an information technology system of the district (Government Code 7929.210)

13. Recall petitions, petitions for special elections to fill Board vacancies, or petitions for the reorganization of the
school district (Government Code 7924.110)

14. Minutes of Board meetings held in closed session {Government Code 54957.2)
15. Computer software developed by the district {Government Code 7922.585)

16. Records that contain individually identifiable health information, including records that may be exempt
pursuant to physician-patient privilege, the Confidentiality of Medical Information Act, and the Health
Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (Government Code 7926.400, 7930.000-7930.215)

17. Any other records listed as exempt from public disclosure in the CPRA or other statutes

18. Any other records for which the district can demonstrate that, based on the particular facts of the case, the
public interest served by not disclosing the record clearly outweighs the public interest served by disclosure of
the record (Government Code 7922.000)

When disclosing to a member of the public any record that contains personal information, including, but not limited
to, an employee's home address, home telephone number, social security number, personal cell phone number, or
birth date, the Superintendent or designee shall ensure that such personal information is redacted from that record.
{Government Code 7922.200, 7928.300)

Unless otherwise authorized or required by law, information regarding an individual's citizenship or immigration
status or religious beliefs, practices, or affiliation shall not be disclosed. (Education Code 234.7; Government Code
8310.3}

Inspection of Records, Requests for Copies, and Recovery of Costs

Any person may request a copy or inspection of any district record that is not exempt from disclosure, (Government
Code 7922.530)

Within 10 days of receiving any request to inspect or copy a district record, the Superintendent or designee shall
determine whether the request seeks release of a disclosable public record in the district's possession. The
Superintendent or designee shall promptly inform the person making the request of the determination and the
reasons for the decision. (Government Code 7922.535)

In unusual circumstances, the Superintendent or designee may extend the 10-day limit for up to 14 days by providing
written notice to the requester setting forth the reasons for the extension and the date on which a determination is
expected to be made. Unusual circumstances include the following, but only to the extent reasonably necessary to
properly process the request: {Government Code 7922.535)

1. The need to search for and collect the requested records from field facilities or other establishments that are
separate from the office processing the request



2. The need to search for, collect, and appropriately examine a voluminous amount of separate and distinct
records which are demanded in a single request

3. The need for consultation, which shall be conducted with all practicable speed, with another agency (e.g., 2
state agency or city) having a substantial interest in the determination of the request or among two or more
components of the district {e.g., two different school sites) with substantial interest in the request

4. In the case of electronic records, the need to compile data, write programming language or a computer
program, or construct a computer report to extract data

5. The need to search for, collect, and appropriately examine records during a state of emergency proclaimed by
the Governor pursuant to the California Emergency Services Act in the jurisdiction where the district is located
when the state of emergency currently affects, due to the state of emergency, the district's ability to timely
respond to staffing shortages or closure of facilities where the requested records are located (Government
Code 8567)

If the Superintendent or designee determines that the request seeks disclosable public records, the determination
shall state the estimated date and time when the records will be made available. (Government Code 7922.535)

Public records shall be open to inspection at all times during district office hours, If a portion of the requested
record(s) is exempt from disclosure, any non-exempt, reasonably segregable portion of the record shall be made
available for inspection after deletion of the portions exempted by law. (Government Code 7922.525)

Upon request for a copy that reasonably describes an identifiable, non-exempt record, an exact copy shall be
promptly provided unless it is impracticable to do so. {Government Code 7922.530)

If only a portion of the identified record is exempt from disclosure, the record’s exempt material shall be redacted
prior to disclosure.

The Superintendent or designee shall charge an amount for copies that reflects the direct costs of duplication in
accordance with law. Written requests to waive the fee shall be submitted to the Superintendent or designee.

Without charging any fees or costs, the Superintendent or designee shall allow members of the public to use their
own equipment on district premises to photograph or otherwise copy or reproduce a disclosable record as long as
the means of copy or reproduction: {Government Code 7922.530)

1. Do not require the equipment to make physical contact with the record
2. Will not result in damage to the record

3. Will not result in unauthorized access to the district's computer systems or secured networks by using
software, equipment, or any other technology capable of accessing, altering, or compromising the district's
electronic records

The Superintendent or designee may impose any reasonable limit on the use of personal equipment to photograph,
copy, or reproduce a disclosable record that is necessary to protect the safety of the records, or to prevent the
copying of records from being an unreasonable burden to the orderly function of the district and its employees. The
Superintendent or designee may also impose any limit that is necessary to maintain the integrity of, or ensure the
long-term preservation of, historic or high-value records. (Government Code 7922.530)

In addition to maintaining public records for public inspection during district office hours, the district may comply
with public records requests by posting any public record on the district's website and, in response to a public
records request, directing the member of the public to the location on the website where the record can be found.
However, if the member of the public is unable to access or reproduce the record from the website, the district shall
promptly provide an exact copy of the public record upon payment of duplication fees, if applicable, unless it is
impracticable to provide an exact copy. (Government Code 7922.545)

If any person requests that a public record be provided in an electronic format, the district shall make that record
available in any electronic format in which it holds the information. The district shall provide a copy of the electronic



record in the format requested as long as the requested format is one that has been used by the district to create
copies for its own use or for use by other agencies. (Government Code 7922.570}

The cost of duplicating an electronic record shall be limited to the direct cost of producing a copy of the record in
electronic format. However, the requester shall bear the cost of producing the copy of the electronic record,
including the cost to construct the record and the cost of programming and computer services necessary to produce
the copy, under the following circumstances: (Government Code 7922.575)

1. The electronic record is one that is produced only at otherwise regularly scheduled intervals

2. The request would require data compilation, extraction, or programming to produce the record

Assistance in |dentifying Requested Records

If the Superintendent or designee denies a request for disclosable records, the requester shall be assisted in making a
focused and effective request that reasonably describes an identifiable record. To the extent reasonable under the
circumstances, the Superintendent or designee shall do all of the following: (Government Code 7922.600)

1. Assist in identifying records and information responsive to the request or the purpose of the request, if
specified

If, after making a reasonable effort to elicit additional clarifying information from the requester to help identify

the record, the Superintendent or designee is still unable to identify the information, this requirement shall be
deemed satisfied.

2. Describe the information technology and physical location in which the records exist

3. Provide suggestions for overcoming any practical basis for denying access to the records or information sought

Provisions of the CPRA shall not be construed so as to delay or obstruct the inspection or copying of public records.
Any notification denying a request for public records shall state the name and title of each person responsible for the
denial. {Government Code 7922.500, 7922.540})



Board Policy Manual
Blochman Union Elementary School District

Policy 3311: Bids Status: DRAFT
Original Adopted Date: 11/14/2017

The Governing Board is committed to promoting public accountability and ensuring prudent use of public funds.
When leasing, purchasing, or contracting for equipment, materials, supplies, or services for the district, including
when contracting for public projects involving district facilities, the Board shall explore lawful opportunities to obtain
the greatest possible value for its expenditure of public funds. When required by law, or if the Board determines that
it is in the best interest of the district, such contracts shall be made using competitive bidding.

No work, project, service, or purchase shall be split or separated into smaller work orders or projects for the purpose
of evading legal requirements for competitive bidding. (Public Contract Code 20116)

The Superintendent or designee shall establish comprehensive bidding procedures for the district in accordance with
Government Code 54202, and that meet the requirements for bidding procedures specified in law. The procedures
shall include a process for advertising bids, instructions and timelines for submitting and opening bids, and other
relevant requirements.

For award of contracts which, by law or Board policy, require prequalification, the procedures shall identify a uniform
system for rating bidders on the basis of a completed questionnaire and financial statements.

When calling for bids, the Superintendent or designee shall ensure that the bid specifications clearly describe in
appropriate detail the quality, delivery, service required, and include all information of which the district knows, or
has in its possession, that is relevant to the work to be performed or that may impact the cost of performing the
work.

Award of Contract

Contracts shall be let to the lowest responsible bidder who shall give such security as the Board requires, or else all
bids shall be rejected. (Public Contract Code 20111)

However, the Board may let contracts to other than only the lowest responsible bidder in the following
circumstances:

1. When the contract is for the procurement and/or maintenance of electronic data processing systems and
supporting software, in which case the Board may contract with any one of the three lowest responsible
bidders {Public Contract Code 20118.1)

2. When the contract is for any transportation service which involves an expenditure of more than $10,000 and
which will be made with any person or corporation other than a common carrier, municipally owned transit
system, or a parent/guardian of a student who is to be transported, in which case the Board may contract with
other than the lowest bidder (Education Code 39802)

3. When the contract is one for which the Board has established goals and requirements relating to participation
of disabled veteran or small business enterprises in accordance with Public Contract Code 2000-2002, in
which case the Board may contract with the lowest responsible bidder who submits a responsive bid and
complies or makes a good faith effort to comply with the goals and requirements {Public Contract Code 2000-
2002)

4. When procuring a lease-leaseback contract, in which case the Board shall award the contract based on
objective criteria for determining the best combination of price and qualifications in accordance with Education
Code 17400 and 17406

5. When procuring a design-build contract for a public works project in excess of $1,000,000 in accordance with
Education Code 17250.20, in which case the Board may award the contract to either the low bid or the best
value to the district, taking into consideration, at a3 minimum, price, technical design and construction expertise,



and life-cycle costs (Education Code 17250.20, 17250.25)

6. When procuring an alternative design-build contract for a public works project in excess of $5,000,000 in
accordance with Education Code 17250.62, in which case the Board may award the contract to either the low
bid or the best value, taking into consideration, at a minimum, design cost, general conditions, overhead, and
profit as a component of the project price; technical design and construction expertise; and life-cycle costs
(Education Code 17250.61, 17250.62)

Protests by Bidders

If the bidder believes that the award is not in compliance with law, Board policy, administrative regulation, or the bid
specification, the bidder may protest the award. A protest must be filed in writing with the Superintendent or
designee within five working days after receipt of notification of the contract award and shall include all documents
supporting or justifying the protest. A bidder's failure to file the protested documents in a timely manner shall
constitute a waiver of the right to protest the award of the contract.

The Superintendent or designee shall review the documents submitted with the bidder's claims and render a decision
in writing within 30 working days. The Superintendent or designee may also convene a meeting with the bidder in
order to attempt to resolve the problem.

The bidder may appeal the Superintendent or designee's decision to the Board. The Superintendent or designee shall
provide notice to the bidder of the date and time for Board consideration of the protest at least three business days
before the Board meeting. The Board's decision shall be final.

Bids Not Required

When the Board has determined that it is in the best interest of the district, the district may piggyback onto the
contract of another public agency or corporation to lease or purchase any personal property, including the lease of
data-processing equipment or the purchase of materials, supplies, equipment, automotive vehicles, tractors, and
other personal property for the district in the manner that the other public corporation or agency is authorized to
make the leases or purchases from a vendor, (Public Contract Code 20118)

Alternatively, if the public corporation or agency has an existing contract with a vendor for the lease or purchase of
personal property, the district may authorize the lease or purchase of personal property directly from the vendor and
make payments under the same terms that are available to the public corporation or agency under the contract.
{Public Contract Code 20118)

Without advertising for bids, the Board may enter into an energy service contract and any related facility ground
lease, when it determines that the terms of the contract and lease are in the best interest of the district and meet the
cost effectiveness requirements specified in Government Code 4217.12. The Board's determination shal! be made at
a regularly scheduled public hearing of which notice is given to the public at least two weeks in advance and shall be
based on a cost and saving comparison finding specified in Government Code 4217.12. (Government Code 4217.12)

In an emergency when any repairs, alterations, work, or improvement to any school facility is necessary to permit the
continuance of existing school classes or to avoid danger to life or property, the Board may, by unanimous vote and
with the approval of the County Superintendent of Schools, contract for labor and materials or supplies without
advertising for or inviting bids or may authorize the use of day labor or force account for the emergency purpose.
{Public Contract Code 1102, 20113)



Board Policy Manual
Blochman Union Elementary School District

Regulation 3311: Bids Status: DRAFT
Original Adopted Date: 11/14/2017 | Last Revised Date: 10/10/2023

Advertised/Competitive Bids

The district shall advertise for any of the following: (Public Contract Code 20111)

1. A public project contract that involves an expenditure of $15,000 or more, including a contract for
construction, reconstruction, erection, alteration, renovation, improvement, painting, repainting, demolition, or
repair work involving a district owned, leased, or operated facility

2. A contract that exceeds the amount specified in law, as annually adjusted by the Superintendent of Public
Instruction, for any of the following:

a. The purchase of equipment, materials, or supplies to be furnished, sold, or leased to the district

b. Services, not including construction services or special services and advice in accounting, financial, legal,
or administrative matters

¢. Repairs that are not a public project, including maintenance

Maintenance means routine, recurring, and usual work for preserving, protecting, and keeping a district facility
operating in a safe, efficient, and continually usable condition for the intended purpose for which it was designed,
improved, constructed, altered, or repaired. Maintenance includes, but is not limited to, carpentry, electrical,
plumbing, glazing, and other craft work designed to preserve the facility, as well as repairs, cleaning, and other
operations on machinery and other permanently attached equipment. Maintenance also includes landscape
maintenance, including mowing, watering, trimming, pruning, planting, replacement of plants, and servicing of
irrigation and sprinkler systems. Maintenance does not include painting, repainting, or decorating, other than minor
repainting; janitorial or custodial services; and protection provided by security forces. (Public Contract Code 20115,
22002)

Instructions and Procedures for Advertised Bids

The Superintendent or designee shall call for bids by placing a notice at least once a week for two weeks in a local
newspaper of general circulation published in the district, or if no such newspaper exists, then in some newspaper of
general circulation that is circulated in the county. Additionally, the Superintendent or designee may post the notice
on the district's website or through an electronic portal. The notice shall state the work to be done or materials or
supplies to be furnished and the time and place and website where bids will be opened. {Public Contract Code
20112)

The notice shall contain the time, date, and location of any mandatory prebid conference, site visit, or meeting and
details regarding when and where project documents, including the final plan and specifications, are available. Any
such mandatory visit or meeting shall occur not less than five calendar days after the publication of the initial notice.
{Public Contract Code 6610)

For lease-leaseback, design-build, and alternative design-build projects, the notice shall additionally specify that the
project is subject to skilled and trained workforce requirements. (Education Code 17250.25, 17250.62, 17407.5;
Public Contract Code 2600, 6610}

Bid instructions and specifications shall include the following requirements and information:

1. All bidders shall certify in writing the minimum, if not exact, percentage of post-consumer materials in
products, materials, goods, or supplies offered or sold (Public Contract Code 22152}

2. All bids for construction work shall be presented under sealed cover (Public Contract Code 20111)

The district may accept a bid that has been submitted electronically or on paper. (Public Contract Code
20111, 20112}



The bid shall be accompanied by a form of bidder's security, including either cash, a cashier's check payable to
the district, a certified check made payable to the district, or a bidder's bond executed by an admitted surety
insurer and made payable to the district. The security of unsuccessful bidders shall be returned in a reasonable

period of time, but in no event later than 60 days after the bid is awarded. (Public Contract Code 20111,
20112)

3. When a standardized proposal form is provided by the district, bids not presented on the standard form shall
be disregarded {Public Contract Code 20111.5)

4. Bids shall not be accepted after the advertised bid opening time, regardless of whether the bids are actually
opened at that time (Public Contract Code 20112)

5, When two or more identical lowest or highest bids are received, the Governing Board may determine by lot
which bid shall be accepted {Public Contract Code 20117)

6. If the district requires that the bid includes prices for items that may be added to or deducted from the scope
of work in the contract, the bid solicitation shall specify which one of the following methods will be used to
determine the lowest bid (Public Contract Code 20103.8)

In the absence of such a specification, only the method provided in Item #6a below shall be used. (Public
Contract Code 20103.8)

a. The lowest bid shall be the lowest total of the bid prices on the base contract without consideration of
the prices on the additive or deductive items

b. The lowest bid shall be the lowest total of the bid prices on the base contract and those additive or
deductive items that were specifically identified in the bid solicitation as being used for the purpose of
determining the lowest bid price

¢. The lowest bid shall be the lowest total of the bid prices on the base contract and those additive or
deductive items that, when taken in order from a specifically identified list of those items in the
solicitation, and added to or subtracted from the base contract, are less than or equal to a funding
amount publicly disclosed by the district before the first bid is opened (Public Contract Code 20103.8)

The lowest bid shall be determined in a manner that prevents any information that would identify any of
the bidders or proposed subcontractors or suppliers from being revealed to the district before the
ranking of all bidders from lowest to highest has been determined. (Public Contract Code 20103.8)

7. In determining the lowest bid, the district shall consider only responsive bids that conform to bid specifications
and are submitted by responsible bidders who have demonstrated trustworthiness, quality, fitness, capacity,
and experience to satisfactorily perform the public works contract

a. When a bid is determined to be nonresponsive, the Superintendent or designee shall notify the bidder
and give the bidder an opportunity to respond to the determination

b. When the lowest bidder is determined to be nonresponsible, the Superintendent or designee shall notify
the bidder of the right to present evidence of the bidder's responsibility at a hearing before the Board

B. After being opened, all submitted bids become public records pursuant to Government Code 7920.530 and
shall be made available for public review pursuant to law, Board policy, and administrative regulation

Prequalification Procedure

When required by law or the Board, the Superintendent or designee shall establish a uniform system for rating
bidders on the basis of completed questionnaires and financial statements in order to determine the size of contracts
on which each bidder is qualified to bid. For this purpose, the Superintendent or designee shall furnish prospective
bidders a standardized prequalification questionnaire and financial record which, when completed, shall indicate a
bidder's statement of financial ability and experience in performing public works. The bidder's information shall be
verified under oath in the manner in which civil law pleadings are verified. The questionnaires and financial
statements shall not be public records and shall not be open to public inspection. {Code of Civil Procedure 446;
Public Contract Code 20111.5, 20111.6)



When any public project involves an expenditure of $1,000,000 or more and is funded or reimbursed wholly or
partly by state general funds, the School Facilities Program funds, or other future state school bond, the district shall
prequalify prospective bidders either quarterly or annually. The prequalification shall be valid for one year and the
following requirements shall apply: {Public Contract Code 20111.6)

1. Prospective bidders, including, but not limited to, prime, general engineering, and general building contractors
and electrical, mechanical, and plumbing subcontractors, as defined in Public Contract Code 4113 or Business
and Professions Code 7056 or 7057, as applicable, shall submit a standardized questionnaire and financial
statement 10 or more business days, as determined by the district, before the date fixed for the public opening
of sealed bids

2. Prospective bidders shall be prequalified by the district five or more business days, as determined by the
district, before the date fixed for the public opening of sealed bids

If the project includes electrical, mechanical, or plumbing components that will be performed by electrical,
mechanical, or plumbing contractors, the Superintendent or designee shall make available to all bidders a list of
prequalified general contractors and electrical, mechanical, and plumbing subcontractors five or more business days,
as determined by the district, before the date fixed for the public opening of sealed bids. (Public Contract Code
20111.6)

For all other contracts requiring competitive bidding, the district may establish a procedure for prequalifying bidders
on a quarterly basis and may authorize that prequalification be considered valid for up to one calendar year following
the date of the initial prequalification. Prospective bidders for such contracts shall submit the questionnaire and
financial statement at least five days before the date fixed for public opening of sealed bids and shall be prequalified
by the district at least one day before the fixed bid-opening date. (Public Contract Code 20111.5)

Limitation on Use of Sole Sourcing

In any contract for the construction, alteration, or repair of school facilities, the Superintendent or designee shall
ensure that the bid specification: (Public Contract Code 3400)

1. Does not directly or indirectly limit bidding to any one specific concern

2. Does not call for a designated material, product, thing, or service by a specific brand or trade name, unless the
specification is followed by the words "or equal,” so that bidders may furnish any equal material, product, thing,
or service

In any such case, the bid specification shall provide a time period, before and/or after the award of the
contract, for the contractor to submit data substantiating the request for substituting the designated material,
product, thing, or service. If no such time period is specified, the contractor may submit the data within 35
days after the award of the contract.

When the bid is for a roof project, a material, product, thing, or service is considered "equal” to that designated if it is
equal in quality, durability, design, and appearance; will perform the intended function equally weil; and conforms
substantially to the detailed requirements in the bid specification. {Public Contract Code 3002)

However, the Superintendent or designee may designate a specific material, product, thing, or service by brand or
trade name, also known as sole sourcing, if the Board has made a finding, described in the invitation for bids or
request for propasals (RFP), that a particular material, product, thing, or service is designated for any of the following
purposes: {Public Contract Code 3400}

1. To conduct a field test or experiment to determine its suitability for future use

2. To match others in use on a particular public improvement that has been completed or is in the course of
completion

3. To obtain a necessary item that is only available from one source

4, To respond to the Board's declaration of an emergency, so long as the declaration has been approved by four-



fifths of the Board when issuing the invitation for bid ar RFP
Bids Not Required

Without taking estimates or advertising for bids, supplementary textbooks, library books, educational films,
audiovisual materials, test materials, workbooks, instructional computer software packages, or pericdicals may be
purchased in any amount. (Public Contract Code 20118.3})

Perishable foodstuffs and seasonal commodities needed in the operations of cafeterias may be purchased through
bid or on the open market. {Education Code 38083)

Bids shall not be required for day labor under circumstances specified in Public Contract Code 20114. Day labor shall
include the use of maintenance personnel employed on a permanent or temporary basis. {Public Contract Code
20114)

The district may purchase any surplus property from the federal government or any of its agencies in any quantity
needed for the operation of its schools without taking estimates or advertising for bids. (Education Code 17602}



i

Board Policy Manual
Blochman Union Elementary School District

Policy 3311.1: Uniform Public Construction Cost Accounting Procedures Status: DRAFT
Original Adopted Date: 11/14/2017

In awarding contracts for public works projects involving district facilities, the Governing Board desires to obtain the
best value to the district and ensure the qualifications of contractors to complete the project in a satisfactory
manner. The Board has, by resolution, adopted the procedures set forth in the Unifoerm Public Construction Cost
Accounting Act (UPCCAA) pursuant to Public Contract Code 22030-22045, including the informal bidding
procedures when allowed by law.

The Board delegates to the Superintendent or designee the responsibilities to award any contract eligible for
informal bidding procedures and to develop plans, specifications, and warking details for all public projects requiring
formal bidding procedures.

No work, project, service, or purchase shall be split or separated into smaller work orders or projects for the purpose
of evading legal requirements for competitive bidding. (Public Contract Code 22033)

If after the first invitation of bids pursuant to informal or formal bidding procedures under UPCCAA all bids are
rejected, the Board may, by passage of a resolution by four-fifths vote, declare the project can be performed more
economically by the employees of the district. {Public Contract Code 22038)

Projects awarded through UPCCAA shall be subject to the cost accounting procedures established by the California
Uniform Construction Cost Accounting Commission. {Public Contract Code 22030)

Emergency Actions

When formal bids are required by law, but an emergency necessitates immediate repair or replacements, the Board
may, upon a four-fifths vote of the Board, proceed to replace or repair a facility without adopting plans,
specifications, strain sheets, or working details, or giving notice for bids tc let contracts, The work may be done by
day labor under the direction of the Board and/or contractor. The emergency action shall subsequently be reviewed
by the Board in accordance with Public Contract Code 22050 and shall be terminated at the earliest possible date
that conditions warrant, so that the remainder of the emergency action may be completed by giving notice for bids
to let contracts. (Public Contract Code 1102, 22035, 22050)



Board Policy Manual
Blochman Union Elementary School District

Regulation 3311.1: Uniform Public Construction Cost Accounting Procedures Status: DRAFT
Original Adopted Date: 11/14/2017 | Last Revised Date: 12/10/2019

Public project, in regard to the Uniform Public Construction Cost Accounting Act (UPCCAA), means any of the
following: {Public Contract Code 22002}

1. Construction, reconstruction, erection, installation, alteration, renovation, improvement, demolition, and repair
work involving any district-owned, leased, or operated facility

2. Painting or repainting of any district-owned, leased, or operated facility
Procedures for awarding contracts for public works projects shall be determined on the basis of the amount of the
project, as follows:

1. Public projects of $75,000 or less may be performed by district employees by force account, negotiated
contract, or purchase order {Public Contract Code 22032}

2. Contracts for public projects of $220,000 or less may be awarded through the following informal procedures:
(Public Contract Code 22032, 22034, 22038)

a. The Superintendent or designee shall prepare a notice inviting informal bids, which describes the project
in general terms, explains how to obtain further information about the project, and states the time and
place for the submission of bids

This notice shall be disseminated by mail, fax, or email to either or both of the following:

i. All contractors on a list of qualified contractors maintained by the district for the category of work
being bid, unless the product or service is proprietary, at least 10 calendar days before bids are due

ii. All construction trade journals identified pursuant to Public Contract Code 22036
b. The district shall review the informal bids that were submitted and award the contract as follows:

i. The contract shall be awarded to the lowest responsible bidder
If two or more bids are the same and the lowest, the district may accept the one it chooses.

ii. If all bids received through the informal process are in excess of $220,000, the contract may be
awarded to the lowest responsible bidder, provided that the Governing Board adopts a resolution
with a four-fifths vote to award the contract at $235,000 or less and the Board determines the
district's cost estimate Is reasonable

iii. At its discretion, the district may reject all bids presented and declare that the project can be more
economically performed by district employees, provided that the district notifies an apparent low

bidder, in writing, of the district's intention to reject the bid

Such notice shall be mailed at least two business days prior to the hearing at which the district
intends to reject the bid.

iv. If no bids are received through the informal bid procedure, the project may be performed by
district employees by force account or negotiated contract

3. Public projects of more than $220,000 shall, except as otherwise provided by law, be subject to formal bidding
procedures, as follows: (Public Contract Code 22032, 22037, 22038)

a. The Superintendent or designee shall prepare a notice inviting formal bids, which states the time and
place for receiving and opening sealed bids and distinctly describe the project
The notice shall be disseminated in both of the following ways:



Through publication in a newspaper of general circulation in the district's jurisdiction or, if there is
no such newspaper, then by posting the notice in at least three places designated by the district as
places for posting its notices

Such notice shall be published at least 14 calendar days before the date that bids will be opened.

i. By mail and electronically, if available, by either fax or email, to all construction trade journals

identified pursuant to Public Contract Code 22036
Such notice shall be sent at least 15 calendar days before the date that bids will be opened.

In addition to the notice required above, the district may give such other notice as it deems proper.

b. The district shall review the formal bids that were submitted and award the contract as follows:

i. The contract shall be awarded to the lowest responsible bidder

ifi.

If two or more bids are the same and the lowest, the district may accept the one it chooses.

i. Atits discretion, the district may reject all bids presented and declare that the project can be more

economically performed by district employees, provided that the district notifies an apparent low
bidder, in writing, of the district's intention to reject the bid

Such notice shall be mailed at least two business days prior to the hearing at which the district
intends to reject the bid.

If no bids are received through the formal bid procedure, the project may be performed by district
employees by force account or negotiated contract



Board Policy Manual
Blochman Union Elementary School District

Policy 3312: Contracts Status; DRAFT
Original Adopted Date: 11/14/2017 | Last Revised Date; 10/10/2023

The Governing Board recognizes its responsibility to enter into contracts on behalf of the district for the acquisition
of equipment, supplies, services, and other resources necessary for the achievement of district goals. In exercising
this authority to enter into a contract, the Board shall ensure that the district’s interests are protected and that the
terms of the contract conform to any applicable legal standards, including, but not limited to, bidding requirements in
Public Contract Code 20111.

Board members and district employees involved in the making of contracts on behalf of the district shall comply with
applicable law and the district's conflict of interest policy, as specified in Board Bylaw 9270 - Conflict of Interest.

The Board may, by a majority vote, delegate to the Superintendent or designee the authority to enter into contracts
on behalf of the district. To be valid or to constitute an enforceable obligation against the district, all such contracts
must be approved and/or ratified by the Board. (Education Code 17604, 17605, 35161)

Unless otherwise exempt from disclosure under state or federal law, executed contracts for the purchase of goods or
services, even if the contract contains provisions specifying that the contract is confidential or a proprietary record
of the vendor, are public records to which members of the public shall have access. {Government Code 7928.801)

No contract shall prohibit a district employee from disparaging the goods or services of any contracting party.
(Education Code 35182.5)

If the district utilizes a private labor compliance entity, the Superintendent or designee shall verify that the entity
does not have a conflict of interest. {Labor Code 1771.8}

A private labor compliance entity is a third-party company hired by a district to perform labor compliance and
enforcement activities on public works projects on the district's behalf. {Labor Code 1771.8)

A conflict of interest is a situation in which a private labor compliance entity performs labar compliance work under
contract for both the district and a contractor who is bidding a public works project for the district. {Labor Code
1771.8)

If the district’s private labor compliance entity seeks to respond to an alleged conflict of interest, the Superintendent
or designee shall confer with the entity and/or the contractor regarding the applicable contracts and relevant public
works law. (Labor Code 1771.8)

Contracts for Non-Nutritious Foods or Beverages

The district shall not enter into or renew a contract for the sale of foods or beverages that do not meet applicable
nutritional standards specified in Education Code 49431-49431.7, 5 CCR 15500-15501 or 15575-15578, or 7 CFR
210.11 or 220.12, unless the contract specifies that such sale will occur off campus or outside the time restriction
specified in applicable law,

Before the district enters into or renews a contract that grants exclusive or nonexclusive advertising or sale of
carbonated beverages, non-nutritious beverages, or non-nutritious foods as defined in law, the Board shall ensure
that the district has sufficient internal controls in place to protect the integrity of public funds and to ensure that
funds raised as a result of the contract benefit public education. {Education Code 35182.5}

The Superintendent or designee shall develop the district's internal control procedures to protect the integrity of
public funds. Such internal controls may include, but are not limited to, the following:



1. Procedures that produce accurate and reliable financial statements and, at the same time, safeguard the assets,
financial resources, and integrity of every employee responsible for handling money or property

Control systems shall be systematically evaluated and revised to keep pace with the changing responsibilities
of management.

2. Procedures to ensure that district personnel do not handle cash or product at the school site

The contract shall specify that the vendor stock the machines and shall provide cash accounting, along with a
check, for district proceeds directly to the control office.

To ensure that funds raised by the contract benefit district schools and students:

1. The Superintendent or designee may invite parents/guardians, students, staff, and interested community
members to make recommendations regarding the contract, including recommendations as to how the funds
will be spent in a manner that benefits public education

2. Prior to ratifying the contract, the Board shall designate the specific programs and activities that will be funded
by the proceeds of the contract and consider how the contract reflects the district's vision and goals

3. The contract shall specify that the contractor report, on a quarterly basis, to the Superintendent or designee
the number of food items or beverages sold within the district and the amount of money raised by the sales

The Superintendent or designee shall report these amounts to the Board on a regular basis.

4. The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that the contract does not limit the ability of student and parent
organizations to plan and operate fundraising activities

Any contract for the sale or advertisement of non-nutritious foods or carbonated or non-nutritious beverages shall
be entered into on a competitive bid basis pursuant to Public Contract Code 20111 or through the issuance of a
Request for Proposal. {Education Code 35182.5)

The Board shall not enter into or renew any contract that grants exclusive or nonexclusive advertising or sale of
carbonated beverages, non-nutritious beverages, on non-nutritious foods until parents/guardians, students, and
members of the public have had an opportunity to comment on the contract at a public hearing held during a
regularly scheduled Board meeting. The Board shall clearly, and in a manner recognizable to the general public,
identify in the agenda the contract to be discussed at the meeting. (Education Code 35182.5)

The public hearing shall include, but not be limited to, a discussion of the nutritional value of foods and beverages
sold within the district; the availability of fresh fruit, vegetables, and grains in school meals and snacks, including
locally grown and organic produce; the amount of fat, sugar, and additives in the foods and beverages discussed; and
barriers to student participation in school breakfast and lunch programs. (Education Code 35182.5)

The contract shall be a public record and shall be accessible to the public. The district may not include a
confidentiality clause that would prevent the district or a district school from making any part of the contract public
and may not enforce any such clause included by a contracting party. (Education Code 35182.5; Government Code
7928.801)

Contracts for Electronic Products or Services

The Board shall not enter into a contract for electronic products or services that requires the dissemination of
advertising to students, unless the Board: (Education Code 35182.5)

1. Enters into the contract at a noticed public hearing of the Board

2. Makes a finding that the electronic product or service is or would be an integral component of the education of
students



3. Makes a finding that the district cannot afford to provide the electronic product or service unless it contracts
to permit dissemination of advertising to students

4. As part of the district's normal, ongoing communication to parents/guardians, provides written notice that the
advertising will be used in the classrocom or other learning centers

5. Offers parents/guardians the opportunity to request in writing that the student not be exposed to the program
that contains the advertising

A request shall be honored for the school year in which it is submitted, or longer if specified, but may be
withdrawn by the parents/guardians at any time.

Contracts for Digital Storage and Maintenance of Student Records

The district may enter into or renew a contract with a third party for the purpose of providing services, including
cloud-based services, for the digital storage, management, and retrieval of student records and/or to provide digital
educational software that authorizes a third-party provider of digital educational software to access, store, and use
student records. For these purposes, student records include any information maintained by the district that is
directly related to a student and any information acquired directly from the student through the use of instructional
software or applications assigned to the student by a teacher or other district employee, and do not include de-
identified information. {(Education Code 49073.1)

Any such contract shall contain all of the following: (Education Code 49073.1)
1. A statement that student records continue to be the property of and under the control of the district

2. If applicable, a description of the means by which students may retain possession and control of their own
student-generated content, as defined in Education Code 49073.1, including options by which a student may
transfer student-generated content to a personal account

3. A prohibition against the third party using any information in the student record for any purpose other than
those required or specifically permitted by the contract

4, A description of the procedures by which a parent/guardian or a student age 18 years or older may review
personally identifiable information in the student's records and correct erroneous information

5. A description of the actions the third party will take, including the designation and training of responsible
individuals, to ensure the security and confidentiality of student records

6. A description of the procedures for notifying the affected parent/guardian, or the affected student if age 18
years or older, in the event of an unauthorized disclosure of the student's records

7. A certification that a student's records shall not be retained or available to the third party upon completion of
the terms of the contract and a description of how that certification will be enforced, except that these
requirements shall not apply to student-generated content if the student chooses to establish or maintain an
account with the third party for the purpose of storing that content

8. A description of how the district and the third party will jointly ensure compliance with the federal Family
Educational Rights and Privacy Act, 20 USC 1232g

9. A prohibition against the third party using personally identifiable information in student records to engage in
targeted advertising

Contracts for Personal Services

In order to achieve cost savings, the district may enter into or renew a contract for any personal service that is
currently or customarily performed by classified employees if the contract does not displace district employees and
meets other conditions specified in Education Code 45103.1. To enter into or renew such a contract, the Board shall
ensure that the district meets the conditions specified in Education Code 45103.1.



In addition, the district may enter into or renew any contract for personal service without meeting the conditions
described above, if any of the following conditions exist: (Education Code 45103,1}

1.

The centract is for new district functions and the Legislature has specifically mandated or authorized the
performance of the work by independent contractors

The services contracted are not available within the district, cannot be performed satisfactorily by district
employees, ar are of such a highly specialized or technical nature that the necessary expert knowledge,
experience, and ability are not available through the district

The services are incidental to a contract for the purchase or lease of real or personal property, including, but
not be limited to, agreements to service or maintain office equipment or computers that are leased or rented

The district's policy, administrative, or legal goals and purposes cannot be accomplished through the utilization
of persons selected pursuant to the regular or ordinary district hiring process

. The nature of the work is such that the criteria for emergency appointments, as defined in Education Code

45103.1, apply

. The contractor will provide equipment, materials, facilities, or support services that could not feasibly be

provided by the district in the location where the services are to be performed

. The services are of such an urgent, temporary, or occasional nature that the delay that would result from using

the district's regular or ordinary hiring process would frustrate their very purpose



Board Policy Manual
Blochman Union Elementary School District

Policy 3516.5: Emergency Schedules Status: DRAFT
Original Adopted Date: 11/14/2017 | Last Revised Date: 10/12/2021

In order to provide for the safety of students and staff, the Governing Board autharizes the Superintendent or
designee to close a school site, change the regular school day schedule, or take any necessary action when hazardous
environmental, health, or weather conditions, or other emergencies, warrant.

When an emergency condition causes a school closure, reduction in attendance, or change in schedule pursuant to
Education Code 41422 or 46392, thereby preventing the district from complying with the minimum number of
instructional days or minutes required by law, the Superintendent or designee shall complete and submit to the
Superintendent of Public Instruction (SPI) the necessary forms and/or affidavits for obtaining approval of
apportionment credit for the days of the closure, reduction in attendance, or change in schedule, The Superintendent
or designee shall submit other relevant district records as may be required.

For school closures or material decreases in attendance due to emergency events that occur between September 2,
2021 and June 30, 20246, the Superintendent or designee shall certify in the affidavit submitted to the SPI that the
district has a ptan for offering independent study within 10 instructional days of the school closure to any student
impacted by the emergency condition. The plan shall address the establishment, within a reasonable time, of
independent study master agreements as specified in Board Policy 6158 - Independent Study, and require reopening
in person as soon as possible once allowable under the direction from the city or county health officer. (Education
Code 46393)

For school closures or material decreases in attendance due to emergency events occurring on or after July 1, 2026,
the Superintendent or designee shall certify in the affidavit submitted to the SPI that the district's comprehensive
safety plan includes an instructional continuity plan, and that the district offered student engagement and instruction
consistent with the instructional continuity plan, or that it did not do so due to extenuating circumstances.
(Education Code 46393}

The Superintendent or designee shall establish a system for informing students and parents/guardians with timely
notice in advance of any changes to the school day, a school closure, or if school buses are not operating as
scheduled. The district's notification system shall include, but is not limited to, notifying local television, streaming
services, and/or radio stations; posting on district website(s) and/or social media account(s); sending email and text
messages; and/or making telephone calls.

When the district makes any notification to students and/or parents/guardians utilizing an automatic dialing-
announcing device, the device shall be operated by a person who shall follow all procedures required by law prior to
operating the device, and disconnect the device from the telephone line upan the termination of the call. (Public
Utilities Code 2874)

Whenever the school day schedule changes after students have arrived at school, the Superintendent or designee
shall ensure that students are supervised in accordance with the procedures specified in Board Policy/Administrative
Regulation 3516 - Emergencies and Disaster Preparedness Plan.

The Superintendent or designee may provide a means to make up lost instructional time |ater during the year.



Board Policy Manual
Blochman Union Elementary School District

Policy 3580: District Records Status: DRAFT
Original Adopted Date; 11/14/2017

The Governing Board recognizes the importance of securing and retaining district documents. The Superintendent or
designee shall ensure that district records are developed, maintained, and disposed of in accordance with law, Board
policy, and administrative regulation.

The Superintendent or designee shall consult with district legal counsel, site administrators, district information
technology staff, personnel department staff, and others as necessary to develop a secure document management
system that provides for the storage, retrieval, archiving, and destruction of district documents, including
electronically stored information such as email. This document management system shall be designed to comply with
state and federal laws regarding security of records, record retention and destruction, response to "litigation hold"
discovery requests, and the recovery of records in the event of a disaster or emergency.

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure the confidentiality of records as required by law and shall establish
regulations to safeguard data against damage, loss, or theft, including damage, loss, or theft which may be caused by
cybersecurity breaches.

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that employees receive information about the district's document
management system, including retention and confidentiality requirements and an employee's obligations in the event
of a litigation hold or California Public Records Act request established on the advice of legal counsel. Additionally,
the Superintendent or designee shall ensure that employees receive information and training about cybersecurity,
including ways to protect district records from breaches to the district's digital infrastructure.

If the district discovers or is notified that a breach in the security of district records has resulted in the release of
personal information, the Superintendent or designee shall notify every individual whose personal information was,
or is reasonably believed to have been, acquired by an unauthorized person, if that information was either
unencrypted or encrypted under the circumstances specified in Civil Code 1798.29. "Personal information" includes,
but is not limited to, a social security number, driver's license or identification card number, medical information,
health insurance information, ar an account number in combination with an access code or password that would
permit access to a financial account. {Civil Code 1798.29)

The Superintendent or designee shall provide the notice in a timely manner either in writing or electronically, unless
otherwise provided in law. The notice shall include the material specified in Civil Code 1798.29, be formatted as
required, and be distributed in a timely manner, consistent with the legitimate needs of law enforcement to conduct
an uncompromised investigation or any measures necessary to determine the scope of the breach and restore
reasonable integrity of the data system. (Civil Code 1798.29)

If the district experiences a cyberattack that impacts more than 500 students or personnel, the Superintendent or
designee shall report the cyberattack to the California Cybersecurity Integration Center. (Education Code 35266)

Safe at Home Program

District public records shall not include the actual addresses of students, parents/guardians, or employees when a
substitute address is designated by the Secretary of State pursuant to the Safe at Home program. (Government
Code 6206, 6207)

When a substitute address card is provided pursuant to this program, the confidential, actual address may be used
only to establish district residency requirements for enrollment and for school emergency purposes,

Records containing a participant's confidential address information shall be kept in a confidential location and not
shared with the public.



Board Policy Manual
Blochman Union Elementary School District

Regulation 3580: District Records Status: DRAFT
Original Adopted Date: 11/14/2017

Classification of Records
Records means all records, maps, books, papers, and documents of a school district required by law to be prepared or

retained as necessary or convenient to the discharge of official duty. {5 CCR 16020)

Before January 1, the Superintendent or designee shall review the prior year's records and shall classify them as
either a Class 1 (Permanent), Class 2 {Optional), or Class 3 (Disposable) record. (5 CCR 16022)

Records of a continuing nature, such as documents that are active and useful for administrative, legal, fiscal, or other
purposes over a period of years, shall not be classified until such usefulness has ceased. (5 CCR 16022}

Any historical inventory of equipment shall be a continuing record and shall not be classified until the inventory is
superseded or until the equipment is removed from district ownership. {5 CCR 16022)

A student's cumulative record, if not transferred, is a continuing record until the student ceases to be enrolled in the
district. {5 CCR 16022)

When an electronic or photographed copy of a Class 1 (Permanent) record has been made, the copy may be
classified as Class 1 {Permanent) and the original classified as either Class 2 {Optional) or Class 3 (Disposable).
However, no original record that is basic to any required audit may be destroyed prior to the second July 1st
succeeding the completion of the audit. (Education Code 35254; 5 CCR 16022)
Class 1 - Permanent Records
The original of each of the following records, or one exact copy of it when the original is required by law to be filed
with another agency, is a Class 1 (Permanent) record and shall be retained indefinitely unless microfilmed in
accordance with 5 CCR 16022: (5 CCR 16023}

1. Annual Reports

a. Official budget

b. Financial reports of all funds, including cafeteria and student body funds

c. Audit of all funds

=

. Average daily attendance, including Period 1 and Period 2 reports

[1]

. Other major annual reports, including:
i. Those containing information relating to property, activities, financial condition, or transactions
ii. Those declared by Governing Board minutes to be permanent

2. Official Actions

a. Minutes of the Board or Board committees, including the text of rules, regulations, policies, or
resolutions not set forth verbatim in the minutes, but included by reference only

b. The call for and the result of any elections called, conducted, or canvassed by the Board
¢. Records transmitted by another agency pertaining to its action with respect to district reorganization

3. Personnel Records



Class 1 {Permanent) records include all detailed records relating to employment; assignment; amounts and
dates of service rendered; termination or dismissal of an employee in any position; sick leave record; rate of
compensation, salaries, or wages paid; and deductions or withholdings made and the person or agency to
whom such amounts were paid.

In lieu of the detailed records, a complete proven summary payroll record for each employee containing the
same data may be classified as a Class 1 {Permanent) record and the detailed records may then be classified as
Class 3 {Disposable) records.

Information of a derogatory nature as defined in Education Code 44031 shall be retained as a Class 1
{Permanent) record only when the time for filing a grievance has passed or the document has been sustained
by the grievance process.

4. Student Records

The records of enrollment and scholarship for each student required by 5 CCR 432 and all records pertaining
to any accident or injury involving a minor for which a claim for damages had been filed as required by law shall
be classified as Class 1 (Permanent) records.

These include any related policy of liability insurance, except that these records cease to be Class 1
(Permanent) records one year after the claim has been settled or the statute of limitations has expired.

5. Property Records
Class 1 (Permanent) records include all detailed records relating to land, buildings, and equipment.

In lieu of detailed records, a complete property ledger may be classified as a Class 1 (Permanent) record. The
detailed records may then be classified as Class 3 (Disposable) records if the property ledger includes all fixed
assets; an equipment inventory; and, for each piece of property, the date of acquisition, name of previous
owner, a legal description, amount paid, and comparable data if the unit is disposed of.

Class 2 - Optional Records

Any records considered temporarily worth keeping, but which are not Class 1 records, may be classified as Class 2
(Optional) records and shall be retained until reclassified as Class 3 (Disposable} records. If, by agreement of the
Board and Superintendent or designee, classification of the prior year records has not been made before January 1 as
specified in 5 CCR 16022, all records of the prior year may be classified as Class 2 (Optional) records pending further
review and classification within one year. (5 CCR 16024)

Class 3 - Disposable Records

All records not classified as Class 1 (Permanent) or as Class 2 {Optional) records shall be classified as Class 3
{Disposable) records. These include, but are not limited to, detailed records basic to audit, including those relating to
attendance, average daily attendance, or business or financial transactions; detailed records used in preparing
another report; teachers' registers if all information required by 5 CCR 432 is retained in other records or if the
General Records pages are removed from the register and classified as Class 1 (Permanent) records; and periodic
reports, including daily, weekly, and monthly reports, bulletins, and instructions. (5 CCR 16025)

All Class 3 {Disposable) records shall be destroyed during the third school year after the school year in which the
records originated. In addition, Class 3 (Disposable) records shall not be destroyed until after the third school year
following the completion of any legally required audit or the retention period required by any agency other than the
State of California, whichever is later, A continuing record shall not be destroyed until the fourth year after it has
been classified as a Class 3 {Disposable} record. (5 CCR 16026, 16027)

Electronically Stored Information

All electronically stored information related to the conduct of district business, including information created, saved,
sent, or received on a district employee's or Board member's personal account or device, shall be saved as an
electronic file to a district-provided account or device and retained in accordance with the section "Classification of
Records" above, Such information includes, but is not limited to, email, text messages, messages sent via apps,



computer files, and other electronic communications related to district business. All records, including electronic
documents, should be organized and filed for easy retrieval based on information contained in, and the purpose of,
the record.

Employees shall be required to regularly purge their email accounts and district-issued computers, cell phones, and
other communication devices of personal electronically stored information and other information unrelated to
district business. The Superintendent or designee may check for appropriate use of any district-owned equipment at
any time.

Any person to whom a district-owned computer, cell phone, or other electronic communication device is provided
shall be notified about the district's electronic information management system and, as necessary, provided training
on the effective use of the device.



Board Policy Manual
Blochman Union Elementary School District

Policy 4151: Employee Compensation Status: DRAFT
Original Adopted Date: 11/14/2017 | Last Revised Date: 10/10/2023

In order to recruit and retain employees committed to the district's goals for student learning, the Governing Board
recognizes the importance of offering a competitive compensation package that includes salaries and health and
welfare benefits.

The Board shall adopt separate salary schedules for certificated, classified, and supervisory and administrative
personnel that comply with law and applicable collective bargaining agreements. (Education Code 45022, 45160,
45162, 45268)

Each certificated employee, except an employee in an administrative or supervisory position, shall be classified on
the salary schedule on the basis of uniform allowance for education level and years of experience, unless the Board
and employee organization negotiate and mutually agree to a salary schedule based on different criteria. Certificated
employees shall not be placed in different classifications on the schedule, nor paid different salaries, solely on the
basis of the grade levels at which they teach. {Education Code 45028)

Salary schedules for staff who are not a part of a bargaining unit shall be determined by the Board at the
recommendation of the Superintendent or designee.

The salary schedules adopted by the Board shall be printed and made available for review at the district office.
(Education Code 45023)

Additionally, by January 31, 2026, and annually thereafter, the Superintendent or designee shall complete the Salary
and Benefit Schedule for Bargaining Units {Form J-90) for classified and certificated staff assigned to a district school
site and report the Form J-90 to the California Department of Education. (Education Code 42238.016)

Unless otherwise provided for in any applicable collective bargaining agreement, district employees shall be paid
monthly and in 10 equal payments over the year. However, if the district participates in the Ciassified School
Employee Summer Assistance Program, eligible classified employees may elect to have up to 10 percent of the
employee's monthly salary withheld and paid out during the summer recess in either one or two payments.
{Education Code 45038, 45039, 45048, 45165, 45500)

The Superintendent or designee shall post a notice explaining the Fair Labor Standards Act's wage and hour
provisions in a conspicuous place at each work site. {29 CFR 516.4)

Overtime Compensation

District employees shall be paid an overtime rate of not less than one and one-half times their regular rate of pay for
any hours worked in excess of eight hours in one day and/or 40 hours in one work week. However, teachers, school
administrators, and other employees in positions established by the Board as executive, administrative, or
professional shall be exempt from overtime rules. {(Education Code 45128, 45130; 29 USC 213; 29 CFR 541.204,
541.303, 541.600, 553.27, 553.32)

If the district requires a classified employee in an exempt position to work on a holiday designated in law or by the
Board, the employee shall be paid the regular pay for that day plus compensation or compensatory time off at a rate
not less than the employee's normal rate of pay. {Education Code 45130)

When authorized in a collective bargaining agreement or other agreement between the district and employees, an
employee may take compensatory time off in lieu of overtime compensation, provided the employee has not accrued
compensatory time in excess of the limits specified in 22 USC 207. An employee who has requested the use of
compensatory time shall be allowed to use such time within 12 calendar months following the month the overtime
was worked if the use of the compensatory time does not unduly disrupt district operations. (Education Code



45129; 29 USC 207; 29 CFR 553.20-553.25)

For each nonexempt employee, the Superintendent or designee shall maintain records on the employee's wages,
hours, and other information specified in 29 CFR 516.5-516.6.

Wage Overpayment

If the district determines an employee has been overpaid, the district shall notify the employee in writing of the
overpayment, afford the employee an opportunity to respond before commencing any recoupment actions, and
inform the employee of the employee's rights to dispute the existence or amount of the claimed overpayment. If the
employee agrees there was an overpayment in the claimed amount, reimbursement shall be made to the district
through one of the methods described in Education Code 44042.5, as mutually agreed upon by the employee and
the district. (Education Code 44042.5)

If a mutual agreement on a method of reimbursement is not reached, within 30 days of the employee verifying the
overpayment amount, the district shall recoup the overpayment through payroll deductions in accordance with
Education Code 440425,

If the employee does not respond or disputes the existence or amount of the district’s claimed overpayment, the
district may only recover the overpayment after pursuing appropriate legal action. (Education Code 44042.5}

If the employee separates from the district before the overpayment is fully repaid, the district shall withhold the
remaining balance due from any money owed to the employee upon separation, provided that the state minimum
wage is still paid to the employee as required by Education Code 44042.,5. The Superintendent or designee may
consult with legal counse! to calculate the amount to withhold.

If an outstanding overpayment batance still remains, the district may exercise any legal means to recover the
remaining amount owed by the employee. (Education Code 44042.5)

Legal action to recover any overpayment under this policy shall be initiated within three years from the date of the
overpayment, which for leave credits is the date that the employee receives compensation in exchange for leave
erroneously credited to the employee. {Education Code 44042.5)



Board Policy Manual
Blochman Union Elementary School District

Policy 4251: Employee Compensation Status: DRAFT
Original Adopted Date: 11/14/2017 | Last Revised Date: 10/10/2023

In order to recruit and retain employees committed to the district’s goals for student learning, the Governing Board

recognizes the importance of offering a competitive compensation package that includes salaries and health and
welfare benefits.

The Board shall adopt separate salary schedules for certificated, classified, and supervisory and administrative
personnel that comply with law and applicable collective bargaining agreements. (Education Code 45022, 45160,
45162, 45268)

Each certificated employee, except an employee in an administrative or supervisory position, shall be classified on
the salary schedule on the basis of uniform allowance for education level and years of experience, unless the Board
and employee organization negotiate and mutually agree to a salary schedule based on different criteria. Certificated
employees shall not be placed in different classifications on the schedule, nor paid different salaries, solely on the
basis of the grade levels at which they teach. (Education Code 45028}

Salary schedules for staff who are not a part of a bargaining unit shall be determined by the Board at the
recommendation of the Superintendent or designee.

The salary schedules adopted by the Board shall be printed and made available for review at the district office.
{Education Code 45023)

Additionally, by January 31, 2026, and annually thereafter, the Superintendent or designee shall complete the Salary
and Benefit Schedule for Bargaining Units {Form J-20) for classified and certificated staff assigned to a district school
site and report the Form J-90 to the California Department of Education. (Education Code 42238.016)

Unless otherwise provided for in any applicable collective bargaining agreement, district employees shall be paid
monthly and in equal payments, based on their work calendar, over the year. However, if the district participates in
the Classified School Employee Summer Assistance Program, eligible classified employees may elect to have up to
10 percent of the employee's monthly salary withheld and paid out during the summer recess in either one or two
payments. {Education Code 45038, 45039, 45048, 45165, 45500)

The Superintendent or designee shall post a notice explaining the Fair Labor Standards Act's wage and hour
provisions in a conspicuous place at each work site. {29 CFR 516.4}

Overtime Compensation

District employees shall be paid an overtime rate of not less than one and one-half times their regular rate of pay for
any hours worked in excess of eight hours in one day and/or 40 hours in one work week. However, teachers, school
administrators, and other employees in positions established by the Board as executive, administrative, or
professional shall be exempt from overtime rules. {Education Code 45128, 45130; 29 USC 213; 29 CFR 541.204,
541,303, 541.600, 553.27,553.32)

If the district requires a classified employee in an exempt position to work on a holiday designated in law or by the
Board, the employee shall be paid the regular pay for that day plus compensation or compensatory time off at a rate
not less than the employee's normal rate of pay. (Education Code 45130)

When authorized in a collective bargaining agreement or other agreement between the district and employees, an
employee may take compensatory time off in lieu of overtime compensation, provided the employee has not accrued
compensatory time in excess of the limits specified in 29 USC 207. An employee who has requested the use of
compensatory time shall be allowed to use such time within 12 calendar months following the month the overtime
was worked if the use of the compensatory time does not unduly disrupt district operations. (Education Code



45129, 29 USC 207; 29 CFR 553.20-553.25)

For each nonexempt employee, the Superintendent or designee shall maintain records on the employee's wages,
hours, and other information specified in 29 CFR 516.5-516.6.

Wage Overpayment

If the district determines an employee has been overpaid, the district shall notify the employee in writing of the
overpayment, afford the employee an opportunity to respond before commencing any recoupment actions, and
inform the employee of the employee's rights to dispute the existence or amount of the claimed overpayment. if the
employee agrees there was an overpayment in the claimed amount, reimbursement shall be made to the district
through one of the methods described in Education Code 44042.5, as mutually agreed upon by the employee and
the district. {Education Code 44042.5)

If a mutual agreement on a method of reimbursement is not reached, within 30 days of the employee verifying the
overpayment amount, the district shall recoup the overpayment through payroll deductions in accordance with
Education Code 44042.5.

If the employee does not respond or disputes the existence or amount of the district's claimed overpayment, the
district may only recover the overpayment after pursuing appropriate legal action. (Education Code 44042.5)

If the employee separates from the district before the overpayment is fully repaid, the district shall withhold the
remaining balance due from any money owed to the employee upon separation, provided that the state minimum
wage is still paid to the employee as required by Education Code 44042.5. The Superintendent or designee may
consult with legal counsel to calculate the amount to withhold.

If an outstanding overpayment balance still remains, the district may exercise any legal means to recover the
remaining amount owed by the employee. {Education Code 44042.5)

Legal action to recover any overpayment under this policy shall be initiated within three years from the date of the
overpayment, which for leave credits is the date that the employee receives compensation in exchange for leave
erroneously credited to the employee. {Education Code 44042.5)



Board Policy Manual
Blochman Union Elementary School District

Policy 4351: Employee Compensation Status: DRAFT
Original Adopted Date: 11/14/2017 | Last Revised Date: 10/10/2023

In order to recruit and retain employees committed to the district's goals for student learning, the Governing Board
recognizes the importance of offering a competitive compensation package that includes salaries and health and
welfare benefits.

The Board shall adopt separate salary schedules for certificated, classified, and supervisory and administrative
personnel that comply with law and applicable collective bargaining agreements. (Education Code 45022, 45160,
45162, 45268)

Each certificated employee, except an employee in an administrative or supervisory position, shall be classified on
the salary schedule on the basis of uniform allowance for education level and years of experience, unless the Board
and employee organization negotiate and mutually agree to a salary schedule based on different criteria, Certificated
employees shall not be placed in different classifications on the schedule, nor paid different salaries, solely on the
basis of the grade levels at which they teach. (Education Code 45028)

Salary schedules for staff who are not a part of a bargaining unit shall be determined by the Board at the
recommendation of the Superintendent or designee.

The salary schedules adopted by the Board shall be printed and made available for review at the district office.
{Education Code 45023)

Additionally, by January 31, 2026, and annually thereafter, the Superintendent or designee shall complete the Salary
and Benefit Schedule for Bargaining Units (Form J-90) for classified and certificated staff assigned to a district school
site and report the Form J-90 to the California Department of Education. {Education Code 42238.016)

Unless otherwise provided for in any applicable coliective bargaining agreement, district employees shall be paid
monthly and in equal payments, based on their contract, over the year. However, if the district participates in the
Classified School Employee Summer Assistance Program, eligible classified employees may elect to have up to 10
percent of the employee's monthly salary withheld and paid out during the summer recess in either one or two
payments. {Education Code 45038, 45039, 45048, 45165, 45500)

The Superintendent or designee shall post a notice explaining the Fair Labor Standards Act's wage and hour
provisions in a conspicuous place at each work site. (29 CFR 516.4)

Overtime Compensation

District employees shall be paid an overtime rate of not less than one and one-half times their regular rate of pay for
any hours worked in excess of eight hours in one day and/or 40 hours in one work week. However, teachers, school
administrators, and other employees in positions established by the Board as executive, administrative, or
professional shall be exempt from overtime rules. {Education Code 45128, 45130; 29 USC 213; 2% CFR 541.204,
541,303, 541.600, 553.27, 553.32)

If the district requires a classified employee in an exempt position to work on a holiday designated in law or by the
Board, the employee shall be paid the regular pay for that day plus compensation or compensatory time off at a rate
not less than the employee's normal rate of pay. {Education Code 45130)

When authorized in a collective bargaining agreement or other agreement between the district and employees, an
employee may take compensatory time off in lieu of overtime compensation, provided the employee has not accrued
compensatory time in excess of the limits specified in 29 USC 207, An employee who has requested the use of
compensatory time shall be allowed to use such time within 12 calendar months following the month the overtime
was worked if the use of the compensatory time does not unduly disrupt district operations. (Education Code



4512%; 29 USC 207; 29 CFR 553.20-553.25)

For each nonexempt employee, the Superintendent or designee shall maintain records on the employee's wages,
hours, and other information specified in 29 CFR 516.5-516.6.

Wage Overpayment

If the district determines an employee has been overpaid, the district shall notify the employee in writing of the
overpayment, afford the employee an opportunity to respond before commencing any recoupment actions, and
inform the employee of the employee's rights to dispute the existence or amount of the claimed overpayment. If the
employee agrees there was an overpayment in the claimed amount, reimbursement shall be made to the district
through one of the methods described in Education Code 44042.5, as mutually agreed upon by the employee and
the district. {Education Code 44042.5)

If a mutual agreement on a method of reimbursement is not reached, within 30 days of the employee verifying the
overpayment amount, the district shall recoup the overpayment through payroll deductions in accordance with
Education Code 440425,

If the employee does not respond or disputes the existence or amount of the district's claimed overpayment, the
district may only recover the overpayment after pursuing appropriate legal action. (Education Code 44042.5)

If the employee separates from the district before the overpayment is fully repaid, the district shall withhold the
remaining balance due from any money owed to the employee upon separation, provided that the state minimum
wage is still paid to the employee as required by Education Code 44042.5, The Superintendent or designee may
consult with legal counsel to calculate the amount to withhold.

If an outstanding overpayment balance still remains, the district may exercise any legal means to recover the
remaining amount owed by the employee. (Education Code 44042.5)

Legal action to recover any overpayment under this policy shall be initiated within three years from the date of the
overpayment, which for leave credits is the date that the employee receives compensation in exchange for leave
erroneously credited to the employee. (Education Code 44042.5)



Board Policy Manual
Blochman Union Elementary School District

Policy 4158: Employee Security Status: DRAFT
Original Adopted Date: 11/14/2017 | Last Revised Date: 08/10/2021

The Governing Board desires to provide a safe and orderly work environment for all employees. As part of the
district's comprehensive safety plan, the Superintendent or designee shall develop strategies for protecting
employees from potentially dangerous persons and situations and for providing necessary assistance and support
when emergency situations oceur.

Any person who threatens the safety of others at any district facility may be removed by the Superintendent or
designee in accordance with Administrative Regulation 3515.2 - Disruptions.

Any employee against whom harassment, viclence, or any threat of violence has been directed in the workplace shall
notify the Superintendent or designee immediately. As appropriate, the Superintendent or designee shall initiate
legal and security measures to protect the employee and others in the workplace. Such measures may include
seeking a temporary restraining order (TRO) on behalf of the employee pursuant to Code of Civil Procedure 527.8
and/or a gun violence restraining order pursuant to Penal Code 18150 and 18170.

Additionally, a collective bargaining representative may seek a TRO on behalf of a district employee against whom
harassment, violence, or credible threat of violence has been directed in the workplace, if the collective bargaining
representative serves that employee in employment or labor matters at the employee's workplace. (Code of Civil
Procedure 527.8)

Upon request by an employee who is a victim of domestic violence, sexual assault, or stalking, the Superintendent or
designee shall provide reasonable accommodations in accordance with Government Code 12945.8 and the
accompanying administrative regulation to protect the employee's safety while at work.

The Superintendent or designee may pursue legal action on behalf of an employee against a student or the student’s
parent/guardian to recover damages for injury to the employee’s person or property caused by the student's wiliful
misconduct that occurred on district property, at a school or district activity, or in retaliation for lawful acts of the
employee in the performance of the employee's duties. {Education Code 48904, 48905)

The Superintendent or designee shall provide staff development in crisis prevention and intervention technigues,
which may include training in classroom management, effective communication techniques, procedures for
responding to an active shooter situation, and crisis resolution.

In accordance with law, the Superintendent or designee shall inform teachers, administrators, and/or counselors of
crimes and offenses committed by students who may pose a danger in the classroom. {Education Code 48201,
49079; Welfare and Institutions Code 827)

The Superintendent or designee may make available at appropriate locations, including, but not limited to, district
and school offices, gyms, and classrooms, communication devices that would enable two-way communication with
law enforcement and others when emergencies occur.

Use of Pepper Spray

Employees shall not carry or possess pepper spray on school property or at school activities, except when authorized
by the Superintendent or designee for self-defense purposes. When allowed, an employee may only possess pepper
spray in accordance with Board policy, administrative regulation, and Penal Code 22810. Any employee authorized
to carry or possess pepper spray on school property who is negligent or careless in the possession or handling of
pepper spray is acting outside of the scope of employment and shal! be subject to appropriate disciplinary measures.

Reporting of Injurious Objects

Employees shall take immediate action upon being made aware that any person is in possession of a weapon or



unauthorized injurious object on district property or at a district related or school-sponsored activity. Employees
shall exercise their best judgment as to the potential danger involved and do one of the following:

1. Confiscate the object and deliver it to the principal immediately
2. Immediately notify the principal or supervisor, who shall take appropriate action

3. Immediately call 911 and the principal or supervisor

When informing the principal about the possession or seizure of a weapon or dangerous device, an employee shall
report the name(s) of persons involved, witnesses, location, and the circumstances of any seizure.



Board Policy Manual
Blochman Union Elementary School District

Policy 4258: Employee Security Status: DRAFT
Original Adopted Date: 11/14/2017 | Last Revised Date: 08/10/2021

The Governing Board desires to provide a safe and orderly work environment for all employees. As part of the
district's comprehensive safety plan, the Superintendent or designee shall develop strategies for protecting
employees from potentially dangerous persons and situations and for providing necessary assistance and support
when emergency situations occur.

Any person who threatens the safety of others at any district facility may be removed by the Superintendent or
designee in accordance with Administrative Regulation 3515.2 - Disruptions.

Any employee against whom harassment, violence, or any threat of violence has been directed in the workplace shall
notify the Superintendent or designee immediately. As appropriate, the Superintendent or designee shall initiate
legal and security measures to protect the employee and others in the workplace. Such measures may include
seeking a temporary restraining order {TRO) on behalf of the employee pursuant to Code of Civil Procedure 527.8
and/or a gun violence restraining order pursuant to Penal Code 18150 and 18170.

Additionally, a collective bargaining representative may seek a TRO on behalf of a district employee against whom
harassment, violence, or credible threat of violence has been directed in the workplace, if the collective bargaining

representative serves that employee in employment or labor matters at the employee's workplace. {Code of Civil
Procedure 527.8)

Upon request by an employee who is a victim of domestic violence, sexual assault, or stalking, the Superintendent or
designee shall provide reasonable accommodations in accordance with Government Code 12945.8 and the
accompanying administrative regulation to protect the employee's safety while at work.

The Superintendent or designee may pursue legal action on behalf of an employee against a student or the student's
parent/guardian to recover damages for injury to the employee's person or property caused by the student's willful
misconduct that occurred on district property, at a school or district activity, or in retaliation for lawful acts of the
employee in the performance of the employee's duties. {Education Code 48904, 48905)

The Superintendent or designee shall provide staff development in crisis prevention and intervention techniques,
which may include training in classroom management, effective communication techniques, procedures for
responding to an active shooter situation, and crisis resolution.

In accordance with law, the Superintendent or designee shall inform teachers, administrators, and/or counselors of
crimes and offenses committed by students who may pose a danger in the classroom. (Education Code 48201,
49079: Welfare and Institutions Code 827)

The Superintendent or designee may make available at appropriate locations, including, but not limited to, district
and school offices, gyms, and classrooms, communication devices that would enable two-way communication with
law enforcement and others when emergencies occur,

Use of Pepper Spray

Employees shall not carry or possess pepper spray on school property or at school activities, except when authorized
by the Superintendent or designee for self-defense purposes. When allowed, an employee may only possess pepper
spray in accordance with Board policy, administrative regulation, and Penal Code 22810. Any employee authorized
to carry or possess pepper spray on school property who is negligent or careless in the possession or handling of
pepper spray is acting outside of the scope of employment and shall be subject to appropriate disciplinary measures.

Reporting of Injurious Objects

Employees shall take immediate action upon being made aware that any person is in possession of a weapon or



unauthorized injurious object on district property or at a district related or school-sponsored activity, Employees
shall exercise their best judgment as to the potential danger involved and do one of the following:

1. Confiscate the object and deliver it to the principal immediately
2. Immediately notify the principal or supervisor, who shall take appropriate action

3. Immediately call 911 and the principal or supervisor

When informing the principal about the possession or seizure of a weapon or dangerous device, an employee shall
report the name(s) of persons involved, witnesses, location, and the circumstances of any seizure.



Board Policy Manual
Blochman Union Elementary School District

Policy 4358: Employee Security Status: DRAFT
Original Adopted Date: 11/14/2017 | Last Revised Date: 08/10/2021

The Governing Board desires to provide a safe and orderly work environment for all employees, As part of the
district's comprehensive safety plan, the Superintendent or designee shall develop strategies for protecting
employees from potentially dangerous persons and situations and for providing necessary assistance and support
when emergency situations occur.

Any person who threatens the safety of others at any district facility may be removed by the Superintendent or
designee in accordance with Administrative Regulation 3515.2 - Disruptions.

Any employee against whom harassment, violence, or any threat of violence has been directed in the workplace shall
notify the Superintendent or designee immediately. As appropriate, the Superintendent or designee shall initiate
legal and security measures to protect the employee and others in the workplace. Such measures may include
seeking a temporary restraining order (TRO) on behalf of the employee pursuant to Code of Civil Procedure 527.8
and/or a gun violence restraining order pursuant to Penal Code 18150 and 18170.

Additionally, a collective bargaining representative may seek a TRO on behalf of a district employee against whom
harassment, violence, or credible threat of violence has been directed in the workplace, if the collective bargaining
representative serves that employee in employment or labor matters at the employee's workplace. (Code of Civil

Procedure 527.8)

Upon request by an employee who is a victim of domestic violence, sexual assault, or stalking, the Superintendent or
designee shall provide reasonable accommodations in accordance with Government Code 12945.8 and the
accompanying administrative regulation to protect the employee's safety while at work.

The Superintendent or designee may pursue legal action on behalf of an employee against a student or the student's
parent/guardian to recover damages for injury to the employee’s person or property caused by the student’s willful
misconduct that occurred on district property, at a schoo! or district activity, or in retaliation for lawful acts of the
employee in the performance of the employee's duties. (Education Code 48904, 48905)

The Superintendent or designee shall provide staff development in crisis prevention and intervention techniques,
which may include training in classrcom management, effective communication techniques, pracedures for
responding to an active shooter situation, and crisis resolution.

In accordance with law, the Superintendent or designee shall inform teachers, administrators, and/or counselors of
crimes and offenses committed by students who may pose a danger in the classroom. (Education Code 48201,
49079; Welfare and Institutions Code 827)

The Superintendent or designee may make available at appropriate locations, including, but not limited to, district
and school offices, gyms, and classrooms, communication devices that would enable two-way communication with
law enforcement and others when emergencies occur.

Use of Pepper Spray

Employees shall not carry or possess pepper spray on school property or at school activities, except when authorized
by the Superintendent or designee for self-defense purposes. When allowed, an employee may only possess pepper
spray in accordance with Board policy, administrative regulation, and Penal Code 22810. Any employee authorized
to carry or possess pepper spray on school property who is negligent or careless in the possession or handling of
pepper spray is acting outside of the scope of employment and shall be subject to appropriate disciplinary measures.

Reporting of Injurious Objects

Employees shall take immediate action upon being made aware that any person is in possession of a weapon or



unauthorized injurious object on district property or at a district related or school-sponsored activity. Employees
shall exercise their best judgment as to the potential danger involved and do one of the following:

1. Confiscate the object and deliver it to the principal immediately
2. Immediately notify the principal or supervisor, who shall take appropriate action
3. Immediately call 911 and the principal or supervisor

When informing the principal about the possession or seizure of a weapon or dangerous device, an employee shall
report the name(s) of persons involved, witnesses, location, and the circumstances of any seizure.



Board Policy Manual
Blochman Union Elementary School District

Regulation 4158: Employee Security Status: DRAFT
Originat Adopted Date: 11/14/2017 | Last Revised Date: 08/10/2021

An employee may use reasonable and necessary force for self-defense or defense of another person, to queli a
disturbance threatening physical injury to others or damage to property, or to obtain possession of weapons or other
dangerous objects within the control of a student. {Education Code 44807, 49001)

An employee shall promptly report to the principal or other immediate supervisor any attack, assault, or physical
threat made against the employee by a student or by any other individual in relation to the performance of the
employee's duties, and any action the employee took in response.

Additionally, the employee and the principal or other immediate supervisor shall promptly report to local law
enforcement authorities an attack, assault, or physical threat made against the employee by a student. Reports of an

attack, assault, or physical threat shall be forwarded immediately to the Superintendent or designee. (Education
Code 44014)

Notice Regarding Student Offenses

When a student commits certain offenses that may endanger staff or others, the following procedures shall be
implemented to notify staff members as appropriate:

1. Acts That Are Grounds for Suspension or Expulsion

a. The Superintendent or designee shall inform the teacher(s} of each student who, during the previous
three school years, has engaged in or is reasonably suspected to have engaged in any act, except the
possession or use of tobacco products, that would constitute a ground for suspension or expulsion as
specified in Administrative Regulation 5144.1 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process {Education Code
49079}

This information shall be based upon district records maintained in the ordinary course of business or
records received from a law enforcement agency. (Education Code 49079)

b. Upon receiving a transfer student's record regarding acts committed by the student that resulted in
suspension or expulsion, the Superintendent or designee shall inform the student's teacher{s} that the
student was suspended from school or expelled from the former district and of the act that resulted in
the suspension or expulsion {Education Code 48201)

c. Information received by teacher(s) shall be received in confidence for the limited purpose for which it
was provided and shall not be further disseminated by the teacher {Education Code 48201, 49079)

2. Offenses Reported to the District by a Court

a. When informed by a court that a minor student has been found by the court to have committed any
felony or any misdemeanor involving curfew, gambling, alcohol, drugs, tobacco products, carrying of
weapons, a sex offense listed in Penal Code 290, assault or battery, larceny, vandalism, or graffiti, the
Superintendent or designee shall expeditiously notify the school principal or designee (Welfare and
Institutions Code 827)

b. The principal or designee shall expeditiously disseminate this information to any counselor who directly
supervises or reports on the student's behavior or progress and to any teacher or administrator directly
supervising or reporting on the student's behavior or progress whom the principal or designee thinks
may need the information in order to work with the student appropriately, to avoid being needlessly
vulnerable, or to protect others from vulnerability (Welfare and Institutions Code 827)

c. Any court-initiated information that a teacher, counselor, or administrator receives shall be kept
confidential and used only to rehabilitate the student and protect other students and staff (Welfare and
Institutions Code 827)



The information shall be further disseminated only when communication with the student,
parent/guardian, law enforcement staff, and probation officer is necessary to rehabilitate the student or
to protect students and staff. (Welfare and Institutions Code 827)

d. When a student is removed from school as a result of an offense, the Superintendent shall hold the
court's information in a separate confidential file until the student is returned to the district {Welfare
and Institutions Code 827)

If the student is returned to a different district, the Superintendent shall transmit the information
provided by the student's parole or probation officer to the superintendent of the new district of
attendance. {Welfare and institutions Code 827)

e. Any confidential file of court-initiated information shall be kept untif the student becomes 18, graduates
from high school, or is released from juvenile court jurisdiction, whichever occurs first, and shall then be
destroyed (Welfare and Institutions Code 827)

In order to maintain confidentiality when providing information about student offenses to a counselor or teacher, the
principal or designee shall send the staff member a written notification that a student has committed an offense that
requires review of a student's file in the school office. This notice shall not name or otherwise identify the student.
The staff member shall initial the notification and shall also initial the student's file when reviewing it in the school
office.

Accommodations for Victims of Domestic Violence, Sexual Assault, Stalking, or Other Qualifying Acts of Violence

When requested by an employee who is a victim of domestic violence, sexual assault, stalking, or other qualifying
acts of violence, the district shall provide the employee reasonable accommodations which may include the
implementation of safety measures, including, but not limited to: {Government Code 12945.8)

1. A transfer, reassignment, or modified schedule
2. A changed work telephone or work station, including the permission to carry a telephone at work
3. Aninstalled lock

4, Assistance in documenting domestic violence, sexual assault, stalking, or other gualifying act of violence that
occurs in the workplace

5. Referral to a victim assistance organization

6. Another safety procedure or adjustment to a job structure, workplace facility, or work requirement in response
to domestic violence, sexual assault, stalking, or other qualifying act of violence

The Superintendent or designee shall engage in a timely, good faith, and interactive process with the employee to
determine effective reasonable accommodations that do not pose an undue hardship on the district. In determining
whether an accommodation is reasonable, the Superintendent or designee shall consider any exigent circumstance or
danger facing the employee or their family member. (Government Code 12945.8)

Upon the request of the Superintendent or designee, an employee requesting a reasonable accommodation shall
provide a written statement, signed by the employee or an individual acting on the employee's behalf, certifying that
the accommodation is for an authorized purpose. The Superintendent or designee may also request that the
employee provide certification of the employee's status as a victim of domestic violence, sexual assault, stalking, or
other qualifying act of violence. Such certification may include: (Government Code 12945.8)

1. A police report indicating that the employee, or a family member of the employee, was a victim

2. A court order protecting or separating the employee, or family member of the employee, from the perpetrator
of the crime or abuse, or other evidence from the court or prosecuting attorney that the employee has
appeared in court

3. Documentation from a licensed medical professional or health care provider, domestic violence or sexual



assault counselor, victim advocate, or counselor that the employee, or family member of the employee, was
undergoing treatment or receiving services for physical or mental injuries or abuse resulting in victimization
from the crime or abuse

4. Any other form of documentation that reasonably verifies that the crime or abuse occurred, including, but not
limited to, a written statement signed by the employee or by an individual acting on the employee's behalf

Any verbal or written statement, police or court record, or other documentation identifying an employee, or a family
member of the employee, as a victim shall be confidential and shall not be disclosed by the district except as required
by federal or state law or as necessary to protect the employee’s safety in the workplace. The employee shall be
notified before any authorized disclosure. (Government Code 12945.8)

Every six months after the date of the certification, the Superintendent or designee may request recertification of
the employee's status as a victim of domestic violence, sexual assault, stalking, other specified offense, or ongoing
circumstances related to the crime or abuse. The employee shall notify the Superintendent or designee if, due to
changing circumstances, the employee needs a new accommodation or no longer needs an accommodation. If a new
accommodation is needed, the Superintendent or designee shall follow the pracedures described above when
making the initial determination regarding effective reasonable accommodations. (Government Code 12945.8)

The district shall not discharge or retaliate against an employee hecause of the employee's status as a victim of crime

or abuse or for requesting a reasonable accommodation, regardless of whether the request was granted,
(Government Code 12945.8)

Use of Pepper Spray

The Superintendent or designee shall notify employees of the district's policy prohibiting the possession of pepper
spray on school property or at school-related activities without prior approval of the Superintendent or designee.
Employees wishing to carry pepper spray shall submit to the Superintendent or designee a written request setting
forth the need to carry or possess pepper spray and for how long the need is anticipated to last. The Superintendent
or designee shall notify the employee in writing as to whether the request was approved or denied.

When approving an employee's request, the Superintendent or designee shall inform the employee of the following
conditions:

1. The pepper spray shall be used only in self-defense pursuant to Penal Code 22810

2. An employee who uses pepper spray other than in self-defense shall be subject to disciplinary action by the
district and, in accordance with law, a fine and/or imprisonment

3. The pepper spray must be stored in a secure place and not be accessible to students or other individuals

Negligent storage or use of the pepper spray may subject the employee to disciplinary action.



Board Policy Manual
Blochman Union Elementary School District

Regulation 4258: Employee Security Status: DRAFT
Original Adopted Date; 11/14/2017 | Last Revised Date: 08/10/2021

An employee may use reasonable and necessary force for self-defense or defense of another person, to quell a
disturbance threatening physical injury to others or damage to property, or to obtain possession of weapons or other
dangerous objects within the control of a student. (Education Code 44807, 49001)

An employee shall pramptly report to the principal or other immediate supervisor any attack, assault, or physical
threat made against the employee by a student or by any other individual in relation to the performance of the
employee's duties, and any action the employee took in response.

Additionally, the employee and the principal or other immediate supervisor shall promptly report to local law
enforcement authorities an attack, assault, or physical threat made against the employee by a student. Reports of an
attack, assault, or physical threat shall be forwarded immediately to the Superintendent or designee. (Education
Code 44014)

Notice Regarding Student Offenses

When a student commits certain offenses that may endanger staff or others, the following procedures shall be
implemented to notify staff members as appropriate:

1. Acts That Are Grounds for Suspension or Expulsion

a. The Superintendent or designee shall inform the teacher{s} of each student who, during the previous
three school years, has engaged in or is reasonably suspected to have engaged in any act, except the
possession or use of tobacco products, that would constitute a ground for suspension or expulsion as
specified in Administrative Regulation 5144.,1 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process (Education Code
49079)

This information shall be based upon district records maintained in the ordinary course of business or
records received from a law enforcement agency, (Education Code 49079)

b. Upon receiving a transfer student's record regarding acts committed by the student that resulted in
suspension or expulsion, the Superintendent or designee shall inform the student’s teacher(s) that the
student was suspended from school or expelled from the former district and of the act that resulted in
the suspension or expulsion (Education Code 48201}

¢. Information received by teacher(s) shall be received in confidence for the limited purpose for which it
was provided and shalt not be further disseminated by the teacher (Education Code 48201, 49079)

2. Offenses Reported to the District by a Court

a. When informed by a court that a minor student has been found by the court to have committed any
felony or any misdemeanor involving curfew, gambling, alcohol, drugs, tobacco products, carrying of
weapons, a sex offense listed in Penal Code 290, assault or battery, larceny, vandalism, or graffiti, the
Superintendent or designee shall expeditiously notify the school principal or designee (Welfare and
Institutions Code 827)

b. The principal or designee shall expeditiously disseminate this information to any counselor who directly
supervises or reports on the student's behavior or progress and to any teacher or administrator directly
supervising or reporting on the student's behavior or progress whom the principal or designee thinks
may need the information in order to work with the student appropriately, to avoid being needlessly
vulnerable, or to protect others from vulnerability (Welfare and Institutions Code 827)

¢. Any court-initiated information that a teacher, counselor, or administrator receives shall be kept
confidential and used only to rehabilitate the student and protect other students and staff (Welfare and
Institutions Code 827)



The information shall be further disseminated only when communication with the student,
parent/guardian, law enforcement staff, and probation officer is necessary to rehabilitate the student or
to protect students and staff. (Welfare and Institutions Code 827)

d. When a student is removed from school as a result of an offense, the Superintendent shall hold the
court's information in a separate confidential file until the student is returned to the district {Welfare
and Institutions Code 827)

If the student is returned to a different district, the Superintendent shall transmit the information
provided by the student's parole or probation officer to the superintendent of the new district of
attendance. {(Welfare and Institutions Code 827)

e. Any confidential file of court-initiated information shall be kept until the student becomes 18, graduates
from high school, or is released from juvenile court jurisdiction, whichever occurs first, and shall then be
destroyed (Welfare and Institutions Code 827)

In order to maintain confidentiality when providing information about student offenses to a counselor or teacher, the
principal or designee shall send the staff member a written notification that a student has committed an offense that
requires review of a student's fite in the school office. This notice shall not name or otherwise identify the student.
The staff member shall initial the notification and shall also initial the student's file when reviewing it in the school
office.

Accommodations for Victims of Domestic Violence, Sexual Assault, Stalking, or Other Qualifying Acts of Violence

When requested by an employee who is a victim of domestic violence, sexual assault, stalking, or other qualifying
acts of violence, the district shall provide the employee reasonable accommadations which may include the
implementation of safety measures, including, but not limited to: {Government Code 12945.8)

1. A transfer, reassignment, or modified schedule
2. A changed work telephone or work station, including the permission to carry a telephone at work
3. Aninstalled lock

4. Assistance in documenting domestic violence, sexual assault, stalking, or other qualifying act of violence that
occurs in the warkplace

5. Referral to a victim assistance organization

6. Another safety procedure or adjustment to a job structure, workplace facility, or work requirement in response
to domestic violence, sexual assault, stalking, or other qualifying act of violence

The Superintendent or designee shall engage in a timely, good faith, and interactive process with the employee to
determine effective reasonable accommodations that do not pose an undue hardship on the district. In determining
whether an accommodation is reasonable, the Superintendent or designee shall consider any exigent circumstance or
danger facing the employee or their family member. (Government Code 12945.8)

Upon the request of the Superintendent or designee, an employee requesting a reasonable accommodation shall
provide a written statement, signed by the employee or an individual acting on the employee's behalf, certifying that
the accommodation is for an authorized purpose. The Superintendent or designee may also request that the
employee provide certification of the employee's status as a victim of domestic violence, sexual assault, stalking, or
other qualifying act of violence. Such certification may include: (Government Code 12945.8)

1. A police report indicating that the employee, or a family member of the employee, was a victim

2. A court order protecting or separating the employee, or family member of the employee, from the perpetrator
of the crime or abuse, or other evidence from the court or prosecuting attorney that the employee has
appeared in court

3. Documentation from a licensed medical professional or health care provider, domestic violence or sexual



assault counselor, victim advocate, or counselor that the employee, or family member of the employee, was
undergoing treatment or receiving services for physical or mental injuries or abuse resulting in victimization
from the crime or abuse

4. Any other form of documnentation that reasonably verifies that the crime or abuse occurred, including, but not
limited to, a written statement signed by the employee or by an individual acting on the employee's behalf

Any verbal or written statement, police or court record, or other documentation identifying an employee, or a family
member of the employee, as a victim shall be confidential and shall not be disclosed by the district except as required
by federal or state law or as necessary to protect the employee's safety in the workplace. The employee shall be
notified before any authorized disclosure. (Government Code 12945.8)

Every six months after the date of the certification, the Superintendent or designee may request recertification of
the employee's status as a victim of domestic violence, sexual assault, stalking, other specified offense, or ongoing
circumstances related to the crime or abuse. The employee shall notify the Superintendent or designee if, due to
changing circumstances, the employee needs a new accommodation or no longer needs an accommodation. If a new
accommodation is needed, the Superintendent or designee shall follow the procedures described above when
making the initial determination regarding effective reasonable accommodations. (Government Code 12945.8)

The district shall not discharge or retaliate against an employee because of the employee's status as a victim of crime
or ahuse or for requesting a reasonable accommodation, regardless of whether the request was granted.
(Government Code 12945.8}

Use of Pepper Spray

The Superintendent or designee shall notify employees of the district's policy prohibiting the possession of pepper
spray on school property or at school-related activities without prior approval of the Superintendent or designee,
Employees wishing to carry pepper spray shall submit to the Superintendent or designee a written request setting
forth the need to carry or possess pepper spray and for how long the need is anticipated to last. The Superintendent
or designee shall notify the employee in writing as to whether the request was approved or denied.

When approving an employee's request, the Superintendent or designee shall inform the employee of the following
conditions:

1. The pepper spray shall be used only in self-defense pursuant to Penal Code 22810

2. An employee who uses pepper spray other than in self-defense shall be subject to disciplinary action by the
district and, in accordance with law, a fine and/or imprisonment

3. The pepper spray must be stored in a secure place and not be accessible to students or other individuals

Negligent storage or use of the pepper spray may subject the employee to disciplinary action.



Board Policy Manual
Blochman Union Elementary School District

Regulation 4358: Employee Security Status: DRAFT
Original Adopted Date; 11/14/2017 | Last Revised Date; 08/10/2021

An employee may use reasonable and necessary force for self-defense or defense of another person, to quell a
disturbance threatening physical injury to others or damage to property, or to obtain possession of weapons or other
dangerous objects within the control of a student. (Education Code 44807, 49001)

An employee shall promptly report to the principal or other immediate supervisor any attack, assault, or physical
threat made against the employee by a student or by any other individual in relation to the performance of the
employee's duties, and any action the employee took in response.

Additionally, the employee and the principal or other immediate supervisor shall promptly report to local law
enforcement authorities an attack, assault, or physical threat made against the employee by a student, Reports of an
attack, assault, or physical threat shall be forwarded immediately to the Superintendent or designee, (Education
Code 44014)

Notice Regarding Student Offenses

When a student commits certain offenses that may endanger staff or others, the following procedures shall be
implemented to notify staff members as appropriate:

1. Acts That Are Grounds for Suspension or Expulsion

a. The Superintendent or designee shall inform the teacher(s) of each student who, during the previous
three school years, has engaged in or is reasonably suspected to have engaged in any act, except the
possession or use of tobacco products, that would constitute a ground for suspension or expulsion as
specified in Administrative Regulation 5144.1 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process (Education Code
49079)

This information shall be based upon district records maintained in the ordinary course of husiness or
records received from a law enforcement agency. (Education Code 49079)

b. Upon receiving a transfer student's record regarding acts committed by the student that resulted in
suspension or expulsion, the Superintendent or designee shall inform the student's teacher(s) that the
student was suspended from school or expelled from the former district and of the act that resulted in
the suspension or expulsion {Education Code 48201}

¢. Information received by teacher(s} shall be received in confidence for the limited purpose for which it
was provided and shall not be further disseminated by the teacher (Education Code 48201, 49079)

2. Offenses Reported to the District by a Court

a. When informed by a court that a minor student has been found by the court to have committed any
felony or any misdemeanor involving curfew, gambling, alcohol, drugs, tobacco products, carrying of
weapons, a sex offense listed in Penal Code 290, assault or battery, larceny, vandalism, or graffiti, the
Superintendent or designee shall expeditiously notify the school principal or designee (Welfare and
Institutions Code 827)

b. The principal or designee shall expeditiously disseminate this information to any counselor who directly
supervises or reports on the student's behavior or progress and to any teacher or administrator directly
supervising or reporting on the student's behavior or progress whom the principal or designee thinks
may need the information in order to work with the student appropriately, to avoid being needlessly
vulnerable, or to protect others from vulnerability (Welfare and Institutions Code 827}

¢. Any court-initiated information that a teacher, counselor, or administrator receives shall be kept
confidential and used only to rehabilitate the student and protect other students and staff {Welfare and
Institutions Code 827)



The information shall be further disseminated only when communication with the student,
parent/guardian, law enforcement staff, and probation officer is necessary to rehabilitate the student or
to protect students and staff. {Welfare and Institutions Code 827)

d. When a student is removed from school as a result of an offense, the Superintendent shall hold the
court's information in a separate confidential file until the student is returned to the district {Welfare
and Institutions Code 827)

If the student is returned to a different district, the Superintendent shall transmit the information
provided by the student's parole or probation officer to the superintendent of the new district of
attendance. (Weifare and Institutions Code 827)

e. Any confidential file of court-initiated information shall be kept until the student becomes 18, graduates
from high school, or is released from juvenile court jurisdiction, whichever occurs first, and shall then be
destroved (Welfare and Institutions Code 827)

In order to maintain confidentiality when providing information about student offenses to a counselor or teacher, the
principal or designee shall send the staff member a written notification that a student has committed an offense that
requires review of a student’s file in the school office. This notice shall not name or otherwise identify the student.
The staff member shall initial the notification and shall also initial the student’s file when reviewing it in the school
office.

Accommodations for Victims of Domestic Violence, Sexual Assault, Stalking, or Other Qualifying Acts of Violence

When requested by an employee who is a victim of domestic viclence, sexual assault, stalking, or other qualifying
acts of violence, the district shall provide the employee reasonable accommodations which may include the
implementation of safety measures, including, but not limited to: {Government Code 12945.8)

1. A transfer, reassignment, or modified schedule
2. A changed work telephone or work station, including the permission to carry a telephone at work

3. Aninstalled lock

4. Assistance in documenting domestic violence, sexual assault, stalking, or other qualifying act of violence that
oceurs in the workplace

5. Referral to a victim assistance organization

6. Another safety procedure or adjustment to a job structure, workplace facility, or work requirement in response
to domestic violence, sexual assault, stalking, or other qualifying act of violence

The Superintendent or designee shall engage in a timely, good faith, and interactive process with the employee to
determine effective reasonable accommodations that do not pose an undue hardship on the district, In determining
whether an accommodation is reasonable, the Superintendent or designee shall consider any exigent circumstance or
danger facing the employee or their family member, (Government Code 12945.8)

Upon the request of the Superintendent or designee, an employee requesting a reasonable accommodation shall
provide a written statement, signed by the employee or an individual acting on the employee's behalf, certifying that
the accommodation is for an authorized purpose. The Superintendent or designee may also request that the
employee provide certification of the employee's status as a victim of domestic violence, sexual assault, stalking, or
other qualifying act of violence. Such certification may include: {(Government Code 12945.8)

1. A police report indicating that the employee, or a family member of the employee, was a victim

2. A court order protecting or separating the employee, or family member of the employee, from the perpetrator
of the crime or abuse, or other evidence from the court or prosecuting attorney that the employee has
appeared in court

3. Documentation from a licensed medical professional or health care provider, domestic violence or sexual



assault counselor, victim advocate, or counselor that the employee, or family member of the employee, was
undergoing treatment or receiving services for physical or mental injuries or abuse resulting in victimization
from the crime or abuse

4. Any other form of documentation that reasonably verifies that the crime or abuse occurred, including, but not
limited to, a written statement signed by the employee or by an individual acting on the employee's behalf

Any verbal or written statement, police or court record, or other documentation identifying an employee, or a family
member of the employee, as a victim shall be confidential and shall not be disclosed by the district except as required
by federal or state law or as necessary to protect the employee's safety in the workplace. The employee shall be
notified before any authorized disclosure. (Government Code 12945.8)

Every six months after the date of the certification, the Superintendent or designee may request recertification of
the employee's status as a victim of domestic violence, sexual assault, stalking, other specified offense, or ongoing
circumstances related to the crime or abuse. The employee shall notify the Superintendent or designee if, due to
changing circumstances, the employee needs a new accommodation or no longer needs an accommodation. If a new
accommodation is needed, the Superintendent or designee shall follow the procedures described above when
making the initial determination regarding effective reasonable accommodations. {Government Code 12945.8)

The district shall not discharge or retaliate against an employee because of the employee's status as a victim of crime
or abuse or for requesting a reasonable accommodation, regardless of whether the request was granted.
{Government Code 12945.8)

Use of Pepper Spray

The Superintendent or designee shall notify employees of the district’s policy prohibiting the possession of pepper
spray on school property or at school-related activities without prior approval of the Superintendent or designee.
Employees wishing to carry pepper spray shall submit to the Superintendent or designee a written request setting
forth the need to carry or possess pepper spray and for how long the need is anticipated to last. The Superintendent
or designee shall notify the employee in writing as to whether the request was approved or denied.

When approving an employee's request, the Superintendent or designee shall inform the employee of the following
conditions:

1. The pepper spray shall be used only in self-defense pursuant to Penal Code 22810

2. An employee who uses pepper spray other than in self-defense shall be subject to disciplinary action by the
district and, in accordance with law, a fine and/or imprisonment

3. The pepper spray must be stored in a secure place and not be accessible to students or other individuals

Negligent storage or use of the pepper spray may subject the employee to disciplinary action.



=

Board Policy Manual
Blochman Union Elementary School District

Policy 5125: Student Records Status: DRAFT
Original Adopted Date: 11/14/2017 | Last Revised Date: 12/10/2019

The Governing Board recognizes the importance of keeping accurate, comprehensive student records as required by
law. The Superintendent or designee shall establish administrative regulations governing the identification, collection,
retention, disclosure, and security of student records. These regulations shall ensure the rights of authorized persons
to have timely access to student records while maintaining the confidentiality of student records in accordance with
state and federal Jaw.

The Superintendent or designee shall designate a certificated employee to serve as custodian of records with
responsibility for student records at the district level. At each school, the principal or a certificated employee shall be
designated as custodian of records for students enrolled at that school. The custodian of records shall be responsible
for implementing Board policy and administrative regulation regarding student records. {5 CCR 431)

If student records containing covered information which is not subject to the California Consumer Privacy Act are
under the control of the operator of a website, online service or application, or mobile application, and the student's
parent/guardian or the student, if 18 years of age or older, requests deletion of such records, the Superintendent or
designee shall provide documentation to the operator that the student has not been enrolled in the district for at
least 60 days. {Business and Professions Code 22584)

All appropriate persannel shall receive training regarding district policies and procedures for gathering and handling
sensitive student information, including which information should not be solicited.

The district shall not collect or solicit social security numbers or the last four digits of social security numbers of
students or their parents/guardians, unless otherwise required to do so by state or federal law. (Education Code
49076.7)

No information or documents regarding the citizenship or immigration status of students or their family members
shall be collected, except as required by state or federal law or as required to administer a state or federally
supported educational program. In accordance with Board Policy 5145.13 - Response to Immigrant Enforcement, the
Superintendent or designee shall not disclose student records to a person, agency, or organization for immigration
enforcement purposes without parental consent, a court order, or a judicial subpoena/warrant. If a district employee
receives such a request, the employee shall respond in accordance with Board Policy 5145.13 - Response to
Immigrant Enforcement. The Superintendent shall report the request to the Board in a timely manner that ensures
the confidentiality and privacy of any potentially identifying information. (Education Code 234.7)

The district or any district employee shall not compile a list, registry, or database based on students' national origin,
ethnicity, or religious belief, practice, or affiliation, or disclose student information to federal government authorities
for the purpose of compiling such a list, registry, or database for purposes of immigration enforcement. This
prohibition does not apply to information that is aggregated and is not personally identifiable. (Government Code
8310.3)

The Superintendent or designee shall develop protocols to comply with a court's restraining order that prohibits a
party from accessing specified records and information pertaining to a student. (Family Code 6323.5)

Student Records from Social Media

The Superintendent or designee may gather and maintain information from the social media of any district student,
provided that the district first notifies students and parents/guardians about the proposed program, offers an
opportunity for public comment at a regularly scheduled Board meeting, and gathers only information that directly

pertains to school safety or student safety. (Education Code 49073.6)

Retention, Disclosure, and Security of Student Records



The Superintendent or designee shall ensure the confidentiality of student records as required by law and shall
establish processes and procedures to safeguard data against damage, loss, or theft, including damage, loss, or theft,
which may be caused by the use of technology, including artificial intelligence and breaches to the district's digital
infrastructure, in the retention or disclosure of student records. Additionally, in accordance with Board Policy
5145.13 - Response to Immigration Enforcement, all district staff shall avoid the disclosure of information that may
indicate a student's or family's citizenship or immigration status if the disclosure is not authorized by law.

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that employees receive information and training about cybersecurity,
including ways to protect student records from breaches to the district's digital infrastructure.

If the district experiences a cyberattack that impacts more than 500 students or personnel, the Superintendent or
designee shall report the cyberattack to the California Cybersecurity Integration Center, {Education Code 35266)

The Superintendent or designee may enter into a contract with a third party for the digital storage, management, and
retrieval of student records and/or to authorize a third party provider of digital software to access, store, and use
student records, provided that the contract meets the requirements of Education Code 49073.1 and other applicable
state and federal laws.



Board Policy Manual
Blochman Union Elementary School District
Regulation 5125: Student Records Status: DRAFT
Original Adopted Date: 11/14/2017 | Last Revised Date: 01/11/2022

Definitions

Access means a personal inspection and review of a record or an accurate copy of a record, or receipt of an accurate
copy of a record or an oral description or communication of a record, and a request to release a copy of any record.
(Education Code 49061)

Adult student is a person who is or was enrolled in school and who is at least 18 years of age, (5 CCR 430)

Attendance includes, but is not limited to, attendance in person or by paper correspondence, videoconference,
satellite, Internet, or other electronic information and telecommunication technologies for students who are not

physically present in the classroom, and the period during which a person is working under a work-study program.
(34 CFR 99.3)

Contractor or consultant is anyone with a formal written agreement or contract with the district regarding the
provision of services or functions outsourced by the district. Contractor or consultant shall not include a volunteer or
other party. (Education Code 49076)

County placing agency means the county social service department or county probation department. (Education
Code 49061)

Custodian of records is the employee responsible for the security of student records maintained by the district and for
devising procedures for assuring that access to such records is limited to authorized persons. (5 CCR 433)

Disclosure means ta permit access to, or the release, transfer, or other communication of, personally identifiable

information contained in student records to any party, except the party that provided or created the record, by any
means including oral, written, or electronic. (34 CFR 99.3)

Legitimate educational interest is an interest held by any school official, employee, contractor, or consultant whose
official duties, responsibilities, or contractual obligations to the district, whether routine or as a result of special
circumstances, require access to information contained in student records.

Mandatory interim student records are those records which the schools are directed to compile and maintain for

specified periods of time and are then destroyed in accordance with state law, regulation, or administrative directive.
{5 CCR430)

Mandatory permanent student records are those records which are maintained in perpetuity and which schools have
been directed to compile by state law, regulation, or administrative directive. (5 CCR 430)

Parent/guardian means a natural parent, an adopted parent, legal guardian, surrogate parent, or foster parent.
{Education Code 49061, 56050, 56055)

Permitted student records are those records having clear importance only to the current educational process of the
student. (5 CCR 430)

Personally identifiable information includes, but is not limited to: (34 CFR 99.3)

1. The student’s name
2. The name of the student's parent/guardian or other family members
3. The address of the student or student's family

4. A personal identifier, such as the student's social security number, student number, or biometric record (e.g.,
fingerprints, retina and iris patterns, voiceprints, DNA sequence, facial characteristics, and handwriting)



5. Other indirect identifiers, such as the student's date of birth, place of birth, and mother's maiden name

6. Other information that, alone or in combination, is linked or linkable to a specific student that would allow a
reasonable person in the school community, who does not have personal knowledge of the relevant
circumstances, to identify the student with reasonable certainty

7. Information requested by a person who the district reasonably believes knows the identity of the student to
whom the student record relates

School officials and employees are officials or employees, including teachers, whose duties and responsibilities to the
district, whether routine or as a result of special circumstances, require access to student records. (34 CFR 99.31)

Student means any individual who is or has been in attendance at the district and regarding whom the district
maintains student records. (34 CFR 99.3)

Student records are any items of information (in handwriting, print, tape, film, computer, or other medium) gathered
within or outside the district that are directly related to an identifiable student and maintained by the district,
required to be maintained by an employee in the performance of the employee's duties, or maintained by a party
acting for the district. Any information maintained for the purpose of second-party review is considered a student
record. Student records include the student's health record. (Education Code 49061, 49062; 5 CCR 430; 34 CFR
99.3)

Student records do not include: (Education Code 49061, 49062; 34 CFR 99.3)
1. Directory information
2. Informal notes compiled by a school officer or employee which remain in the sole possession of the maker, are
used only as a personal memory aid, and are not accessible or revealed to any other person except a substitute
employee

3. Records of the law enforcement unit of the district, as specified in 34 CFR 99.8

4. Records created or received by the district after an individual is no longer a student and that are not directly
related to the individual's attendance as a student

5. Grades on peer-graded papers before they are collected and recorded by a teacher

Persons Granted Absolute Access

In accordance with law, absolute access to any student records shall be granted to:

1. Parents/guardians of students younger than age 18 years, including the parent who is not the student's
custodial parent (Education Code 49069.7; Family Code 3025)

However, the district shall not disclose student records to a party, including a parent/guardian, who is legally
prohibited from accessing records and information of a student pursuant to a restraining order. (Family Code
6323.5)

2. An adult student, or a student under the age of 18 years who attends a postsecondary institution, in which
case the student alone shall exercise rights related to the student's records and grant consent for the release of
records (34 CFR 99.3, 99.5)

3. Parents/guardians of an adult student with exceptional needs who is age 18 years or older and has been
declared incompetent under state law (Education Code 56041.5)

Access for Limited Purpose/Legitimate Educational Interest

The following persons or agencies shall have access to those particular records that are relevant to their legitimate
educational interest or other legally authorized purpose:



10.

Parents/guardians of a student 18 years of age or older who is a dependent child as defined in 26 USC 152
(Education Code 49076; 34 CFR 99.31)

Students who are age 16 or older or who have completed the 10th grade (Education Code 49074)

School officials and employees, consistent with the definition provided in "Definitions," above (Education Code
49076; 34 CFR 99.31)

Members of a school attendance review board (SARB} appointed pursuant to Education Code 48321 who are
authorized representatives of the district and any volunteer aide age 18 or older who has been investigated,
selected, and trained by the SARB to provide follow-up services to a referred student (Education Code 49076)

Officials and employees of other public schools, school systems, or postsecondary institutions where the
student intends or is directed to enroll, including focal, county, or state correctional facilities where educational
programs leading to high school graduation are provided, or where the student is already enrolled, as long as
the disclosure is for purposes related to the student's enrollment or transfer (Education Code 49076; 34 CFR
99.31)

Unless the annual parent/guardian notification issued pursuant to Education Code 48980 includes a statement
that the district may disclose students' personally identifiable information to officials of another school, school
system, or postsecondary institution where the student seeks or intends to enroll, the Superintendent or
designee shall, when such a disclosure is made, make a reasonable attempt to notify the parent/guardian or
adult student at the last known address, provide a copy of the record that is disclosed, and give the
parent/guardian or adult student an opportunity for a hearing to challenge the record. (34 CFR 99.34)

The Student Aid Commission, to provide the grade point average {(GPA) of all district students in grade 12 and,
when required, verification of high school graduation or its equivalent of all students who graduated in the
prior academic year, for use in the Cal Grant postsecondary financial aid program

However, such information shall not be submitted when students opt out or are permitted by the rules of the
Student Aid Commission to provide test scores in lieu of the GPA. {Education Code 69432.9, 69432.92)

No later than January 1 each year, the Superintendent or designee shall notify each student in grade 11, and
the student's parents/guardians if the student is under age 18 years, that the student’s GPA will be forwarded
to the Student Aid Commission by October 1, unless the student opts out within a period of time specified in
the notice, which shall not be less than 30 days. {Education Code 69432.9}

Students' social security numbers shall not be included in the submitted information unless the Student Aid
Commission deems it necessary to complete the financial aid application and the Superintendent or designee
obtains permission from the student's parent/guardian, or from the adult student, to submit the social security
number. (Education Code 69432.9)

The Californta College Guidance Initiative (CCGI) in accordance with a data sharing agreement pursuant to
Education Code 60900, to provide data for use when planning for and applying to California public colleges
and universities (Education Code 60900, 60900.5)

. Federal, state, and local officials, as needed for an audit or evaluation of, or compliance with, a state or

federally funded education program and in accordance with a written agreement developed pursuant to 34
CFR 99.35 (Education Code 49076; 34 CFR 99.3, 99.31, 99.35)

. Any county placing agency acting as an authorized representative of a state or local educational agency which

is required to audit or evaluate a state or federally supported education program pursuant to [tem #8 above
{Education Code 49076)

Any person, agency, or organization authorized in compliance with a court order or lawfully issued subpoena
(Education Code 49077; 5 CCR 435; 34 CFR 99.31)

Unless otherwise instructed by the court, the Superintendent or designee shall, prior to disclosing a record



11.

12,

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

pursuant to a court order or subpoena, give the parent/guardian or adult student at least three days' notice of
the name of the requesting agency and the specific record requested, if lawfully possible within the
requirements of the judicial order. (Education Code 49077; 5 CCR 435; 34 CFR 99.31)

Any district attorney who is participating in or conducting a truancy mediation program or participating in the
presentation of evidence in a truancy petition {Education Code 49076)

A district attorney's office for consideration against a parent/guardian for failure to comply with compulsory
education laws (Education Code 49076)

Any probation officer, district attorney, or counsel of record for a student who is a minor for the purposes of
conducting a criminal investigation or an investigation in regards to declaring the minor a ward of the court or
involving a violation of a condition of probation, subject to evidentiary rules specified in Welfare and
Institutions Code 701 (Education Code 49076)

When disclosing records for these purposes, the Superintendent or designee shall obtain written certification
from the recipient of the records that the information will not be disclosed to another party without prior
written consent of the student's parent/guardian or the holder of the student's educational rights, unless
specifically authorized by state or federal law. (Education Code 49076)

Any judge or probation officer for the purpose of conducting a truancy mediation program for a student or for
the purpose of presenting evidence in a truancy petition pursuant to Welfare and Institutions Code 681
(Education Code 49076)

In such cases, the judge or probation officer shall certify in writing to the Superintendent or designee that the
information will be used only for truancy purposes. Upon releasing student information to a judge or probation
officer, the Superintendent or designee shall inform, or provide written notification to, the student's
parent/guardian within 24 hours. (Education Code 49076)

A foster family agency with jurisdiction over a currently enrolled or former student; short-term residential
treatment program staff responsible for the education or case management of a student; or a caregiver who
has direct responsibility for the care of a student, including a certified or licensed foster parent, an approved
relative or nonrelated extended family member, or a resource family, as defined (Education Code 4%076)

Such individuals shall have access to the student’s current or most recent records of grades, transcripts,
attendance, discipline, online communication on platforms established by schools for students and
parents/guardians, and any individualized education program or Section 504 plan developed and maintained by
the district. (Education Code 49069.3)

A student age 14 years or older who is an unaccompanied minor experiencing homelessness as defined in 42
USC 11434a (Education Code 49076)

An individual who completes items #1-4 of the Caregiver's Authorization Affidavit pursuant to Family Code
6552 and signs the affidavit for the purpose of enrolling a minor in school (Education Code 49076)

A caseworker or other representative of a state or local child welfare agency or tribal organization that has
legal responsibility in accordance with state or tribal law for the care and protection of a student, provided that
the individual is authorized by the agency or organization to receive the records and the information requested
is directly related to providing assistance to address the student's educational needs {Education Code 49076;
20 USC 1232g)

Appropriate law enforcement authorities, in circumstances where Education Code 48902 requires that the
district provide special education and disciplinary records of a student with exceptional needs who is
suspended or expelled for committing an act violating Penal Code 245 (Education Code 48902, 49076)

When disclosing such records, the Superintendent or designee shall obtain written certification by the recipient
of the records as described in Item #13 above. (Education Code 49076)

Designated peace officers or law enforcement agencies in cases where the district is authorized by law to
assist law enforcement in investigations of suspected criminal conduct or kidnapping and a written parental
consent, lawfully issued subpoena, or court order is submitted to the district, or information is provided ta it



indicating that an emergency exists in which the student's information is necessary to protect the health or
safety of the student or other individuals {Education Code 49076.5)

In such cases, the Superintendent or designee shall provide information about the identity and location of the
student as it relates to the transfer of that student's records to another public school district in California or
any other state or to a California private school. {(Education Code 49076.5)

When disclosing records for the above purposes, the Superintendent or designee shall obtain the necessary
documentation to verify that the person, agency, or organization is a person, agency, or organization that is
permitted to receive such records.

Any person, agency, or organization granted access is prohibited from releasing information to another person,
agency, or organization without written permission from the parent/guardian or adult student unless specifically
allowed by state law or the federal Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA). (Education Code 49076; 20
USC 1232g; 34 CFR 99.1-99.8)

In addition, the parent/guardian or adult student may provide written consent for access to be granted to persons,
agencies, or organizations not afforded access rights by law. The written consent shall specify the records to be
released and the party or parties ta whom they may be released. {Education Code 49061, 49075)

Only a parent/guardian having legal custody of the student may consent to the release of records to others. Either
parent/guardian may grant consent if both parents/guardians notify the district, in writing, that such an agreement
has been made. (Education Code 49061)

Discretionary Access

At the discretion of the Superintendent or designee, information may be released from a student's records to the
following:

1. Appropriate persons, including parents/guardians of a student, in connection with an emergency if the
knowledge of the information is necessary to protect the health or safety of the student or other persons
(Education Code 49076; 34 CFR 99.31, 99.32, 99.36)

When releasing information to any such appropriate person, the Superintendent or designee shall record
information about the threat to the health or safety of the student or any other person that formed the basis
for the disclosure and the person(s) to whom the disclosure was made. {Education Code 49076; 34 CFR 99.32)

Uniless it would further endanger the health or safety of the student or other persons, the Superintendent or
designee shall inform the parent/guardian or adult student within one week of the disclosure that the
disclosure was made, of the articulabie and significant threat to the health or safety of the student or other
individuals that formed the basis for the disclosure, and of the parties to whom the disclosure was made.

2. Accrediting associations in order to carry out their accrediting functions (Education Code 49076; 34 CFR
99.31)

3. Organizations conducting studies on behalf of educational institutions or agencies for the purpose of
developing, validating, or administering predictive tests, administering student aid programs, or improving
instruction, provided that: (Education Code 49076; 34 CFR 99.31)

a. The study is conducted in a manner that does not permit personal identification of students or
parents/guardians by individuals other than representatives of the organization who have legitimate
interests in the information

b. The information is destroyed when no longer needed for the purposes for which the study is conducted

¢. The district enters into a written agreement with the organization that complies with 34 CFR 99.31

4. Officials and employees of private schools or school systems where the student is enrolled or intends to enroll,

subject to the rights of parents/guardians as provided in Education Code 49068 and in compliance with 34
CFR 99.34 {Education Code 49076; 34 CFR 99.31, 99.34)



5. Local health departments operating countywide or regional immunization information and reminder systems
and the California Department of Public Health, unless the parent/guardian has requested that no disclosures
of this type be made {Health and Safety Code 120440)

6. Contractors and consultants having a legitimate educational interest based on services or functions which have
been outsourced to them through a formal written agreement or contract with the district, excluding
volunteers or other parties (Education Code 49076)

7. Agencies or organizations in connection with the student's application for or receipt of financial aid, provided
that information permitting the personal identification of a student or the student's parents/guardians for
these purposes is disclosed only as may be necessary to determine the eligibility of the student for financial
aid, determine the amount of financial aid, determine the conditions which will be imposed regarding the
financial aid, or enforce the terms or conditions of the financial aid (Education Code 49076; 34 CFR 99.31)

8. County elections officials for the purpose of identifying students eligible to register to vote or offering such
students an opportunity to register, subject to the limits set by 34 CFR 99.37 and under the condition that any
information provided on this basis shall not be used for any other purpose or transferred to any other person
or agency (Education Code 49076; 34 CFR 99.37)

When disclosing records for the above purposes, the Superintendent or designee shall obtain the necessary
documentation to verify that the person, agency, or organization is a person, agency, or organization that is
permitted to receive such records.

Any person, agency, or organization granted access is prohibited from releasing information to another person,
agency, or organization without written permission from the parent/guardian or adult student unless specifically
allowed by state law or FERPA. (Education Code 49074; 20 USC 1232g; 34 CFR 99.1-99.8)

De-identification of Records

When authorized by law for any program audit, educational research, or other purpose, the Superintendent or
designee may release information from a student record without prior consent of the parent/guardian or adult
student after the removal of all personally identifiable information. Prior to releasing such information, the
Superintendent or designee shall make a reasonable determination that the student’s identity is not personally
identifiable, whether through single or multiple releases and taking into account other reasonably available
information. {Education Code 49074, 49076; 20 USC 1232g; 34 CFR 99.31)

Process for Providing Access to Records

Student records shall be maintained in a central file at the school attended by the student or, when records are
maintained at different locations, a notation shall be placed in the central file indicating where other records may be
found. Parents/guardians and adult students shall be notified of the location of student records if not centrally
located. (Education Code 49069.7; 5 CCR 433)

The custodian of records shall be responsible for the security of student records and shall ensure that access is
limited to authorized persons. (5 CCR 433)

The custodian of records shall develop reasonable methods, including physical, technological, and administrative
policy controls, to ensure that school officials and employees obtain access to only those student records in which
they have legitimate educational interests. (Education Code 49076; 5 CCR 431; 34 CFR 99.31)

To inspect, review, or obtain copies of student records, authorized persons shall submit a request to the custodian of
records. Prior to granting the request, the custodian of records shall authenticate the individual's identity. For any
individual granted access based on a legitimate educational interest, the request shall specify the interest involved.

Within five business days following the date of request, the authorized person shall be granted access to inspect,
review, and obtain copies of student records during regular school hours. {(Education Code 49069.7; 5 CCR 431)



When required by law, a student's parent/guardian or an adult student shall provide written, signed, and dated
consent before the district discloses the student record. Such consent may be given through electronic means in
those cases where it can be authenticated. The district’s consent form shall specify the records that may be
disclosed, state the purpose of the disclosure, and identify the party or class of parties to whom the disclosure may
be made. Upon request by the parent/guardian or adult student, the district shall provide a copy of the records
disclosed. {34 CFR 99.30)

If the parent/guardian or adult student refuses to provide written consent for the release of student information, the
Superintendent or designee shall not release the information, unless it is otherwise subject to release based on a
court order or a lawful subpoena.

Qualified certificated personnel shall be available to interpret records when requested. {Education Code 49069.7)

The custodian of records or the Superintendent or designee shall prevent the alteration, damage, or loss of records
during inspection. {5 CCR 435)

Access Log

A log shall be maintained for each student's record which lists all persons, agencies, or organizations requesting or
receiving information from the record and the legitimate educational interest of the requester. (Education Code
49064)

In every instance of inspection by persons who do not have assigned educational responsibility, the custodian of

records shall make an entry in the log indicating the record inspected, the name of the person granted access, the
reason access was granted, and the time and circumstances of inspection. {5 CCR 435)

The custodian of records shall also make an entry in the log regarding any request for record(s} that was denied and
the reason for the denial.

The log shall include requests for access to records by:

1. Parents/guardians or adult students
2. Students who are 16 years of age or older or who have completed the 10th grade
3. Parties obtaining district-approved directory information

4, Parties who provide written parental consent, in which case the consent notice shall be filed with the record
pursuant to Education Code 49075

5, School officials and employees who have a legitimate educational interest

6. Law enforcement personnel seeking immigration-related information
The log shall be open to inspection only by the parent/guardian, adult student, dependent adult student, custodian of

records, and certain state or federal officials specified in Education Code 49064. (Education Code 49064; 5 CCR
432}

Duplication of Student Records

To provide copies of any student record, the district may charge a reasonable fee not to exceed the actual cost of
providing the copies. No charge shall be made for providing up to two transcripts or up to two verifications of
various records for any former student. No charge shall be made to locate or retrieve any student record. (Education
Code 49065)

Changes to Student Records

Only a parent/guardian having legal custody of a student or a student who is 18 years of age or is attending an



institution of postsecondary education may challenge the content of a record or offer a written response to a record.
{Education Code 49061)

No addition or change shall be made to a student's record after high school graduation or permanent departure,

other than routine updating, unless required by law or with prior consent of the parent/guardian or adult student.
{Education Code 49070; 5 CCR 437)

Any request to change a student's legal name in the student's mandatory permanent student record shall be
accompanied with appropriate documentation.

Any challenge to the content of a student's record shall be filed in accordance with Education Code 49070 and the
process specified in Administrative Regulation 5125.3 - Challenging Student Records.

Retention and Destruction of Student Records

All anecdotal information and assessment reports maintained as student records shall be dated and signed by the
individual who originated the data. {5 CCR 431)

The following mandatory permanent student records shall be kept indefinitely: {5 CCR 432, 437)

1. Legal name of student
2. Date and place of birth and method of verifying birth date
3. Sex of student
4. Name and address of parent/guardian of minor student
a. Address of minor student if different from the above
b. Annual verification of parent/guardian's name and address and student’s residence
5. Entrance and departure dates of each school year and for any summer session or other extra session

6. Subjects taken during each year, half-year, summer session, or quarter, and marks or credits given towards
graduation

7. Verification of or exemption from required immunizations

8. Date of high school graduation or equivalent

Mandatory interim student records, unless forwarded to another district, shall be maintained subject to destruction
during the third school year after the school year in which they originated, following a determination that their
usefulness has ceased or the student has left the district. These records include: (Education Code 48918, 51747, 5
CCR 432, 437,16027)

1. Expulsion orders and the causes therefor
2. Alogidentifying persons or organizations who request or receive information from the student record
3. Health information, including verification or waiver of the health screening for school entry

4. information on participation in special education programs, including required tests, case studies,
authorizations, and actions necessary to establish eligibility for admission or discharge

5. Language training records
6. Progress slips/notices required by Education Code 49066 and 49067

7. Parental restrictions/stipulations regarding access to directory information



8. Parent/guardian or adult student rejoinders to challenged records and to disciplinary action
9. Parent/guardian authorization or prohibition of student participation in specific programs
10. Results of standardized tests administered within the past three years

11, Written findings resulting from an evaluation conducted after a specified number of missed assignments to
determine whether it is in a student's best interest to remain in independent study

Permitted student records may be destroyed six months after the student completes or withdraws from the
educational program and their usefulness ceases, including: (5 CCR 432, 437)

1. Objective counselor and/or teacher ratings

2. Standardized test results older than three years
3. Routine discipline data

4. Verified reports of relevant behavioral patterns
5. All disciplinary notices

6. Supplementary attendance records

Records shall be destroyed in a way that assures they will not be available to possible public inspection in the
process of destruction. (5 CCR 437)

Transfer of Student Records

When a student transfers into this district from any other school district or a private school, the Superintendent or
designee shall inform the student’s parent/guardian of rights regarding student records, including a parent/guardian’s
right to review, challenge, and receive a copy of student records. (Education Code 49068; 5 CCR 438)

When a student transfers into this district from another district, the Superintendent or designee shall request that
the student's previous district provide any records, either maintained by that district in the ordinary course of
business or received from a law enforcement agency, regarding acts committed by the transferring student that
resulted in the student's suspension or expulsion. (Education Code 48201)

When a student transfers from this district to another school district or to a private school, the Superintendent or
designee shall forward a copy of the student's mandatory permanent record within 10 schoal days of the district's
receipt of the request for the student's records. The original record or a copy shall be retained permanently by this
district. If the transfer is to another California public school, the student's entire mandatory interim record shall also
be forwarded. If the transfer is out of state or to a private school, the mandatory interim record may be forwarded.
Permitted student records may be forwarded to any other district ar private school. (Education Code 48918, 49068;
5 CCR 438}

Upon receiving a request from a county placing agency to transfer a student in foster care out of a district school,
the Superintendent or designee shall transfer the student's records to the next educational placement within two
business days. (Education Code 49069.5)

Additionally, when a student in foster care is enrolling in a district school, the district's liaison for foster youth shall
contact, within two business days of the student's request for enrollment, the school last attended by the student to
obtain all academic and other records. {Education Code 48853.5)

All student records shall be updated before they are transferred. (5 CCR 438)

Student records shall not be withheld from the requesting district because of any charges or fees owed by the
student or parent/guardian. (5 CCR 438)

If the district is withholding grades, diploma, or transcripts from the student because of damage or loss of school



property, this information shall be sent to the requesting district along with the student's records.

Notification of Parents/Guardians

Upon any student’s initial enrollment, and at the beginning of each school year thereafter, the Superintendent or
designee shall notify parents/guardians and eligible students, in writing, of their rights related to student records. If
15 percent or more of the students enrolled in the district speak a single primary language other than English, then
the district shall provide these notices in that language, Otherwise, the district shall provide these notices in the
student's home language insofar as practicable. The district shall effectively notify parents/guardians or eligible
students with exceptional needs. (Education Code 48985, 49063; 5 CCR 431; 34 CFR 99.7}
The notice shall include: (Education Code 49063, 60900.5; 34 CFR 99.7, 99.34)
1. The types of student records kept by the district and the information contained therein
2. The title(s) of the official(s) responsible for maintaining each type of record
3. The location of the log identifying those who request information from the records
4. District criteria for defining school officials and employees and for determining legitimate educational interest
5. District policies for reviewing and expunging student records
6. The right to inspect and review student records and the procedures for doing so
7. The right to challenge and the procedures for challenging the content of a student record that the
parent/guardian or student believes to be inaccurate, misleading, or otherwise in violation of the student's
privacy rights
8. The cost, if any, charged for duplicating copies of records

9. The categories of information defined as directory information pursuant to Education Code 49073

10. The right to consent to disclosures of personally identifiable information contained in the student's records
except when disclosure without consent is authorized by law

11. Availability of the curriculum prospectus developed pursuant to Education Code 49091.14 containing the
titles, descriptions, and instructional aims of every course offered by the school

12. The sharing with CCGI of specified district data and data collected by the California Department of Education
for the purposes of college admissions, academic placement, and eligibility for student financial aid {Education
Code 60900}

13. Any other rights and requirements set forth in Education Code 49060-49085, and the right of
parents/guardians to file a complaint with the U.S. Department of Education concerning an alleged failure by
the district to comply with 20 USC 1232g

14. A statement that the district forwards education records to other agencies or institutions that request the
records and in which the student seeks or intends to enroll or is already enrolled as long as the disclosure is for
purposes related to the student's enroliment

In addition, the annual parental notification shall include a statement that a student's citizenship status, immigration
status, place of birth, or any other information indicating national origin will not be released without parental consent
or a court order.

Student Records from Social Media

For the purpose of gathering and maintaining records of students' social media activity, the Superintendent or
designee shall; (Education Code 49073.6)



1. Gather or maintain only information that pertains directly to school safety or student safety

2. Provide a student with access to any information that the district obtained from the student's social media
activity and an opportunity to correct or delete such information

3. Destroy information gathered from social media and maintained in student records within one year after a
student turns 18 years of age or within one year after the student is no longer enrolled in the district,
whichever occurs first

4, Notify each parent/guardian that the student's information is being gathered from social media and that any
information maintained in the student's records shall be destroyed as provided in Item #3 above

The notification shall also incfude, but is not limited to, an explanation of the process by which a student or the
student's parent/guardian may access the student's records for examination of the information gathered or
maintained and the process by which removal of the information may be requested or corrections to the
information may be made. The notification may be provided as part of the annual parental notification required
pursuant to Education Code 48980,

5. If the district contracts with a third party to gather information on a student from social media, ensure that the
contract:

a. Prohibits the third party from using the information for purposes other than those specified in the
contract or from selling or sharing the information with any person or entity other than the district, the
student, or the student's parent/guardian

b. Requires the third party to destroy the information immediately upon satisfying the terms of the
contract, or when the district notifies the third party that the student has turned 18 years of age or is no
longer enrolled in the district, whichever occurs first

Updating Name and/or Gender of Former Students

When a former student submits a state-issued driver's license, birth certificate, passport, social security card, court
order, or other government-issued documentation demonstrating that the former student’s legal name and/or gender
has changed, the district shall update the former student's records to include the updated legal name and/or gender.
Upon request by the former student, the district shall reissue any documents conferred upon the former student,
including, but not limited to, a transcript, a high school diploma, a high school equivalency certificate, or other similar
documents. (Education Code 49062.5)

If the former student’s name or gender is changed and the requested records are reissued, a new document shall be
added to the former student's file that includes all of the following information: (Education Code 49062.5)

1. The date of the request
2. The date the requested records were reissued to the former student
3. Alist of the records that were requested by and reissued to the former student

4, The type of documentation, if any, provided by the former student to demonstrate a legal change to the
student's name and/or gender

5. The name of the employee who completed the request

6. The current and former names and/or genders of the student

Any former student who submits a request to change the legal name and/or gender on the student's records but is
unable to provide any government-issued documentation demonstrating the legal name or gender change, may
request a name or gender change through the process described in Education Code 49070 and Administrative
Regulation 5125.3 - Challenging Student Records. (Education Code 49062.5)



Board Policy Manual
Blochman Union Elementary School District

Pollcy 5131: Conduct Status: DRAFT
Original Adopted Date: 11/14/2017 | Last Revised Date: 12/10/2019

The Governing Board believes that all students have the right to be educated in a safe and positive learning
environment free from disruptions. Students shall be expected to exhibit appropriate conduct that does not infringe
upon the rights of others or interfere with the school program while an school grounds, going to or coming from
school, at school activities, or using district transportation.

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that each school develops standards of conduct and discipline
consistent with Board policies and administrative regulations. Students and parents/guardians shall be notified of
district and school rules related to conduct.

Prohibited student conduct includes, but is not limited to:

1. Conduct that endangers students, staff, or others, including, but not limited to, physical violence, possession of
a firearm or other weapon, and terrorist threats

2. Discrimination, harassment, intimidation, or bullying of students or staff, including sexual harassment, hate-
motivated behavior, cyberbullying, hazing or initiation activity, extortion, or any other verbal, written, or
physical conduct that causes or threatens to cause violence, bodily harm, or substantial disruption to the
school program

3. Conduct that disrupts the orderly classroom or school environment

4. Willful defiance of staff's authority

5. Damage to or theft of property belonging to students, staff, or the district

6. Obscene acts or use of profane, vulgar, or abusive language

7. Possession, use, or being under the influence of tobacco, alcohol, or other prohibited substances

8. Possession or use of a laser pointer, unless for a valid instructional or other school-related purpose with prior
permission of the principal or designee (Penal Code 417.27)

9. Use of a smartphone or other mobile communication device in an unauthorized manner
10. Plagiarism or dishonesty on school work or tests
11. Wearing of any attire that violates district or school dress codes, including gang-related apparel
12, Tardiness or unexcused absence from school
13. Failure to remain on school premises in accordance with school rules

14. Other conduct prohibited by Education Code 48900-48915-48915

Employees are expected to enforce standards of conduct and when they observe or receive a report of a violation of
these standards, to appropriately intervene, or seek assistance. As necessary, the employee shall refer the matter to
a supervisor or the principal or designee,

When a school employee suspects that a search of a student or a student's belongings will turn up evidence of the
student's violation of the law or school rules, such a search shall be conducted in accordance with Board Policy and
Administrative Regulation 5145.12 - Search and Seizure.

When a student uses any prohibited device, or uses a permitted device in an unauthorized manner, a district
employee may confiscate the device. The employee shall store the device securely until it is returned to the student



or turned over to the principal or designee, as appropriate.

Students who violate district or school rules and regulations may be subject to discipline including, but not limited to,
suspension, expulsion, transfer to alternative programs, referral to a student success team or counseling services, or
denial of participation in extracurricular or cocurricular activities or other privileges in accordance with Board policy
and administrative regulation. The Superintendent or designee shall notify local law enforcement as appropriate.

Students also may be subject to discipline, in accordance with law, Board policy, or administrative regulation, for any
off-campus conduct during nonschool hours which poses a threat or danger to the safety of students, staff, or district
property, or substantially disrupts school activities.



Board Policy Manual
Blochman Union Elementary School District

Policy 5131.6: Alcohol And Other Drugs Status: DRAFT
Original Adopted Date: 11/14/2017

The Governing Board believes that the use of alcohol or other drugs adversely affects a student’s ability to achieve
academic success, is physically and emotionally harmful, and has serious social and legal consequences. The
Superintendent or designee shall develop comprehensive programs and activities to foster safe, healthy, and drug-
free environments that support academic achievement.

The district's alcohol and drug prevention and intervention programs shall be coordinated with other school and
community-based services and programs and shall promote the involvement of parents/guardians. The
Superintendent or designee may collaborate with the county office of education, community-based organizations,
health providers, law enforcement agencies, local child welfare agencies, postsecondary institutions, businesses, and
other public and private entities in program planning, implementation, and evaluation,

Prevention and intervention programs and activities may include, but are not limited to: {20 USC 7118)

1. Evidence-based drug and violence prevention activities and programs that educate students against the use of
alcohol, tobacco, cannabis, smokeless tobacco products, and electronic cigarettes

2. Professional development and training for school staff, specialized instructional support personnel, and
interested community members on drug prevention, education, early identification, intervention mentoring,
recovery support services, and, where appropriate, rehabilitation referral

3. School-based mental health services, including early identification of drug use and referrals to counseling
services, and/or partnerships with public or private health care entities that have qualified mental and
behavioral health professionals

4. Programs and activities that provide mentoring and school counseling to all students, including students who
are at risk of drug use and abuse

Instruction and Notification

The district shall provide science-based preventative instruction, consistent with law, the accompanying
administrative regulation, and Board Policy 5141.52 - Suicide Prevention, which has been proven effective in helping
students avoid the use of alcohol and other drugs.

All instruction and related materials shall consistently state that unlawful use of alcohol or other drugs is prohibited.
{nstruction shall not include any message on responsible use of drugs or alcohol when such use is illegal. {Health and
Safety Code 11999.2)

The district shall offer staff development activities for staff who implement the comprehensive drug and alcohol
prevention and intervention program.

The district shalt annually inform parents/guardians at the beginning of the first semester or quarter of the regular
school year about the dangers associated with the use of synthetic drugs that are not prescribed by a physician, such
as fentanyl, the possibility that dangerous drugs can be found in counterfeit pills, and the risks of social media being
used as a way to market and sell synthetic drugs. Additionally, the district, and each school that maintains its own
website, shall post such information on its website. (Education Code 48985.5)

Intervention, Referral, and Student Assistance Programs
The Superintendent or designee shall inform school staff, students, and parents/guardians about early warning signs,

which may indicate alcohol and other drug use, and about appropriate agencies offering intervention programs,
counseling, referral, and other student assistance programs.



The Board strongly encourages any student who is using alcohol or drugs to discuss the matter with the student’s
parent/guardian or with any staff member. Students who disclose their use of alcohol or other drugs when seeking
help from an intervention or recovery program shall not be disciplined for such use, including that, in accordance
with Education Code 48900, students who voluntarily disclose their use of a tobacco product, controlled substance,
alcohol, or an intoxicant of any kind in order to seek help through services or supports shall not be suspended.

Opiocid Antagonists

Students in middle school, junior high school, high school, or adult school, may carry fentanyl test strips or a federally
approved opioid antagonist for the emergency treatment of persons suffering, or reasonably believed to be suffering,
from an opioid overdose, while on a school site or participating in a school activity. (Education Code 49414.6)

Additionally, students 12 years of age or older, while on a school site or participating in school activities, may carry
and administer a naloxone hydrochloride nasal spray or any other opioid overdose reversal medication that is
federally approved for over-the counter nonprescription use for the purpose of providing emergency treatment to
persons who are suffering, or reasonably believed to be suffering, from an opioid overdose. {Education Code
49414.35)

Enforcement and Discipline

Unless otherwise authorized by law, students shall not possess, use, or sell alcohol or other drugs and related
paraphernalia on school grounds or at school-sponsored activities.

The Superintendent or designee shall clearly communicate to all students, staff, and parents/guardians the district’s
policies, regulations, and school rules related to the use of alcohol and other drugs.

Any student found by the Board to be selling a controlled substance listed in Health and Safety Code 11053-11038
shall be recommended for expulsion in accordance with Board Policy/Administrative Regulation 5144.1 - Suspension
and Expulsion/Due Pracess. A student found to have committed another drug or alcoho! offense, including
possession or intoxication, shall be referred to appropriate behavioral interventions or student assistance programs,
and may be subject to discipline on a case-by-case basis.

The district may use alternatives to the referral of a student to a law enforcement agency in response to an incident
involving the student's misuse of an opioid, to the extent any alternative utilized is not in conflict with any law
requiring that referral. (Education Code 49414.4)

Program Evaluation

The Board and Superintendent shall agree upon performance measures that will be used to monitor and determine
the effectiveness of district programs in reducing drug and alcohol use. The Superintendent or designee shall
periodically report to the Board on the effectiveness of district activities in achieving identified objectives and
outcomes. {20 USC 7116)



Board Policy Manual
Blochman Union Elementary School District

Regulation 5131.6: Alcohol And Other Drugs Status: DRAFT
Original Adopted Date: 11/14/2017

Instruction

The curriculum of all elementary and secondary schools shall include instruction on the effects upon the human
body, as determined by science, of tobacco, alcohol, narcotics, dangerous drugs as defined in Health and Safety Code
11032, and other dangerous substances. Instruction shall be sequential in nature and suited to meet the needs of
students at their respective grade level. (Education Code 51203, 51260}

Instruction on the nature and effects of alcohol shall include information about excessive alcohol use and the short-
and long-term health risks of excessive alcohol use, including information about excessive drinking, the immediate
effects of alcohol that increase the risks of harmful health conditions, and how excessive alcohol use can lead to the
development of chronic diseases and other serious problems, including alcohol-related deaths and mental health
problems. (Education Code 51203)

In grades 1-6, instruction in drug education should be given in health courses required by Education Code 51210.
{Education Code 51260)

In grades 7-12, instruction in drug education shall be conducted in health courses and in any other appropriate area
of study required by Education Code 51220. (Education Code 51260}

Secondary school instruction shall also include a study of the effects of alcohol and other drugs upon prenatal
development. (Education Code 51203)

Additionally, beginning with the 2026-27 school year, courses in health education required for graduation from high
school shall include instruction in the dangers associated with fentanyl use in accordance with Education Code
51225.38.

Instruction shall be provided by appropriately trained instructors who have demonstrated competencies, as
determined by the principal or designee, in the following areas: {Education Code 51260)

1. The ability to interact with students in a positive way

2. Knowledge of the properties and effects of tobacco, alcohol, narcotics, dangerous drugs, and shared drug
apparatus

3. Effective teaching skills and competency in helping students to express opinions responsibly and to become
aware of their values as they affect drug-use decisions

Intervention

District staff shall intervene whenever students use alcohol or other illegal drugs while on school property or under
school jurisdiction. Staff members who have a reasonable suspicion that a student may be under the influence of
alcohol or drugs shall immediately notify the principal or designee.

If the principal or designee, observes or suspects that a student may be under the influence of alcohol or drugs, the
principal or designee may notify the student's parent/guardian. (Education Code 44049)

School staff shall not disclose confidential information provided during counseling by a student 12 years of age or
older. A school counselor may report such information to the principal or parent/guardian only when the counselor
believes that disclosure is necessary to avert a clear and present danger to the health, safety or welfare of the
student or other persons living in the school community. The school counselor shall not disclose such information to
the parent/guardian if the counselor believes that the disclosure would result in a clear and present danger to the
student's health, safety or welfare. (Education Code 44049, 49602)



Board Policy Manual
Blochman Union Elementary School District

Policy 5131.8: Mobile Communication Devices Status: DRAFT
Original Adopted Date: 12/10/2019

The Governing Board recognizes that student use of smartphones and other mobile communication devices on
campus may be beneficial to student learning and well-being, and could be harmful and disruptive of the instructional
program in some circumstances. When on campus or when under the supervision of district employees, students
may use smartphones and other mobile communication devices only as permitted under this policy.

Students may use smartphones or other mobile communication devices on campus during noninstructional time as
long as the device is utilized in accordance with law and any applicable school rules.

Mobile communication devices shall be turned off during instructional time.

However, a student shall not be prohibited from possessing or using a mobile communication device under any of
the following circumstances: (Education Code 48901.5, 48901.7)

1. In the case of an emergency, or in response to a perceived threat of danger

2. When a teacher or administrator grants permission to the student to possess or use a mobile communication
device, subject to any reasonable |limitation imposed by that teacher or administrator

3. When a licensed physician or surgeon determines that the possession or use is necessary for the student's
health and well-being

4. When the possession or use is required by the student's individualized education program

The Superintendent or designee may undertake measures or strategies in accordance with law, to limit student
access to smartphones and other mobile communication devices on campus. {Education Code 48901.7)

Smartphones and other mobile communication devices shalt not be used in any manner which infringes on the
privacy rights of any other person.

A student's personal electronic device shall not be searched without the consent of the student's parent/guardian,
except pursuant to a lawfully issued warrant, when a school official, in good faith, believes that an emergency
involving danger of death or serious physical injury to the student or others requires access to the electronic device
information, or when the search is otherwise permitted pursuant to Penal Code 1546.1.

When a student uses a mobile communication device in an unauthorized manner while at a school site or under the
supervision and control of a district employee, the student may be disciplined and the district employee may
temporarily confiscate the device, The employee shall store the device securely until it is returned to the student or
turned over to the principal or designee, as appropriate.

A student may also be subject to discipline, in accordance with law, Board policy, or administrative regulation, for
off-campus use of a mobile communication device which poses a threat or danger to the safety of students, staff, or
district property or substantially disrupts school activities.

The district will not be responsible or liable for a student's mobile communication device which is brought on campus
or to a school activity and is lost, stolen, or damaged.

The Board shall review and, as necessary, update this poficy at least once every five years. Any such review or
update shall include significant stakeholder participation to ensure that the policy is responsive to the unique needs
and desires of the school community.



Board Policy Manual
Blochman Union Elementary School District

Policy 5141.5: Mental Health Status: DRAFT
Original Adopted Date: 06/0%/2020 | Last Revised Date: 08/08/2023

The Governing Board recognizes that students' emotional well-being and mental health are critical to their ability to
perform to their full academic and personal potential. The Superintendent or designee shall develop strategies and
services to reduce the stigma associated with mental illness, facilitate access to mental health services, and help
students build resiliency skills, including digital resilience, increase social connections, and cope with life challenges.

The Superintendent or designee shall consult and collaborate with school-employed mental health professionals, the
county mental health department, psychologists and other health professionals, social workers, and/or community
organizations to strengthen local mental health services and develop and implement an integrated plan to support
student mental health.

To the extent possible, the district shall focus on preventive strategies which increase students' connectedness to
school, create a support network of peers and trusted adults, and provide technigues for conflict resolution. The
district shall investigate and resolve any complaint of bullying, intimidation, harassment, or discrimination in
accordance with law and district policy.

Instruction provided to students shall promote student health and mental, emotional, and social development. Health
education courses shall be aligned with the state content standards and curriculum framework, as specified in
Administrative Regulation 6143 - Courses of Study, and shall include, but not be limited to, instruction related to
identifying signs of depression and self-destructive behaviors including substance abuse, developing coping skills, and
identifying resources that may provide assistance.

Information and Training

The Superintendent or designee shall provide school staff and students with information and training to recognize
the early signs and symptoms of an emerging mental health condition or behavioral health disorder, including
common psychiatric conditions and substance use disorders such as opioid and alcohol abuse, identify risk factors
and warning signs of suicidal intent, respond to students who have been impacted by traumatic stress, safely
deescalate crisis situations involving students with a behavioral health disorder, and link students with effective
services, referrals, and supports, Additionally, such training shall provide instruction on how to maintain student
privacy and confidentiality, and may be provided to parents/guardians and families. (Education Code 49428.15)

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that all certificated employees and 40 percent of classified employes
who have direct contact with students in grades 7-12 receive youth behavioral training at least one time, in
accordance with Education Code 49428.2.

The Superintendent or designee shall develop a protocol for identifying and assessing students who may be suffering
from an anxiety disorder, depression, eating disorder, or other severe or disabling mental iliness. The Superintendent
or designee may establish districtwide or school-site crisis intervention teamis} to respond to mental health concerns
in the school setting.

Annually, the Superintendent or designee shall provide, and require all certificated employees serving students in
grades 7 to 12 to participate in, at least one hour of cultural competency training to support lesbian, gay, bisexual,
transgender, queer, and questioning individuals. The district shall maintain records documenting the date that each
employee completed the training and the name of the entity that provided the training. {Education Code 218.3)

At least twice per school year, the Superintendent or designee shall ensure that each school provides notice
regarding how to initiate access to student mental health services on campus and/or in the community. The
notification to parents/guardians and to students shall be in at least two of the following methods: {Education Code
49428)

1. Distributing the information, electronically or in hardcopy, in a letter to parents/guardians, and in a school



publication or other document to students

2. iIncluding the information, at the beginning of the school year, in the parent/guardian handbook and in student
orientation materials or a student handbook

3. Posting the information on the school's website or social media

Each school site that serves students in any of grades 6-12 shall create an age appropriate and culturally relevant
poster that identifies approaches and shares resources about student mental heaith, and that includes the following
information: (Education Code 49428.5)

1. ldentification of common behaviors of those struggling with mental health or who are in a mental health crisis,
including, but not limited to, anxiety, depression, eating disorders, emotional dysregulatian, bipolar episodes,
and schizophrenic episodes

2. Alist of, and contact information for, school site-specific resources, including, but not limited to, counselors,
wellness centers, and peer counselors

3. Alist of, and contact information for, community resources, including, but not limited to, suicide prevention,
substance abuse, child crisis, nonpolice mental health hotlines, public behavioral health services, and
community mental health centers

4, A list of positive coping strategies to use when dealing with mental health, including, but not limited to,
meditation, mindfulness, yoga, breathing exercises, grounding skills, journaling, acceptance, and seeking
therapy

5. Alist of negative coping strategies to avoid, including, but not limited to, substance abuse or self-medication,
violence and abuse, self-harm, compulsivity, dissociation, catastrophizing, and isolating

The poster shall be displayed in English and any primary language spoken by 15 percent or more of the students at
the school site and be no smaller than 8.5 by 11 inches and at least 12-point font. The poster shall be prominently
and conspicuously displayed in public areas that are accessible to, and commonly frequented by, students at each
school site such as bathrooms, locker rooms, classrooms, classroom hallways, gymnasiums, auditoriums, cafeterias,
wellness centers, and offices. Additionally, at the beginning of each school year the poster shall be distributed online
to students through social media, websites, portals, and learning platforms. (Education Code 49428.5)

Mental Health Counseling and Referrals

A school counselor, school psychologist, or school social worker may provide mental health counseling to students in
accordance with the specialization(s) authorized on the individual's credential. As needed, students and
parents/guardians may be provided referrals to mental health services in the community and/or to mental health
services at or near district schools.

The district's referral protocols shall: (Education Code 49428.1)

1. Address the appropriate and timely referral by school staff of students with behavioral health concerns

2. Reflect a multitiered system of support process and positive behavioral interventions and supports, to be used
as an alternative to disciplinary action as appropriate

The protocols shall be accessible to students who may be the subject of disciplinary action.
3. Be adaptable to varied local service arrangements for behavioral health services

4. Reflect evidence-based and culturally appropriate approaches to student behavioral health referral without
disciplinary actions

"Evidence-based" means peer-reviewed, scientific research evidence, including studies based on research
methodologies that control threats to both the internal and the external validity of the research findings.



5. Address the inclusion of parents/guardians in the referral process
6. Be written to ensure clarity and ease of use by certificated and classified school employees

7. Reflect differentiated referral processes for students with exceptional needs and other populations for whom
the referral process may be distinct

8. Be written to ensure that school employees act only within the authorization or scope of their credential or
license

School employees are not authorized or encouraged to diagnose or treat youth behavioral health disorders
unless they are specifically licensed and employed to do so.

9. Be consistent with state activities conducted by the California Department of Education in the administration
of federally funded behavioral health programs

A student 12 years of age or older may consent to mental health treatment or counseling if the student, in the
opinion of the attending mental health professional, is mature enough to participate intelligently in the services.
Additionally, the student’s parent/guardian shall consent to student's treatment, unless the mental health
professional determines, after consulting with the student, that the involvement of the parent/guardian would be
inappropriate. {(Family Code 6924)

In delivering mental health and behavioral health services to students, the district may use telehealth or other
information and communication technologies that facilitate the diagnosis, consultation, treatment, education, care
management, and self-management of a student’s health while the student is on campus and the health care provider
is at a distant location. (Education Code 49429)

Prior to utilizing telehealth technology to manage a student’s mental health or behavior, the mental health
professianal shall consult with the student, parent/guardian, and/or the student’s individualized education program
team, as required by law, untess the mental health professional determines that the involvement would be
inappropriate pursuant to Family Code 6924,

In using telehealth technology to provide mental health services to students, the Superintendent or designee shall
ensure that mental health professionals comply with applicable professional codes of ethics and legal authority.
Additionally, space that affords privacy and confidentiality of telehealth sessions shall be provided for students and
an emergency response plan shall be put in place that lays out all legally-mandated steps to take when a student
suddenly begins to exhibit suicidal ideation or other potentially dangerous behavior during a telehealth session.

If a student has an emotional or mental illness that limits a major life activity, has a record of such impairment, or is
regarded as having such impairment, or may need special education and related services, the student shall be
referred for an evaluation for purposes of determining whether any educational or related services are required in
accordance with Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act or the federal Individuals with Disabilities Education Act, as
applicable. (Education Code 56301-56302; 29 USC 794; 28 CFR 35.108)

Funding Resources

The Superintendent or designee shall explore potential funding sources for district programs and services that
support student's mental health. In accordance with local plans and priorities, the district may apply to the county for
grants for prevention and early intervention activities that are designed to prevent mental iliness from becoming
severe and disabling and to improve timely access for underserved populations.



Board Policy Manual
Blochman Union Elementary School District

Policy 5141.52: Suicide Prevention Status: DRAFT
Original Adopted Date: 11/14/2017 | Last Revised Date: 08/10/2021

The Governing Board recognizes that suicide is a leading cause of death among youth, that prevention is a collective
effort that requires stakeholder engagement, and that school personnel who regularly interact with students are
often in a position to recognize the warning signs of suicide and to offer appropriate referral and/or assistance. In an
effort to reduce suicidal behavior, its impact on students and families, and other associated trauma, the
Superintendent or designee shall develop measures, strategies, practices, and supports for suicide prevention,
intervention, and postvention.

In developing and updating district policy and procedures for suicide prevention, intervention, and postvention, the
Superintendent or designee shall consult with school and community stakeholders, school-employed mental health
professionals, and suicide prevention experts. If the policy will affect K-6 students, the county mental health plan
shall also be consulted. (Education Code 215)

School and community stakeholders and school mental health professionals with whom the Superintendent or
designee shall consult may include district and school administrators, school counselors, school psychologists, school
social workers, school nurses, other staff, parents/guardians and caregivers, students, local health agencies, mental
health professionals, community organizations, law enforcement, legal counsel, and/or the district’s risk manager or
insurance carrier. The Superintendent or designee may also collaborate with county and/or city governments in an
effort to align district policy with any existing community suicide prevention plans.

When developing or reviewing district policy on suicide prevention, the Superintendent or designee may make a
recommendation regarding the need to hire a mental health professional for the district, or for any school that is not
currently served by a mental health professional, and the possible funding source(s) for such hiring.

Measures and strategies for suicide prevention, intervention, and postvention shall include, but are not limited to:

1. Staff development on suicide awareness and prevention for teachers, interns, school counselors, and others
who interact with students, including, as appropriate, substitute teachers, coaches, expanded day learning staff,
crossing guards, tutors, and volunteers

2. Instruction to students in problem-solving, coping, and resiliency skills to promote students’ mental, emotional,
and social health and well-being; help-seeking strategies and resources; and instruction in recognizing and
appropriately responding to warning signs of suicidal intent in others

3. Methods for promoting a positive school climate that enhances students' feelings of connectedness with the
school and that is characterized by caring staff and harmonious relationships amang students

4. The review of materials and resources used in awareness efforts and communications to ensure they align with
best practices for safe and effective messaging about suicide

5. The provision of information to parents/guardians and caregivers regarding risk and protective factors, warning
signs of suicide, the severity of the suicide problem among youth, the district's suicide prevention curriculum,
the district’s suicide prevention policy and procedures, basic steps for helping suicidal youth, the importance of
communicating with appropriate staff if suicide risk is present or suspected, access to suicide prevention
training, and/or school and community resources that can help youth in crisis

6. Encouragement for students to notify appropriate school personne| or other adults when they are
experiencing thoughts of suicide or when they suspect or have knowledge of another student's suicidal
intentions

7. Crisis intervention protocols for addressing suicide threats or attempts

8. Counseling and other postvention strategies for helping students, staff, and others cope in the aftermath of a
student's suicide



9. Establishment of district and/or school-site crisis intervention team(s) to ensure the proper implementation
and review of this policy and other district practices related to the emotional and behavioral wellness of
students, including, but not limited to, the oversight of mental health and suicide prevention training, ensuring
the suicide prevention policy, protocols, and resources are posted on the district and school websites,
collaboration with community mental health organizations, identification of resources and organizations that
provide evidence-based treatment, collaboration to build community response, and compliance with Education
Code 215

As appropriate, these measures and strategies shall specifically address the needs of students who are at high risk of
suicide, including, but not limited to, students who are bereaved by suicide; students with exceptional needs, mental
iliness, or substance use disorders; students who are experiencing homelessness or who are in out-of-home settings
such as foster care; and students who are lesbian, gay, bisexual, transgender, or questioning. (Education Code 215}

In order to address mental health disabilities, the district may, as appropriate and in accordance with law, develop
trauma-informed crisis management procedures that include an individualized assessment of the student’s
circumstances; provide and facilitate access to mental health evaluations and services; reasonably modify policies,
such as attendance policies, for individual students; and train staff to recognize and respond appropriately to signs of
distress and suicidal ideation in students.

The Superintendent or designee shall establish a process for school staff to maintain daily or regular contact with all
students, including during distance learning and school closures, and for such staff to communicate any concerns
about 3 student's emotional wellbeing and/or safety to the appropriate authorities.

Additionally, the Superintendent or designee shall ensure that school-based mental health professionals maintain
regular contact with high-risk students, students who are on their caseloads, and those who are identified by staff as
demonstrating need.

The Board shall ensure that suicide prevention measures and strategies for students in grades K-6 are age
appropriate and delivered and discussed in a manner that is sensitive to the needs of young students. (Education
Code 215}

If a referral is made for mental health or related services for a student in grade K-6 who is a Medi-Cal beneficiary, the
Superintendent or designee shall coordinate and consult with the county mental health plan. {Education Code 215)

District employees shall act only within the authorization and scope of their credential or license. Nothing in this
policy shall be construed as authorizing or encouraging district employees to diagnose or treat mental illness unless
they are specifically licensed and employed to do so. (Education Code 215)

When the district determines that a student is in need of mental or behavioral health services, the services shall be
provided in accordance with protocols specified in Board Policy 5141.5 - Mental Health,

The Board shall review, and update as necessary, this policy at least every five years. The Board may, at its
discretion, review the policy more frequently. (Education Code 215)

The Superintendent or designee shall periodically review district data pertaining to school climate and reports of
suicidal ideation, attempts, or death to identify patterns or trends and make recommendations regarding program
development.

The Superintendent or designee shall post this policy on the district's website, in a prominent location and in a
manner that is easily accessible to parents/guardians and students. (Education Code 234.6)



Board Policy Manual
Blochman Union Elementary School District

Regulation 5141.52: Suicide Prevention Status: DRAFT
Original Adopted Date: 11/14/2017 | Last Revised Date: 08/10/2021

Definitions

Mental health professional means an individual licensed or registered, or an intern or associate working towards
licensure, by the Board of Behavioral Sciences or the Board of Psychology in the Department of Consumer Affairs.
{Education Code 215)

Student suicide crisis means any of the following: (Education Code 215)

1. A student who is exhibiting suicidal thoughts or behaviors
2. A student who has completed a suicide risk assessment and is determined to be at risk of suicide

3. Astudent who is attempting to physically harm themseives or others

School mental health professional means a school employee with a clear or preliminary pupil personnel services
credential with a specialization in school counseling, school social work, or school psychology, a credentialed school
nurse, or a licensed, registered, or associate marriage and family therapist, professional clinical counselor, clinical
sacial worker, educational psychologist, or psychologist under the supervision of a school employee with a pupil
personnel services or administrative services credential. (Education Code 215)

Staff Development

Suicide prevention training shall be provided to teachers, interns, counselors, and others who interact with students,
including, as appropriate, substitute teachers, coaches, expanded day learning staff, crossing guards, tutors, and
volunteers, The training shall be offered under the direction of a district counselor, psychologist, and/or social
worker who has received advanced training specific to suicide and who may collaborate with one or more county or
community mental health agencies.

Materials for training shall include how to identify appropriate mental health services at the school site and within
the community, and when and how to refer youth and families to those services. Training materials may also include
programs that can be completed through self-review of suitable suicide prevention materials. {Education Code 215)

Additionally, staff development shall include research and information related to the following topics:

1. The higher risk of suicide among certain groups, including, but not limited to, students who are impacted by
stiicide; students with exceptional needs, mental illness, or substance use disorders; students who are
experiencing homelessness or who are in out-of-home settings such as foster care; and students who are
lesbian, gay, bisexual, transgender, or questioning

2. Individual risk factors such as previous suicide attempt(s) or self-harm, history of depression or mental illness,
family history of suicide or violence, feelings of isolation, interpersonal conflicts, a recent severe or traumatic
stressor or loss, family instability, impulsivity, and other factors

3. Identification of students who may be at risk of suicide, including, but not limited to, warning signs that may
indicate depression, emotional distress, or suicidal intentions, such as changes in students' personality or
behavior and verbalizations of hopelessness or suicidal intent

4, Protective factors that may help to decrease a student's suicide risk, such as resiliency, problem-solving ability,
access to mental health care, and positive connections to family, peers, school, and community

5. Instructional strategies for teaching the suicide prevention curriculum, promoting mental and emotional health,
reducing the stigma associated with mental illness, and using safe and effective messaging about suicide

6. The importance of early prevention and intervention in reducing the risk of suicide



7. School and community resources and services, including resources and services that meet the specific needs of
high-risk groups

8. Appropriate ways to interact with a student who is demonstrating emotional distress or is suicidal and
procedures for intervening when a student attempts, threatens, or discloses the desire to die by suicide,
including, but not limited to, appropriate protocols for constant monitoring and supervision of the student,
during the time the student is in the school's physical custody, while the immediate referral of the student to
medical or mental health services is being processed

9. District procedures for responding after a suicide has occurred
10. Common misconceptions about suicide

The district may provide additional professional development in suicide risk assessment and crisis intervention to
district mental health professionals, including, but not limited to, school counselors, psychologists, social workers, and
nurses.

Instruction

The district's comprehensive health education program shall promote the healthy mental, emotional, and social
development of students and shall be aligned with the state content standards and curriculum framework. Suicide
prevention instruction shall be incorporated into the health education curriculum in an age and developmentally
appropriate manner and shall be designed to help students:

1. Identify and analyze warning signs and risk factors associated with suicide, including, but not limited to,
understanding how mental health challenges and emotional distress, such as feelings of depression, loss,
isolation, inadequacy, and anxiety, can lead to thoughts of suicide

2. Develop coping and resiliency skills for dealing with stress and trauma, and building self-esteem

3. Learn to listen, be honest, share feelings, and get help when communicating with friends who show signs of
suicidal intent

4. Identify trusted adults; school resources, including the district's suicide prevention, intervention, and referral
procedures; and/or community crisis intervention resources where youth can get help

5. Develop help-seeking strategies and recognize that there is no stigma associated with seeking services for
mental health, substance abuse, and/or suicide prevention

6. Recognize that early prevention and intervention can drastically reduce the risk of suicide

The Superintendent or designee may develop and implement school activities that raise awareness about mental
health wellness and suicide prevention.

Student ldentification Cards

Student identification cards for students in grades 7-12 shall include the 988 Suicide and Crisis Lifeline and National
Suicide Prevention Lifeline telephone number and may also include the Crisis Text Line, campus police or security, a
local suicide prevention hotline telephone number, and/or a quick response (QR} code for the county's mental health
resources website. {Education Code 215.5)

Intervention

The Superintendent or designee shall provide the name, title, and contact information of the members of the district
and/or school crisis intervention team(s) to students, staff, parents/guardians, and caregivers and post on school and
district websites. Such notifications shall identify the mental health professional who serves as the crisis intervention
team's designated reporter to receive and act upon reports of a student's suicidal intention.



Students shall be encouraged to notify a teacher, principal, counselor, designated reporter, or other adult when they
are experiencing thoughts of suicide or when they suspect or have knowledge of another student's suicidal
intentions.

Every statement regarding suicidal intent shall be taken seriously. Whenever a staff member suspects or has
knowledge of a student's suicidal intentions based on the student's verbalizations or act of self-harm, the staff
member shall promptly notify the principal, school counselor, or designated reporter, who shall implement district
intervention protocols as appropriate.

Although any personal information that a student discloses to a school counselor shall generally not be revealed,
released, discussed, or referred to with third parties, the counselor may report to the principal or student's
parents/guardians when there is reasonable cause to believe that disclosure is necessary to avert a clear and present
danger to the health, safety, or welfare of the student or others within the school community. In addition, the
counselor may disclose information of a persenal nature to psychotherapists, other health care providers, or the
school nurse for the sole purpose of referring the student for treatment, or to report child abuse and neglect as
required by Penal Code 11164-11174.3. {Education Code 49602)

Whenever schools establish a peer counseling system to provide support for students, peer counselors shall receive
training that includes identification of the warning signs of suicidal behavior and referral of a suicidal student to
appropriate adults.

When the district determines that a student is in need of mental or behavioral health services, the services shall be
provided in accordance with protocols specified in Board Policy 5141.5 - Mental Health.

When a suicide attempt or threat is reported, the principal or designee shall ensure student safety by taking the
following actions:

1. Immediately securing medical treatment and/or mental health services as necessary
2. Notifying law enforcement and/or other emergency assistance if a suicidal act is being actively threatened

3. Keeping the student under continuous adult supervision and providing comfort to the student until the
parent/guardian and/or appropriate support agent or agency can be contacted and has the opportunity to
intervene

4. Removing other students from the immediate area as soon as possible

The principal or designee shall document the incident in writing, including the steps that the school took in response
to the suicide attempt or threat.

The Superintendent or designee shall follow up with the parent/guardian and student in a timely manner to provide
referrals to appropriate services as needed. If the parent/guardian does not access treatment for the student, the
Superintendent or designee may meet with the parent/guardian to identify barriers to treatment and assist the family
in providing follow-up care for the student. If follow-up care is still not provided, the Superintendent or designee
shall consider whether it is necessary, pursuant to laws for mandated reporters of child neglect, to refer the matter
to the local child protective services agency.

For any student returning to school after a mental health crisis, the principal or designee and/or school counselor
may meet with the parents/guardians and, if appropriate, with the student to discuss re-entry and appropriate steps
to ensure the student's readiness for return to school and determine the need for ongoing support.

Postvention

in the event that a student dies by suicide, the Superintendent or designee shall communicate with the student's
parents/guardians to offer condolences, assistance, and resources. In accordance with the laws governing
confidentiality of student record information, the Superintendent or designee shall consult with the
parents/guardians regarding facts that may be divulged to other students, parents/guardians, and staff.



The Superintendent or designee shall implement procedures to address students' and staff's grief and to minimize the
risk of imitative suicide or suicide contagion. The Superintendent or designee shall provide students,
parents/guardians, and staff with information, counseling, and/or referrals to community agencies as needed.
Students significantly affected by suicide death and those at risk of imitative behavior should be identified and
closely monitored, School staff may receive assistance from school counselors or other mental health professionals
in determining how to best discuss the suicide or attempted suicide with students.

Any response to media inquiries shall be handled by the district-designated spokesperson who shall not divulge
confidential information. The district’s response shall not sensationalize suicide and shall focus on the district's
postvention plan and available resources.

After any suicide or attempted suicide by a student, the Superintendent or designee shall provide an opportunity for
all staff who responded to the incident to debrief, evaluate the effectiveness of the strategies used, and make
recommendations for future actions.



Board Policy Manual
Blochman Union Elementary School District

Policy 5145.13: Response To Immigration Enforcement Status: DRAFT
Original Adopted Date: Pending

The Governing Board is committed to the success of all students and believes that every school site should be a safe
and welcoming place for all students and their families irrespective of their citizenship or immigration status.

District staff shall not solicit or collect information or documents, and shall not seek or require information or
documents to the exclusion of other permissible information or documents, regarding the citizenship or immigration
status of a student or the student's family members. (Education Code 234,7)

In accordance with law, Board Policy 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities, and Board Policy
5145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment, no student shall be denied equal rights and opportunities, nor be subjected
to unlawful discrimination, harassment, intimidation, or bullying in the district's programs and activities on the basis
of the student's or family's immigration status or for the refusal to provide information related to the student’s or
family's immigration status. (Education Code 200, 220, 234.1)

Resources and data collected by the district shall not be used, directly or by others, to compile a list, registry, or
database of individuals based on national origin, immigration status, religion, or other category of individual
characteristics protected against unlawful discrimination. (Government Code 8310.3)

The Superintendent or designee shall notify parents/guardians regarding their children's right to a free public
education regardless of immigration status or religious beliefs and their rights related to immigration enforcement.
(Education Code 234.7)

The Superintendent or designee shall develop procedures for addressing any immigration-related requests by a law
enforcement officer for access to district records, school sites, or students.

The Superintendent or designee may provide training to staff regarding immigration issues, including information on
responding to a request from a law enforcement officer to visit a school site or to have access to a student.

The Superintendent or designee shall report to the Board in a timely manner any requests for information or access
to a school site by a law enforcement officer for the purpose of enforcing the immigration laws. Such notification
shall be provided in a manner that ensures the confidentiality and privacy of any potentially identifying information.
{Education Code 234.7)



Board Policy Manual
Blochman Union Elementary School District

Regulation 5145.13: Response To Immigration Enforcement Status: DRAFT
Original Adopted Date: Pending

Responding to Requests for Immigration-Related Information or Documents

Upon receiving any verbal or written request for information or documents related to a student's or family's
immigration or citizenship status, district staff shall:

1. Record or otherwise document the request and notify the Superintendent or designee about the request

2. Provide the student’s parent/guardian or, if the student is at least 18 years old, the student, with notice, a
description of the request, and any documentation provided to the district describing the request, unless
prohibited by a court order, judicial subpoena/warrant, or in cases involving investigation of child abuse,
neglect, or dependency

Information or documents related to a student's immigration or citizenship status shall not be disclosed to a law
enforcement officer without consent by the parent/guardian or, if the student is at least 18 years old, by the student,
a court order, or judicial subpoena/warrant, To obtain written consent, the release of student information shall
include the following information:

1. The signature and signature date of the parent/guardian, or student if the student is at least 18 years old
2. A description of the records to be disclosed

3. The reason for the release of information

4, The parties or class of parties receiving the information

5. A copy of the records to be released, if requested by the parent/guardian or student

In accordance with law and Board Policy 5125 - Student Records, the Superintendent or designee shall annually
notify parents/guardians that the district will not release student information to third parties for immigration
enforcement purposes, unless the parent/guardian consents or as required to do so by a court order or judicial
subpoena/warrant.

Responding to Requests for Access to Students or School Grounds

District staff shall receive parent/guardian consent or, if the student is at least 18 years old, the student's consent,
before the student is interviewed or searched by any law enforcement officer for immigration enforcement
purposes, unless the officer presents a court order or a judicial warrant.

A student's parent/guardian shall be immediately notified when a law enforcement officer requests or is able to
interview, search, detain, or otherwise interact with the student for immigration enforcement purposes, unless
prohibited by a court order or a judicial warrant, or in cases involving investigations of child abuse, neglect, or
dependency. {Education Code 48906)

A law enforcement officer who requests to enter district property which is not open to all visitors shall register in
accordance with Board Policy 1250 - Visitors/QOutsiders, except in cases where the officer states that exigent
circumstances exist or as stated in a court order or judicial warrant. {Penal Code 627.2, 627.3)

As early as possible, district staff shall notify the Superintendent or designee of any immigration enforcement-related
request by a law enforcement officer for access to a student or to district property, including service of lawful
warrants, subpoenas, petitions, complaints, or other similar documents.

Responding to Law Enfercement Officers on District Property

District staff shall report the presence of any law enforcement officer on district property for immigration



enforcement purposes to on-site district police and other appropriate administrators.
Unless a law enforcement officer declares that exigent circumstances exist and demands immediate access to the
campus, district staff shall take the following actions when such an officer is actually or imminently present on
district property for immigration enforcement purposes:

1. Advise the officer that before school personnel can respond to the officer's request, they must first receive

notification and direction from the Superintendent, principal, or designee, except under exigent circumstances
that necessitate immediate action

2. Request to see and record or otherwise document the officer’s credentials, including the officer's name and
badge number, and the phone number of the officer's supervisor, and note or make a copy of all such
information

3. Ask the officer for, and then record or otherwise document, the officer's reason for being on district property

4, Request that the officer produce any documentation that authorizes the officer's school access, make copies of
alt such documentation, and retain at least one copy for district records

5. Contact and consult with the district's legal counsel or Superintendent or designee

6. Follow the direction from the district's legal counse! or Superintendent or designee
If the officer declares that exigent circumstances exist and demands immediate access to the campus, district staff
shall comply with the officer's orders and immediately contact the Superintendent or designee and then the district's
legal counsel.
Regardless of whether the officer declares that exigent circumstances exist, district staff shall not attempt to
physically impede the officer, even if the officer appears to be acting outside the law or in excess of the officer's
stated or documented authorization. If an officer enters the premises without consent, district staff shall document
the officer's actions while on campus but only to the extent that it does not impede the officer's actions.

After the officer leaves district property, district staff shall promptly make written notes of all interactions with the
afficer, including:

1. Alist or copy of the officer's credentials and contact information, if known
2. The identity of all other district staff known to have communicated with the officer
3. A description of the officer's request and activities

4, The type of documentation, such as a warrant or subpoena, that authorized the officer's request or actions,
what was requested by the documentation, and whether the documentation was signed by a judge

5. District staff's response to the officer's request
6. Any further action taken by the officer

7. Copies of any documents presented by the officer

District staff shall promptly provide a copy of these notes and any associated documents district staff has collected
from the officer to the district's legal counsel or other district official designated by the Superintendent.

The district’s legal counsel or the Superintendent or designee shall submit a timely report to the Governing Board
regarding the officer's requests and actions and the district’s response. (Education Code 234.7)

The Superintendent or designee shall also email the Bureau of Children's Justice in the California Department of
Justice (BCJ@doj.ca.gov) regarding any attempt by a law enforcement officer to access a school site or a student for
immigration enforcement purposes.

Responding to the Detention or Deportation of Student's Parent/Guardian



The Superintendent or designee shall encourage parents/guardians to update their emergency contact information
as needed at any time. The Superintendent or designee shall notify parents/guardians that the district will only use
information provided on the emergency cards in response to specific emergency situations and not for any other
purpose.

The Superintendent or designee may also encourage all students and families to learn their emergency phone
numbers and be aware of the location of important documentation, including birth certificates, passports, social
security cards, physicians' contact information, medication lists, lists of allergies, and other such information that
would allow the students and families to be prepared in the event that a student's parent/guardian is detained or
deported.

In the event that a student's parent/guardian is detained or deported, the Superintendent or designee shall release
the student to the person(s) designated in the student's emergency contact information or to any individual who
presents a caregiver's authorization affidavit on behalf of the student. The Superintendent or designee shall only
contact child protective services if district personnel are unable to arrange for the timely care of the student by the
person(s) designated in the emergency contact information maintained by the school or identified on a caregiver's
authorization affidavit.

In an instance where a student's parent/guardian was detained or deported, the Superintendent or designee shall
notify the student, as well as the individuals designated in the student's emergency contact information and any
individual who presented a caregiver's authorization affidavit on behalf of the student, that the student continues to
meet the residency requirements for attendance in the district if the student and the student's parent/guardian who
was detained or deported satisfy the conditions as specified in Education Code 48204.4.

The Superintendent or designee may refer a student or the student's family members to other resources for
assistance, including, but not limited to, an U.S. Immigrant and Customs Enforcement detainee locator, legal
assistance, or the consulate or embassy of the parent/guardian's country of origin.



Board Policy Manual
Blochman Union Elementary School District

Policy 6142.93: Science Instruction Status: DRAFT
Original Adopted Date: 11/14/2017

The Governing Board believes that science education should focus on giving students an understanding of the
biological and physical aspects of science, including the place of humans in ecological systems, the causes and effects
of climate change and the methods to mitigate and adapt to climate change, key scientific concepts, and methods of
scientific inquiry and investigation through experiments and other activities that foster critical thinking. Students
should become familiar with the natural world and the interrelationship of science, mathematics, technology, and
engineering. As part of science instruction, students should learn how to apply scientific knowledge and reasoning.

Philosophical and religious theories that are based, at least in part, on faith and are not subject to scientific test and
refutation shall not be discussed during science instruction.

The Board shall adopt academic standards for science that meet or exceed the California Next Generation Science
Standards {CA-NGSS) and describe the knowledge and skills students are expected to possess at each grade level,
with an instructional focus on understanding the process of science, the fundamental ideas within each discipline of
science, and underlying themes that are common to all sciences. The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that
curricula used in district schools are aligned with these standards and the state curriculum framework.

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that students have access to and are enrolled in a broad course of study
including science courses.

The Superintendent or designee shall provide certificated staff with opportunities to participate in professional
development activities designed to enhance their knowledge of district-adopted academic standards, instructional
strategies for teaching science, and changes in scientific theories.

The Superintendent or designee shall develop and implement appropriate safety measures for science laboratory
classes in accordance with Administrative Regulation 5142 - Safety, including, but not limited to, staff and student
safety training, use of eye safety devices, hearing protection, first aid procedures, regular equipment maintenance,
safe use of heat sources, safe use and disposal of hazardous chemicals, proper ventilation, prevention of exposure to
bloodborne pathogens from sharp instruments, fire prevention and control, an emergency response plan, and
evacuation procedures. Parents/guardians shall be informed of the types of science laboratory activities that will be
conducted and encouraged to sign consent forms for their child's participation.

The Superintendent or designee shall regularly report to the Board regarding the implementation and effectiveness
of the science curriculum at each grade level. At a minimum, each report shall address the extent to which the
program is aligned with the CA-NGSS, any applicable student assessment results, and feedback from students,
parents/guardians, and staff regarding the program.



Board Policy Manual
Blochman Union Elementary School District

Policy 6142.94: History-Soclal Science Instruction Status: DRAFT
Original Adopted Date: 11/14/2017

The Governing Board believes that the study of history and other social sciences is essential to prepare students to
engage in responsible citizenship, comprehend complex global interrelationships, and understand the vital
connections among the past, present, and future, as well as to establish a foundation for the appreciation of different
ethnicities, the wise use of natural resources, and the responsible management of personal finance. The district’s
history-social science education program shall include, at appropriate grade levels, instruction in American and world
history, geography, economics, political science, anthropology, psychology, and sociology.

The Board shall adopt academic standards for history-social science which meet or exceed state content standards
and describe the knowledge and skills students are expected to possess at each grade level.

The Superintendent or designee shall develop and submit to the Board for approval a comprehensive, sequential
curriculum aligned with the district standards and consistent with the state's curriculum framework for history-social
science, The curriculum shall be designed to develop students' core knowledge in history and social science and their
skills in chronological and spatial thinking, research, and historical interpretation. History-social science instruction
shall also include an explicit focus on developing students' literacy in reading, writing, speaking, listening, and other
language skills.

The Board shall adopt standards-aligned instructional materials for history-social science in accordance with
applicable law, Board policy, and administrative regulation. Additionally, teachers are encouraged to supplement the
curriculum, in accordance with Board Policy 6161.11 - Supplementary Instructional Materials, by using biographies,
original documents, diaries, letters, legends, speeches, other narrative artifacts, and literature from and about the
period being studied.

Personal testimony from persons who can provide first-hand accounts of significant historical events is encouraged
and may be provided through oral histories, videos, or other multimedia formats. If oral history is used for instruction
related to the role of Americans in World War Il or the Vietnam War, such testimony shall exemplify the personal
sacrifice and courage of the wide range of ordinary citizens who were called upon to participate in the war, provide
views and comments concerning reasons for participating in the war, and provide commentary on the aftermath of
the war in Eastern Europe and the former Soviet Union. (Education Code 51221.3, 51221.4)

District high schools shall annually observe, during the week that includes April 28, "Waorkplace Readiness Week" by
providing information to students on their rights as workers, including topics specified in Education Code 49110.5.
For students in grades 11 and 12, the "Workplace Readiness Week" observances shall be integrated into the regular
school program, consistent with the history-social science framework. (Education Code 49110.5)

The Superintendent or designee shall provide a standards-based professional development program designed to
increase teachers' knowledge of adopted instructional materials and instructional strategies for teaching history-
social science.

The Superintendent or designee shall regularly evaluate and report to the Board regarding the implementation and
effectiveness of the history-social science curriculum at each grade level, including, but not limited to, the extent to
which the program is aligned with state standards, any applicable student assessment results, and feedback from
students, parents/guardians, and staff regarding the program.



Board Policy Manual
Blochman Union Elementary School District

Regulation 6159: Individualized Education Program Status: DRAFT
Orlginal Adopted Date: 11/14/2017 | Last Revised Date: 08/11/2020

At the beginning of each school year, the district shall have an individualized education program (IEP} in effect for
each student with an exceptional need within district jurisdiction. The IEP shall be a written statement that is
developed, reviewed, and revised by the 1EP team to meet the unique educational needs of a student with an
exceptional need. (Education Code 56344, 56345; 34 CFR 300.320, 300.323)

Members of the IEP Team

Unless excused by written agreement in accordance with Education Code 56341, the IEP team for any student with
an exceptional need shall include the following members: (Education Code 56341, 56341.5; 20 USC 1414; 34 CFR
300.321)

1. One or both of the student's parents/guardians and/or a representative selected by them

To the extent permitted by federal law, a foster parent shall have the same rights relative to a foster child's IEP
as a parent/guardian. (Education Code 56055)
2. If the student is or may be participating in the general education program, at least one of the student's general

education teachers designated by the Superintendent or designee to represent the student's general education
teachers

The general education teacher shall, to the extent appropriate, participate in the development, review, and
revision of the student's IEP, including assisting in the determination of appropriate positive behavioral
interventions, supports, and other strategies for the student, and supplementary aids and services, program
modifications, and supports for school personnel that will be provided for the student, consistent with 34 CFR
300.320. (Education Code 56341; 20 USC 1414: 34 CFR 300.324)

3. Atleast one of the student's special education teachers or, where appropriate, special education providers

4. A representative of the district who is:

a. Qualified to provide or supervise the provision of specially designed instruction to meet the unique
needs of students with exceptional needs

b. Knowledgeable about the general education curriculum
c. Knowledgeable about the availability of district resources
5. Anindividual who can interpret the instructional implications of assessment results
This individual may already be a member of the team as described in ltems #2-4 above or in Item #6 below.

6. At the discretion of the parent/guardian or the Superintendent or designee, other individuals who have
knowledge or special expertise regarding the student, including related services personnel, as appropriate

The determination of whether the individual has knowledge or special expertise regarding the student shall be
made by the party who invites the individual to be a member of the IEP team.

7. Whenever appropriate, the student

In the development, review, or revision of the IEP, the student shall be allowed to provide confidential input to
any representative of the IEP team. (Education Code 56341.5)

8. When the student is suspected of having a specific learning disability, at least one individual who is qualified to
conduct individual diagnostic examinations of the student such as a school psychologist, speech language
pathologist, or remedial reading teacher



In accordance with 34 CFR 300.310, at least one team member other than the student's general education
teacher shall observe the student's academic performance and behavior in the areas of difficulty in the
student's learning environment, including in the general education classroom setting. If the child is younger
than five years or not enrolled in school, a team member shall observe the child in an environment appropriate
for a child of that age.

In the following circumstances, the Superintendent or designee shall invite other specified individuals to an IEP team
meeting:

1. When the student has been placed in a group home by the juvenile court, a representative of the group home
shall be invited to attend the IEP team meeting {Education Code 56341.2)

2. Whenever the |IEP team is meeting to consider the student's postsecondary goals and the transition services
needed to assist the student in reaching the goals, the fotlowing individuals shall be invited to attend: (34 CFR
300.321)

a. The student, regardless of the student's age

If the student does not attend the IEP team meeting, the Superintendent or designee shall take other
steps to ensure that the student's preferences and interests are considered.

b. To the extent appropriate, and with the consent of the parent/guardian or adult student, a
representative of any other agency that is likely to be responsible for providing or paying for the
transition services

3. If the student was previously served under the Early Education for Individuals with Exceptional Needs
(Education Code 56425-56432) or the California Early Intervention Services Act (Government Code $5000-
95004), and upon request of the student's parent/guardian, the Superintendent or designee shall invite the
Infant and Toddlers with Disabilities Coordinator or other representative of the early education or early
intervention system to the initial IEP team meeting to assist with the smooth transition of services {Education
Code 56341; 20 USC 1414; 34 CFR 300.321)

A member of the IEP team shall not be required to attend an IEP team meeting, in whole or in part, if the
parent/guardian and the district agree, in writing, that the attendance of the member is not necessary because the
member's area of the curriculum or related services is not being modified or discussed at the meeting. Even if the
meeting involves a discussion of the IEP team member's area of the curriculum or related service, the member may
be excused from the meeting if the parent/guardian, in writing, and the district consent to the excusal after
conferring with the member and the member submits to the parent/guardian and team written input into the
development of the IEP prior to the meeting. (Education Code 56043, 56341; 20 USC 1414; 34 CFR 300.321)

Contents of the IEP

The IEP shall include, but not be limited to, all of the following: (Education Code 56345, 56345.1; 20 USC 1414; 24
CFR 300.320}

1. Astatement of the present levels of the student's academic achievement and functional performance,
including:

a. The manner in which the exceptional need affects the student's involvement and progress in the general
education curriculum (i.e., the same curriculum as for a student without exceptional needs)

b. For a preschool student, as appropriate, the manner in which the exceptional need affects the student's
participation in appropriate activities

¢. For a student with an exceptional need who takes alternate assessments aligned to alternate
achievement standards, a description of benchmarks or short-term objectives

2. A statement of measurable annual goals, including academic and functional goals, designed to:

a. Meet the student's needs that result from an exceptional need in order to enable the student to be
involved in and make progress in the general education curriculum



b. Meet each of the student's other educational needs that result from the exceptional need

3. A description of the manner in which the student's progress toward meeting the annual goals described in Item

10.

11.

12,

#2 above will be measured and when the district will provide periodic reports on the progress the student is
making toward meeting the annual goals, such as through the use of quarterly or other periodic reports,
concurrent with the issuance of report cards

. A statement of the special education instruction and related services and supplementary aids and services,

based on peer-reviewed research to the extent practicable, to be provided to the student or on behalf of the
student, and a statement of the program madifications or supports for school personnel that will be provided
to enable the student to:

a. Advance appropriately toward attaining the annual goals

b. Be involved and make progress in the general education curriculum in accordance with Item #1 above
and to participate in extracurricular and other nonacademic activities

¢. Be educated and participate with other students with exceptional needs and students without
exceptional needs in the activities described in the IEP

. An explanation of the extent, if any, to which the student will not participate with students without

exceptional needs in the regular class and in extracurricular and other nonacademic activities described in the
iEP

. A statement of any appropriate individual accommodations necessary to measure the academic achievement

and functional performance of the student on state and districtwide assessments

If the IEP team determines that the student shall take an alternate assessment instead of a particular regular
state or districtwide assessment, the student's 1IEP shall also include a statement of the reason that the student
cannot participate in the regular assessment and the reason that the particular alternate assessment selected is
appropriate,

. The projected date for the beginning of the services and modifications described in Item #4 above and the

anticipated frequency, location, and duration of those services and modifications

. |f determined appropriate by the |IEP team, when the student starts high school or not later than the first IEP to

be in effect when the student is 16 years of age, or younger, and updated annually thereafter, the following:

a. Appropriate measurable postsecondary goals based upon age-appropriate transition assessments related
to training, education, employment, and where appropriate, independent living skills

b. The transition services, including courses of study, needed to assist the student in reaching those goals

A description of the means by which the IEP will be provided under emergency conditions, as described in
Education Code 46392, in which instruction and/or services cannot be provided to the student either at the
school or in person for more than 10 school days

The description shall take into account public health orders and shall include special education and related
services, supplementary aids and services, transition services, and extended school year services.

Beginning at least one year before the student reaches age 18, a statement that the student has been informed
of the rights, if any, that will transfer to the student upon reaching age 18, pursuant to Education Code
56041.5

For a student in grades 7-12, any alternative means and modes necessary for the student to complete the
district's prescribed course of study and to meet or exceed proficiency standards required for graduation

For a student whose native language is not English, linguistically appropriate goals, cbjectives, programs, and
services



13. Extended school year services when the |IEP team determines, on an individual basis, that the services are
necessary for the provision of a free appropriate public education (FAPE)

14. If the student is to be transferred from a special class or nonpublic, nonsectarian schoo! into a general
education program in a public schoo! for any part of the school day, provision for transition into the general
education program including descriptions of activities intended to:

a. Integrate the student into the general education program, including the nature of each activity and the
time spent on the activity each day or week

b. Support the transition of the student from the special education program into the general education
program

15. For a student with low incidence disabilities, specialized services, materials, and equipment consistent with the
guidelines pursuant to Education Code 56136

To assist a student who is blind, has low vision, or is visually impaired to achieve the student's maximum potential,
the IEP team may consider instruction in the expanded core curriculum, including compensatory skills such as Braille,
concept development, or other skills needed to access the core curriculum; orientation and mobility; social
interaction skills; career technical education; assistive technology, including optical devices; independent living skills;
recreation and leisure; self-determination; and sensory efficiency. When appropriate, such services may be offered
before or after school. (Education Code 56353}

Development of the IEP

Within 30 days of a determination that a student needs special education and related services, the Superintendent or
designee shall ensure that a meeting to develop an initial IEP is conducted. (Education Code 56043; 34 CFR
300.323)

Any IEP required as a result of an assessment of a student shall be developed within 60 days from the date of receipt
of the parent/guardian's written consent for assessment, unless the parent/guardian agrees, in writing, to an
extension. Days between the student's regular school sessions, terms, or vacation of more than five school days shall
not be counted. In the case of school vacations, the 60-day time limit shall recommence on the date that the
student's school days reconvene. {Education Code 56043, 56344)

However, when the IEP is required as a result of an assessment of a student for whom a referral has been made 30
days or less prior to the end of the preceding regular school year, the IEP shall be developed within 30 days after the
commencement of the subsequent regular school year. (Education Code 56344)

in developing the IEP, the IEP team shall consider all of the following: (Education Code 56040.6, 56341.1, 56345;
20 USC 1414: 34 CFR 300.324)}

1. The strengths of the student

2. The concerns of the parents/guardians for enhancing the education of their child
3. The results of the initial or most recent assessment of the student

4. The academic, developmental, and functional needs of the student

5. In the case of a student whose behavior impedes the student’s learning or that of others, the use of positive
behavioral interventions and supports and other strategies to address that behavior

6. In the case of a student with limited English proficiency, the language needs of the student as such needs
relate to the student's IEP

7. In the case of a student who is blind or visually impaired, the need to provide for instruction in Braille and
instruction in the use of Braille

However, such instruction need not be included in the IEP if the IEP team determines that instruction in Braille
or the use of Braille is not appropriate for the student. This determination shall be based upon an assessment



of the student's reading and writing skills, needs, and appropriate reading and writing media, including an
assessment of future needs for instruction in Braille or the use of Braille,

8. The communication needs of the student and, in the case of a student who is deaf, hard of hearing, or deaf-
blind, the student's language and communication needs, opportunities for direct communications with peers
and professional personnel in the student's language and communication mode, academic level, and full range
of needs, including opportunities for direct instruction in the student's language and communication mode

The team shall also consider placements, related services, and program options that provide the student with
an equal opportunity for communication access, as described in Education Code 56345.

9. Whether the student requires assistive technology devices and services, including artificial intelligence devices
and services

If, in considering the special factors in ltems #1-9 above, the IEP team determines that the student needs a particular
device or service, including an intervention, accommodation, or other program modification, in order to receive
FAPE, the team shall include a statement to that effect in the student's IEP. (Education Code 56341.1)

Provision of Special Education and Related Services

The district shall ensure that, as soon as possible following development of the IEP, special education and related
services are made available to the student in accordance with the IEP. (Education Code 56344; 34 CFR 300.323)

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that the student's IEP is accessible to each general education teacher,
special education teacher, related service provider, and any other service provider who is responsible for its
implementation. The Superintendent or designee also shall ensure that such teachers and providers are informed of
their specific responsibilities related to implementing the |EP and the specific accommodations, modifications, and
supports that must be provided to the student in accordance with the IEP. (34 CFR 300.323)

If an orientation and mobility evaluation is determined to be needed for a student wha is blind, has low vision, or is
visually impaired, the evaluation shall be conducted by a person who is appropriately certified as an orientation and
mobility specialist and shall occur in familiar and unfamiliar environments, in varying lighting conditions, and in the
home, school, and community, as appropriate. The Superintendent or designee may require annual written
parent/guardian consent to provide orientation and mobility services when such services are provided before or
after school and when they are provided away from the school site. (Education Code 56354; 5 CCR 3051.3)

If a student's |IEP requires the provision of assistive technology devices or services, including artificial intelligence
services, the district shall provide such devices or services and shall, on a case-by-case basis, provide for the use of
school-purchased devices or services in the student's home or other settings if the IEP team determines that the
student needs access to those devices or services in order to receive FAPE. If a student who requires the use of an
assistive technology device or services transfers to another local educational agency, the district shall provide the
student with continued access to that device or services or a comparable device or service for two months from the
date the student ceased to be enrolled in the district or until alternative arrangements can be made to provide access
to the device, whichever occurs first. {(Education Code 56040.3; 34 CFR 300.105)

Review and Revision of the IEP

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that the IEP team reviews the IEP periodically, but at least annually, in
order to: {Education Code 56043, 56341.1, 56380; 20 USC 1414, 34 CFR 300.324)

1. Determine whether the annual goals for the student are being achieved
2. Revise the IEP, as appropriate, to address:

a. Any lack of expected progress toward the annual goals and in the general education curriculum, where
appropriate

b. The results of any reassessment conducted pursuant to Education Code 56381



¢. Information about the student provided to or by the parents/guardians regarding review of evaluation
data pursuant to 34 CFR 300.305 and Education Code 56381

d. The student's anticipated needs
e. Any other relevant matter

3. Consider the special factors listed in Items #5-9 above, under "Development of the IEP,” when reviewing the
IEP of any student with an exceptional need to whom one of those factors may apply

The IEP team shall also meet at any other time upon request by the student's parent/guardian or teacher to review
or revise the |EP. {Education Code 56343}

When a parent/guardian requests an IEP team meeting to review the IEP, the team shall meet within 30 days of
receiving the parent/guardian's written request, not counting days between the student's regular school sessions or
terms or days of school vacation in excess of five school days. If a parent/guardian makes an oral request, the district
shall notify the parent/guardian of the need for a written request and the procedure for filing such a request.
(Education Code 56043, 56343.5)

A regular education or special education teacher may request a review of the classroom assignment of a student with
an exceptional need by submitting a written request to the Superintendent or designee. The Superintendent or
designee shall consider the request within 20 days of receiving it, not counting days when school is not in session or,
for year-round schools, days when the school is off track. If the review indicates a need for change in the student's
placement, instruction, and/or related services, the Superintendent or designee shall convene an |IEP team meeting,
which shall be held within 30 days of the Superintendent or designee's review, not counting days when school is not
in session or days when school is off track, unless the student's parent/guardian consents in writing to an extension
of time.

If a participating agency other than the district fails to provide the transition services described in the student’s IEP,
the team shall reconvene to identify alternative strategies to meet the transition service objectives set out for the
student in the IEP. (Education Code 56345.1; 20 USC 1414; 34 CFR 300.324)

If a student with an exceptional need residing in a licensed children's institution or foster family hame has been
placed by the district in a nonpublic, nonsectarian school, the Superintendent or designee shall conduct an annual
evaluation as part of the IEP process of whether the placement is the least restrictive environment that is
appropriate to meet the student's needs, (Education Code 56157)

To the extent possible, the Superintendent or designee shall encourage the consolidation of reassessment meetings
and other IEP team meetings for a student. (20 USC 1414; 34 CFR 300.324)

When a change is necessary to a student's |IEP after the annual IEP team meeting for the school year has been held,
the parent/guardian and the Superintendent or designee may agree not to convene an |[EP team meeting for the
purpose of making the change and instead may develop a written document to amend or modify the student's
current IEP. The IEP team shall be informed of any such changes. Upon request, the Superintendent or designee shall
provide the parent/guardian with a revised copy of the |EP with the incorporated amendments. {Education Code
56380.1; 20 USC 1414; 34 CFR 300.324)

Audio Recording of IEP Team Meetings

Parents/guardians and the Superintendent or designee shall have the right to audio record the proceedings of IEP
team meetings, provided members of the |EP team are notified of this intent at least 24 hours before the meeting. If
the Superintendent or designee gives notice of intent to audio record a meeting and the parent/guardian objects or
refuses to attend because the meeting would be audio recorded, the meeting shall not be audio recorded.
Parents/guardians also have the right to: (Education Code 56341.1)

1. Inspect and review the audio recordings

2. Request that an audio recording be amended if they believe it contains information that is inaccurate,
misleading, or in violation of the student's privacy rights or other rights



3. Challenge, in a hearing, information that the parents/guardians believe is inaccurate, misieading, or in violation
of the student’s privacy rights or other rights

Parent/Guardian Participation and Other Rights

The Superintendent or designee shall take steps to ensure that one or both of the parents/guardians of the student
with an exceptional need are present at each |[EP team meeting or are afforded the opportunity to participate. These
steps shall include notifying the parents/guardians of the meeting early enough to ensure that they will have the

opportunity to attend and scheduling the meeting at a mutually agreed upon time and place. (Education Code
56341.5; 34 CFR 300.322)

The Superintendent or designee shall send parents/guardians notices of IEP team meetings that: {Education Code
56341.5; 34 CFR 300.322}

1. Indicate the purpose, time, and location of the meeting
2. Indicate who will be in attendance at the meeting
3. Inform them of:

a. Their right to bring to the meeting other individuals who have knowledge or special expertise about the
student, pursuant to Education Code 56341

b. The provision of Education Code 56341 relating to the participation of the Infant and Toddlers with
Disabilities Coordinator at the initial IEP team meeting, if the student was previously served under Early
Education for Individuals with Exceptional Needs {(Education Code 56425-56432) or the California Early
Intervention Services Act {Government Code 25000-95004)}

Additionally, when the |IEP team meeting is to consider the development, review, or revision of the |IEP of a student
with an exceptional need who is 16 years of age or older, or younger than 16 if deemed appropriate by the IEP team,
the Superintendent or designee's notice to the student's parents/guardians shall include the following: (Education
Code 56341.5)

1. Anindication that a purpose of the meeting will be the consideration of postsecondary goals and transition
services for the student pursuant to Education Code 56345.1, 20 USC 1414, and 34 CFR 300.320

2. An indication that the student is invited to the |IEP team meeting

At each IEP team meeting convened by the district, the district administrator or specialist on the team shall inform
the parent/guardian and student of the federal and state procedural safeguards included in the notice of parental
rights provided pursuant to Education Code 56321. (Education Code 56500.1}

The parent/guardian shall have the right and opportunity to examine all of the student's school records upon request,
before any IEP meeting, and in connection with any hearing or resolution session on matters affecting the student,
including, but not limited to, initial formal assessment, procedural safeguards, and due process. Upon receipt of an
oral or written request, the Superintendent or designee shall provide complete copies of the records within five
business days. (Education Code 56043, 56504)

The parent/guardian shall have the right to present information to the IEP team in person or through a
representative and the right to participate in meetings that relate to eligibility for special education and related
services, recommendations, and program planning. (Education Code 56341.1)

If neither parent/guardian can attend the meeting, the Superintendent or designee shall use other methods to ensure
parent/guardian participation, including video conferences or individual or conference telephone calls. (Education
Code 56341.5; 20 USC 1414; 34 CFR 300.322}

An IEP team meeting may be conducted without a parent/guardian in attendance if the Superintendent or designee
is unable to convince the parent/guardian to attend. In such a case, the Superintendent or designee shall maintain a
record of the attempts to arrange a mutually agreed upon time and place for the meeting, including: (Education
Code 56341.5; 34 CFR 300.322)



1. Detailed records of telephone calls made or attempted and the results of those calls
2. Copies of correspondence sent to the parent/guardian and any responses received

3. Detailed records of visits made to the parent/guardian’s home or place of employment and the results of those
visits

The Superintendent or designee shall take any action necessary to ensure that the parents/guardians understand the
proceedings of the meeting, including arranging for an interpreter for parents/guardians with deafness or whose
native language is not English. {Education Code 56341.5; 34 CFR 300.322)

The Superintendent or designee shall give the parents/guardians of a student with an exceptional need a copy of the
IEP at no cost. (Education Code 56341.5; 34 CFR 300.322}

Parent/Guardian Consent for Provision of Special Education and Services

Before providing special education and related services to any student pursuant to 20 USC 1414, the Superintendent
or designee shall seek to obtain informed consent of the student's parent/guardian. (Education Code 56346)

If the parent/guardian fails to respond or refuses to consent to the initiation of services, the district shall not use the
due process hearing procedures pursuant to 20 USC 1415 to obtain agreement or a ruling that the services may be
provided to the student. In such circumstances, the district shall not be required to convene an IEP team or develop
an IEP for the student. {Education Code 56346)

If the parent/guardian consents in writing to the receipt of special education and related services for the student but
does not consent to all of the components of the IEP, then those components to which the parent/guardian has
consented shall be implemented so as not to delay providing instruction and services to the student. If the
Superintendent or designee determines that a part of a proposed 1EP to which the parent/guardian does not consent
is necessary in order to provide the student with FAPE, a due process hearing shall be initiated in accordance with 20
USC 1415. While the due process hearing is pending, the student shall remain in the current placement unless the
parent/guardian and the Superintendent or designee agree otherwise. (Education Code 56346)

If at any time subsequent to the initial provision of services, the student's parent/guardian, in writing, revokes
consent for the continued provision of special education services, the Superintendent or designee shall provide prior
written notice within a reasonable time before ceasing to provide services to the student. The Superintendent or
designee shall not request a due process hearing or pursue mediation in order to require an agreement or ruling that
services be provided to the student. {Education Code 56346; 34 CFR 300.300, 300.503})

Prior to the discontinuation of services, the Superintendent or designee may offer to meet with the
parents/guardians to discuss concerns for the student's education. However, this meeting shall be voluntary on the
part of the parent/guardian and shall not delay the implementation of the parent/guardian's request for
discontinuation of services.

When the district ceases to provide special education services in response to the parent/guardian’s revocation of
consent, the student shall be classified as a general education student.

Transfer Students

To facilitate the transition of a student with an exceptional need who is transferring into the district, the
Superintendent or designee shall take reasonable steps to promptly obtain the student's records, including the IEP
and the supporting documents related to the provision of special education services. {Education Code 56325; 34
CFR 300.323)

If the student transfers into the district from another school district within the same Special Education Local Plan
Area (SELPA) during the school year, the district shall continue to provide services comparable to those described in
the student's existing IEP, unless the student's parent/guardian and the district agree to develop, adopt, and
implement a new |EP that is consistent with state and federal law. (Education Code 56325; 34 CFR 300.323)



If the student transfers into the district from a school district outside of the district’'s SELPA during the school year,
the district shall provide the student with FAPE, including services comparable to those described in the previous
district's IEP in consultation with the student's parent/guardian, for a period not to exceed 30 days. By the end of
that period, the district shall either adopt the previous district's IEP or shall develop, adopt, and implement a new |IEP
that is consistent with state and federal law. (Education Code 56325; 34 CFR 300.323)

If the student transfers into the district from an out-of-state district during the school year, the district shall provide
the student with FAPE, including services comparable to the out-of-state district's IEP, in consultation with the
parent/guardian, until such time as the Superintendent or designee conducts an assessment, if it determines that
such an assessment is necessary, and develops, adopts, and implements a new IEP, if appropriate. (Education Code
56325; 34 CFR 300.323)



Board Policy Manual
Blochman Union Elementary School District

Regulation 6159: Individualized Education Program Status: DRAFT
Original Adopted Date: 11/14/2017 | Last Revised Date: 08/11/2020

At the beginning of each school year, the district shall have an individualized education program (IEP) in effect for
each student with an exceptional need within district jurisdiction. The IEP shall be a written statement that is
developed, reviewed, and revised by the IEP team to meet the unigue educational needs of a student with an
exceptional need. (Education Code 56344, 56345; 34 CFR 300.320, 300.323)

Members of the IEP Team

Unless excused by written agreement in accordance with Education Code 56341, the IEP team for any student with
an exceptional need shall include the following members: (Education Code 56341, 56341.5; 20 USC 1414, 34 CFR
300.321)
1. One or both of the student’s parents/guardians and/or a representative selected by them
To the extent permitted by federal law, a foster parent shall have the same rights relative to a foster child's IEP
as a parent/guardian. (Education Code 56055)
2. If the student is or may be participating in the general education program, at least one of the student's general

education teachers designated by the Superintendent or designee to represent the student's general education
teachers

The general education teacher shall, to the extent appropriate, participate in the development, review, and
revision of the student's IEP, including assisting in the determination of appropriate positive behavioral
interventions, supports, and other strategies for the student, and supplementary aids and services, program
modifications, and supports for school personnel that will be provided for the student, consistent with 34 CFR
300.320. {Education Code 56341; 20 USC 1414; 34 CFR 300.324)

3. At least one of the student's special education teachers or, where appropriate, special education providers

4, A representative of the district who is:

a. Qualified to provide or supervise the provision of specially designed instruction to meet the unigue
needs of students with exceptional needs

b. Knowledgeable about the general education curriculum
¢. Knowledgeable about the availability of district resources
5. An individual who can interpret the instructional implications of assessment results
This individual may already be a member of the team as described in Items #2-4 above or in |tem #6 below.

6. At the discretion of the parent/guardian or the Superintendent or designee, other individuals who have
knowledge or special expertise regarding the student, including related services personnel, as appropriate

The determination of whether the individual has knowledge or special expertise regarding the student shall be
made by the party who invites the individual to be a member of the IEP team.

7. Whenever appropriate, the student

In the development, review, or revision of the IEP, the student shall be allowed to provide confidential input to
any representative of the IEP team, (Education Code 56341.5)

8. When the student is suspected of having a specific learning disability, at least one individual who is qualified to
conduct individual diagnostic examinations of the student such as a school psychologist, speech language
pathologist, or remedial reading teacher



In accordance with 34 CFR 300.310, at least one team member other than the student's general education
teacher shall observe the student's academic performance and behavior in the areas of difficulty in the
student's learning environment, including in the general education classroom setting. If the child is younger
than five years or not enrolled in school, a team member shall observe the child in an environment appropriate
for a child of that age.

In the following circumstances, the Superintendent or designee shall invite other specified individuals to an IEP team
meeting:

1. When the student has been placed in a group home by the juvenile court, a representative of the group home
shall be invited to attend the IEP team meeting {(Education Code 56341.2)

2, Whenever the IEP team is meeting to consider the student’s postsecondary goals and the transition services

needed to assist the student in reaching the goals, the following individuals shall be invited to attend: {34 CFR
300.321)

a. The student, regardless of the student's age

If the student does not attend the IEP team meeting, the Superintendent or designee shall take other
steps to ensure that the student's preferences and interests are considered.

b. To the extent appropriate, and with the consent of the parent/guardian or adult student, a
representative of any other agency that is likely to be responsible for providing or paying for the
transition services

3. If the student was previously served under the Early Education for Individuals with Exceptional Needs
{Education Code 56425-56432) or the California Early Intervention Services Act (Government Code $5000-
95004), and upon request of the student's parent/guardian, the Superintendent or designee shall invite the
Infant and Toddlers with Disabilities Coordinator or other representative of the early education or early
intervention system to the initial IEP team meeting to assist with the smooth transition of services (Education
Code 56341; 20 USC 1414; 34 CFR 300.321)

A member of the IEP team shall not be required to attend an IEP team meeting, in whole or in part, if the
parent/guardian and the district agree, in writing, that the attendance of the member is not necessary because the
member's area of the curriculum or related services is not being modified or discussed at the meeting. Even if the
meeting involves a discussion of the |IEP team member's area of the curriculum or related service, the member may
be excused from the meeting if the parent/guardian, in writing, and the district consent to the excusal after
conferring with the member and the member submits to the parent/guardian and team written input into the
development of the IEP prior to the meeting. (Education Code 56043, 56341; 20 USC 1414; 34 CFR 300.321)

Contents of the IEP
The IEP shall include, but not be limited to, all of the following: (Education Code 56345, 56345.1; 20 USC 1414; 34
CFR 300.320)

1. A statement of the present levels of the student's academic achievement and functional performance,
including:

a. The manner in which the exceptional need affects the student's involvement and progress in the general
education curriculum (i.e., the same curriculum as for a student without exceptional needs)

b. For a preschool student, as appropriate, the manner in which the exceptional need affects the student's
participation in appropriate activities

¢. For a student with an exceptional need who takes alternate assessments aligned to alternate
achievement standards, a description of benchmarks or short-term objectives

2. A statement of measurable annual goals, including academic and functional goals, designed to:

a. Meet the student's needs that result from an exceptional need in order to enable the student to be
involved in and make progress in the general education curriculum



b. Meet each of the student’s other educational needs that result from the exceptional need

3. A description of the manner in which the student's progress toward meeting the annual goals described in ltem

10.

11.

12.

#2 above will be measured and when the district will provide periodic reports on the progress the student is
making toward meeting the annual goals, such as through the use of quarterly or other periodic reports,
concurrent with the issuance of report cards

. A statement of the special education instruction and related services and supplementary aids and services,

based on peer-reviewed research to the extent practicable, to be provided to the student or on behalf of the
student, and a statement of the program modifications or supports for school personnel that will be provided
to enable the student to:

a. Advance appropriately toward attaining the annual goals

b. Be involved and make progress in the general education curriculum in accordance with ltem #1 above
and to participate in extracurricular and other nonacademic activities

¢. Be educated and participate with other students with exceptional needs and students without
exceptional needs in the activities described in the IEP

. An explanation of the extent, if any, to which the student will not participate with students without

exceptional needs in the regular class and in extracurricular and other nonacademic activities described in the
IEP

A statement of any appropriate individual accommodations necessary to measure the academic achievement
and functional performance of the student on state and districtwide assessments

If the IEP team determines that the student shall take an alternate assessment instead of a particular regular
state or districtwide assessment, the student’s IEP shall also include a statement of the reason that the student
cannot participate in the regular assessment and the reason that the particular alternate assessment selected is
appropriate.

. The projected date for the beginning of the services and modifications described in Item #4 above and the

anticipated frequency, location, and duration of those services and modifications

If determined appropriate by the IEP team, when the student starts high school or not later than the first IEP to
be in effect when the student is 16 years of age, or younger, and updated annually thereafter, the following:

a. Appropriate measurable postsecondary goals based upon age-appropriate transition assessments related
to training, education, employment, and where appropriate, independent living skills

b. The transition services, including courses of study, needed to assist the student in reaching those goals

. A description of the means by which the IEP will be provided under emergency conditions, as described in

Education Code 46392, in which instruction and/or services cannot be provided to the student either at the
school or in person for more than 10 school days

The description shall take into account public health orders and shall include special education and related
services, supplementary aids and services, transition services, and extended school year services.

Beginning at least one year before the student reaches age 18, a statement that the student has been informed

of the rights, if any, that will transfer to the student upon reaching age 18, pursuant to Education Code
56041.5

For a student in grades 7-12, any alternative means and modes necessary for the student to complete the
district's prescribed course of study and to meet or exceed proficiency standards required for graduation

For a student whose native language is not English, linguistically appropriate goals, objectives, programs, and
services



13. Extended school year services when the IEP team determines, on an individual basis, that the services are
necessary for the provision of a free appropriate public education (FAPE)

14. If the student is to be transferred from a special class or nonpublic, nonsectarian school into a general
education program in a public school for any part of the school day, provision for transition into the general
education program including descriptions of activities intended to:

a. Integrate the student into the general education program, including the nature of each activity and the
time spent on the activity each day or week

b. Support the transition of the student from the special education program into the general education
program

15. For a student with low incidence disabilities, specialized services, materials, and equipment consistent with the
guidelines pursuant to Education Code 56136

To assist a student who is blind, has low vision, or is visually impaired to achieve the student's maximum potential,
the IEP team may consider instruction in the expanded core curriculum, including compensatory skills such as Braille,
concept development, or other skills needed to access the core curriculum; orientation and mobility; social
interaction skills; career technical education; assistive technology, including optical devices; independent living skills;
recreation and Jeisure; self-determination; and sensory efficiency, When appraopriate, such services may be offered
before or after school. {Education Code 56353)

Development of the IEP

Within 30 days of a determination that a student needs special education and related services, the Superintendent or
designee shall ensure that a meeting to develop an initial IEP is conducted. {Education Code 56043; 34 CFR
300.323}

Any IEP required as a result of an assessment of a student shall be developed within 60 days from the date of receipt
of the parent/guardian's written consent for assessment, unless the parent/guardian agrees, in writing, to an
extension. Days between the student's regular school sessions, terms, or vacation of more than five school days shall
not be counted. In the case of school vacations, the 60-day time limit shall recommence on the date that the
student’s school days reconvene. (Education Code 56043, 56344)

However, when the IEP is required as a result of an assessment of a student for whom a referral has been made 30
days or less prior to the end of the preceding regular school year, the IEP shall be developed within 30 days after the
commencement of the subsequent regular school year. (Education Code 56344}

In developing the IEP, the IEP team shall consider all of the following: {Education Code 56040.6, 56341.1, 56345;
20 USC 1414; 34 CFR 300.324)

1. The strengths of the student

2. The concerns of the parents/guardians for enhancing the education of their child
3. The results of the initial or most recent assessment of the student

4. The academic, developmental, and functional needs of the student

5. In the case of a student whose behavior impedes the student’s learning or that of others, the use of positive
behavioral interventions and supports and other strategies to address that behavior

6. In the case of a student with limited English proficiency, the language needs of the student as such needs
relate to the student's [EP

7. In the case of a student who is blind or visually impaired, the need to provide for instruction in Braille and
instruction in the use of Braille

However, such instruction need not be included in the [EP if the [EP team determines that instruction in Braille
or the use of Braille is not appropriate for the student. This determination shall be based upon an assessment



of the student's reading and writing skills, needs, and appropriate reading and writing media, including an
assessment of future needs for instruction in Braille or the use of Braille.

8. The communication needs of the student and, in the case of a student who is deaf, hard of hearing, or deaf-
blind, the student's language and communication needs, opportunities for direct communications with peers
and professional personnel in the student's language and communication mode, academic level, and full range
of needs, including opportunities for direct instruction in the student's language and communication made

The team shall also consider placements, related services, and program options that provide the student with
an equal opportunity for communication access, as described in Education Code 56345.

9. Whether the student requires assistive technology devices and services, including artificial intelligence devices
and services

If, in considering the special factors in ltems #1-9 above, the IEP team determines that the student needs a particular
device or service, including an intervention, accommeodation, or other program modification, in order to receive
FAPE, the team shall include a statement to that effect in the student's IEP. (Education Code 56341.1)

Provision of Special Education and Related Services

The district shall ensure that, as soon as possible following development of the IEP, special education and refated
services are made available to the student in accordance with the IEP. {Education Code 56344; 34 CFR 300.323)

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that the student's IEP is accessible to each general education teacher,
special education teacher, related service provider, and any other service provider who is responsible for its
implementation. The Superintendent or designee also shall ensure that such teachers and providers are informed of
their specific responsibilities related to implementing the IEP and the specific accommodations, modifications, and
supports that must be provided to the student in accordance with the 1EP, {34 CFR 300.323)

If an orientation and mobility evaluation is determined to be needed for a student who is blind, has low vision, or is
visually impaired, the evaluation shall be conducted by a person who is appropriately certified as an orientation and
mobility specialist and shall occur in familiar and unfamiliar environments, in varying lighting conditions, and in the
home, school, and community, as appropriate. The Superintendent or designee may require annual written
parent/guardian consent to provide orientation and mobility services when such services are provided before or
after school and when they are provided away from the school site. {Education Code 56354; 5 CCR 3051.3)

If a student's IEP requires the provision of assistive technology devices or services, including artificial intelligence
services, the district shall provide such devices or services and shall, on a case-by-case basis, provide for the use of
school-purchased devices or services in the student's home or other settings if the IEP team determines that the
student needs access to those devices or services in order to receive FAPE. If a student who requires the use of an
assistive technology device or services transfers to another local educational agency, the district shall provide the
student with continued access to that device or services or a comparable device or service for two months from the
date the student ceased to be enrolled in the district or until alternative arrangements can be made to provide access
to the device, whichever occurs first, (Education Code 56040.3; 34 CFR 300.105)

Review and Revision of the IEP

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that the |EP team reviews the IEP periodically, but at least annually, in
order to: {Education Code 56043, 56341.1, 56380; 20 USC 1414; 34 CFR 300.324)

1. Determine whether the annual goals for the student are being achieved
2. Revise the IEP, as appropriate, to address:

a. Any lack of expected progress toward the annual goals and in the general education curriculum, where
appropriate

b. The results of any reassessment conducted pursuant to Education Code 56381



c. Information about the student provided to or by the parents/guardians regarding review of evaluation
data pursuant to 34 CFR 300.305 and Education Code 56381

d. The student’s anticipated needs
e. Any other relevant matter

3. Consider the special factors listed in Iltems #5-9 above, under "Development of the |IEP," when reviewing the
|IEP of any student with an exceptional need to whom one of those factors may apply

The IEP team shall also meet at any other time upon request by the student's parent/guardian or teacher to review
or revise the IEP. {(Education Code 56343)

When a parent/guardian requests an |[EP team meeting to review the [EP, the team shall meet within 30 days of
receiving the parent/guardian's written request, not counting days between the student's regular school sessions or
terms or days of schoo! vacation in excess of five school days. If a parent/guardian makes an oral request, the district
shall notify the parent/guardian of the need for a written request and the procedure for filing such a request.
(Education Code 56043, 56343.5)

A regular education or special education teacher may request a review of the classroom assignment of a student with
an exceptional need by submitting a written request to the Superintendent or designee. The Superintendent or
designee shall consider the request within 20 days of receiving it, not counting days when school is not in session or,
for year-round schools, days when the school is off track. If the review indicates a need for change in the student's
placement, instruction, and/or related services, the Superintendent or designee shall convene an IEP team meeting,
which shall be held within 30 days of the Superintendent or designee's review, not counting days when school is not

in session or days when school is off track, unless the student's parent/guardian consents in writing to an extension
of time.

If a participating agency other than the district fails to provide the transition services described in the student’s IEP,
the team shall reconvene to identify alternative strategies to meet the transition service objectives set out for the
student in the IEP. {Education Code 56345.1; 20 USC 1414; 34 CFR 300.324)

If a student with an exceptional need residing in a licensed children's institution or foster family home has been
placed by the district in a nonpublic, nonsectarian school, the Superintendent or designee shall conduct an annual
evaluation as part of the IEP process of whether the placement is the least restrictive environment that is
appropriate to meet the student's needs. {Education Code 56157)

To the extent possible, the Superintendent or designee shall encourage the consolidation of reassessment meetings
and other IEP team meetings for a student. {20 USC 1414; 34 CFR 300.324)}

When a change is necessary to a student's IEP after the annual IEP team meeting for the school year has been held,
the parent/guardian and the Superintendent or designee may agree not to convene an IEP team meeting for the
purpose of making the change and instead may develop a written document to amend or modify the student's
current |IEP. The IEP team shall be informed of any such changes. Upon request, the Superintendent or designee shall
provide the parent/guardian with a revised copy of the IEP with the incorporated amendments. {Education Code
56380.1; 20 USC 1414; 34 CFR 300.324}

Audio Recording of IEP Team Meetings

Parents/guardians and the Superintendent or designee shall have the right to audio record the proceedings of IEP
team meetings, provided members of the IEP team are notified of this intent at least 24 hours before the meeting. If
the Superintendent or designee gives notice of intent to audio record a meeting and the parent/guardian objects or
refuses to attend because the meeting would be audio recorded, the meeting shall not be audio recorded.
Parents/guardians also have the right to: {Education Code 56341.1)

1. Inspect and review the audio recordings

2. Request that an audio recording be amended if they believe it contains information that is inaccurate,
misleading, or in violation of the student’s privacy rights or other rights



3. Challenge, in a hearing, information that the parents/guardians believe is inaccurate, misleading, or in violation
of the student's privacy rights or other rights

Parent/Guardian Participation and Other Rights

The Superintendent or designee shall take steps to ensure that one or both of the parents/guardians of the student
with an exceptional need are present at each |EP team meeting or are afforded the opportunity to participate. These
steps shall include notifying the parents/guardians of the meeting early enough to ensure that they will have the
opportunity to attend and scheduling the meeting at a mutually agreed upon time and place. {Education Code
56341.5; 34 CFR 300.322)

The Superintendent or designee shall send parents/guardians notices of {EP team meetings that: {Education Code
56341.5; 34 CFR 300.322)

1. Indicate the purpose, time, and location of the meeting
2. Indicate who will be in attendance at the meeting

3. Inform them of:

a. Their right to bring to the meeting other individuals who have knowledge or special expertise about the
student, pursuant to Education Code 56341

b. The provision of Education Code 56341 relating to the participation of the infant and Toddlers with
Disabilities Coordinator at the initial IEP team meeting, if the student was previously served under Early
Education for Individuals with Exceptional Needs (Education Code 56425-56432) or the California Early
intervention Services Act (Government Code 95000-95004)

Additionally, when the IEP team meeting is to consider the development, review, or revision of the IEP of a student
with an exceptional need who is 16 years of age or older, or younger than 16 if deemed appropriate by the IEP team,
the Superintendent or designee’s notice to the student's parents/guardians shall include the following: (Education
Code 56341.5)

1. Anindication that a purpose of the meeting will be the consideration of postsecondary goals and transition
services for the student pursuant to Education Code 56345.1, 20 USC 1414, and 34 CFR 300.320

2, Anindication that the student is invited to the |IEP team meeting

At each |EP team meeting convened by the district, the district administrator or specialist on the team shall inform
the parent/guardian and student of the federal and state procedural safeguards included in the notice of parental
rights provided pursuant to Education Code 56321. (Education Code 56500.1}

The parent/guardian shali have the right and opportunity to examine all of the student's school records upon request,
before any IEP meeting, and in connection with any hearing or resolution session on matters affecting the student,
including, but not limited to, initial formal assessment, procedural safeguards, and due process. Upon receipt of an
oral or written request, the Superintendent or designee shall provide complete copies of the records within five
business days. (Education Code 56043, 56504)

The parent/guardian shall have the right to present information to the IEP team in person or through a
representative and the right to participate in meetings that relate to eligibility for special education and related
services, recommendations, and program planning. (Education Code 56341.1)

If neither parent/guardian can attend the meeting, the Superintendent or designee shall use other methods to ensure
parent/guardian participation, including video conferences or individual or conference telephone calls. (Education
Code 56341,5; 20 USC 1414; 34 CFR 300.322)

An IEP team meeting may be conducted without a parent/guardian in attendance if the Superintendent or designee
is unable to convince the parent/guardian to attend. In such a case, the Superintendent or designee shall maintain a

record of the attempts to arrange a mutually agreed upon time and place for the meeting, including: (Education
Code 56341.5; 34 CFR 300.322)



1. Detailed records of telephone calls made or attempted and the results of those calls
2, Copies of correspondence sent to the parent/guardian and any responses received

3. Detailed records of visits made to the parent/guardian's home or place of employment and the results of those
visits

The Superintendent or designee shall take any action necessary to ensure that the parents/guardians understand the
proceedings of the meeting, including arranging for an interpreter for parents/guardians with deafness or whose
native language is not English. (Education Code 56341.5; 34 CFR 300.322)

The Superintendent or designee shall give the parents/guardians of a student with an exceptional need a copy of the
IEP at no cost. (Education Code 56341.5; 34 CFR 300.322)

Parent/Guardian Consent for Provision of Special Education and Services

Before providing special education and related services to any student pursuant to 20 USC 1414, the Superintendent
or designee shall seek to obtain informed consent of the student's parent/guardian. (Education Code 56346}

If the parent/guardian fails to respond or refuses to consent to the initiation of services, the district shall not use the
due process hearing procedures pursuant to 20 USC 1415 to obtain agreement or a ruling that the services may be
provided to the student. In such circumstances, the district shall not be required to convene an IEP team or develop
an EP for the student. {Education Code 56346)

If the parent/guardian consents in writing to the receipt of special education and related services for the student but
does not consent to all of the components of the IEP, then those components to which the parent/guardian has
consented shall be implemented so as not to delay providing instruction and services to the student. If the
Superintendent or designee determines that a part of a proposed |EP to which the parent/guardian does not consent
is necessary in order to provide the student with FAPE, a due process hearing shall be initiated in accordance with 20
USC 1415. While the due process hearing is pending, the student shall remain in the current placement unless the
parent/guardian and the Superintendent or designee agree otherwise, {Education Code 56346}

If at any time subsequent to the initial provision of services, the student's parent/guardian, in writing, revokes
consent for the continued provision of special education services, the Superintendent or designee shall provide prior
written notice within a reasonable time before ceasing to provide services to the student. The Superintendent or
designee shall not request a due process hearing or pursue mediation in order to require an agreement or ruling that
services be provided to the student. (Education Code 56346; 34 CFR 300,300, 300.503)

Prior to the discontinuation of services, the Superintendent or designee may offer to meet with the
parents/guardians to discuss concerns for the student’s education. However, this meeting shall be voluntary on the
part of the parent/guardian and shall not delay the implementation of the parent/guardian’s request for
discontinuation of services,

When the district ceases to provide special education services in response to the parent/guardian's revocation of
consent, the student shall be classified as a general education student.

Transfer Students

To facilitate the transition of a student with an exceptional need who is transferring into the district, the
Superintendent or designee shall take reasonable steps to promptly obtain the student's records, including the IEP
and the supporting documents related to the provision of special education services. {Education Code 56325; 34
CFR 300.323)

If the student transfers into the district from another school district within the same Special Education Local Plan
Area {SELPA} during the school year, the district shall continue to provide services comparable to those described in
the student's existing IEP, unless the student's parent/guardian and the district agree to develop, adopt, and
implement a new IEP that is consistent with state and federal law. (Education Code 56325; 34 CFR 300.323)



If the student transfers into the district from a school district outside of the district’s SELPA during the school year,
the district shall provide the student with FAPE, including services comparable to those described in the previous
district's IEP in consultation with the student's parent/guardian, for a period not to exceed 30 days. By the end of
that period, the district shall either adopt the previous district's 1EP or shall develop, adopt, and implement a new |EP
that is consistent with state and federal law. (Education Code 56325; 34 CFR 300.323}

If the student transfers into the district from an out-of-state district during the school year, the district shall provide
the student with FAPE, including services comparable to the out-of-state district's IEP, in consultation with the
parent/guardian, until such time as the Superintendent or designee conducts an assessment, if it determines that
such an assessment is necessary, and develops, adopts, and implements a new IEP, if appropriate. (Education Code
56325; 34 CFR 300.323)



Board Policy Manual
Blochman Union Elementary School District

Policy 6159.2: Nonpublic, Nonsectarian School And Agency Services For Special Education Status: DRAFT
Original Adopted Date: 11/14/2017 | Last Revised Date: 08/08/2023

The Governing Board recognizes its responsibility to provide a free appropriate public education to students with
exceptional needs in accordance with law, When the district is unable to provide direct special education and/or
related services to students with exceptional needs, the Board may enter into a contract with a nonpublic,
nonsectarian school or agency (NPS/A) to meet student needs consistent with the comprehensive local plan of the
Special Education Local Plan Area.

Prior to entering into a contract to place any student in an NPS/A, the Superintendent or designee shall verify that
the school or agency is certified to provide special education and related services to individuals with exceptional
needs and complies with staff training requirements in accordance with Education Code 56366 and 56366.1.

Additionally, the Superintendent or designee, such as the district's liaison for foster youth, shall verify that for any
student served by an NPS/A who is a foster youth, the NPS/A agrees to serve as the school of origin of the foster
youth and allow the foster youth to continue the foster youth's education in the NPS/A in accordance with
Education Code 56366.1.

The Superintendent or designee shall monitor, on an ongoing basis, the certification of any NPS/A with which the
district has a contract to ensure that the certification has not expired.

Within 14 days of becoming aware of any change to the certification status of an NPS/A, including, but not limited
to, receiving notification of a determination to suspend or revoke the certification of the NPS/A pursuant to
Education Code 56366.4, the district shall notify, through email or regular mail, the parents/guardians of any district
student who attends the NPS/A of the change in certification status, which includes a copy of procedural safeguards.
The district shall maintain a record of such notice and make the notice available for inspection upon request by the
California Department of Education. {Education Code 56366.45)

No district student with exceptional needs shall be referred to, or placed in, an NPS/A unless the student's
individualized education program (IEP) team has determined that the placement is appropriate for the student.
{Education Code 56342.1)

The district shall pay to the NPS/A the full amount of the tuition or fees, as applicable, for students with exceptional
needs who are enrolled in programs or receiving services provided by the NPS/A pursuant to the contract.
{Education Code 56365)

In accordance with law, any student with exceptional needs placed in an NPS/A shall have all the rights and
protections to which students with exceptional needs are generally entitled, including, but not limited to, procedural
safeguards, due process rights, and periodic review of the student's |EP.

During the period when any student with exceptional needs is placed in an NPS/A, the student's IEP team shall retain
responsibility for monitoring the student's progress towards meeting the goals identified in the |EP.

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that any contract with an NPS/A contains a requirement for the NPS/A
to comply with district policy, procedures, and practices related to student rights, health, and safety, including the
use of seclusion and restraint. All NPS/A staff that serve district students shall be made aware of, and trained in such
policies, procedures, and practices.

The Superintendent or designee shalt notify the Board prior to approving an out-of-state placement for any district
student.

The Superintendent or designee may apply to the Superintendent of Public Instruction to waive any of the
requirements of Education Code 56365, 56366, and 56366.6. (Education Code 56366.2)



Board Policy Manual
Blochman Union Elementary School District

Regulation 6159.2: Nonpublic, Nonsectarian School And Agency Services For Special Status: DRAFT
Education

Original Adopted Date: 11/14/2017 | Last Revised Date: 08/11/2020

Master Contract

Every master contract between the district and a nonpublic, nonsectarian school or agency (NPS/A) shall specify the
general administrative and financial agreements for providing special education and designated instruction and
services. The master contract shall be for a term not to exceed one year and shall be renegotiated prior to June 30.
Provisions of the contract shall include, but not be limited to: (Education Code 56366; 5 CCR 3062)

1. Student-teacher ratios
2. Transportation specified in a student's individualized education program (IEP}

The contract shall not include special education transportation provided through the use of services or
equipment owned, leased, or contracted by the district for students enrolled in the NPS/A unless provided
directly or subcontracted by that NPS/A.

3. Procedures for recordkeeping and documentation

4. The maintenance of school records by the district to ensure that appropriate high school graduation credit is
received by any participating student

5. Anindividual services agreement for each student, which will be negotiated for the length of time for which
NPS/A special education and designated instruction and services are specified in the student’s IEP

6. A description of the process to be utilized by the district to oversee and evaluate placements in the NPS/A,
including a method for evaluating whether each student is making appropriate educational progress

7. Procedures and responsibilities for attendance and unexcused absences

8. General provisions related to modifications and amendments to the contract, waivers, disputes, contractor's
status, conflicts of interest, termination, inspection and audits, compliance with applicable state and federal
laws and regulations, and indemnification and insurance requirements

9. Payment schedules, including, but not limited to, payment amounts, payment demand, right to withhold, and
audit exceptions

The contract may allow for partial or full-time attendance at the NPS/A. (Education Code 56366)

With mutual agreement of the district and NPS/A, changes may be made to the administrative and financial
agreements in the master contract at any time, provided the change does not alter a student's educational
instruction, services, or placement as outlined in the student's individual services agreement. (Education Code
56366)

The master contract or individual services agreement may be terminated for cause if either party gives 20 days’
notice. However, the availability of a public education program initiated during the period of the contract shall not
give cause for termination unless the parent/guardian agrees to transfer the student to the program. (Education
Code 56366)

Placement and Services

For any student to be placed in an NPS/A, the Superintendent or designee shall develop an individual services
agreement based on the student's IEP. Each individual services agreement shall specify the length of time authorized
in the student's IEP for the NPS/A services, not to exceed one year. Changes in a student's educational instruction,
services, or placement shall be made only on the basis of revisions to the student's IEP. (Education Code 56364)



At least once each year, the district shall: (Education Code 56366)

1. Evaluate the educational progress of each student placed in an NPS/A, including a review of state assessment
results

2. During the annual meeting held to review the student's IEP pursuant to Education Code 56343, consider
whether the student's needs continue to be best met at the NP5/A and whether changes to the student's IEP
are necessary, including whether the student may be transitioned to a public school setting

Prior to the annual review of a student's IEP, the Superintendent or designee shall notify any high school district to
which the student may transfer of the student's enrollment in an NPS/A. {5 CCR 3069)

When a special education student meets the district requirements for completion of the prescribed course of study
as designated in the student's IEP, the district shall award the student a diploma of graduation. (5 CCR 3070)

However, a student with exceptional needs who entered the ninth grade in the 2022-23 school year or later shall be
exempted from all coursework and other requirements adopted by the Governing Board that are in addition to the
statewide course requirements for high school graduation, if the student’s IEP meets the criteria specified in law and
Board Policy 6146.4 - Differential Graduation and Competency Standards for Students with Disabilities. (Education
Code 51225.31)

Additionally, the Superintendent or designee may, until July 1, 2031, exempt a student with exceptional needs who
was enrolled in grade 10 or higher in the 2022-23 school year from all coursewaork and other requirements adopted
by the Board that are in addition to the statewide course requirements for high school graduation if the student
meets the eligibility criteria specified in Education Code 51225.32.

Qut-of-State Placements

Before contracting with an NPS/A outside California, the Superintendent or designee shall document the district's
efforts to use public schools and/or to find an appropriate program offered by an NPS/A within California.
(Education Code 56365)

Within 15 days of any decision for an out-of-state placement, the student's IEP team shall submit to the
Superintendent of Public Instruction a report with information about the services provided by the out-of-state
program, the costs of the special education and related services provided, and the district's efforts to locate an
appropriate public school or NPS/A within California. (Education Code 56365)

If the district decides to place a student with an NPS/A outside the state, the district shall indicate the anticipated
date of the student's return to a placement within California and shall document efforts during the previous year to
return the student to California. (Education Code 56365)

On-Site Visits

The Superintendent or designee shall conduct an on-site visit to an NPS/A before the placement of a student at the
NPS/A, if the district does not have any other students currently enrolled at the NPS/A. (Education Code 56366.1)
At least once per year, the Superintendent or designee shall conduct an on-site monitoring visit to each NPS/A at

which the district has a student attending and with which it maintains a master contract. The monitoring visit shall
include, but is not limited to: {Education Code 56366.1)

1. Areview of services provided to the student through the individual services agreement
2. A review of progress the student is making toward the goals set forth in the student's IEP

3. Areview of progress the student is making toward the goals set forth in the student's behavioral intervention
plan, if applicable



4. An observation of the student during instruction

5. A walkthrough of the facility

The district shall report the findings resulting from the monitoring visit to the California Department of Education
within 60 calendar days of the on-site visit. (Education Code 56366.1)



Board Policy Manual
Blochman Union Elementary School District

Bylaw 9224: Oath Or Affirmation Status: DRAFT
Original Adopted Date: 11/14/2017

Prior to entering upon the duties of the office of a Governing Board member or exercising any function of a Board
member, each Board member shall take the oath or affirmation required by law. (California Constitution, Article 20,
Section 3; Government Code 1360)

The oath or affirmation may be administered and certified by a Board member, the secretary or assistant secretary to
the Board, the Superintendent, the County Superintendent of Schools, the Superintendent of Public Instruction, or
any other person authorized in Education Code 60 or Government Code 1225,

The executed oath shall be filed with the County Clerk. (Government Code 1363}



Board Policy Manual
Blochman Union Elementary School District

Bylaw 9260; Legal Protection Status: DRAFT
Original Adopted Date: 11/14/2017

Liability Insurance

The Governing Board shall provide insurance necessary to protect Board members from liability caused by a
negligent act or omission that occurs within the scope of the Board member’s office in accordance with Education
Code 35208.

Protection Against Personal Liability

No Board member shall be liable for any harm caused by the Board member's negligent act or omission when acting
within the scope of the Board member's responsibilities, including, but not limited to, Board responsibilities as
specified in Board Bylaw 9000 - Role Of The Board. Additionally, no Board member shall be vicariously liable for
injuries caused by the district’s acts or omissions. (Education Code 35208; Government Code 820.9)

In addition, no Board member shall be liable for any harm caused by the Board member's act or omission if the Board
member was acting within the scope of the Board member's responsibilities, made in conformity with federal, state,
and local laws, and made in furtherance of an effort to control, discipline, expel or suspend a student, or maintain
order or control in the classroom or school. (20 USC 7946)

This protection against liability shall not apply when: (20 USC 7946)

1. The Board member acted with willful or criminal misconduct, gross negligence, recklessness, or a conscious,
flagrant indifference to the harmed person’s right to safety

2. The Board member caused harm by operating a motor vehicle

3. The Board member was not properly licensed, if required, by the State for such activities

4, The Board member was found by a court to have violated a federal or state civil rights law

5. The Board member was under the influence of alcchol or any drug at the time of the misconduct

6. The misconduct constituted a crime of violence pursuant to 18 USC 16 or an act of terrorism for which the
Board member has been convicted in a court

7. The misconduct involved a sexual offense for which the Board member has been convicted in a court

Nothing in this Board bylaw is intended to protect a Board member from criminal or civil liability for injury caused by
the Board member's own wrongful conduct, for certain violations of law, including the Brown Act, or for liability from
the requirement to reimburse the district under certain circumstances as specified in law. (Government Code 820.9,
825, 825.6, 54959, 54960)



	DOC006
	DOC007
	Board Policy Revisions May 2025
	DOC
	DOC000
	DOC001
	DOC002
	DOC003
	DOC004
	DOC005


